Cabinet
Meeting: Wednesday, 6th February 2019 at 6.00 pm in Civic Suite - North
Warehouse, The Docks, Gloucester, GL1 2EP
Membership:

Contact:

Cllrs. James (Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for
Regeneration and Economy) (Chair), Watkins (Deputy Leader and
Cabinet Member for Communities and Neighbourhoods), Cook
(Cabinet Member for Environment), Noakes (Cabinet Member for
Culture and Leisure), H. Norman (Cabinet Member for Performance
and Resources) and Organ (Cabinet Member for Planning and
Housing Strategy)
Democratic and Electoral Services
01452 396126
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or nonpecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please
see Agenda Notes.

3.

MINUTES (Pages 7 - 10)
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 9th January 2019.

4.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
The opportunity is given to members of the public to put questions to Cabinet Members or
Committee Chairs provided that a question does not relate to:



Matters which are the subject of current or pending legal proceedings, or
Matters relating to employees or former employees of the Council or comments in respect
of individual Council Officers

1

5.

PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)
To receive any petitions or deputations provided that no such petition or deputation is in
relation to:



6.

Matters relating to individual Council Officers, or
Matters relating to current or pending legal proceedings

LEADER AND CABINET MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
Any Member of the Council may ask the Leader of the Council or any Cabinet Member any
question without prior notice, upon:




Any matter relating to the Council’s administration
Any matter relating to any report of the Cabinet appearing on the summons
A matter coming within their portfolio of responsibilities

Only one supplementary question is allowed per question.

7.

FINAL BUDGET PROPOSALS (INCLUDING MONEY PLAN AND CAPITAL
PROGRAMME) (Pages 11 - 106)
To consider the report of the Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Performance and
Resources seeking review of the Council’s Money Plan for recommendation to Council.

8.

BUSINESS RATES - RETAIL DISCOUNT (Pages 107 - 132)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources that proposes
a discount scheme commensurate with the Government Budget announcement of October
2018 for retail discounts on business rates.

9.

COUNCIL TAX DISCOUNT FOR CARE LEAVERS (Pages 133 - 196)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources seeking that
Council Tax payable by Gloucestershire Care Leavers between the ages of 18 and 21
residing in Gloucester be reduced by determining a class of case under Section 13A(1)(c) of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

10.

DIGITAL STRATEGY FOR GLOUCESTER CITY (Pages 197 - 218)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Members for Performance and Resources and
Regeneration and Economy seeking to identify a digital strategy for the City of Gloucester
and the Council.

11.

FESTIVALS AND EVENTS 2019 (Pages 219 - 230)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure that seeks review of the
City Events Programme for 2018 and consideration and approval of the Programme for 2019

12.

TOURIST INFORMATION CENTRE RELOCATION (Pages 231 - 236)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure highlighting how public
access to visitor information services is changing and how the challenges of those changes
may be met by relocating the City’s `walk-in’ Visitor Information Service to Gloucester
Guildhall and the Museum of Gloucester.

2

13.

GLOUCESTER PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY DELIVERY (Pages 237 - 268)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Environment updating Members on
progress in the delivery of Council’s adopted Playing Pitch Strategy, seeking resolution on an
alternative delivery mechanism for onsite improvements to playing pitches and ancillary
facilities in City Council ownership in the future, and agreement to the continuation of the
Delivery Group.

14.

GLOUCESTER RAILWAY STATION (Pages 269 - 282)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economy seeking
approval to enter an agreement with First Greater Western Limited (GWR) in the sum of
£425,000 to progress the required design work at Gloucester Railway Station.
Please note that Appendix 1 is exempt from disclosure to the press and public by
virtue of Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
(information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
including the authority holding that information). If Members wish to discuss Appendix
B the Cabinet will need to resolve to exclude the press and public before doing so.

15.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
To resolve:
“That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the following item of business
on the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of business to be transacted or the nature
of the proceedings, that if members of the press and public are present during consideration
of this item there will be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended”.
Agenda Item No. Description of Exempt Information
13
Paragraph 3: Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any
particular person (including the authority holding that information).

16.

KINGS WALK AND KINGS QUARTER LEASE REVIEWS (Pages 283 - 290)
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economy that seeks
approval for the granting of new leases for properties in Kings Walk Shopping Centre.

Jon McGinty
Managing Director
Date of Publication: Tuesday, 29 January 2019

3

NOTES
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011.
Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows –
Interest

Prescribed description

Employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than
from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 months
(up to and including the date of notification of the interest) in
respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out duties as a
member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest)
and the Council
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are
to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged

Land

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area.
For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or
right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, your
spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the
land or to receive income.

Licences

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the
Council’s area for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) –
(a) the landlord is the Council; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil partner
or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner has
a beneficial interest

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where –
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land
in the Council’s area and
(b) either –
i. The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that
body; or
ii. If the share capital of that body is of more than one class,
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in
which you, your spouse or civil partner or person with

4

whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner has a
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.
For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture
stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
and other securities of any description, other than money
deposited with a building society.

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or
civil partner where you are aware of their interest.
Access to Information
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website:
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting
date.
For enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk.
If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this
information, or if you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information
please call 01452 396396.
Recording of meetings
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded. There is no requirement for those
wishing to record proceedings to notify the Council in advance; however, as a courtesy,
anyone wishing to do so is advised to make the Chair aware before the meeting starts.
Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors,
Officers, the Public and Press is not obstructed. The use of flash photography and/or
additional lighting will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in
advance of the meeting.
FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions:
 You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts;
 Do not stop to collect personal belongings;
 Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the
assembly point in the car park and await further instructions;
 Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is
safe to do so.

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

CABINET
MEETING

:

Wednesday, 9th January 2019

PRESENT

:

Cllrs. James (Chair), Cook, H. Norman and Organ
Others in Attendance
Managing Director
Corporate Director
Corporate Director
Head of Policy and Resources
Head of Communities
Democratic Services and Elections Officer

APOLOGIES
70.

:

Cllrs. Watkins and Noakes

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

71.

MINUTES
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 5th December 2018 be taken
as read and signed by the Chair.

72.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
There were no public questions.

73.

PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (15 MINUTES)
There were no petitions or deputations.

74.

LEADER AND CABINET MEMBERS' QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)
There were no questions to the Leader of the Council or Cabinet.

Page
17

CABINET
09.01.19
75.

COUNCIL TAX EMPTY HOMES PREMIUM
Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and
Resources that sought a Council Tax Empty Homes Premium to be applied to all
homes which meet the criteria at the specified rates.
The Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources summarised the key points
of the report and emphasised the importance of bringing empty homes back into
use. The Cabinet Member for Environment commented that these measures would
work alongside the incentive to private landlords initiative approved by Members at
the meeting of 7th November 2018 (Minute 55) which took a different approach to
the same goal of alleviating homelessness. The Cabinet Member for Planning and
Housing Strategy reassured Members that officers would consider the
circumstances of each case individually before applying the premium. The Cabinet
Member for Regeneration and Economy drew attention to the time periods allowed
for reoccupation before any premium would be applied and stated that the
measures were not intended to raise money but to encourage empty homes to be
returned to use.
RESOLVED it is recommended to Council that a Council Tax Empty Homes
Premium of 50% is implemented from 01 April 2019 in respect of properties that
have been unoccupied and substantially unfurnished for more than two years,
increasing to 100% from 01 April 2020. It is further recommended that the empty
homes premium be implemented from 01 April 2020 at 200% on properties which
have been empty for more than five years and from 01 April 2021 at 300% on
properties which have been empty for more than ten years.

76.

LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME
Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and
Resources that sought approval to retain the Local Council Tax Support Scheme
(LCTS) for 2019/20.
The Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources outlined the background to
the report and placed the scheme in the context of those undertaken by other local
authorities.
RESOLVED it is recommended to Council that the current Local Council Tax
Support scheme as the approved scheme for Gloucester City Council in 2018/19 be
adopted for 2019/20.

Page 28

CABINET
09.01.19
77.

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA) - REVIEW OF
PROCEDURAL GUIDE
Cabinet considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Performance and
Resources that updated Members on the Council’s use of its powers under the
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA).
The Cabinet Member for Planning and Housing Strategy commented that although
the powers had not been used, it was nonetheless important for Members to
continue to review the matter and ensure that the correct procedures were in place.
RESOLVED that the six monthly update on the use of RIPA powers be noted.

Time of commencement: 6.00 pm
Time of conclusion: 6.10 pm
Chair

Page 9 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Meeting:

Cabinet
Council

6th February 2019
28th February 2019

Subject:

Money Plan 2019-24 & Budget Proposals 2019/20

Report Of:

Leader of the Council &
Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Jon Topping, Head of Policy and Resources

Budget/Policy Framework:

Jon.topping@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Yes
Tel: 01452 396242

Money Plan 2019/20 – 2023/24
Budget Pressures & Savings
Savings Programme
2019/20 – 2023/24 Capital Programme
Budget Book
Fees & Charges
Budget Consultation
Flexible Use of Capital Receipts

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To review the Council’s Money Plan for recommendation to Council.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE to RECOMMEND to Council that:
(1) the proposals for the 2019/20 budget included in this report be approved.
(2) the implementation of the target budget reductions set in the Money plan 2019/24 be
approved.
(3) it be noted that consultation has been undertaken on budget proposals to achieve the
level of savings required in 2019/20.

2.2

Council is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1) the proposals for the 2019/20 budget included in this report be approved.
(2) the implementation of the target budget reductions set in the Money plan 2019/24 be
approved.
(3) it be noted that consultation has been undertaken on budget proposals to achieve the
level of savings required in 2019/20.

Page 11

3.0

BUDGET ASSESSMENT OF THE SECTION 151 OFFICER

3.1

In accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 the Chief Finance Officer
(Section 151 Officer) must report on the following matters:
1) the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of the calculations, and
2) the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves.

3.2

The Head of Policy & Resources as Section 151 Officer confirms the robustness of the
calculations and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves.

4.0

Introduction

4.1

The Money Plan sets out the Council’s strategic approach to the management of its
finances, and presents indicative budgets and Council Tax levels for the medium term. It
covers the General Fund Revenue Budget, the Capital Programme and Earmarked
Reserves. It also comments on the significant financial risks facing the Council in the
forthcoming years and explains what the Council is doing to reduce those risks.

4.2

The main objectives of the Money Plan are to:










explain the financial context within which the Council is set to work over the medium
term;
provide a medium term forecast of resources and expenditure;
identify the financial resources needed to deliver the Council’s priority outcomes, in line
with the Council’s plan;
achieve a stable and sustainable budget capable of withstanding financial pressures;
achieve a balanced base budget, minimising the use of balances to meet recurring
baseline spending, with the General Fund balance being maintained at a minimum of
10% of net expenditure by the end of the plan period;
where possible, additional investment and spending decisions will be made to reflect
Council priorities and strategic commitments, with disinvestment and budget savings
being made in non-priority areas; and
ensure capital financing is established at a level that maintains ongoing robustness in
the capital programme.

5.0

The Local Government Finance Environment

5.1

The Council’s Money plan provides the framework within which revenue spending
decisions can be made over the medium term. It is reviewed and updated on an annual
basis to take into account any alterations that may be required as a result of changed
circumstances. The Money Plan covers a five year period up to 2023/24.

5.2

Local Government continues to face a tough financial outlook, with funding pressures set to
continue. The Local Government Finance Settlement in recent years has seen
unprecedented reductions in formula grant.

5.3

The funding position for local authorities for 2020/21 onwards remains uncertain. Central
Government is carrying out a “Fair Funding Review” which aims to set out the basis by
which funding is allocated across the country between Councils from 2020 onwards. This
process will not generally be about redistributing Government grants, as this now forms
only a small part of national funding, but about setting the baselines which determine how
much local business rates may be retained in each area. These baselines are also due to
be reset in 2020.

5.4

It is not possible to make a definitive estimate at this stage of what the impact upon the
Council will be as the final funding allocation system has not been determined. It is
anticipated that Councils will receive an indication of future allocations under the new
Page 12
system in Autumn 2019. It is likely however
that the review will see a general movement in

funding from lower to upper tier authorities and it is highly probable that funding for
Gloucester will reduce. A worst case estimate would see a reduction to baseline however
the plan is slightly more optimistic at this stage, and Business Rates forecasts have
therefore been reduced by that amount from 2020/21 onwards in the draft Money Plan.
5.5

As a result of this uncertainty the draft Money Plan assumes that in 2020/21 a one off draw
from Business Rates Reserve will be required. It is vital that any future use of pilot benefits
take this requirement into account to protect the Council in the future.
Local Government Finance Settlement 2018/19 and 2019/20

5.6

On the 13th December 2018, the secretary of State for Communities and Local Government
announced the provisional Local Government settlement for 2019/20. The announcement
included the following proposals to be delivered over the spending review period that will
potentially affect the Council:





5.8

Continued flexibility for District Councils to increase Council Tax by £5 a year or 3%
whichever is the greater.
The continued offer of 4 year settlement for Councils that apply through
demonstrating an efficiency plan. 2019/20 is year 4 of this offer.
Retention of New Homes Bonus, with no change to the baseline.
Notification that Gloucestershire will not be a business rates pilot in 2019/20.

The Chancellor delivered his budget on October 29th 2018. Following this announcement
there were no changes required to the Money Plan. The key announcements within the
budget regarding local government were as follows:





£650m additional grant funding for social care in 2019-20.
£45m for Disabled Facilities Grant in 2018-19
£84m for 5 years on children’s programme
£450m for highways authorities

Longer term spending decisions on local government funding will be made in the 2019
spending review.
5.9

The Chancellor also announced £675m for a Future High Streets Fund. The fund will serve
two purposes:


Support local areas to prepare long-term strategies for their high streets and town
centres, including funding a new High Streets Taskforce to provide expertise and
hands-on support to local areas; and



Co-fund with local areas projects including:


Investment in physical infrastructure including improving public and other transport
access, improving flow and circulation within a town / city centre, congestionrelieving infrastructure, other investment in physical infrastructure needed to support
new housing and workspace development and existing local communities, and the
regeneration of heritage high streets.



Investment in land assembly including to support the densification of residential and
workspace around high streets in place of under-used retail units.

The fund will also support the regeneration of heritage high streets (up to £55m of the
overall fund). This will have two elements:


Helping to restore historic high street properties through Historic England; and



Equipping communities with their own resources to put historic buildings back into
economic use - for example as residential buildings, new work spaces or cultural
venues, supported by the Architectural Heritage Fund.

Page 13

The application process has been announced and officers are working to ensure a Stage 1
expressions of interest is made.
5.10

The Council took up the Government’s offer of a 4 year settlement and submitted an
efficiency plan prior to the deadline of 14th October 2016. There was no change to this
offer of certainty to remain over the four years of the offer. 2019/20 is the last year of the
four year settlement.

5.12

The other key risk is New Homes Bonus (NHB). Government has further consulted on the
level of reward and potential reductions to NHB. No further changes have been made to
the level of ‘deadweight’ (i.e. a minimum threshold for housing growth above which NHB
payments will be made, currently 0.4%) or a reduction based upon successful planning
appeals.

5.13

The settlement continues to use the ‘core spending power’ measure. Core spending power
is made up of the following elements;
Settlement Funding Assessments (SFA)
This is made up of:



Revenue Support Grant
Baseline Funding Level

The SFA also details level of Tariff on retained business rates and the Safety Net
Threshold.
Instead of cutting all SFA by a set percent, Government take into account the ability to raise
Council Tax locally. There are four key variables:





Funding reductions
Split of reductions between tiers
Council Tax Base
Council Tax Rate

Council Tax Requirement (CTR)
The core spending power assumes district councils will increase Band D Council Tax by
whichever is the greater of £5 or 3%. The plan assumes an increase of 3%.
New Homes Bonus (NHB)
The provisional financial settlement has indicated NHB to be £1.212m for 2019/20.
The funding for New Homes Bonus in 2019/20 is the final year agreed in the 2015
Spending Review. The Government has therefore announced plans to consider how
funding after this period will be used to incentivise delivery that meets or exceeds local
housing need. A small level of funding has been built into the draft Money Plan for the final
years of the plan as a prudent estimate.

6.

Business Rates Retention

6.1

The Business rates to be retained by the authority is forecast to grow gradually over the
medium term. This is largely as a result of the inflation linked multiplier of Business Rates
rather than significant property growth. There is a reduction in funding estimated for
2020/21 which is the expected impact of the fair funding review (see para 5.3). The detailed
picture in relation to that review will not be known until Autumn 2019 and will be reported to
members when available.

Page 14

6.2

The authority is participating in the Gloucestershire 100% Business Rates Pilot for 2018/19.
The exact gain to the authority is not certain at this stage but current estimates suggest it
will be a minimum of £800k.

6.3

The provisional settlement confirmed that there will not be a Gloucestershire Business
Rates Pilot for 2019/20.

6.4

The Gloucestershire authorities have therefore agreed to revert to the pooling
arrangements which existed before the 2018/19 pilot. This scheme increases the
business rates retained locally by reducing the levy that is payable to Central
Government on business rates collected above the centrally set baseline.

7.

General Fund Revenue Budget - Principles and Key Assumptions

7.1

The principles underpinning the proposed revenue strategy are:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

7.2

Annually, a balanced revenue budget will be set with expenditure limited to the amount
of available resources;
No long term use of balances to meet recurring baseline expenditure;
Resources will be targeted to deliver Corporate Plan priorities and value for money.
Any additional investment and spending decisions will be made to reflect Council
priorities and strategic commitments.
Maintaining the General Fund balance at approximately 10% of net revenue budget.
This assumes a minimum level of £1.4m by the end of the plan.
Year on year savings targets to be met by ongoing efficiency gains, income generation
and service transformation.
Table 1 below, lists the major assumptions that have been made over the five years of the
strategy:
Table 1
Council Tax base growth
Council Tax inflation
Interest Rates (Earned)
Inflation – Pay
Inflation – contracts
Inflation – other income

7.

2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

0.75%
2.99%
0.50%
2.00%
2.50%
2.50%

0.75%
2.99%
0.50%
2.00%
2.50%
2.50%

0.75%
2.99%
1.00%
2.00%
2.50%
2.50%

0.75%
2.99%
1.50%
2.00%
2.50%
2.50%

0.75%
2.99%
2.00%
2.00%
2.50%
2.50%

Revenue Budget Increases
Pay and Prices Increases

7.1

A 2% pay award allowance has been included across the five years of the plan. It should
be noted that pay awards in Local Government are covered by collective bargaining
between employers and trade unions and is not subject to direct control from Central
Government. However it is reasonable to assume that Local Government will mirror what
happens in the rest of the public sector.

7.2

In addition to the increases to reflect employee pay awards, provision has also been made
to meet ongoing additional payments to the pension fund required from the employer to
recover the deficit.

7.3

The pension fund is subject to a triennial actuarial valuation, the most recent of which has
been undertaken by Hymans Robertson LLP during 2016, on behalf of Gloucestershire
County Council, the pension fund administrator. A £255k increase has been included for
2019/20 with an increase of £100k in each subsequent year.

Page 15

7.4

Prices inflation has been included on selected non-pay items, namely contractual
obligations.
All other inflationary increases are expected to be absorbed within base
budget which represents a real time reduction through efficiency gains.

7.5

Prices inflation is included on selected fees and charges at 2.5% for each year of the plan.
Cost Pressures and Savings

7.6

Cost pressures and saving are included in Appendix 2 and total a net cost of £0.084m

7.7

The Council entered into an agreement for the Kings Walk Shopping Centre in July 2017
and the money plan reflects the financial benefits this has brought to the revenue budget
and General Fund.

7.8

Significant cost pressures that have been highlighted through budget monitoring are
highlighted at Appendix 2. Some key pressures are highlighted below:






7.9

Pay scale alignment
Markets
Cultural services
Proposals for additional strategy and policy posts through transformation proposals.
Housing benefit overpayments recovery as a result of move to Universal Credit.

The budget savings identified in Appendix 2 for 2019/20 relate to a number of areas where
actions undertaken by the Council have led to savings or income growth. Some of the key
areas are highlighted below:





Kings Walk rental growth
Re-tendering of parking enforcement contract
Re-tendering of council insurance contract
Further savings agreed with Civica contract

8.

Efficiency Savings/Income Generation

8.1

The Money Plan forecasts indicate the need for a continued delivery of savings in each
year of the Plan.

8.2

In February 2018, Council approved the implementation of the target savings for the Money
Plan 2018-23. In addition to savings in previous years further savings of £200k in 2018/19
were included.

8.3

With the inclusion of assumed settlement figures for 2019/20 and the assumption of further
formula grant reductions over the life of the plan, further savings will be required. It must
be noted that the agreement entered on Kings Walk has reduced the level of savings
required over the draft money plan.

8.4

The Local Government Finance Settlement 2019/20 has highlighted that the Council will be
required to make significant additional savings.

8.5

Specific actions to achieve the targeted savings will need to be approved as part of the
Council’s annual budget setting process in each financial year. Appendix 3 highlights
targeted savings for 2019/20 and early proposals for 2020/21. Delivering savings early
reduces the total savings required over the life of the plan.

8.6

The efficiencies and budget savings target for 2019/20 is £0.250m.

Page 16

9.

Overall Costs

9.1

With the targeted savings included from Table 3, the total costs of the Council (the “Net
Budget Requirement”) over the five year period of the Money Plan change from £14.460m
in 2019/20 to £13.731m in 2023/24. Any further spending pressures identified in addition to
those detailed in Appendix 2, over the five year period of the Money Plan, will need to be
funded by additional savings.

9.2

Summary budget pages for each service are detailed in Appendix 5.

10.

Revenue Funding
Formula Grant / Localised Business Rates / Revenue Support Grant

10.1

Our current grant from Government for 2019/20 comprises two formula driven components
- Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and a retained Business Rates target.

10.2

The council will receive RSG of £0.085m in 2019/20.

10.3

RSG is expected to cease completely after that year.
New Homes Bonus

10.4

New Homes Bonus is a grant that commenced in the 2011/12 financial year and is
effectively a reward for increasing the number of residential properties within an area.
Whereas previously an increase in the Council Tax base is essentially offset by a reduction
in formula grant, central government intends to match-fund the additional Council Tax for
each new home for a period of four years.

10.5

New Homes Bonus is a significant source of funding for Gloucester City Council. The
Council will receive New Homes Bonus in 2019/20 of £1.212.
Council Tax

10.6

The Local Government Finance Settlement includes Council Tax Requirement (CTR) as
part of the Councils ‘Core Spending Power’. CTR is assumed to grow as part of the
settlement as follows:




an average growth in Council Tax Base, based upon the years 2013/14 to 2015/16,
and also increase by an assumed growth based upon CPI at an average of 1.75%.
assumed increase of £5 or 3% whichever the greater

Therefore to maintain CTR in line with Government assumptions the minimum year on year
increase should in line with bullet points above.
10.7

The Government has reaffirmed that if the level of Council Tax rise is greater than 3% or
£5, whichever being the higher, a referendum would be required. The Money Plan
assumes an increase in Council Tax of 2.99%.

11.

General Fund Balance

11.1

The estimated level of the general fund balance in each financial year is shown in
Appendix 1. The General Fund level is at the minimum required level by the end of the
Money Plan.

11.2

It should also be noted, that although £1.400m is considered an appropriate level of
General Fund balances to retain each year, the position should be reviewed if the Council
delivers a budget surplus at year end. The level of savings required over the next few
years, is likely to be significant, so any opportunity to phase the transition by increasing and
then using General Fund balances, could be considered.

11.3

In the financial year 2019/20 it is proposed
Page to
17reduce the General Fund by £0.090m.

12.0

Capital Programme and Capital Financing

12.1

The key financial details on capital expenditure and financing in the revised money plan for
the 5 years from 2019/20, are shown in detail at Appendix 4, and summarised below:
1.

Capital programme expenditure of £9.720m. Some key projects are: the Kings
Square Development; City Centre Investment Fund, ICT Transformation Projects
and externally financed housing projects.

2.

Capital financing comprises grants, Capital receipts and borrowing.

12.2

Kings Square is a key deliverable in the overall Kings Quarter regeneration programme.
The regeneration of Kings Square is key to delivering the assumed income growth in Kings
Walk Shopping Centre and will enhance the opportunities to deliver new income streams in
future phases of the Kings Quarter development. The investment in the square will be
financed as part of the overall capital programme.

12.3

The capital programme assumes the majority of capital financing will be funded through the
use of current and expected future capital receipts, where these are not available it will be
met from external grants and borrowing. The future financial commitments will be approved
based on specific income generating, or revenue saving business cases to fund the cost of
the borrowing. The main exceptions to this policy will be essential works on the Council’s
buildings and ICT systems, which will result in a reduced maintenance liability or potential
increase in asset value and ensure delivery of the Councils transformation programme.

12.4

Wherever possible and desirable, additional one-off capital investments on a business case
basis will be made, providing corporate objectives are delivered, and financing is available
and affordable within existing budgets, or preferably with the provision of a “spend to save”
revenue saving on existing budgets.

12.5

The strategy on borrowing is to ensure that any borrowing is only undertaken on a business
case basis, and is affordable and paid off over the life of the asset.

12.6

Appendix 4 shows the proposed capital budgets for 5 years from 2019/20 incorporating
any carried forward capital budgets and new, approved schemes. The capital programme
will be updated for any future additions, such as Kings Quarter further development, subject
to the required level of approval being made.

12.7

The 2016/17 Local Government Finance Settlement provided, “Statutory guidance on the
flexible use of Capital receipts”. The Council approved this strategy in February 2017.
Where appropriate this flexibility will still be used to fund transformation where Capital
receipts are available and the programme fits the requirement to flexibly use Capital
receipts. The strategy is at Appendix 8.

Page 18

13.0

Earmarked Reserves

13.1

The Council has limited earmarked reserves with the balance at 31 March 2018 being
£4.720m, an increase £0.451m on the position at 31 March 2017, consisting of;





















Insurance reserve
Historic buildings reserve
Portfolio reserve
Shopmobility reserve
Members Allocation reserve
Repairs reserve
Environmental reserve
Regeneration reserve
VAT Shelter reserve
Business Rates reserve
Trading Development reserve
Land adoption reserve
Community Builder Reserve
Planning Grant reserve
Economic Development Reserve
Flooding Works Reserve
Meet & Greet Reserve
Lottery Reserve
Police Contribution Reserve
Great Place Reserve

£0.010m
£0.053m
£0.060m
£0.029m
£0.001m
£0.400m
£1.000m
£0.435m
£0.736m
£0.834m
£0.050m
£0.801m
£0.085m
£0.065m
£0.020m
£0.010m
£0.004m
£0.019m
£0.015m
£0.093m

13.2

Where earmarked reserves are not ring fenced for a specific use, then if necessary, these
reserves may potentially be used to support the General Fund.

13.3

The Council does face significant uncertainty from 2020/21 forwards and it is expected
there will be a significant reduction in retained funding from business rates either through
reset or the outcomes of the fair funding review. The Council will need to ensure there is
sufficient funding in the Business Rates reserve to offset this. The plan assumes £1m will
be drawn from this reserve.

13.4

During 2018/19 the Council will also draw on earmarked reserves in delivering the
transformation programme and move from the docks warehouses. Both these important
programs will deliver long term benefits to both the Council and residents; however the
earmarked reserves will need to be returned to a level to protect the Council going forward.

13.5

The table provides a forecast positon on earmarked reserves:

Reserves Forecast
Regeneration Reserve
Land Adoption
Reserve
VAT Shelter Reserve
Business Rates
Reserve
Environmental
Reserve
Repairs Reserve
Other Earmarked
Total

Balance at
31/03/2018

Transfers
2018/19

Forecast
31/03/2019

£000
435

£000
(150)

£000
285

801
736

(427)

834
1,000
400
514
4,720

Transfers
2019/20
-

£000
285

801
309

150

801
459

(820)

14

1,200

1,214

(350)
12
(1,735)

1,000
50
526
2,985

50
50
1,450

1,000
100
576
4,435

Page 19

£000

Forecast
31/03/2020

14.0

Alternative Options Considered

14.1

The Council must set a balanced budget in time to start collecting Council Tax by 1st April
2018. Alternative proposals put forward for budget savings will be considered as part of this
process.

15.0

ABCD Implications

15.1

There are no ABCD implications as a result of this report.

16.0

Financial Implications

16.1

Contained in the body of the report.

17.0

Legal Implications

17.1

Legislation places a duty on the Council, as the Billing Authority, to calculate its budget
requirement for 2019/20. The Council also has a statutory requirement to set a balanced
budget.

18.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

18.1

Covered in the report. The budget is prepared based on the information available at the
time of writing. The budget pressures facing the Council have, as far as possible, been built
into the budget.

18.2

The risks are set out more fully in the report but in summary centre around the continuing
economic situation and the impact this is likely to have on the public sector, driving
changes to Government funding in future years and the level of the Council’s spend from
2019/20 onwards.

18.3

In addition to the risks identified in the report, a list of additional identified risks for both the
Draft Money Plan and the Budget for 2019/20, along with the mitigations is also shown
below:
Risk Identified

 Employee-related costs
will be more than
assumed
 Other costs will be more
than assumed
 Pension fund
contributions will be
higher than expected.

Inherent Risk
Evaluation
(scale 0-16?,
where 16
represents
highest risk)
Risk
6
Score
8
Risk
Score

8

Proposed measures

 Figures based on known
commitments and
estimated future costs.
Any further pressures will
need to be matched by
additional identified
savings.
 The financial plan will
continue to be reviewed
and updated annually for
a five year period, based
on known changes and
informed by the most
recent actuarial triennial
valuation.

Page 20

Residual Risk
Evaluation(sca
le 0-16?,
where 16
represents
highest risk)
Risk
4
Score
4
Risk
Score

4

Risk Identified

 Planned budget
reductions will not be
achieved

Inherent Risk
Evaluation
(scale 0-16?,
where 16
represents
highest risk)
Risk
12
Score

 Impact of Legislative
changes on Councils
ongoing costs

 Income from fees,
charges and other
sources will not be as
high as planned
 Timing of Capital
Receipts will be later
than anticipated or lower
than estimated
 Timing of Capital
payments may be earlier
than estimated

6

Risk
Score

12

Risk
Score

8

Proposed measures

 Close monitoring of
budgets will be carried out
in each financial year.
 Continuous monitoring of
service pressures and
ongoing focus on
preventative support.
 Previously agreed
changes to Council, tax
exemptions and
discounts, to help fund the
shortfall in financing for
local support of Council
tax.
 Close monitoring of
income budgets will be
carried out in each
financial year.
 Close monitoring of the
timing and payments of
capital
expenditure/income will
be carried out in each
financial year. Alternative
savings will be identified,
or contingency
arrangements agreed

Residual Risk
Evaluation(sca
le 0-16?,
where 16
represents
highest risk)
Risk
6
Score

4

Risk
Score

8

Risk
Score

4

20.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

20.1

People Impact Assessments will be carried out for each line of the budget savings, to
ensure that all relevant considerations are taken into account.

21.0

Other Corporate Implications
1.
2.
3.
4.

Community Safety
None
Environmental
None
Staffing
None
Trade Union
Ongoing discussions with the Trade Union on both the money plan and budget
represent a key element of the overall consultation process.

Background Documents:
Money Plan 2018-23, February 2018

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

MONEY PLAN 2019-24

1. BASE BUDGET b/fwd
Pay and Price Increases
Employees pay awards
Employers Increased Pension Costs
Price Increases
Income Inflation
Revised Base Budget
Cost Pressures/Efficiencies
Ongoing base pressures
Ongoing base efficiencies/Income generation
2. NET BUDGET REQUIREMENT
Sources of Finance
Revenue Support Grant
Business Rates Retention
To/From Business Rates Reserve
New Homes Bonus
Transitional Grant
Council Tax Surplus
Council Tax
3. TOTAL SOURCES OF FINANCE
Budget Surplus/(Shortfall)
4. PROPOSED BUDGET SAVINGS
Revised Budget (Shortfall)/Surplus

1
2019/20
£'000

2
2020/21
£'000

3
2021/22
£'000

14,555

13,930

14,210

13,688

13,316

13,410

132
255
182
(94)
15,030

135
255
150
(94)
14,376

138
100
150
(95)
14,503

141
100
150
(98)
13,981

144
100
150
(100)
13,610

147
100
150
(103)
13,704

774
(1,674)
(900)

423
(339)
84

60
(675)
(615)

10
(675)
(665)

0
(200)
(200)

0
(300)
(300)

14,130

14,460

13,888

13,316

13,410

13,404

4,194

4,278

4,363

1,212

4,112
1,000
654

550

450

450

4,889
32
1,745

REVISED NET BUDGET REQUIREMENT c/fwd
6. GENERAL FUND BALANCE
Opening Balance
Contribution to/(from) General Fund
Closing Balance

85
5,041

120
7,307
0
14,093

120
7,662

7,970

8,274

8,590

8,917

14,120

13,736

13,018

13,317

13,731

(37)

(340)

(152)

(298)

(93)

326

(340)

(152)

(298)

(93)

326

250

200

163

(90)

48

(298)

(93)

326

13,930

14,210

13,688

13,316

13,410

13,404

1,663
163

1,636
(90)

1,546
48

1,594
(298)

1,296
(93)

1,204
326

1,826

1,546

1,594

1,296

1,204

1,530

200
163

5. FUTURE CHANGES
Efficiency/Transformation/Income Generation
Revised Budget (Shortfall)/Surplus

Appendix 1
4
5
2022/23 2023/24
£'000
£'000

0
2018/19
£'000

Page 23

Budget Pressures and Savings

Appendix 2

Description

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Ongoing base budget increases
Democratic Services - Election
Joint Core Strategy
City Centre Plan
Community Schemes
NJC Payscale alignment
Pressures identified in Budget Monitoring - Markets
Pressures identified in Budget Monitoring - Cultural Services
Cultural Anniversary Events - one off funding in 2018/19
Membership of Key Cities
Transformation Proposals - Additional Posts
Kings Walk Investment Borrowing Costs
Housing Benefit Overpayments
Total ongoing Cost Pressures
Budget Efficiencies/Income Generation
Kings Walk Rental Growth
Parking Contract procurement
Kings Walk Investment
Civica Contract
Contract Procurements
Insurance Contract procurement
JCS Budgets
Total Ongoing savings

(2)
(20)
45
100
100
(10)
10
150
50
423

(200)
(50)
(19)

Total

Page 24

20
(40)
(70)

(20)
(20)

50
100
60

50
10

(300)

(300)

(375)

(375)

0

0

(200)

(300)

(50)
(20)
(339)

(675)

(675)

(200)

(300)

84

(615)

(665)

(200)

(300)

Budget Savings Programmes - 2019/20
Portfolio
Cabinet Member for the
Environment

Cabinet Member for
Regeneration

Service

Appendix 3

Details: aim of the project

2019/20
£000

Neighbourhood Services

Energy efficiencies and income generation
opportunities

(50)

Investment Strategy

Property Investment

(100)

Asset Management

Accommodation review

(100)

2020/21
£000

(100)

Identify energy savings which can be delivered
through the Council's operational and nonoperational estate.
Investments in line with Property Investment
Strategy
Following the transformational review of the
Council, new income and saving opportunities
from reducing the warehouse accommodation
required by the Council

(100)

TOTAL

(250)

(200)

SAVINGS REQUIRED

(340)

(152)

(90)

48

Contribution to/from General Fund

Comments

Page 25

GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL
FORECAST CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND FINANCING 2019 - 2024

Appendix 4

2019 / 20
£000

2020 / 21
£000

2021 / 22
£000

2022 / 23
£000

2023 / 24
£000

2019 - 2024
£000

1,000

4,000

0

0

0

5,000

Pla
City Centre Investment Fund
P&R
GCC Building Improvements
P&R
ICT Projects

182
146
50

0
100
50

0
100
50

0
100
50

0
100
50

182
546
250

COM
Housing projects

529

529

529

529

529

2,644

Pla
Drainage and Flood Protection Works
Pla
Ranger Centre Barns/Storage
Pla
Robinswood All Paths Projects

172
17
49
200

100
0
0
0

20
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

292
17
49
200

76
117
0
16
2,555

0
60
45
0
4,884

0
60
0
0
759

0
60
45
0
784

0
60
0
0
739

76
357
90
16
9,720

2019 / 20
£000
0
737
817
1,000

2020 / 21
£000
0
574
310
4,000

2021 / 22
£000
0
494
265
0

2022 / 23
£000
0
474
310
0

2023 / 24
£000
0
474
265
0

2019 - 2024
£000
0
2,753
1,967
5,000

2,555

4,884

759

784

739

9,720

Scheme
Pla
Kings Quarter development (Kings Square)

Robinswood Hill
Pla
Horsbere Brook Local Nature Reserve works
Pla
Play Area Improvement Programme
C&T
Crematorium Cremator Impovements
Pla
Grant Funded Projects

Page 26

Total

Financing Source
Lottery Grants
External Grants (other)
Capital Receipts
Borrowing
Sub total

Scheme details
Development Costs of Kings Square as part of the Kings Quarter Regeneration Programme
Regeneration within the City Centre, larger projects include Cultural Improvments, car parking
improvements and Tourist Information Centre relocation.
Project funding to ensure GCC buildings remain fit for purpose
Maintain Council ICT infrastructure / capability.
Includes Disabled Facilities Grant which is MHCLG funded. Changes to funding arrangements would alter
this element of the budget. Other projects include the commuted sums for social housing.
Flood Protection Capital Fund - External grant funded projects to assist with flood protection.
Creating storage facilities for Countryside Unit.
Partnership work with Gloucestershire Wildlife trust - improving Robinswood Hill
Support development on Robinswood hill
Nature Reserve works, part funded by Environment Agency. Project is into 2nd year of 10 year
programme.
Concurrent funding improving City play areas
Funding to ensure maintenance of crematorium infrastructure
Includes Alney Island grant project

APPENDIX 6

REVENUE BUDGET
2019/20

Page 27

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 2019/20
Gloucester City Council

Service Expenditure / Income
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total

Proposed Budget
2019/20

Place
2019/20

Communities
2019/20

Cultural and
Trading
2019/20

Performance
& Resources
2019/20

Senior
Management
2019/20

688,372
1,600
2,210,210
47,800
2,947,982

7,738,897
3,528,700
80,000
10,434,660
45,299,288
67,081,544

1,756,887
275,000
9,600
5,960,600
267,200
8,269,287

1,990,828
1,121,000
2,100
181,150
309,800
3,604,878

1,647,296
618,600
27,500
819,700
65,638
3,178,733

1,655,514
1,514,100
39,200
1,263,000
44,608,850
49,080,664

(44,235,564)
(7,890,925)
(6,109,450)
(58,235,939)

(454,460)
(2,139,325)
(584,225)
(3,178,010)

(211,379)
(386,125)
(606,800)
(1,204,304)

(10,100)
(2,334,425)
(1,147,900)
(3,492,425)

(43,395,225)
(3,003,350)
(3,770,525)
(50,169,100)

Service Expenditure

8,845,606

5,091,277

2,400,574

(313,692)

(1,088,436)

Corporate Expenditure / (Income)
Interest Payable
Interest Receivable
Corporate Pension Contribution
Minimum Revenue Provision
Kings Walk Sinking Fund
Insurance Provision

340,100
(535,800)
3,640,200
820,200
1,100,000
-

Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

Net Operating Expenditure

14,210,306

Council Tax Precept
Retained Business Rates
Use Business Rates Reserve
Revenue Support Grant
New Homes Bonus

(7,782,000)
(5,126,000)
(1,212,000)

Net Council Position

90,306

Page 28

(164,400)
(27,700)
(192,100)
2,755,882

Proposed Budget 2019/20 - Place Service
Place
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total
Service Expenditure

Proposed Budget Head of Service
2019/20
2019/20
1,756,887
95,169
275,000
9,600
5,960,600
267,200
8,269,287
95,169
(454,460)
(2,139,325)
(584,225)
(3,178,010)

-

City Centre
Delivery
2019/20
854,273
29,400
207,000
1,090,673
(40,000)
(858,900)
(898,900)

City Centre
Growth
2019/20
71,820
9,000
19,000
13,500
113,320
-

Page 29

5,091,277

95,169

191,773

113,320

Forecast
2018/19
1,822,386
340,674
16,093
5,918,482
367,290
8,464,925

Head of Service
2018/19
93,743
200
333
0
94,277

City Centre
Delivery
2018/19
908,680
5,500
1,309
24,915
292,464
1,232,869

City Centre
Growth
2018/19
58,597
10,846
27
20,220
14,085
103,775

City Centre
Improvement Amey Contract
2019/20
2019/20
732,225
249,500
9,600
141,700
5,766,100
37,500
1,170,525
5,766,100
(83,500)
(961,400)
(53,025)
(1,097,925)
72,600

(325,960)
(520,000)
(845,960)
4,920,140

Licensing
2019/20
3,400
16,500
4,400
9,200
33,500
(5,000)
(319,025)
(11,200)
(335,225)
(301,725)

Forecast 2018/19 - Place Service
Place
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total
Service Expenditure

(474,994)
(2,314,988)
(642,663)
(3,432,645)
5,032,279

(0)
(0)
94,276

(61,990)
(906,807)
(1,411)
(970,209)
262,660

103,775

City Centre
Improvement Amey Contract
2018/19
2018/19
756,863
307,827
14,557
201,557
5,664,100
56,220
792
1,337,025
5,664,892
(89,924)
(1,110,055)
(78,915)
(1,278,894)
58,131

(316,444)
(504,645)
(821,089)
4,843,803

Licensing
2018/19
4,503
16,500
7,357
3,728
32,088
(6,636)
(298,126)
(57,692)
(362,454)
(330,365)

Head of Service

Proposed Budget
2019/20
95,169
95,169

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

-

Service Expenditure

95,169

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Ian Edwards
Regeneration and Economy
Councillor Paul James
Total
Expenditure
95,169
95,169

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Head of Place
Net Service Expenditure

Page 30

Total
Income
-

Net
95,169
95,169

City Centre Delivery

Proposed Budget
2019/20
854,273
29,400
207,000
1,090,673

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(40,000)
(858,900)
(898,900)

Service Expenditure

191,773

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

David Evans
Planning & Housing Strategy
Councillor Colin Organ
Total
Expenditure
80,179
45,000
550,227
291,500
123,767
1,090,673

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Growth Delivery Manager
Building Control
Development Management
Planning Policy
Historic Buildings
Net Service Expenditure

Page 31

Total
Income
(858,900)
(40,000)
(898,900)

Net
80,179
45,000
(308,673)
291,500
83,767
191,773

City Centre Growth

Proposed Budget
2019/20
71,820
9,000
19,000
13,500
113,320

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

-

Service Expenditure

113,320

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

David Evans
Regeneration and Economy
Councillor Paul James
Total
Expenditure
104,320
9,000
113,320

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Economic Development
Kings Quarter Regneration (Business Rates)
Net Service Expenditure

Page 32

Total
Income
-

Net
104,320
9,000
113,320

City Centre Improvement

Proposed Budget
2019/20
732,225
249,500
9,600
141,700
37,500
1,170,525

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(83,500)
(961,400)
(53,025)
(1,097,925)

Service Expenditure

72,600

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Meyrick Brentnall
Environment
Councillor Richard Cook
Total
Expenditure Total Income
5,300
(16,500)
132,917
(35,000)
61,984
368,217
(5,000)
434,706
(225,100)
12,000
(686,000)
(77,300)
36,000
(35,000)
15,600
14,300
(18,025)
89,500
1,170,525 (1,097,925)

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Allotments
Countryside Unit
Environment Manager
City Centre Improvement
Streetcare Team
Green Waste
Bulky Waste
Parks Management
Stray Dogs Service
Public Toilets
Sponsorship
Flooding and Drainage
Net Service Expenditure

Page 33

Net
(11,200)
97,917
61,984
363,217
209,606
(674,000)
(77,300)
1,000
15,600
14,300
(18,025)
89,500
72,600

Amey Contract

Proposed Budget
2019/20
5,766,100
5,766,100

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(325,960)
(520,000)
(845,960)

Service Expenditure

4,920,140

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Meyrick Brentnall
Environment
Councillor Richard Cook
Total
Expenditure
5,766,100
5,766,100

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Net Contract Fee and Premises
Recyling Grants
Recycling Credits
Net Service Expenditure

Page 34

Total
Income

Net
- 5,766,100
(325,960) (325,960)
(520,000) (520,000)
(845,960) 4,920,140

Licensing

Proposed Budget
2019/20
3,400
16,500
4,400
9,200
33,500

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(5,000)
(319,025)
(11,200)
(335,225)

Service Expenditure

(301,725)

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Meyrick Brentnall
Communities and Neighbourhoods
Councillor Richard Cook
Total
Expenditure
9,100
12,900
8,000
3,500
33,500

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Street Trading Licenses
Hackney Carriage Licenses
Taxi Marshalling Scheme
Other Licenses
Net Service Expenditure

Page 35

Total
Income
(54,000)
(123,500)
(5,000)
(152,725)
(335,225)

Net
(44,900)
(110,600)
3,000
(149,225)
(301,725)

Proposed Budget 2019/20 - Cultural and Trading Services
Cultural & Trading
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total
Service Expenditure

Proposed Budget Head of Service
2019/20
2019/20
1,647,296
77,300
618,600
27,500
819,700
65,638
3,178,733
77,300
(10,100)
(2,334,425)
(1,147,900)
(3,492,425)

-

(313,692)

77,300

Shopmobility
2019/20
85,050
5,600
10,100
100,750

Markets
2019/20
57,903
157,000
26,600
241,503

Cultural
Development
2019/20
220,087
118,800
1,300
188,500
26,638
555,325

Food and Drink
2019/20
169,754
16,600
95,500
2,000
283,854

Visitor
Experience
Cem and Crem
2019/20
2019/20
531,174
440,501
89,800
230,800
1,100
25,100
220,500
83,300
2,000
35,000
844,574
814,701

Marketing
Gloucester
2019/20
65,526
195,200
260,726

Page 36

(24,275)
(800)
(25,075)

(1,000)
(301,300)
(302,300)

(181,000)
(320,300)
(501,300)

(15,000)
(343,000)
(358,000)

(10,100)
(23,650)
(178,000)
(211,750)

(2,089,500)
(4,500)
(2,094,000)

-

75,675

(60,797)

54,025

(74,146)

632,824

(1,279,299)

260,726

Visitor
Experience
Cem and Crem
2018/19
2018/19
410,904
410,429
190,785
230,186
24,344
264,855
98,414
5,848
38,019
872,393
801,392

Marketing
Gloucester
2018/19
73,500
195,200
268,700

Forecast 2018/19 - Cultural and Trading Services
Cultural & Trading
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total
Service Expenditure

Forecast
2018/19
1,654,199
740,561
25,164
802,028
321,147
3,543,098

Head of Service
2018/19
76,921
87
77,008

(20,213)
(2,363,096)
(1,376,214)
(3,759,524)

-

(216,426)

77,008

Shopmobility
2018/19
75,070
8,208
2,194
85,472

Markets
2018/19
61,654
186,806
15,800
264,260

Cultural
Development
2018/19
396,073
112,498
820
116,351
276,512
902,254

Food and Drink
2018/19
149,648
12,078
109,126
767
271,619

(21,963)
(21,963)

(49,556)
(282,023)
(331,580)

(20,115)
(69,309)
(404,475)
(493,899)

140
(312,499)
(312,360)

(98)
(35,178)
(328,704)
(363,980)

(2,209,192)
(26,551)
(2,235,743)

-

63,510

(67,320)

408,355

(40,740)

508,413

(1,434,351)

268,700

Head of Service

Proposed Budget
2019/20
77,300
77,300

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

-

Service Expenditure

77,300

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Jill Riggs
Culture and Leisure
Councillor Lise Noakes
Total
Expenditure
77,300
77,300

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Head of Service
Net Service Expenditure

Page 37

Total
Income
-

Net
77,300
77,300

Shopmobility

Proposed Budget
2019/20
85,050
5,600
10,100
100,750

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(24,275)
(800)
(25,075)

Service Expenditure

75,675

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Jill Riggs
Communities and Neighbourhoods
Councillor Jennie Watkins
Total
Expenditure
100,750
100,750

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Shopmobility
Net Service Expenditure

Page 38

Total
Income
(25,075)
(25,075)

Net
75,675
75,675

Markets

Proposed Budget
2019/20
57,903
157,000
26,600
241,503

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(1,000)
(301,300)
(302,300)

Service Expenditure

(60,797)

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Lucy Chilton
Regeneration and Economy
Councillor Paul James
Total
Expenditure
3,100
219,903
18,500
241,503

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Kings Square
Farmers Market
Eastgate Market
Hempsted
Net Service Expenditure

Page 39

Total
Income
(10,500)
(5,000)
(251,800)
(35,000)
(302,300)

Net
(7,400)
(5,000)
(31,897)
(16,500)
(60,797)

Cultural Development

Proposed Budget
2019/20
220,087
118,800
1,300
188,500
26,638
555,325

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(181,000)
(320,300)
(501,300)

Service Expenditure

54,025

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Lucy Chilton / Sarah Gilbert
Culture and Leisure
Councillor Lise Noakes
Total
Expenditure
171,455
229,303
34,721
2,900
2,000
17,042
73,903
24,000
555,325

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Cultural Development Team
Guildhall Events
Guildhall Cinema
Guildhall Lettings
Guildhall Workshops
Events
Culture Trust
Blackfriars
Blackfriars Weddings
Net Service Expenditure

Page 40

Total
Income
(241,700)
(66,100)
(50,000)
(2,000)
(61,500)
(80,000)
(501,300)

Net
171,455
(12,397)
(31,379)
(47,100)
17,042
12,403
(56,000)
54,025

Food and Drink

Proposed Budget
2019/20
169,754
16,600
95,500
2,000
283,854

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(15,000)
(343,000)
(358,000)

Service Expenditure

(74,146)

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Lucy Chilton
Culture and Leisure
Councillor Lise Noakes
Total
Expenditure
137,366
146,489
283,854

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Food and Drink team and Guildhall Bar
The Arbor
Net Service Expenditure

Page 41

Total
Income
(175,500)
(182,500)
(358,000)

Net
(38,134)
(36,011)
(74,146)

Visitor Experience

Proposed Budget
2019/20
531,174
89,800
1,100
220,500
2,000
844,574

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(10,100)
(23,650)
(178,000)
(211,750)

Service Expenditure

632,824

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Lucy Chilton
Culture and Leisure
Councillor Lise Noakes
Total
Expenditure
461,095
141,158
34,100
208,221
844,574

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Visitor Experience Team
Museums Service
Gloucester Life Museum
Tourist Information Centre
Net Service Expenditure

Page 42

Total
Income
(55,150)
(156,600)
(211,750)

Net
461,095
86,008
34,100
51,621
632,824

Cemeteries and Crematorium

Proposed Budget
2019/20
440,501
230,800
25,100
83,300
35,000
814,701

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(2,089,500)
(4,500)
(2,094,000)

Service Expenditure

(1,279,299)

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Julienne Reeves
Environment
Councillor Richard Cook
Total
Expenditure Total Income
438,201
226,200 (1,776,100)
150,300
(317,900)
814,701 (2,094,000)

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Cems/Crems Admin
Crematorium
Cemeteries
Net Service Expenditure

Page 43

Net
438,201
(1,549,900)
(167,600)
(1,279,299)

Marketing Gloucester and Events

Proposed Budget
2019/20
65,526
195,200
260,726

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

-

Service Expenditure

260,726

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Jonathan Lund
Culture and Leisure
Councillor Lise Noakes
Total
Expenditure Total Income
260,726
260,726
-

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Marketing Gloucester
Net Service Expenditure

Page 44

Net
260,726
260,726

Proposed Budget 2019/20 - Communities
Communities
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total
Service Expenditure

Proposed Budget Head of Service
2019/20
2019/20
1,990,828
87,046
1,121,000
2,100
181,150
309,800
100
3,604,878
87,146
(211,379)
(386,125)
(606,800)
(1,204,304)

Aspire Client
2019/20
-

Customer
Services
2019/20
442,800
5,400
100
448,300

Page 45

-

(30,000)
(30,000)

-

2,400,574

87,146

(30,000)

Forecast
2018/19
2,056,619
1,460,921
2,857
173,512
401,556
4,095,465

Head of Service
2018/19
84,370
198
191
100
84,859

Housing
2019/20
897,030
1,114,000
2,100
72,450
65,600
2,151,180

Community
Wellbeing
2019/20
563,953
7,000
103,300
244,000
918,253

(145,000)
(315,000)
(606,800)
(1,066,800)

(36,379)
(71,125)
(107,504)

448,300

1,084,380

810,749

Customer
Services
2018/19
441,690
380
44
8,651
400
451,165

Housing
2018/19
969,950
1,239,487
1,551
69,278
85,320
2,365,584

Community
Wellbeing
2018/19
560,610
6,571
1,065
95,393
255,737
919,376

Forecast 2018/19 - Communities
Communities
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total
Service Expenditure

(1,382,959)
(367,300)
(105,082)
(1,855,341)
2,240,125

Aspire Client
2018/19
214,483
60,000
274,482

-

(300,362)
(3,600)
(520)
(304,482)

84,859

(30,000)

(5,000)
(5,000)
446,165

(1,035,677)
(265,750)
(91,476)
(1,392,902)
972,682

(46,920)
(92,950)
(13,086)
(152,957)
766,419

Head of Service

Proposed Budget
2019/20
87,046
100
87,146

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

-

Service Expenditure

87,146

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Ruth Saunders
Communities and Neighbourhoods
Councillor Jennie Watkins
Total
Expenditure
87,146
87,146

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Head of Service
Net Service Expenditure

Page 46

Total
Income
-

Net
87,146
87,146

Aspire Client

Proposed Budget
2019/20
-

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(30,000)
(30,000)

Service Expenditure

(30,000)

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Ruth Saunders
Culture and Leisure
Councillor Lise Noakes
Total
Expenditure

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Aspire Client
Net Service Expenditure

-

Page 47

Total
Income
(30,000)
(30,000)

Net
(30,000)
(30,000)

Customer Services

Proposed Budget
2019/20
442,800
5,400
100
448,300

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

-

Service Expenditure

448,300

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Bob O'Brien
Policy and Resources
Councillor Hannah Norman
Total
Expenditure
448,300
448,300

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Customer Services Team
Net Service Expenditure

Page 48

Total
Income
-

Net
448,300
448,300

Housing

Proposed Budget
2019/20
897,030
1,114,000
2,100
72,450
65,600
2,151,180

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(145,000)
(315,000)
(606,800)
(1,066,800)

Service Expenditure

1,084,380

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Ruth Saunders
Communities and Neighbourhoods
Councillor Jennie Watkins
Total
Expenditure Total Income
Net
1,823,980
(750,000) 1,073,980
185,000
(185,000)
30,200
(31,800)
(1,600)
112,000
(100,000)
12,000
2,151,180 (1,066,800) 1,084,380

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Housing and Homelessness Service
Hostels
Private Sector Housing
HMO Licenses
Net Service Expenditure

Page 49

Community Wellbeing

Proposed Budget
2019/20
563,953
7,000
103,300
244,000
918,253

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(36,379)
(71,125)
(107,504)

Service Expenditure

810,749

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Ruth Saunders
Communities and Neighbourhoods
Councillor Jennie Watkins
Total
Expenditure
115,000
4,000
93,167
84,000
508,086
49,000
17,500
2,500
20,000
25,000
918,253

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Voluntary Sector Support
Community Safety
Project SOLACE
CCTV
Core Community Wellbeing Team
Pest Control
Emergency Planning
Internal Health and Safety
Pollution Control
Contaminated Land
Net Service Expenditure

Page 50

Total
Income
(36,379)
(4,500)
(32,800)
(33,825)
(107,504)

Net
115,000
4,000
56,789
84,000
503,586
16,200
17,500
2,500
(13,825)
25,000
810,749

Proposed Budget 2019/20 - Performance and Resources

Performance & Resources
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total

Proposed Budget Head of Service Financial Services
2019/20
2019/20
2019/20
1,655,514
101,284
323,946
1,514,100
30,000
39,200
100
21,400
1,263,000
296,800
44,608,850
278,100
49,080,664
101,384
950,246

Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total
Service Expenditure

(43,395,225)
(3,003,350)
(3,770,525)
(50,169,100)

-

(1,088,436)

101,384

(12,500)
(25,000)
(37,500)
912,746

Revenues and
Democratic and
Benefits
Business Support Electoral Services
2019/20
2019/20
2019/20
82,276
356,080
403,230
17,700
8,800
26,700
426,500
44,181,150
88,700
29,800
44,272,226
471,480
877,230
(43,395,225)
(341,900)
(43,737,125)

1,188,265

Parking
2019/20
58,932
928,200
225,700
7,000
1,219,832

Page 51

-

(55,000)
(3,713,800)
(3,768,800)

(2,426,450)
(31,725)
(2,458,175)

877,230

(2,580,535)

(1,238,343)

Revenues and
Democratic and
Benefits
Business Support Electoral Services
2018/19
2018/19
2018/19
62,170
331,706
249,339
3,148
46
3,620
14,510
693,774
28,868
413,685
1,719,831
74,999
30,041
38,040,785
40,519,754
439,193
707,575

Property
Management
2018/19
368,281
792,009
284,938
52,344
1,497,571

Parking
2018/19
57,271
928,633
266,005
1,251,909

535,101

(167,500)
(167,500)

Property
Management
2019/20
329,765
555,900
278,500
24,100

303,980

Forecast 2018/19 - Performance and Resources

Performance & Resources
Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total

Forecast
2018/19
1,578,136
1,753,790
55,838
1,932,067
2,180,422
38,040,785
45,541,038

Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(39,494,301)
(2,917,215)
(3,645,931)
(46,057,447)

-

(516,408)

100,656

Service Expenditure

Head of Service Financial Services
2018/19
2018/19
100,598
408,770
30,000
58
37,604
244,797
303,208
100,656
1,024,380
(16,061)
(23,905)
(39,967)
984,413

(39,497,031)
(358,794)
(24,037)
(39,879,863)
639,891

(152,350)
(1,467)
(153,816)

1,040
(846)
(20,574)
(20,379)

(51,592)
(3,489,062)
(3,540,654)

1,690
(2,337,571)
(86,885)
(2,422,767)

285,377

687,195

(2,043,083)

(1,170,857)

Head of Service

Proposed Budget
2019/20
101,284
100
101,384

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

-

Service Expenditure

101,384

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Jon Topping
Performance and Resources
Councillor Hannah Norman
Total
Expenditure
101,384
101,384

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Head of Policy and Resources
Net Service Expenditure

Page 52

Total
Income
-

Net
101,384
101,384

Financial Services

Proposed Budget
2019/20
323,946
30,000
21,400
296,800
278,100
950,246

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(12,500)
(25,000)
(37,500)

Service Expenditure

912,746

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Hadrian Walters / Greg Maw
Performance and Resources
Councillor Hannah Norman
Total
Expenditure
189,900
190,400
397,383
109,600
62,963
950,246

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Internal Audit
Corporate Expenses
Gloucestershire Airport Rent
Financial Services
Treasury Management
Procurement
Net Service Expenditure

Page 53

Total
Income
(25,000)
(12,500)
(37,500)

Net
189,900
190,400
(25,000)
384,883
109,600
62,963
912,746

Revenues and Benefits

Proposed Budget
2019/20
82,276
8,800
44,181,150
44,272,226

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(43,395,225)
(341,900)
(43,737,125)

Service Expenditure

535,101

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Jon Topping
Performance and Resources
Councillor Hannah Norman
Total
Expenditure
Total Income
280,776
(1,221,225)
1,852,950
42,138,500 (42,515,900)
44,272,226 (43,737,125)

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Council Revenues and Benefits Client
Civica Revenues and Benefits Services
Housing Benefit and Subsidy
Net Service Expenditure

Page 54

Net
(940,449)
1,852,950
(377,400)
535,101

Business Support

Proposed Budget
2019/20
356,080
26,700
88,700
471,480

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(167,500)
(167,500)

Service Expenditure

303,980

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Tanya Davies
Performance and Resources
Councillor Hannah Norman
Total
Expenditure
436,380
35,100
471,480

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Business Support Team
Corporate Vehicles
Land Charges
Net Service Expenditure

Page 55

Total
Income
(22,500)
(145,000)
(167,500)

Net
413,880
(109,900)
303,980

Democratic and Electoral Services

Proposed Budget
2019/20
403,230
17,700
426,500
29,800
877,230

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

-

Service Expenditure

877,230

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Tanya Davies
Performance and Resources
Councillor Hannah Norman
Total
Expenditure
31,500
366,200
389,330
90,200
877,230

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Civic Admin
Members Support
Democratics Services
Elections
Net Service Expenditure

Page 56

Total
Income
-

Net
31,500
366,200
389,330
90,200
877,230

Property Management

Proposed Budget
2019/20
329,765
555,900
278,500
24,100
1,188,265

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(55,000)
(3,713,800)
(3,768,800)

Service Expenditure

(2,580,535)

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Mark Foyn
Regeneration and Economy
Councillor Paul James
Total
Expenditure Total Income
120,400 (1,068,900)
26,700
(44,900)
230,000 (2,600,000)
403,000
(55,000)
25,000
383,165
1,188,265 (3,768,800)

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Commercial Property Portfolio
Existing Bus Station
Kings Walk Shopping Centre
Docks Complex
Christmas Lights
Asset Management
Net Service Expenditure

Page 57

Net
(948,500)
(18,200)
(2,370,000)
348,000
25,000
383,165
(2,580,535)

Parking

Proposed Budget
2019/20
58,932
928,200
225,700
7,000
1,219,832

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(2,426,450)
(31,725)
(2,458,175)

Service Expenditure

(1,238,343)

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Mark Foyn
Regeneration and Economy
Councillor Paul James
Total
Expenditure Total Income
1,194,332 (2,422,875)
25,500
(35,300)
1,219,832 (2,458,175)

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Off Street Car Parks
Castlemeads Car Parks
Net Service Expenditure

Page 58

Net
(1,228,543)
(9,800)
(1,238,343)

Proposed Budget 2019/20 - Senior Management
Senior Management

Proposed Budget
2019/20
688,372
1,600
2,210,210
47,800
2,947,982

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions
Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(164,400)
(27,700)
(192,100)

Service Expenditure

2,755,882

Service Manager
Portfolio
Portfolio Holder

Jon McGinty
Regeneration and Economy
Councillor Paul James

Summary By Service Area 2019-20
Corporate Management Team and Corporate Support
IT Client
Legal Services
Comms Client
HR Client
Net Service Expenditure

Total
Expenditure
552,872
1,549,700
394,310
88,600
362,500
2,947,982

Forecast 2018/19 - Performance and Resources
Senior Management

Proposed Budget
2018/19
700,064
7
1,652
2,248,585
(1,178)
2,949,131

Employees
Premises
Transport
Supplies and Services
Third Party Payments
Capital Charges
Expenditure Total
Grants and Contributions

(162,614)

Page 59

Total
Income
Net
(79,400)
473,472
(27,700) 1,522,000
394,310
88,600
(85,000)
277,500
(192,100) 2,755,882

Fees and Charges
Other Income
Income Total

(81,986)
(669)
(245,269)

Service Expenditure

2,703,862

Page 60

FEES and CHARGES

2019/20

Page 61

CONTENTS

Portfolio/Service

Page Number

Foreword
Communities
Environmental Health
HMO Licences
Gambling Act Licences
No Smoking Policy, Animal Health & Scrap Metal

1,2,3
4
5,6
7

Place
Licences
Hackney Carriages
Planning application Fees
Street trading
Leisure Services
Allotments / Park Events
Stray Dogs
Bulky Item / Green Waste Collections

8, 8a
9
10,10a
11
12
13
14
15

Policy and Resources
Car Parking
Bus Station Departures
Facilities
Land Charges
Street Naming and Numbering

16,17
18
19
20
21

Cultural and Trading
Shopmobililty
Cemeteries and Crematorium
Gloucester City Museum/Folk Museum
Guildhall Arts Centre

Page 62

22
23,24,25,26,27
28
29

FEES AND CHARGES 2019/20
FOREWORD
The following pages give a comprehensive list of fees and charges levied by Gloucester
City Council and Government on chargeable services provided to the public, within the
city.
Members agreed a general increase of 2.5% although some increases vary from this to
reflect supply and demand for the service and the need to conform to pricing policies.
Should you have any queries regarding these charges then please contact the relevant
officer whose name is shown at the back of the book.

Page 63

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
All Non Business for
VAT purposes unless
where stated
2018/2019
Charge £
Rodent Control:

2019/2020
Charge £

Increase
%

Including VAT
Domestic Premises

per visit

1st Visit:
2nd Visit:
3rd Visit:

£46
£23
£46

£46.50
£23.50
£46.50

1.09%
2.17%
1.09%

Commercial / Industrial Premises

per visit

1st Visit:
2nd Visit:
3rd Visit:

£52
£27
£52

£53.00
£27.50
£53.00

1.92%
1.85%
1.92%

Residents receiving Council Tax or Housing Benefit

per visit

1st Visit:
2nd Visit:
3rd Visit:
*A 2nd Visit must be booked within one month of the 1st visit to qualify for the 2nd visit rate shown above.

£23
£12
£23

£23.50
£12.00
£23.50

2.17%
4.35%
2.17%

Disinfestation of Premises:
Domestic Premises

Including VAT
per visit

1st Visit:
2nd Visit:
3rd Visit:

£52.00
£26.00
£52.00

£53.00
£26.50
£53.00

1.92%
1.92%
1.92%

Commercial / Industrial Premises

per visit

1st Visit:
2nd Visit:
3rd Visit:

£63.00
£29.00
£63.00

£64.00
£29.50
£64.00

1.59%
1.72%
1.59%

Residents receiving Council Tax or Housing Benefit

per visit

1st Visit:
2nd Visit:
3rd Visit:
*A 2nd Visit must be booked within one month of the 1st visit to qualify for the 2nd visit rate shown above.

£26.00
£13.00
£26.00

£26.50
£13.50
£26.50

1.92%
3.85%
1.92%

£45.00
£45.00
£22.50

£45.50
£45.50
£23.00

1.11%
1.11%
2.22%

£54.00
£70.00

3.85%

£115.00
£115.00

£120.00
£120.00

4.35%
4.35%

2018/2019
Charge £
£402.50
£68.40

£412.55
£70.15

Increase
%
2.50%
2.56%

Wasp Nests

Including VAT
Domestic Premises
Commercial / Industrial Premises
Residents receiving Council Tax or Housing Benefit

per visit
per visit
per visit

*If two wasps nests are reported at the same domestic property, the charge will be as above, plus an additional £10.
Work in default fees will be a reasonable charge on a case by case basis

#

Variable

#

Environmental Health Officer Rate (Hourly Rate - court charges)
Environmental Health Officer Rate (Hourly Rate) (BBFA)

*

£52.00
n/a

*

Skin Piercing, Acupuncture etc registration

Exempt from VAT
Exempt from VAT
premises
per person

High Hedge Nuisance, Investigation Fee
For people in receipt of Income Support Benefit, Pension Credit
Guarantee, or State Pension

High hedge/investigation Concessions:
Those in receipt of Council tax support or housing benefit receive around 83% concession
People with a disability receive around 83% concession
People over 65 years old receive around 83% concession
Those in receipt of Income Support, Pension Credit Guarantee or State Pension receive around 83% concession

Fixed Penalty Notices
Depositing Litter £100 (Reduced fee of £75.00 if paid within 10 days)
Failure to comply with a street litter control notice £100 (Reduced fee of £60.00 if paid within 10 days)
Failure to comply with a litter clearing notice £100 (Reduced fee of £60.00 if paid within 10 days)
Failure to produce waste documents £300 (Reduced fee of £180.00 if paid within 10 days)
Failure to produce authority to transport waste £300 (Reduced fee of £180.00 if paid within 10 days)
Unauthorised distribution of free printed matter £75 (Reduced fee of £50.00 if paid within 10 days)
Failure to comply with a waste receptacles notice £100 (Reduced fee of £60.00 if paid within 10 days)
Failure to comply with a Dog Control Order £75 (Reduced to £50.00 if paid within 10 days)
Graffiti £75 (Reduced fee of £50.00 if paid within 10 days)
Fly-posting £75 (Reduced fee of £50.00 if paid within 10 days)
Exposing vehicles for sale on a road £100 (Reduced fee of £60.00 if paid within 10 days)
Repairing vehicles on a road £100 (Reduced fee of £60.00 if paid within 10 days)
Fixed Penalty Notices for Fly-Tipping £400 (reduced to £300 if paid within 10 days).

*

Including Examination of food for voluntary surrender

#

A charge may be charged under the enforcement Act under the Service of Housing Act Notice
(part 1 of the Housing Act 2006) but this has yet to be finalised and authorised.

Environmental Information Regulations: VAT at standard rate
Personal enquiries (per photocopied sheet)
Others (based on 1 hours work)

1
Page
64

**
**
**
**
**
**
**
**

Environmental Health : Permits
All Non Business for VAT purposes

Application Fees
A2 Application Fee
Additional fee for operating without a permit

2019/2020
Increase
Charge £
%
Fees are provided by Environment Agency
2019/20 fees are to be confirmed in March 2019
£3,300.00
£3,300.00
0.00%
£1,200.00
£1,200.00
0.00%

Annual Subsistence Charges
Annual Subsistence (Low)
Annual Subsistence (Medium)
Annual Subsistence (High)

£1,420.00
£1,600.00
£2,300.00

£1,420.00
£1,600.00
£2,300.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Variation
Substantial Variation

£1,350.00

£1,350.00

0.00%

Transfer
Transfer

£235.00

£235.00

0.00%

Surrender
Surrender

LAPC and LAPPC charges

2018/2019
Charge £

£685.00

£685.00

0.00%

Standard Part B Fees
Standard Part B Process
Additional fee for currently operating without a permit
Stage I Petrol Vapour Recovery
Dry Cleaners
Stage I & Stage II Petrol Vapour Recovery
Vehicle Refinishers
Additional fee for operating a reduced fee activity without a permit

£1,625.00
£1,175.00
£152.00
£152.00
£255.00
£355.00
£70.00

£1,625.00
£1,175.00
£152.00
£152.00
£255.00
£355.00
£70.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Mobile screening and crushing plant
: - for the 3rd to 7th applications
:- for 8th & Subsequent applications

£1,620.00
£970.00
£490.00

£1,620.00
£970.00
£490.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£305.00

0.00%

£760.00

0.00%

£1,140.00

0.00%

£78.00
£155.00
£235.00

£1,720.00
£78.00
£155.00
£235.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Stage I & II Petrol Vapour Recovery
Petrol Vapour Recovery 1 & 2 (Low)
Petrol Vapour Recovery 1 & 2 (Medium)
Petrol Vapour Recovery 1 & 2 (High)

£111.00
£222.00
£335.00

£111.00
£222.00
£335.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Vehicle Refinishing
Vehicle Refinishers (Low)
Vehicle Refinishers (Medium)
Vehicle Refinishers (High)

£225.00
£360.00
£540.00

£225.00
£360.00
£540.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£635.00
£1,020.00
£1,530.00
£380.00
£605.00
£910.00
£194.00
£309.00
£465.00

£635.00
£1,020.00
£1,530.00
£380.00
£605.00
£910.00
£194.00
£309.00
£465.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£102.00

£102.00

0.00%

£167.00
£490.00
£77.00
£47.00

£167.00
£490.00
£77.00
£47.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£53.00
£10.00
£53.00

£53.00
£10.00
£53.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£1,030.00
£1,620.00

£1,030.00
£1,620.00

0.00%
0.00%

£100.00

£100.00

0.00%

*Where an application for any of the above is for a
combined Part B & Waste application

£305.00 (in addition to above)

Annual Subsistence Charges
(+£99 Combined Part B &

Standard Process (Low)
Standard Process (Medium)
Standard Process (High)
Reduced fee activity (Low)
Reduced fee activity (Medium)
Reduced fee activity (High)

Mobile Plant
Mobile Plant - 1st & 2nd Permits (Low)
Mobile Plant - 1st & 2nd Permits (Medium)
Mobile Plant - 1st & 2nd Permits (High)
Mobile Plant - 3rd - 7th Permits (Low)
Mobile Plant - 3rd - 7th Permits (Medium)
Mobile Plant - 3rd - 7th Permits (High)
Mobile Plant - 8th + Permits (Low)
Mobile Plant - 8th + Permits (Medium)
Mobile Plant - 8th + Permits (High)
:- Part B process subject to reporting in addition to above (under
E-PRTR)
Transfer and Surrender
Standard process transfer
Standard process partial transfer
New operator at low risk reduced fee activity
Reduced fee activity partial transfer
Temporary Transfer for Mobiles
First Transfer
Repeat transfer
Repeat following enforcement or warning
Substantial Change
Standard Process
Standard Process where the substantial change results in a new
PPC activity
Reduced fee activities

£760.00 Waste Installation)
(+£149 Combined Part B &
£1,140.00 Waste Installation)
(+£198 Combined Part B &
£1,720.00 Waste Installation)

Note
Subsistence charges can be paid in four equal quarterly instalments paid on 1st April, 1st July, 1st October and
1st January. Where paid quarterly the total amount payable to the local authority will be increased by £36.00
In addition there is also a charge of £50 for late fees which applies when an invoice remains unpaid eight weeks
from the date the invoice was issued. Reduced fee activities are: Service Stations, Vehicle Refinishers and Dry

2 65
Page

Environmental Health Cont: Permits
All Non Business for VAT purposes

LA - IPPC charges
Environmental Permitting

2018/2019
Charge £

2019/2020
Charge £

Increase
%

Fees are provided by Environment Agency
2019/20 fees are to be confirmed in March 2019

Application Fees
A2 Application Fee
Additional fee for operating without a permit

£3,300.00
£1,170.00

£3,300.00
£1,170.00

0.00%
0.00%

Annual Subsistence Charges
Annual Subsistence (low)
Annual Subsistence (Medium)
Annual Subsistence (High)

£1,420.00
£1,580.00
£2,290.00

£1,420.00
£1,580.00
£2,290.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Variation
Substantial Variation

£1,350.00

£1,350.00

0.00%

Transfer
Transfer
Partial Transfer

£230.00
£685.00

£230.00
£685.00

0.00%
0.00%

Surrender
Surrender

£685.00

£685.00

0.00%

Page 66

HMO LICENCES (Act 2003)
All Non business for VAT purposes
2018/19
Charge £

2019/20
Charge £

Houses Let in Multiple Occupation (HMO's)
New or renewed standard applications
£450
£820
Variations to application
£70
£70
Additional cost for non-standard applications per hour
£33
£33
Standard Application Fee Payable every five years
£450
£820
Non Standard Application Fee Payable on failure to licence at appropriate time
variable based on officer times
~~~

Note, HMO Licences now cover a 5 year period, in 2018/19 these covered a three year period
~~~

Additional charges will be incurred for non-standard applications that will be calculated in accordance with the nature
and amount of extra work required.

4 67
Page

LICENCES (Gambling Act 2005)
All Non business for VAT purposes
2018/19
Charge £
Premises Licences and Permit Fees
New Small Casino

2019/20
Charge £

Increase
%

Max Fee
Cap

Application New/Provisional Statement
Annual Fee
Application Variation
Application Provisional Statement Holders
Application Transfer / Reinstate

£5,768.00
£3,605.00
£2,884.00
£2,163.00
£1,297.80

*
*
*
*
*

£5,768.00
£3,605.00
£2,884.00
£2,163.00
£1,297.80

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£8,000.00
£5,000.00
£4,000.00
£8,000.00
£1,800.00

New Large Casino

Application New/Provisional Statement
Annual Fee
Application Variation
Application Provisional Statement Holders
Application Transfer / Reinstate

£7,210.00
£7,210.00
£3,605.00
£3,605.00
£1,550.15

*
*
*
*

£7,210.00
£7,210.00
£3,605.00
£3,605.00
£1,550.15

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£10,000.00
£10,000.00
£5,000.00
£10,000.00
£2,150.00

Regional Casino

Application New/Provisional Statement
Annual Fee
Application Variation
Application Provisional Statement Holders
Application Transfer / Reinstate

£10,815.00
£10,815.00
£5,407.50
£5,768.00
£4,686.50

*
*
*
*
*

£10,815.00
£10,815.00
£5,407.50
£5,768.00
£4,686.50

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£15,000.00
£15,000.00
£7,500.00
£15,000.00
£6,500.00

Bingo Club

Application New/Provisional Statement
Annual Fee
Application Variation
Application Provisional Statement Holders
Application Transfer / Reinstate

£2,511.25
£717.50
£1,255.63
£861.00
£861.00

*
*
*
*
*

£2,511.25
£717.50
£1,255.63
£861.00
£861.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£3,500.00
£1,000.00
£1,750.00
£3,500.00
£1,200.00

Betting Premises (excluding Tracks)

Application New/Provisional Statement
Annual Fee
Application Variation
Application Provisional Statement Holders
Application Transfer / Reinstate

£2,152.50
£430.50
£1,076.25
£861.00
£861.00

*
*
*
*
*

£2,152.50
£430.50
£1,076.25
£861.00
£861.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£3,000.00
£600.00
£1,500.00
£3,000.00
£1,200.00

Tracks

Application New/Provisional Statement
Annual Fee
Application Variation
Application Provisional Statement Holders
Application Transfer / Reinstate

£1,793.75
£717.50
£896.88
£681.63
£681.63

*
*
*
*
*

£1,793.75
£717.50
£896.88
£681.63
£681.63

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£2,500.00
£1,000.00
£1,250.00
£2,500.00
£950.00

Family Entertainment Centres

Application New/Provisional Statement
Annual Fee
Application Variation
Application Provisional Statement Holders
Application Transfer / Reinstate

£1,435.00
£538.13
£717.50
£681.63
£681.63

*
*
*
*
*

£1,435.00
£538.13
£717.50
£681.63
£681.63

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£2,000.00
£750.00
£1,000.00
£2,000.00
£950.00

Gaming Centre (Adult)

Application New/Provisional Statement
Annual Fee
Application Variation
Application Provisional Statement Holders
Application Transfer / Reinstate

£1,435.00
£717.50
£717.50
£861.00
£861.00

*
*
*
*
*

£1,435.00
£717.50
£717.50
£861.00
£861.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£2,000.00
£1,000.00
£1,000.00
£2,000.00
£1,200.00

£20.50 *
£35.88 *

£20.50
£35.88

0.00%
0.00%

Copy of Licence
Notification of Change Fee
Occasional Use Notice
Temporary Use notice

* Note :Gloucester City Council prices are set as a guide, and will be subject to variation in accordance with evidence of fairness.
However the amount charged will not exceed the Statutory maximum set by Legislation.
Note:
Gambling Act 2005 may give rise to changes in some of the Fees listed above but however these charges have not been
set and the above will apply until further notice.

5 68
Page

LICENCES (Gambling Act 2005)
All Non business for VAT
2018/19
Charge £
Permit Fees
Family Entertainment Centre

2019/20
Charge £

Increase
%

Application New/Renewal
Application Transitional
Change of Name
Copy of Permit

£300.00
£100.00
£25.00
£15.00

*
*
*
*

£300.00
£100.00
£25.00
£15.00

0.00% each
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Prize Gaming

Application New/Renewal
Application Transitional
Change of Name
Copy of Permit

£300.00
£100.00
£25.00
£15.00

*
*
*
*

£300.00
£100.00
£25.00
£15.00

0.00% each
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Alcohol Licences Premises2 or Less machines

Application New

£50.00 *

£50.00

0.00%

Alcohol Licences PremisesMore than 2 machines

Application New
Annual Fee
Application Transitional
Application Variation
Change of Name
Copy of Permit
Transfer

£150.00
£50.00
£100.00
£100.00
£25.00
£15.00
£25.00

*
*
*
*
*
*
*

£150.00
£50.00
£100.00
£100.00
£25.00
£15.00
£25.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Club Gaming Permit

Application New/Renewal
Annual Fee
Application Transitional/Variation
Copy of Permit

£200.00
£50.00
£100.00
£15.00

*
*
*
*

£200.00
£50.00
£100.00
£15.00

0.00% each
0.00%
0.00% each
0.00%

Club Gaming Machine Permit

Application New/Renewal
Annual Fee
Application Transitional/Variation
Copy of Permit

£200.00
£50.00
£100.00
£15.00

*
*
*
*

£200.00
£50.00
£100.00
£15.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00% each
0.00%

Club (fast Track) for Gaming Permit
or Machine Permit

Application New/Renewal
Annual Fee
Application Transitional

£100.00 *
£50.00 *
£100.00 *

£100.00
£50.00
£100.00

0.00% each
0.00%
0.00%

* Note Where Annual Fee, Renewal Fee, Transitional Fee, Change of Name, Copy Permit, Variation,
and Transfer if not noted - it is because the fee is not Applicable. For the Permit Type.
**

All Fees Listed are Statutory and Set by the Secretary of State and Licensing Authority

Note: Gambling Act 2005 may give rise to changes in some of the Fees listed above but however these charges have not been
set and the above will apply until further notice.

6 69
Page

No Smoking Policy
(Health Act 2006)
All Non business for VAT purposes
2018/19
Charge £

2019/20
Charge £

Increase
%

Fixed Penalty
Failure to Display NO Smoking Signs

(paid within 15 Days)
(paid within 29 days)

Smoking Offences in a Smoke- free Place

(paid within 15 Days)
(paid within 29 days)

£150.00 *
£200.00 *
£30.00 **
£50.00 **

£150
£200

0.00%
0.00%

£30
£50

0.00%
0.00%

* Note that this is a Statutory Penalty under Section 6 of the Health Act 2006
** Note that this is a Statutory Penalty under Section 7 of the Health Act 2006

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
All Non Business for VAT purposes unless where stated
2018/19
Charge £
Food Export Certificates
Level 2 Award in Food Safety in Catering Training

Gloucester business candidates
non-Gloucester business candidates
At the Business Address (VAT INCLUSIVE)

2019/20
Charge £

Increase
%

£29.00

£30.00

3.45%

£50.00
£64.00
£43.00

£51.25
£65.50
£44.00

2.50%
2.34%
2.33%

N.B. Discounts are available for group bookings

Animal Health Licences
Animal Boarding Establishments
Breeding of Dogs Licence***
Dangerous Wild Animals Licence ***

Plus cost of vet ***

Fees will be confirmed at Licencing & Enforcement in March 2019

Pet Shop Licences ***
Zoo Licences ***
Horse Riding Establishment Licence ***
Copy of licence

£127.00
£75.00
£205.00
£154.00
£72.00
£425.00
£148.00
£11.00

£127.00
£75.00
£205.00
£154.00
£72.00
£425.00
£148.00
£11.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Scrap Metal Dealers Licence
Application
New Site Licence Application
New Collectors Application
Site Renewal Application
Collectors Renewal Application
Variation to Site Application
Variation to Collectors Application
Replacement Vehicle Badge
Copy of Paper Licence
Change of Details

£440.00
£265.00
£345.00
£218.00
£235.00
£142.00
£20.00
£11.00
£48.00

£440.00
£265.00
£345.00
£218.00
£235.00
£142.00
£20.00
£11.00
£48.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Initial application
Renewal application

7
Page
70

LICENCES (Act 2003)
All Non business for VAT purposes
2018/19
Charge £

Sex shop Licences:
Grant / Renewal:
New Application
Renewal Application
Transfer Application
Variation Application
Refund to unsuccessful new and renewal applications
Change of Details
Copy of Licence
Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates
Band A, NDRV £0 - £4,300
Conversion/New/Variation
Annual Fee

2019/20
Charge £

Increase
%

£4,420.00
£2,810.00
£2,125.00
£2,125.00
£800.00

£4,420.00
£2,810.00
£2,125.00
£2,125.00
£800.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£33.50
£15.50

£33.50
£15.50

0.00%
0.00%

£100.00
£70.00

**
**

£100.00
£70.00

0.00%
0.00%

Band B, NDRV £4,301 - £33,000

Conversion/New/Variation
Annual Fee

£190.00
£180.00

**
**

£190.00
£180.00

0.00%
0.00%

Band C, NDRV £33,001 - £87,000

Conversion/New/Variation
Annual Fee

£315.00
**
£295.00 **

£315.00
£295.00

0.00%
0.00%

#

Band D, NDRV £87,001 - £125,000

Conversion/New/Variation
Annual Fee

£450.00 **
£320.00 **

£450.00
£320.00

0.00%
0.00%

##

Band E, NDRV £125,001 and above

Conversion/New/Variation
Annual Fee

£635.00 **
£350.00 **

£635.00
£350.00

0.00%
0.00%

#

Note: Where Premises are used exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol for consumption
on the premises the fee shall be 2 x the amount specified above

##

Note: Where Premises are used exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol for consumption
on the premises the fee shall be 3 x the amount specified above

**

Statutory fee

8 71
Page

LICENCES (Act 2003 - Continued)
All Non business for VAT purposes
2018/19
Charge £
Additional Fee for Licensable Activities where the Occupancy is > 5000
Occupancy 5,000 - 9,999
10,000 - 14,999
15,000 - 19,999
20,000 - 29,999
30,000 - 39,999
40,000 - 49,999
50,000 - 59,000
60,000 - 69,999
70,000 - 79,999
80,000 - 89,999
90,000 and over

Increase
%

**
**
**
**
**
**
**
**
**
**
**

£1,000
£2,000
£4,000
£8,000
£16,000
£24,000
£32,000
£40,000
£48,000
£56,000
£64,000

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£10.50 **

£10.50

0.00%

£315.00 **

£315.00

0.00%

Notification of change of name or address (Section 33)

£10.50 **

£10.50

0.00%

Application to vary licence to specify individual as premises supervisor (Section 37)

£23.00 **

£23.00

0.00%

Application for minor variation tp premises licence or club premises certificate

£89.00 **

£89.00

0.00%

Application for transfer of premises licence (Section 42)

£23.00 **

£23.00

0.00%

Interim Authority Notice following the death etc of licence holder (Section 47)

£23.00 **

£23.00

0.00%

Theft, loss etc. of certificate or summary (Section 79)

£10.50 **

£10.50

0.00%

Notification of change of name or alteration of rules of club (Section 82)

£10.50 **

£10.50

0.00%

Change of relevant registered address of club (Section 83 (1) or (2))

£10.50 **

£10.50

0.00%

Temporary Event Notice (Section 100)

£21.00 **

£21.00

0.00%

Theft, loss etc. or temporary event notice (Section 110)

£10.50 **

£10.50

0.00%

Application for a grant of personal licence (Section 117)

£37.00 **

£37.00

0.00%

Theft, loss etc. of personal licence (Section 126)

£10.50 **

£10.50

0.00%

Duty to notify change of name or address (Section 127)

£10.50 **

£10.50

0.00%

Right of freeholder etc. to be notified of licensing matters (Section 178)

£21.00 **

£21.00

0.00%

Licensing Act 2003 - Other Fees
Loss or theft of premises licence or summary (Section 25)
Application for a provisional statement where premises being built etc. (Section 29)

**

Statutory fees

8a 72
Page

£1,000
£2,000
£4,000
£8,000
£16,000
£24,000
£32,000
£40,000
£48,000
£56,000
£64,000

2019/20
Charge £

HACKNEY CARRIAGES
All Outside the scope of VAT

HACKNEY CARRIAGES/ PRIVATE HIRE
DRIVERS
1 year New HC & PH Drivers Licences
3 year New HC & PH Drivers Licences
3 yearly DBS Fee *
DVLA check
HC Deposit Knowledge Test
HC Knowledge Test (50% to GHCA)**
PH Knowledge Test
Renewal HC & PH drivers

2018/2019
Charge £

**

(1 Year)
(3 Year)

3 yearly DBS Fee *
Replacement Licence Badge
OPERATORS
1 year PH Operators Licences - up to 2 vehicles
Up to 3-5 vehicles
Up to 6-10 vehicles
11 + vehicles
5 Year PH Operators Licences - up to 2 vehicles
Up to 3-5 vehicles
Up to 6-10 vehicles
11 + vehicles
1 year PH Operators Licences:
Micro Operator (up to 3 vehicles)
Small Operator (4 - 10 vehicles)
Medium Operator (11 - 30 vehicles)
Large Operator (31 + vehicles)
5 year PH Operators Licences:
Micro Operator (up to 3 vehicles)
Small Operator (4 - 10 vehicles)
Medium Operator (11 - 30 vehicles)
Large Operator (31 + vehicles)
Add Premises on Operators Licence
Add Premises on Operators Licence
VEHICLES
HC Vehicle Licences
PH Vehicle Licences
Transfer of Ownership
Temporary Change of Vehicle
Replacement Plates

£113.00
£246.00
£44.00
N/A
£55.00
£110.00
£31.00
£79.00
£206.00
£44.00
£10.00

1 year new application
5 year new application
1 year Renewal
5 Year Renewal

External Rear
External Front
Internal Window

Replacement Licence Certificate
Application to notify of change of address
Hackney Carriage Sticker Pack (No Smoking Stickers)
Private Hire Sticker Pack (Bus Lane , Insurance (x3) and no smoking)
Bus Lane Sticker

*

And then every 3 years. This fee is subject to variation in accordance with DBS
increases and includes administration costs.
** This deposit fee is payable for the Hackney Carriage knowledge test and is nonrefundable
if the test is cancelled
The fee is non-refundable
from the
*** application for new drivers of both
**** Includes allowance for administration costs

9 73
Page

2019/2020
Charge £
****
****
****

Increase
%

£113.00
£246.00
£44.00
N/A
£55.00
£110.00
£31.00
£79.00
£206.00
£44.00
£10.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£300.00
£620.00
£1,000.00
£1,500.00

£300.00
£620.00
£1,000.00
£1,500.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£1,200.00
£2,480.00
£4,000.00
£6,000.00
£144.00
£450.00
£103.00
£410.00

£1,200.00
£2,480.00
£4,000.00
£6,000.00
£144.00
£450.00
£103.00
£410.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£189.00
£189.00
£50.00
£67.00
£20.00
£15.00
£15.00
£10.50
£10.50
£5.00
£10.00
£3.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

****
****

£189.00
£189.00
£50.00 ****
£67.00
£20.00 ****
£15.00
£15.00 ****
£10.50
£10.50
£5.00
£10.00
£3.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Planning Application Fees 2018/19
Local Planning Authority Advice

Charge for Letter
only

Category of Development
Residential Development
(including changes of use)
1-2 Dwellings
3-5 Dwellings
6-9 Dwellings
10-49 Dwellings
50-199 Dwellings
200+ Dwellings

Page 74

Non residential or commercial
Less than 500m²
501-999m²
1000 - 4999m²
5000 - 9999m²
10000m²+ (More than 2ha)

Charge for office
meeting followed
by a letter

Charge for site
visit followed by a
letter

Fees/charges for followup meeting(s) (per hour
or part there of)

Fees/charges for follow-up letter
(if considered follow up,
otherwise new pre-application will
be required)

£200.00
£500.00
£600.00
£1,000.00
£2,000.00
£3,000.00

£300.00
£600.00
£700.00
£1,300.00
£2,500.00
£3,500.00

£400.00
£700.00
£800.00
£1,600.00
£2,700.00
£3,800.00

£100.00
£100.00
£100.00
£150.00
£200.00
£250.00

£120.00
£150.00
£150.00
£150.00
£400.00
£500.00

£200.00
£300.00
£1,000.00
£1,500.00
£2,000.00

£300.00
£400.00
£1,300.00
£1,800.00 *
£2,500.00

£400.00
£500.00
£1,500.00
£2,000.00
£3,000.00

£100.00
£100.00
£150.00
£200.00
£300.00

£100.00
£150.00
£200.00
£400.00
£500.00

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

**

* Further meeting & feedback £750
Permitted Development
Householder
Other

£37.00
£54.00

N/A
N/A

Pre-Application Advice
Householder

£42.00

£110.00

£100.00
£53.00
£105.00
£105.00
£105.00
£15.00

£140.00
N/A
£200.00
£200.00
£200.00
N/A

Others
Listed Building/Conservation
Advertisements
Change of Use
Telecommunications
Other
Copy Consent (Dev. Control)

**
***
****

N/A
N/A

£140.00

£40.00

£160.00

£100.00
£55.00
£100.00
£100.00
£100.00

N/A
£300.00
£300.00
£300.00
N/A

10

N/A

N/A (new pre-application required)

£100.00
£100.00
£100.00
£100.00
£100.00
N/A

Notes
All fees are inclusive of VAT @ 20%.
*Gross floor area, measured externally.
**This is for proposals that only require listed building consent, if there are other works that require planning permission,
the fee will be based on the relevant category of development.
***If the proposal is change of use to a dwelling, the fee for residential dwelling applies.
****Includes development not falling within any of the above categories such as playing pitches, car parks.
An additional fee will be payable if our advice requires comment or reports from independent consultants/professional
advisors not employed by the Council.
Generally, following the formal response, planning officers will not be able to enter into correspondence unless a new
pre-application has been submitted.

Page 75

Exemptions
Advice sought in the following categories is free:
- Building Conservation advice for works of repair to listed building and Conservation Area consents.
- Works to trees covered by a Tree Preservation Order or trees located within a Conservation Area.
- Where the enquiry is made by a Local Authority or County Council and the proposal relates to a statutory function
of the Authority/Council.
- Where the enquiry is made by a Parish or Town Council.
- Where the enquiry is made by a Housing Association, Registered Social Landlord, or an equivalent Affordable
Housing Provider or an architect/agent acting directly on their behalf working on a solely affordable housing
proposal, one scheme per site, any subsequent proposal would be subject to the full pre-application fee.
- Where the development is for the direct benefit of a disabled person (and as such there would be no fee incurred
to make the planning application).
- Initial advice will be provided where Gloucester City Council are working with local independents setting up a new
business and / or are grant aiding them through Business Support grants
Reductions
50% reduction in fees for local charities and local community groups providing services to the community and
relating to the provision of that service.

10

Planning Application Fees 2019/20
Local Planning Authority Advice

Category of Development
Residential Development
(including changes of use)
1-2 Dwellings
3-5 Dwellings
6-9 Dwellings
10-49 Dwellings
50-199 Dwellings
200+ Dwellings

Page 76

Non residential or commercial
Less than 500m²
501-999m²
1000 - 4999m²
5000 - 9999m²
10000m²+ (More than 2ha)

Charge for office
meeting followed by
a letter

Charge for site visit
followed by a letter

Fees/charges for followup meeting(s) (per hour
or part there of)

Fees/charges for follow-up letter (if
considered follow up, otherwise new
pre-application will be required)

£205.00
£512.50
£615.00
£1,025.00
£2,050.00
£3,075.00

£307.50
£615.00
£717.50
£1,332.50
£2,562.50
£3,587.50

£410.00
£717.50
£820.00
£1,640.00
£2,767.50
£3,895.00

£102.50
£102.50
£102.50
£153.75
£205.00
£256.25

£123.00
£153.75
£153.75
£153.75
£410.00
£512.50

£205.00
£307.50
£1,025.00
£1,537.50
£2,050.00

£307.50
£410.00
£1,332.50
£1,845.00 *
£2,562.50

£410.00
£512.50
£1,537.50
£2,050.00
£3,075.00

£102.50
£102.50
£153.75
£205.00
£307.50

£102.50
£153.75
£205.00
£410.00
£512.50

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

Charge for Letter
only

**

* Further meeting & feedback £768.75
Permitted Development
Householder
Other

£37.93
£55.35

N/A
N/A

Pre-Application Advice
Householder

£43.05

£112.75

£102.50
£54.33
£107.63
£107.63
£107.63
£15.38

£143.50
N/A
£205.00
£205.00
£205.00
N/A

Others
Listed Building/Conservation
Advertisements
Change of Use
Telecommunications
Other
Copy Consent (Dev. Control)

**
***
****

N/A
N/A
£143.50

£41.00 N/A (new pre-application required)

£164.00

£102.50
£56.38
£102.50
£102.50
£102.50

N/A
£307.50
£307.50
£307.50
N/A

10a

N/A

£102.50
£102.50
£102.50
£102.50
£102.50
N/A

Notes
All fees are inclusive of VAT @ 20%.
*Gross floor area, measured externally.
**This is for proposals that only require listed building consent, if there are other works that require planning permission,
the fee will be based on the relevant category of development.
***If the proposal is change of use to a dwelling, the fee for residential dwelling applies.
****Includes development not falling within any of the above categories such as playing pitches, car parks.
An additional fee will be payable if our advice requires comment or reports from independent consultants/professional
advisors not employed by the Council.
Generally, following the formal response, planning officers will not be able to enter into correspondence unless a new
pre-application has been submitted.

Page 77

Exemptions
Advice sought in the following categories is free:
- Building Conservation advice for works of repair to listed building and Conservation Area consents.
- Works to trees covered by a Tree Preservation Order or trees located within a Conservation Area.
- Where the enquiry is made by a Local Authority or County Council and the proposal relates to a statutory function
of the Authority/Council.
- Where the enquiry is made by a Parish or Town Council.
- Where the enquiry is made by a Housing Association, Registered Social Landlord, or an equivalent Affordable
Housing Provider or an architect/agent acting directly on their behalf working on a solely affordable housing
proposal, one scheme per site, any subsequent proposal would be subject to the full pre-application fee.
- Where the development is for the direct benefit of a disabled person (and as such there would be no fee incurred
to make the planning application).
- Initial advice will be provided where Gloucester City Council are working with local independents setting up a new
business and / or are grant aiding them through Business Support grants
Reductions
50% reduction in fees for local charities and local community groups providing services to the community and
relating to the provision of that service.

10a

STREET TRADING LICENCES
Street Trading Fees (VAT Exempt)

2018/2019
Charge £

2019/2020
Charge £

Increase
%

City Centre Catering
City Centre Catering annual fee (Everyday)
City Centre Catering annual fee (up to 5 days)
City Centre Catering seasonal daily rate (January - October)
City Centre Catering seasonal daily rate (November - December)

£8,000.00 Per Annum
£6,400.00 Per Annum
£25.00
£30.00

£8,000.00 Per Annum
£6,400.00 Per Annum
£25.00
£30.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Catering Applications outside City Centre
Catering outside City Centre annual fee (4 or more days)
Catering outside City Centre daily rate

£3,120.00 Per Annum
£15.00 Per day

£3,120.00 Per Annum
£15.00 Per day

0.00%
0.00%

Retailers City Centre
Retailers City Centre Annual fee (4 or more days)
Retailers City Centre Seasonal daily rate (Jan - October)
Retailers City Centre Seasonal daily rate (Nov - December)

£4,000.00
£20.00 Per day
£25.00 Per day

£4,000.00
£20.00 Per day
£25.00 Per day

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Retailer Applications outside City Centre
Retailers outside City centre annual fee (4 or more days)
Retailers outside City centre daily rate

£2,080.00 Per Annum
£10.00 Per day

£2,080.00 Per Annum
£10.00 Per day

0.00%
0.00%

Ice-Cream Mobile vendors
Mobile Ice-cream annual fee

£400.00

£400.00

0.00%

New Additional fees
New application fee
Renewal Fee
Buskers Fee (per week)
Badge fee for applicants and assistants (last 3 years)
Replacement Badge
Copy of paper licence

£115.00
£50.00
£5.00 Per Week
£50.00
£15.00
£10.50

£115.00
£50.00
£5.00 Per Week
£50.00
£15.00
£10.50

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£3.60 Per day

£3.60 Per day

0.00%

Note - Electricity where supplied, additional charge
Electricity Supply
Full electricity Supply

11 78
Page

LEISURE SERVICES
2018/2019
Charge £
Cricket
Matches - Pitch only weekends
Matches- Pitch only weekdays
Practice wickets (evenings only)
Changing rooms

2019/2020
Charge £

Increase
%

Including VAT

Exempt from VAT

£48.70
£23.85
£17.95
£7.15

£49.75
£24.50
£18.25
£7.25

2.16%
2.73%
1.67%
1.40%

£42.00
£21.50
£7.15

£43.00
£22.00
£7.25

2.38%
2.33%
1.40%

£42.00
£21.50
£7.15

£43.00
£22.00
£7.25

2.38%
2.33%
1.40%

£6.00

£6.15

2.50%

£205.00
£101.50

£210.00
£104.00

2.44%
2.46%

Teams under 17 half price
Football

Including VAT

Pitch only weekends
Pitch only weekdays
Changing rooms

Exempt from VAT
Teams under 17 half price

Rugby
Pitch only weekends
Pitch only weekdays
Changing rooms

Including VAT

Exempt from VAT
Teams under 17 half price

HARD PLAY AREA
Widden Street

**

SPECIAL TENANCIES (Seasonal Bookings)
Pitch per season
Pitch per season

Including VAT

Including VAT
Senior
Junior

All income from the above is retained by our Streetcare contractor
** Charges are standard rated unless the letting is for over 24 hours or it is part of a series of lets when it is exempt from VAT.

12 79
Page

ALLOTMENTS
Exempt from VAT
2018/19
Charge in pence
per square metre

£17

2019/20
Charge in pence
Pence

%
Increase

16.96

2.50%

- Age related concessions: 40% reduction (Allotment holder pays 60% of full price)
- Concessions applicable only 1 Allotment per person.
- Plot tenants in receipt of Housing Benefit and/or Council Tax Support and proven are entitled to 40% discount.
- People with a disability are entitled to 40% concession
- Concession is available for men & women over the age of 65.

- Women currently receiving age related benefit before 1 Dec 2014 and below age 65 years will continue to do so.

Hire of Parks for Events
Application Fee

2018/19

2019/20

This is not refundable and is to be paid on application

Charge

Charge

Commercial Promotion

£105.00

£107.50

2.38%

National Registered Charity

£52.50

£53.75

2.38%

Local charity or not for profit organisation

FREE

FREE

0.00%

2018/19
Charge

2019/20
Charge

Gloucester Park/ Plock Court (Rate per day)
Commercial Promotion
National Registered Charity
Local charity or not for profit organisation

From £700*
£105.00
£52.50

From £717.50*
107.50
53.75

2,50%
2.38%
2.38%

All Other Public Open Space
Commercial Promotion
National Registered Charity
Local charity or not for profit organisation

From £300
FREE
FREE

From £307.50
FREE
FREE

2.50%
0.00%
0.00%

Exempt from VAT

*Fees will be negotiable and will be based on the scale and requirements of the event. This will be considered on a case by case basis.
City Centre
Negotiable and will be based on the scale and requirements for the event. This will be considered on a case by case basis.

Cancellation Policy
6 Weeks Prior to Event
5 Weeks Prior to Event
Less than 5 Weeks
Less than 2 Weeks
Set up day
Breakdown day
Bond
Dependant on size of event and equipment used.
Minimum of £500, If large vehicles present on open space - Minimum of £2000
Film Crew
Amateur/Student crew
Professional
Please note: other charges may apply for additional services or permissions, for example:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Land use agreement (£150 - £750)
Equipment hire
Electrical hook-up
Provision of water
Waste management
Licences e.g. temporary event notices

13 80
Page

Stray Dogs
Excludes VAT

Charge per Day
1 Day

1 Hour collection charge
2 Hours collection charge

Charges
Charges
for
for
2018/2019 2019/2020
£90.00
£92.25 See Note 1
£125.00
£128.00

Increase%
2.50%
2.40%

2 Days

1 Hour collection charge
2 Hours collection charge

£105.00
£140.00

£107.50 See Note 2
£143.50

2.38%
2.50%

3 Days

1 Hour collection charge
2 Hours collection charge

£120.00
£155.00

£123.00
£159.00

2.50%
2.58%

4 Days

1 Hour collection charge
2 Hours collection charge

£135.00
£170.00

£138.25
£174.25

2.41%
2.50%

5 Days

1 Hour collection charge
2 Hours collection charge

£150.00
£185.00

£153.75
£189.50

2.50%
2.43%

6 Days

1 Hour collection charge
2 Hours collection charge

£165.00
£200.00

£169.00
£205.00

2.42%
2.50%

7 Days

1 Hour collection charge
2 Hours collection charge

£180.00
£215.00

£184.50
£220.25

2.50%
2.44%

Note 1
Fees will be charged for every part or whole day at the kennel
2018/19 fees based on the following:
Statutory fee
Admin fee
Collection fee (@ £35 per hour)
Daily kennel fee
Total
One off delivery back to owner fee

Note 2
Costs will increase by £15.00 for each day or part day that the dog is held by the kennels

Note 3
There will be a one off fee £30 for delivery back to the owner should the owner not be
able to get to the kennels
Concessions:
Those in receipt of Council Tax Support or Housing benefit
50%
Concessionary fares for stray dog service are only eligible on kennelling fees.
I.e. the customer receives 50% discount on kennel fees but will still have to pay 100% of other fees

14 81
Page

Bulky Item and Garden Waste Charges
Non business for VAT purposes

Bulky Items
The City Council provides a bulky item collection service. The charge is:
General
households:
Households
in receipt£24
of for up to 3 items, with any additional items at £8 per item
benefit: £12 for up to 3
Concessions:
Those in receipt of Council Tax Support or Housing benefit

Amount of concession
50%

Garden Waste
The City Council provides a fortnightly waste collection service. The charge is:
General households: £44 (£26 concession) (1st Oct 2018 – 30th Sep 2019)
Concessions:
Those in receipt of Council Tax Support or Housing benefit

Replacement Wheelie Bin (Black or Green)
The City Council will charge for a replacement wheelie bin where it has been damaged or lost at no fault of its contractor:
Replacement Charge (if delivered by contractor): £40
Replacement Charge (if collected from Eastern Avenue Depot): £30

15 82
Page

CAR PARKING
GLOUCESTER TOWN CENTRE OFF STREET CAR PARK CHARGES
Including Vat
2018/2019
Charge £

2019/2020
Charge £

Increase
%

DAILY CHARGES

Period of wait

Westgate Street Car Park

Up to 1 hour
Up to 3 hours
Up to 4 hours
Up to 5 hours
All Day

£1.30
£2.20
£3.20
£4.20
£6.00

£1.30
£2.20
£3.20
£4.20
£6.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Sunday Rate: Up to 1 hour
All day
Coaches only - Any period

£1.10
£2.00

£1.10
£2.00

0.00%
0.00%

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 4 hours
Sunday Rate: Up to 1 hour

£1.30
£2.20
£3.20
£4.20
£1.10

£1.30
£2.20
£3.20
£4.20
£1.10

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Up to 4 hours
£2.00
£2.00
Note: A maximum stay of four hours applies to this car park

0.00%

Hare Lane South Car Park

St Michaels Sq Car Park

Station Road Car Park

Longsmith Street Car Park

Eastgate Centre (roof top), Car Park

Up to 1 hour
Up to 3 hours
Up to 4 hours
Up to 5 hours
All Day

£1.30
£2.20
£3.20
£4.20
£6.00

£1.30
£2.20
£3.20
£4.20
£6.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

After 4pm (untimed)

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Sunday Rate: Up to 1 hour
All day

£1.10
£2.00

£1.10
£2.00

0.00%
0.00%

Up to 1 hour
Up to 3 hours
Up to 4 hours
Up to 5 hours
All Day

£1.30
£2.20
£3.20
£4.20
£6.00

£1.30
£2.20
£3.20
£4.20
£6.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

After 4pm (untimed)

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Sunday Rate: Up to 1 hour
All day

£1.10
£2.00

£1.10
£2.00

0.00%
0.00%

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 4 hours
All Day

£1.40
£2.30
£3.50
£4.50
£6.00

£1.40
£2.30
£3.50
£4.50
£6.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Sunday Rate: Up to 1 hour
All day

£1.20
£2.20

£1.20
£2.20

0.00%
0.00%

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 4 hours
All Day

£1.40
£2.30
£3.50
£4.50
£6.00

£1.40
£2.30
£3.50
£4.50
£6.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Sunday Rate: Up to 1 hour
All day

£1.20
£2.20

£1.20
£2.20

0.00%
0.00%

16 83
Page

CAR PARKING (continued)
GLOUCESTER TOWN CENTRE OFF STREET CAR PARK CHARGES (continued)
Including Vat
2018/2019
Charge £
DAILY CHARGES
North Warehouse

Great Western Road Car Park

Castlemeads Car Park
(weekends & Bank holidays only)

GL1 Leisure Centre Car Park

Hare Lane North Car Park

Hampden Way Car Park

Kingswalk Multi Storey Car Park

Ladybellegate Street Car Park

Southgate Moorings Car Park (Docks)
24 hour operational

New evening Tariff
SEASON TICKETS (12 Weeks)
Hare Lane North
Longsmith Street (multi-storey)
Station Road

2019/2020
Charge £

Increase
%

Monday to Friday
up to 30 mins
up to 2 hours

£0.50
£2.20

£0.50
£2.20

0.00%
0.00%

Saturday and bank holidays
Up to 2 hours
Up to 4 hours
Over 4 hours

£2.20
£4.20
£6.00

£2.20
£4.20
£6.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Sunday Rate: Up to 1 hour
All day

£1.10
£2.00

£1.10
£2.00

0.00%
0.00%

Monday to Sunday
All Day
Sunday £2.00 all day

£3.20
£2.20

£3.20
£2.20

0.00%

All Day

£2.00

£2.00

0.00%

Monday to Saturday
Max stay 2.5 hours

£4.00

£4.00

0.00%

Up to 1 hour
Up to 4 hours
All Day

£1.30
£2.20
£3.00

£1.30
£2.20
£3.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Sunday Rate Up to 1 hour
All day
Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 4 hours
All Day

£1.10
£2.00
£1.30
£2.20
£3.20
£4.20
£6.00

£1.10
£2.00
£1.30
£2.20
£3.20
£4.20
£6.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

After 4pm (untimed)

£1.00

£1.00

0.00%

Sunday Rate: Up to 1 hour
All day

£1.10
£2.00

£1.10
£2.00

0.00%
0.00%

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 4 hours
All Day

£1.40
£2.30
£3.50
£4.50
£6.00

£1.40
£2.30
£3.50
£4.50
£6.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Sunday Rate: Up to 1 hour
All day

£1.20
£2.20

£1.20
£2.20

0.00%
0.00%

Up to 1 hour
Up to 2 hours
Up to 3 hours
Up to 4 hours
All Day

£1.40
£2.30
£3.50
£4.50
£6.00

£1.40
£2.30
£3.50
£4.50
£6.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Sunday Rate: Up to 1 hour
Up to 4 hours

£1.20
£2.20

£1.20
£2.20

0.00%
0.00%

Up to 1 hour
Up to 3 hours
Up to 4 hours
Up to 5 hours
All Day

£1.40
£2.50
£3.50
£4.50
£6.00

£1.40
£2.50
£3.50
£4.50
£6.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Sunday Rate: Up to 1 hour
All day
6pm -7am

£1.20
£2.20
£1.50

£1.20
£2.20
£1.50

0.00%
0.00%

Charge £
£216.00
£315.00
£220.50

Concessions:
People with a disability (a blue badge holder) free for 3 hours max stay receive 100% concession

17 84
Page

Charge £
£216.00
£315.00
£220.50

%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Miscellaneous Items
VAT Applicable
2018/2019
Charges £

2019/2020
Charges £

MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS
Bus Station Departures (per departure)

Bus
Coach
Unbooked Coach

* Excluding VAT

18 85
Page

£0.63

1.00 *
2.00 *
5.00 *

Facilities Fees

Room Hire
Civic Suite:
Per hour
Morning (8.00 - 12.30)
Afternoon (12.30 - 5.00)
Whole Day (8.00 - 5.00)
Evening (5.00 - 11.00)
Evening per hour
Saturday:

2018/2019
Charge £

2019/2020
Charge £

Increase
%

8.00 - 12.30
12.30 - 5.00
5.00 - 11.00

£41.00
£165.00
£165.00
£320.00
£320.00
£55.00
£255.00
£255.00
£320.00

£41.00
£165.00
£165.00
£320.00
£320.00
£55.00
£255.00
£255.00
£320.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

8.00 - 12.30
12.30 - 5.00
5.00 - 11.00

£35.00
£145.00
£145.00
£275.00
£290.00
£50.00
£215.00
£215.00
£290.00

£35.00
£145.00
£145.00
£275.00
£290.00
£50.00
£215.00
£215.00
£290.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£20.00
£95.00
£95.00
£165.00
£290.00
£50.00

£20.00
£95.00
£95.00
£165.00
£290.00
£50.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£25.00
£115.00
£115.00
£205.00
£290.00
£50.00

£25.00
£115.00
£115.00
£205.00
£290.00
£50.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Multi Media Projector
Laptop

£50.00
£25.00

£50.00
£25.00

0.00%
0.00%

Flip Chart & Pens

£10.25

£10.25

0.00%

£105.00
£1.30
£1.65
£1.00

£105.00
£1.30
£1.65
£1.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

MEETING ROOM 1
Per hour
Morning (8.00 - 12.30)
Afternoon (12.30 - 5.00)
Whole Day (8.00 - 5.00)
Evening (5.00 - 11.00)
Evening per hour
Saturday:

MEETING ROOMS 2 & 3
Per hour
Morning (8.00 - 12.30)
Afternoon (12.30 - 5.00)
Whole Day (8.00 - 5.00)
Evening (5.00 - 11.00)

Sheriff's Room
Per hour
Morning (8.00 - 12.30)
Afternoon (12.30 - 5.00)
Whole Day (8.00 - 5.00)
Evening (5.00 - 11.00)
Evening per hour

Catering:
Kitchen
Tea/Coffee per head
Tea/Coffee/Biscuits per head
Fruit Juice per head
Seasonal Fruit Basket per head

All room hire is exempt from VAT unless facilities such as catering, service provisions etc are supplied in addition.
The whole service will then become subject to VAT at the standard rate.

19 86
Page

Land Charges
All fees are inclusive of VAT @ 20%.
2018/19
Charge £

2019/20
Charge £

LAND SEARCHES
Search Fees

CON29O- Optional Enquiries Fees
Road Proposals by Private Bodies
Advertisements
Completion Notices
Parks & Countryside
Pipelines
Houses in Multiple Occupation
Noise Abatement
Urban Development Areas
Enterprise Zones, Local Development Orders & Bids
Inner Urban Improvement Areas
Simplified Planning Zones
Land Maintenance Notices
Mineral Consultation Areas and Safeguarding Areas
Hazardous Substance Consents
Environmental and Pollution Notices
Food Safety Notices
Hedgerow Notices
Flood Defence and Land Drainage Consents
Common Land and Town or Village Green
Additional Question

LLC1
CON29R

£20.00
£109.00

£20.00
£109.00

0.00%
0.00%

£7.60
£5.65
£2.80
£2.80
£10.50
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£5.65
£1.50
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£5.65
£22.50
£23.06

£7.60
£5.65
£2.80
£2.80
£10.50
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£5.65
£1.50
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£2.80
£5.65
£22.50
£23.06

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

20 87
Page

Street Naming and Numbering
Exempt from VAT

Individual Development
Type of Application
Naming / Renaming / or Renumbering
Removal of property name
New Number

2018/2019
Charge £

2019/2020
Charge £

Fee
£36.00
£36.00
£52.00

Fee
£37.00
£37.00
£54.00

Development - New Road name and house number allocation
Number of plots
Fee per street Per Plot
1-5 plots
£105.00
£52.00
6-25 plots
£105.00
£47.00
26-75 plots
£105.00
£42.00
76+ plots
£105.00
£36.00

Page 88

Other fees and charges
Naming and numbering a commercial / industrial building
Naming or numbering a block of flats
Providing a letter of certification
Enquires from Solicitors or Building Societies

Fee
Per unit
£105.00
£22.00
£105.00
£22.00
£26.00
£52.00

2.78%
2.78%
3.85%

Fee per street Per Plot
£110.00
£54.00
£110.00
£48.00
£110.00
£43.00
£110.00
£37.00

4.76%
4.76%
4.76%
4.76%

3.85%
2.13%
2.38%
2.78%

Fee
Per unit
£110.00
£23.00
£110.00
£23.00
£27.00
£54.00

4.76%
4.76%
3.85%
3.85%

4.55%
4.55%

CULTURAL & TRADING SERVICES

2018/19
Charge £

2019/20
Charge £

Increase
%

SHOPMOBILITY

Electric Scooter
Annual membership (includes unlimited use for one year)
charges per visit
Non-member daily charge

Page 89

Wheelchair Hire
Overnight hire
Weekend hire (Friday to Monday)
Week hire (7 days)
Monthly hire (calendar month)

**VAT Medical Exempt
£20.00
£1.66

£20.00
£1.67 *

£24.00
£2.00

£5.00 *

£6.00

£5.00

20.00%

£5.00
£12.00
£20.00
£50.00

£5.00
£12.00
£20.00
£50.00

20.00%
20.00%
20.00%
20.00%

£4.17
£10.00
£16.67
£41.67

*
*
*
*

* subject to cabinet decision 7th Feb. 2018
** not applicable on long term hire
This is a standard rated service unless we see evidence for medical exemption where VAT is not charged.

£20 returnable deposit on long term hire

20.00%
20.00%

CEMETERIES AND CREMATORIUM FEES

A INTERMENT FEE

Exempt from VAT

1. Still-born child or child whose age at time of death did not exceed 3 months
(to a depth not exceeding 5ft)

2018/2019
Charge £

2019/2020
Charge £

Increase

£69.00

£71.00

2.90%

2. Child who at the date of death had exceeded 3 months but had not
attained his/her 17th birthday (to a depth not exceeding 5ft)

£246.00 **

£252.00 **

2.44%

3. Person who at the date of death attained his/her 17th birthday (to a depth
not exceeding 5ft)

£708.00 **

£726.00 **

2.54%

4. Person who at the date of death attained his/her 17th birthday (to a depth
not exceeding 7ft)

£1,020.00 **

£1,046.00 **

2.55%

5. Extra depth 7ft - 9ft

£446.00

£458.00

2.69%

6. Coffin or Casket exceeding 7ft 2" long or exceeding 32" wide - additional
cost of shoring extra wide casket, plus wooden shoring

£990.00 **

£1,015.00 **

2.53%

7. Coffin or Casket exceeding 7ft 2" long or exceeding 32" wide - additional
cost shoring in a re-open grave space next door is not lost

£295.00 **

£302.00 **

2.37%

** Statutory fees
Note: Fees numbered 1 and 2 above are not payable by the next-of-kin provided the deceased's normal
residence was within the administrative area of the Gloucester City Council. Thus, where a grave is
purchased and dug for free and the first interment is that of a child qualifying for free burial the fee
payable will be £1260.92 less the appropriate child fee.
Fees or other optional services, eg Organ, Organist's, "Exclusive Right of Burial", etc, remain payable
in accordance with those specified below.

2018/2019
Charge £

2019/2020
Charge £

Increase

£9,055.00

£9,282.00

2.51%

£221.00
£52.00

£227.00
£54.00

2.71%
3.85%

£275.00
£221.00
£136.00
£630.00

£282.00
£227.00
£140.00
£649.00

2.55%
2.71%
2.94%

1. Where a cremation has taken place at Gloucester Crematorium with or
without an appointment

£52.00

£54.00

3.85%

2. Where cremation has taken place elsewhere, with or without an
appointment

£61.00

£63.00

3.28%

Any bricked grave

Standard rated VAT

B INTERMENT OF CREMATED REMAINS

Exempt

In an earth grave where the Exclusive Right of Burial has been purchased
To pour ashes into a grave where cremation took place at Gloucester
C NEW CREMATED REMAINS GARDEN
Charges for purchase of Burial rights for cremated remains only
Interment fee (applicable in addition to the above charge)
Permission for Headstone

Exempt

D SCATTERING OF CREMATED REMAINS ON A GRAVE

Exempt

Concessions:
Concessions of 100% apply to the interment or cremation of children aged under 17 whose usual residence was within the City of Gloucester.
This concession does not apply to the interment of cremated remains

23 90
Page

CEMETERIES AND CREMATORIUM FEES (Continued)

2018/2019
Charge £
E EARTH GRAVE
1. Exclusive Right of Burial for 50yrs
Exclusive Right of Burial for 75yrs
Exclusive Right of Burial for 99yrs

2019/2020
Charge £

Increase

Exempt from VAT
£697.00
£1,061.00
£1,768.00

£715.00
£1,088.00
£1,813.00

2.58%
2.54%
2.55%

Exempt from VAT

£1,282.00

£1,315.00

2.57%

F USE OF CHAPEL FOR BURIAL & MEMORIAL SERVICES Exempt from VAT
This charge now includes use of organ and organist (whether used or not)

£221.00

£227.00

2.71%

£312.00

£320.00

2.56%

2. Vase or block of quarried stone not exceeding 10"x10"x10" (free standing)

£87.00

£90.00

3.45%

3. Each inscription after the first £60.00 + £10.50 VAT

£87.00

£90.00

3.45%

£136.00

£140.00

2.94%

Purchase in Reserve

G MEMORIALS, etc. (For the right to erect or place)

Exempt from VAT

1. Headstone not exceeding 3ft. in height

4. Raised stone 18"x12"x4" with of without flower container

H GRAVE MAINTENANCE

Standard rated

1. Keeping tidy per grave annually
2. Keeping tidy and planting per grave annually
3. Keeping tidy C.W.G.C. Graves per grave annually
4. Search Fees - Records

£95.00 *

£98.00 *

3.16%

£142.00 *

£146.00 *

2.82%

£7.69 *

£8.00 *

4.03%

£46.00 *

£48.00 *

4.35%

* Including VAT at standard rate

WOODLAND BURIALS
All inclusive charge for a Woodland Burial

Exempt from VAT
£1,612.00

24 91
Page

£1,653.00

2.54%

CEMETERIES AND CREMATORIUM FEES(continued)
CREMATORIUM
Exempt from VAT

2018/2019
Charge £

A

CREMATION FEES

1.

Stillborn child or child whose age at time of death did not exceed 3 months

2.

2019/2020
Charge £

Increase

£67.00

£69.00

2.99%

Child who at the date of death had exceeded 3 months but had not
attained his/her 17th birthday

£130.00

£134.00

3.08%

3.

Person who at the date of death attained his/her 17th birthday

£851.00 * #

£873.00 * #

2.59%

*

This charge includes the medical referee fee together with the use of organ and organist's
fee (whether used or not)
This charge includes Mercury Abatement Fee

#

NOTE: Fees numbered 1 and 2 above, and Medical Referee fees related thereto, are not payable by
next-of-kin provided the deceased's normal residence was within the administrative area of the
Gloucester City Council.
Concessions of 100% apply to the interment or cremation of children aged under 17 whose usual residence was within the City of
Gloucester. This concession does not apply to the interment of cremated remains
In Special circumstances a request can be made for a 4.00pm Cremation Service

£134.00

£138.00

2.99%

B

SCATTERING OF CREMATED REMAINS

1.

Where cremation has taken place at Gloucester Crematorium, by
appointment

£52.00

£54.00

3.85%

2.

Where cremation has taken place elsewhere, with or without appointment

£61.00

£63.00

3.28%

C

ADDITIONAL CREMATION CERTIFICATES

£23.00

£24.00

4.35%

D

MEDICAL REFEREES FEES

£55.00

£57.00

3.64%

E

CREMATORIUM CASKETS
Polytainer
Lawnswood Urn
Derby Casket

£13.00
£31.00
£62.00

£14.00
£32.00
£64.00

7.69%
3.23%
3.23%

LOAN OF SCATTERING URN

£38.00

£39.00

2.63%

Deposit of Cremated Remains per Month after Month

£41.00

£43.00

4.88%

£1,189.00 *
£2,050.00 *

£1,219.00 *
£2,102.00 *

2.52%
2.54%

£72.00 *
£123.00 *

£74.00 *
£127.00 *

2.78%
3.25%

F

G

NATIVE HARDWOOD GARDEN SEAT
Granite Seat

H

BOOK OF MEMORY

1.
2.

2 Line Inscription
5 Line Inscription

* Including VAT at standard rate

25 92
Page

CEMETERIES AND CREMATORIUM FEES (Continued)
KERB PLAQUES, TREES, ETC. (20 YRS)
2018/2019
Charge £
Single bronze kerb plaque
Single bronze kerb plaque c/w a Rose motif
Double bronze kerb plaque
Single bronze tree plaque
Double bronze tree plaque
Bronze Heart Tree Plaque (max of 50 letters/figs)
Bronze Heart Tree Plaque c/w a Rose motif
Reserved space on kerb

Double Granite Plaques

Renewal of Adoption for 20 yrs
Single Kerb plaque
Double Kerb Plaque
Standard Rose Tree or Shrub and Plaque
Standard tree and Plaque
Standard rose tree and double tree plaque
Rose Bush and Plaque
Renewal of Reserved Space on Kerb

Increase

£361.00
£400.00
£719.00
£395.00
£763.00
£436.00
£465.00
£85.00

*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

£371.00
£410.00
£737.00
£405.00
£783.00
£447.00
£477.00
£88.00

*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

2.77%
2.50%
2.50%
2.53%
2.62%
2.52%
2.58%
3.53%

£1,120.00
£964.00
£1,015.00
£1,413.00

*
*
*
*

£1,148.00
£989.00
£1,041.00
£1,449.00

*
*
*
*

2.50%
2.59%
2.56%
2.55%

£495.00
£673.00
£562.00
£820.00

*
*
*
*

£508.00
£690.00
£577.00
£841.00

*
*
*
*

2.63%
2.53%
2.67%
2.56%

Exempt from VAT
£150.00
£300.00
£241.00
£259.00
£391.00
£198.00
£86.00

£154.00
£308.00
£248.00
£266.00
£401.00
£203.00
£89.00

2.67%
2.67%
2.90%
2.70%
2.56%
2.53%
3.49%

£925.00 *
£1,389.00 *
£1,620.00 *

£949.00 *
£1,424.00 *
£1,661.00 *

2.59%
2.52%
2.53%

£221.00 *

£227.00 *

2.71%

Flowering cherry tree and plaque
Standard Rose Tree or Shrub and plaque
Standard Rose Tree & bronze heart plaque
Standard Rose Tree & Double tree plaque
Single Granite Plaques

2019/2020
Charge £

Range from
to
Range from
to

New Memorial Garden
Vase
Sanctum 2000
Sanctum 2
Use of organ and organist
Included in use of chapel

* Including VAT at standard rate

26 93
Page

CEMETERIES AND CREMATORIUM FEES (Continued)
Cedar Garden Price List

2018/2019
Charge £

2019/2020
TOTAL £

Increase

Cedar Garden
Standard Rose Tree
Single Bronze Tree Plaque
Granite Tree Plaque Standard Motif (Extra cost)

£569.00
£395.00
£609.50

*
*
*

£584.00 *
£405.00 *
£625.00 *

2.64%
2.53%
2.54%

Boutonierre Plaques
Text Only
Hand Painted Motif
Photo Plaque

£500.00
£528.00
£571.00

*
*
*

£513.00 *
£542.00 *
£586.00 *

2.60%
2.65%
2.63%

Granite Memorial Book
Plaque

£358.00

*

£367.00 *

2.51%

Memory Lane Block

£370.00

£380.00

2.70%

Woodland Post

£395.00

£405.00

2.53%

* Including VAT at standard rate

Cremated Remains Memorials Price List

2018/2019
Charge £

Cariad Collection Keepsakes
Cheviot Keepsake
Brecon Keepsake
Dynasty Keepsake
Pennine Keepsake
Mendip Keepsake
Cairngorm Keepsake

2019/2020
TOTAL £

£44.00
£44.00
£44.00
£44.00
£44.00
£44.00

*
*
*
*
*
*

£46.00
£46.00
£46.00
£46.00
£46.00
£46.00

*
*
*
*
*
*

4.55%
4.55%
4.55%
4.55%
4.55%
4.55%

£190.00
£190.00
£190.00
£190.00
£190.00
£190.00

*
*
*
*
*
*

£195.00
£195.00
£195.00
£195.00
£195.00
£195.00

*
*
*
*
*
*

2.63%
2.63%
2.63%
2.63%
2.63%
2.63%

Mandalay Aluminium Urn
Silver
Burgundy
Dark Blue

£54.00
£54.00
£54.00

*
*
*

£56.00 *
£56.00 *
£56.00 *

3.70%
3.70%
3.70%

Derby Caskets
Single Adult Caskets
Child Caskets
Baby Caskets

£60.00
£52.00
£47.00

*
*
*

£62.00 *
£54.00 *
£49.00 *

3.33%
3.85%
4.26%

Cariad Full Size Urns
Cheviot Full Size Urns
Brecon Full Size Urns
Dynasty Full Size Urns
Pennine Full Size Urns
Mendip Full Urns
Cairngorm Full Size Urns

* Including VAT at standard rate

Page 94
27

CULTURAL & TRADING SERVICES

2017/2018
Charge £

2018/19
Charge £

2019/20
Charge £

Increase
%

£5.00
£12.00
£3.00

Free
£5.00
£12.00
£3.00

Free
£5.00
£12.00
£3.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

£5.00
£12.00
£3.00

£7.50
£15.00
£4.00

£7.50
£15.00
£4.00

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

MUSEUM
Admission
Children Under 5
Individual ticket (day ticket)
Family ticket (day ticket)
Concessionary ticket (day ticket)

Free

Individual membership ticket (per year)
Family membership ticket (per year)
Concessionary membership ticket (per year)

28 95
Page

CULTURAL & TRADING SERVICES cont.
Gloucester Guildhall
2018/2019 Charge £

2019/20 Charge £

MEETING ROOMS
Blue Coat Room
First Hour
£25.00

Each hour after
£16.00

First Hour
£20.00

Each hour after
£14.00

£20.00

Studio (THIS IS NOW KNOWN AS THE FISHER ROOM)
First Hour
Standard
£25.00

Each hour after
£16.00

First Hour
£16.00

Standard

Equipment Charge
£20.00
set rate

First Hour
£25.00

Each hour after
£16.00

Equipment Charge
£20.00 set rate

set rate

First Hour
£20.00

Each hour after
£14.00

£20.00 set rate

£20.00

set rate

First Hour
£25.00

Each hour after
£16.00

£20.00 set rate

Each hour after
£12.00

£20.00

set rate

First Hour
£16.00

Each hour after
£12.00

£20.00 set rate

First Hour
£14.00

Each hour after
£12.00

£20.00

set rate

First Hour
£14.00

Each hour after
£12.00

£20.00 set rate

First Hour
£60.00

Each hour after
£25.00

£60.00

set rate

First Hour
£60.00

Each hour after
£25.00

£60.00 set rate

First Hour
£80.00

Each hour after
£35.00

£80.00

set rate

First Hour
£80.00

Each hour after
£35.00

£80.00 set rate

First Hour
£80.00

Each hour after
£80.00

£80.00

set rate

First Hour
£80.00

Each hour after
£80.00

£80.00 set rate

First Hour
£12.00

Each hour after
£10.00

First Hour
£12.00

Each hour after
£10.00

George Hunt Room
Standard

Henley Room
Standard

Page 96

Potter Room
Standard
Cinema
Standard
Theatre (THIS IS NOW KNOWN AS THE HALL)
Standard
Theatre (THIS IS NOW KNOWN AS THE HALL)
Standard
This rate is applicable to Saturdays from 1pm only
Trier Room
Standard

Minimum one hour booking then charged per half hour after that

29

SERVICE CHARGES- VAT inclusive at standard rate
Flat rate

2018/2019
£160.00

Flat rate

2018/2019
£160.00

0.00%

Gloucester Blackfriars
2018/19 Charge £

2019/20 Charge £

MEETING ROOMS
Lower East Range

Page 97

First Hour
£35.00

Each Hour After
£30.00

First Hour
£35.00

Each Hour After
£30.00

Thomas Bell Room

First Hour
£50.00

Each Hour After
£45.00

First Hour
£50.00

Each Hour After
£45.00

Upper East Range

First Hour
£65.00

Each Hour After
£54.00

First Hour
£65.00

Each Hour After
£54.00

East Range & Thomas Bell Room

First Hour
£75.00

Each hour After
£64.00

First Hour
£75.00

Each hour After
£64.00

Cloister Garden

First Hour
£72.00

Each Hour After
£58.00

First Hour
£72.00

Each Hour After
£58.00

North Range

First Hour
£90.00

Each Hour After
£72.00

First Hour
£90.00

Each Hour After
£72.00

North Range & East Range

First Hour
£105.00

Each Hour After
£89.00

First Hour
£105.00

Each Hour After
£89.00

Full Site

First Hour
£155.00

Each Hour After
£105.00

First Hour
£155.00

Each Hour After
£105.00

Full Site inc Scriptorium

First Hour
£185.00

Each Hour After
£105.00

First Hour
£185.00

Each Hour After
£105.00

Cinema Ticket Charges
Available to:
Pre-5pm
Post 5pm
Event Cinema
Event Cinema (Concessions)
Event Hire Charges
Hall Hire Package - 400 Standing
Hall Hire Package - 250 Seated
Hourly Charge

17-18

18-19
£3.50
£4.50
£15.00
£12.50

£4.00
£5.00
£15.00
£12.50

19-20
£4.00
£5.00
£15.00
£12.50

18-19
19-20
Plus VAT
Plus VAT
£1,350.00 £1,350.00
£1,040.00 £1,040.00
£50.00

£50.00

29

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 7
1.

Results of Budget Consultation

1.1

The council’s budget consultation for 2019/20 has used an on–line interactive budget survey, a
link to which has been available on the council’s website.

1.2

Throughout this process, views of the public and other partners/stakeholders have been sought
on the council’s financial plans including levels of spending, potential efficiencies and budget
savings, as well as opinions on the level of council tax increases and other fees and charges.

1.3

The online and offline consultation also highlighted the savings the City Council has already
made and highlighted the share of Council tax received by the City.

1.4

There were 320 responses received as part of the consultation process

2.

Consultation responses

Q.

Which Council Services are most important to you?
The consultation asked for the people to select the 3 most important services provided by the
Council from eighteen options, the top 6 and the % are as follows;
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Waste Collection/recycling
Street Cleansing & litter Collection
Homelessness & Housing
Parks, play areas & Open spaces
Environmental Health
Economic Development

23%
14%
10%
10%
6%
6%

The consultation asked for the people to select the 3 least important services provided by the
Council from eighteen options, the top 6 and the % are as follows;
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Markets
Guildhall (Music, Cinema, Arts)
Voluntary Sector Grants
Planning
Housing Benefit/Council Tax
Car Parking

13%
10%
9%
9%
8%
8%

Page 99

The chart below details response for all areas;

Which of the Councils services are most/least
important
250
200
150
100
50
0

Most Important
Least Important

Q. Would you agree to a council tax increase to protect some services?
The chart below details response to this question;

Would you agree to an increase in Council
Tax to protect Council Services

Yes

18.89%
41.37%

No
Not Sure

39.74%

Page 100

Q. Should the council increase or make additional charges for services
The consultation asked for the people to select charges by the Council from 7 options, and also
any other possible options; The chart below details response to this question of charges to
increase, decrease or no change;

Should the Council increase or make additional
charges for the following services
250
200
150
100
50
0

Reduce
Increase
No Change
Parking

Garden
Waste

Bulky Waste

Planning

Page 101

Cemetery &
Crematorium

Museum
entrance

Pest Control

This page is intentionally left blank

FLEXIBLE USE OF CAPITAL RECEIPTS STRATEGY

Appendix 8

a. Introduction
As part of the November 2015 Spending Review, the Government announced that it would
introduce flexibility for the period of the Spending Review for local authorities to use capital
receipts from the sale of non-housing assets to fund the revenue costs of service reform and
transformation. Guidance on the use of this flexibility was issued in March 2016 which
applies to the financial years 2016/17 through to 2019/20.
b. The Guidance
The guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 15(1)(a) of the Local
Government Act 2003 specified that;


Local authorities will only be able to use capital receipts from the sale of property,
plant and equipment received in the years in which this flexibility is offered. They may
not use their existing stock of capital receipts to finance the revenue costs of reform.



Local authorities cannot borrow to finance the revenue costs of the service reforms.



The expenditure for which the flexibility can be applied should be the up-front (set up
or implementation) costs that will generate future ongoing savings and/or transform
service delivery to reduce costs or to improve the quality of service delivery in future
years. The ongoing revenue costs of the new processes or arrangements cannot be
classified as qualifying expenditure.



The key determining criteria to use when deciding whether expenditure can be
funded by the new capital receipts flexibility is that it is forecast to generate ongoing
savings to an authority’s net service expenditure.



In using the flexibility, the Council will have due regard to the requirements of the
Prudential Code, the CIPFA Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and the
current edition of the Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice.

The Council is also required to prepare a “Flexible use of capital receipts strategy” before the
start of the year to be approved by Council which can be part of budget report to Council.
This is that Strategy.
The guidance sets out examples of qualifying expenditure which includes;


Sharing back-office and administrative services with one or more other council or
public sector bodies;



Investment in service reform feasibility work, e.g. setting up pilot schemes;

Page 103



Collaboration between local authorities and central government departments to free
up land for economic use;



Funding the cost of service reconfiguration, restructuring or rationalisation (staff or
non-staff), where this leads to ongoing efficiency savings or service transformation;



Sharing Chief-Executives, management teams or staffing structures;



Driving a digital approach to the delivery of more efficient public services and how the
public interacts with constituent authorities where possible;



Aggregating procurement on common goods and services where possible, either as
part of local arrangements or using Crown Commercial Services or regional
procurement hubs or Professional Buying Organisations;



Improving systems and processes to tackle fraud and corruption in line with the Local
Government Fraud and Corruption Strategy – this could include an element of staff
training;



Setting up commercial or alternative delivery models to deliver services more
efficiently and bring in revenue (for example, through selling services to others);



Integrating public facing services across two or more public sector bodies (for
example children’s social care, trading standards) to generate savings or to transform
service delivery.

c. The Council’s Proposals
The Council’s 2019/20 money Plan, includes both revenue savings from the restructuring
and reconfiguring of Council services to meet both the funding gap created by Government
funding reductions between April 2016 and March 2020, including the completely removing
the Council’s revenue Support grant, as well as forecast increases in the level of demand for
services.
The Council’s proposal is to use the capital receipts received after 1st April 2016 over and
above those assumed in the Council’s capital programme to cover the costs associated with
the reconfiguration of services, restructuring or rationalisation. Specifically this will include
the ‘Together Gloucester’ transformation project and driving the delivery digital approach to
delivering services.
d. The Prudential Code
The Council will have due regard to the requirements of the Prudential Code and the impact
on its prudential indicators from implementing the proposed scheme within this Efficiency
Plan.
As transformation proposals develop and the severance costs are determined, the
expenditure to be incurred will be included in the capital programme to be funded by capital
receipts generated in the financial year. The capital expenditure prudential indicators will be
amended and approved as appropriate. These receipts have not been earmarked as funding
for any other proposed capital expenditure and therefore there is no anticipated additional
impact on the Council’s prudential indicators as set out in the Council’s Treasury
Management Strategy.

Page 104

The Council will also have due regard to the Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice
when determining and including the entries required from undertaking and funding this
scheme within the Council’s Statement of Accounts
e. Monitoring this Strategy
This strategy will be monitored throughout the financial year and may be updated and
replaced as proposals are developed and expenditure is incurred.

Page 105

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Report to:

Cabinet

Subject:

Business Rates – Retail Discount

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

Yes

Contact Officer:

Jon Topping, Head of Policy & Resources
Email: jon.topping@gloucester.gov.uk

Appendices:

Date:

6 February 2019

Budget/Policy Framework:

No
Tel: 396242

A. Business Rates Retail Discount local scheme – Gloucester
City Council 2019/20 and 2020/21
B. Business Rates Retail Discount Guidance
C. Section 47 – Local Government Finance Act 1988
D. Section 31 – Local Government Act 2003

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

The Government announced in the October 2018 budget that it will provide a
business rates retail discount scheme for occupied retail properties with a rateable
value of less than £51,000
This report proposes a discount scheme commensurate with the budget
announcement for retail discounts on business rates.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1)

the Business Rates Retail Discount scheme (attached at appendix A) be the
approved scheme for Gloucester City for 2019/20 and 2020/21

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

The Government acknowledges that changing consumer behaviour presents a
significant challenge for retailers in town centres and is taking action to help protect
the high street and also to help it evolve

3.2

In the October 2018 budget the Government announced that it will provide a
business rates retail discount scheme for occupied retail properties with a rateable
value of less than £51,000, in each of the years 2019-20 and 2020-21. The value of
Page 107
1

the discount is one third of the bill, and is to be applied after mandatory reliefs and
other discretionary reliefs funded by Section 31 grants have been applied. The
exception to this is where an authority applies a local relief, under Section 47; in
these instances a retail discount must be applied first and any local discretionary
relief applied afterwards.
3.3

The Government is not changing the legislation around reliefs available to
properties – this measure is for 2019-20 and 2020-21 only

3.4

Cabinet is being asked to approve a local scheme for business rates retail discount
as detailed in appendix A

3.5

The Government will reimburse the Council for retail discount granted under the
local scheme

3.6

Historically, in 2016 a similar scheme was implemented and at that time there were
approximately 290 properties which were eligible for the relief in the Gloucester
area. It is anticipated that a similar number may potentially be eligible for the new
business rates retail discount scheme.

4.0

PROGRESS

4.1

The Business Rates Retail Discount scheme proposes discounts for qualifying
occupied retail properties with a rateable value of less than £51,000

4.2

The scheme will provide a one third discount from a business rate bill

4.3

Some businesses will already have their business rates bill reduced. Retail
Discount will be applied after mandatory reliefs and Section 31 funded discretionary
reliefs have been applied

4.4

The full eligibility criteria and arrangements for administering the scheme are
detailed in appendix A

4.5

Gloucester City Council will delegate authority to Civica Revenues and Benefits to
administer the retail discount. A report will be run to identify qualifying retail
premises – as outlined at Appendix A. Where there is a clear eligibility to Retail
Discount, it will be applied to the eligible business’s rates bill. A letter will be
enclosed with the annual business rates bill to explain the retail discount and state
aid declaration letter. Any businesses over which there may be uncertainty account
eligibility will be issued with an application form to apply for the Retail Discount relief

4.6

Should there be any dispute over eligibility then an appeal can be made, and
considered by the Section 151 Officer

5.0

Reasons for Recommendations

5.1

Business Rates retail discount is a two year scheme; backed and financed by
Central Government to support those smaller businesses with retail units which
have business rate bills of less than £51,000 a year.

Page 108
2

6.0

Future Work and Conclusions

6.1

The impact of these changes will be monitored

7.0

Financial Implications

7.1

The full cost of granting Business Rates Retail Discount will be met by Central
Government and will be reclaimed by the local authority via the usual standard
process.

8.0

Legal Implications

8.1

Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the
Localism Act 2011) gives discretionary powers to Local Authorities to grant relief to
reduce business rates bills.

8.2

The cost of relief to the Local Authority can be recovered from the Government by
way of grant under section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003.

8.3

To access the funding, the Local Authority is required to establish a discretionary
scheme for administering the relief under Section 47.

8.4

Providing discretionary relief is likely to amount to State Aid and as such any
decision is subject to the European rules on State Aid. The relief should be awarded
in accordance with the De Minimis Regulations, allowing an undertaking to receive
a maximum of €200,000 De Minimis aid in a three year period.

9.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

9.1

There are no risks associated as the scheme has full backing and funding from
Central Government. There are many positive impacts from the introduction of the
scheme. Local shops, restaurants, cafes and drinking establishments with a
rateable value of less than £51,000 will benefit from the scheme by seeing an
immediate reduction of one third from their business rates bills. This could also
encourage potential new businesses, as renting retail premises would be more
affordable

10.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

10.1

None

11.0

Other Corporate Implications

11.1

Community Safety
Not applicable.

11.2

Sustainability
Not applicable

11.3

Staffing & Trade Union
Not applicable

Background Documents:

None
Page 109
3

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A

Gloucester City Council
Business Rates – Retail Discount
Background
The Government made an announcement in the October 2018 budget that it will provide a
business rates Retail Discount scheme for occupied retail properties with a rateable value of
less than £51,000 in each of the two years 2019-20 and 2020-21. The discount applied will
be one third of the bill.
Central Government is not changing the legislation surrounding reliefs available to
properties as the measure is a temporary one for 2019-20 and 2020-21 only. Instead the
Government will reimburse local authorities that use their discretionary relief powers to
grant Retail Discount relief, and will fully reimburse local authorities .
Legal Provision
Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Localism Act
2011) gives discretionary powers to Local Authorities to grant relief to reduce business rates
bills. The cost of relief to the Local Authority can be recovered from the Government by way
of grant under section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003.
To access the funding, the Local Authority is required to establish a discretionary scheme for
administering the relief under Section 47.
Providing discretionary relief is likely to amount to State Aid and as such any decision is
subject to the European rules on State Aid. The relief should be awarded in accordance with
the De Minimis Regulations, allowing an undertaking to receive a maximum of €200,000 De
Minimis aid in a three year period.
Eligibility Criteria
Properties that will benefit from the retail discount relief will be occupied hereditaments
with a rateable value of less than £51,000, that are wholly or mainly being used as shops,
restaurants, cafes and drinking establishments, which are considered to mean:
i)

Hereditaments that are being used for the sale of goods to visiting members of
the public:
 Shops (such as: florists, bakers, butchers, grocers, greengrocers, jewellers,
stationers, off licenses, chemists, newsagents, hardware stores,
supermarkets, etc)
 Charity shops
 Opticians

Page 111










Post Offices
Furnishing shops / display rooms (such as: carpet shops, double glazing,
garage doors)
Car caravan show rooms
Second hand car lots
Markets
Petrol Stations
Garden Centres
Art Galleries (where art is for sale/hire)

ii)

Hereditaments that are being used for the provision of the following services to
visiting members of the public:
 Hair and beauty services (such as: hairdressers, nail bars, beauty salons,
tanning shops, etc)
 Shoe repairs / key cutting
 Travel agents
 Ticket Offices e.g. for theatre
 Dry cleaners
 Launderettes
 PC/TV/domestic appliance repair
 Funeral directors
 Photo Processing
 Tool hire
 Car hire

iii)

Hereditaments that are being used for the sale of food and/or drink to visiting
members of the public:
 Restaurants
 Takeaways
 Sandwich shops
 Coffee shops
 Pubs
 Bars

To qualify for the relief the hereditament should be wholly or mainly being used as a shop,
restaurant, café or drinking establishment. The relief is based on use of the premises, rather
than occupation of the premises.
The preceding lists are not exhaustive as it is impossible to list the many varied retail uses in
existence, but is a guide and any retail business considered by Gloucester City Council as

2

Page 112

broadly similar in nature to those listed above will be considered as eligible for the Retail
Discount.
Ineligibility Criteria
The Government has given a list of types of uses that it does not consider to be retail and
thus, these properties will not benefit from the retail discount relief
i)

Hereditaments that are being used for the provision of the following services to
visiting members of the public:
 Financial services (e.g. banks, building societies, cash points, bureaux de
change, payday lenders, betting shops, pawn brokers)
 Other services (e.g. estate agents, letting agents, employment agencies)
 Medical services (e.g. vets, dentists, doctors, osteopaths, chiropractors)
 Professional services (e.g. solicitors, accountants, insurance agents,
financial advisors, tutors
 Post office sorting offices

The list of ineligible properties is also not exhaustive and Gloucester City Council will
consider any properties offering services broadly similar to those listed above to be not
eligible for retail discount relief.
ii)

Hereditaments that are not reasonably accessible to visiting members of the
public

It is salient to note that the Government does not consider other assembly or leisure uses
(other than those specifically listed in the eligible criteria category) to be ‘retail’ for the
purpose of the retail discount relief. For example, cinemas, theatres and museums are not
eligible, nor are nightclubs and music venues which are not similar in nature to the
hereditaments listed under eligibility criteria (iii). Hereditaments used for sport or physical
recreation (e.g. gyms) are also not eligible for the retail discount relief.
Business Rates Retail Discount
The Business Rates Retail Discount is effective from 01 April 2019
Businesses that meet the eligibility criteria will automatically be awarded the Retail Discount
relief AFTER mandatory reliefs and other discretionary reliefs have been applied to the
account
The only exception to this is if a locally relevant hardship payment is made. In these cases
Retail Discount will be applied BEFORE the hardship payment.
Ratepayers that occupy more than one property will be entitled to Retail Discount Relief for
each of their properties subject to State Aid De Minimis limits. State Aid law is the means by
3

Page 113

which the European Union regulates state funded support to businesses. The De Minimis
Regulations currently allow a business to receive up to €200.000 of De Minimis aid in a three
year period (consisting of current financial year and the two previous financial years)
Gloucester City Council will discharge this responsibility by issuing a ‘De Minimis declaration’
to all businesses who are eligible for the Retail Discount Relief.
The UK is scheduled to leave the EU on 29 March 2019 – if there is an implementation
period then the State Rules will continue to apply as now and will be subject to control by
the EU Commission as at present. If the UK leaves the EU without a negotiated Withdrawal
Agreement, the Government has announced its intention to transpose the EU State Aid
rules into UK domestic legislation. Local Authorities should therefore continue to apply
State Aid rules, including De Minimis for the relief for 2019/20 and 2020/21.
Application Process and Administration
Civica Revenues and Benefits on behalf of Gloucester City Council will identify qualifying
businesses using the criteria as set out above. Where there is a clear eligibility to Retail
Discount Relief it will applied to eligible business’s rates bill. When the annual bills are
issued the qualifying business will also be sent the ‘State Aid’ declaration letter. Any
businesses over which there may be an uncertainty about eligibility will be issued with an
application to apply for the Retail Discount Relief and a State Aid declaration form.
Review of Decision / Appeals
Should there be any dispute over eligibility then an appeal can be made to the Section 151
Officer at Gloucester City Council. The appealing business must clearly outline their reasons
for the appeal and supply any documentation in support of their appeal.
The decision on eligibility and Retail Discount Relief will be made by the Section 151 officer
within 14 days of any appeal and the business will be notified in writing of the decision.

4

Page 114

Business Rates
Retail Discount – Guidance

November 2018
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
Page 115

© Crown copyright, 2018
Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.
You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium,
under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence visit
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/
This document/publication is also available on our website at www.gov.uk/mhclg
If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, complete the form at
http://forms.communities.gov.uk/ or write to us at:
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
Fry Building
2 Marsham Street
London
SW1P 4DF
Telephone: 030 3444 0000
For all our latest news and updates follow us on Twitter: https://twitter.com/mhclg
November 2018
ISBN: 978-1-4098-5378-7

Page 116

Contents
About this guidance

4

Introduction

4

Retail Discount

4

How will the relief be provided?
Which properties will benefit from relief?
How much relief will be available?
State Aid
Splits, mergers, and changes to existing hereditaments

4
5
7
8
9

Annex A: Calculation examples for 2019/20

10

Annex B: Sample paragraphs that could be included in letters to ratepayers about
Retail Discount for 2019/20 and 2020/21
12
‘De minimis’ declaration
Refusal of Retail Discount form

13
14

Page 117

3

About this guidance
1.

This guidance is intended to support local authorities in administering the “Retail
Discount” announced in the Budget on 29 October 2018. This Guidance applies to
England only.

2.

This guidance sets out the criteria which central Government considers for this
purpose to be retail and eligible for this discount. The guidance does not replace
existing legislation.

3.

Enquiries on this measure should be addressed to:
ndr@communities.gov.uk

Introduction
4.

The Government recognises that changing consumer behaviour presents a
significant challenge for retailers in our town centres and is taking action to help the
high street evolve.

5.

The Government announced in the Budget on 29 October 2018 that it will provide a
business rates Retail Discount scheme for occupied retail properties with a rateable
value of less than £51,000 in each of the years 2019-20 and 2020-21. The value of
discount should be one third of the bill, and must be applied after mandatory reliefs
and other discretionary reliefs funded by section 31 grants have been applied.
Where an authority applies a locally funded relief, for instance a hardship fund,
under section 47 this is must be applied after the Retail Discount.

6.

This document provides guidance to authorities about the operation and delivery of
the policy. The Government anticipates that local authorities will include details of
the relief to be provided to eligible ratepayers for 2019-20 in their bills for the
beginning of that year.

Retail Discount
How will the relief be provided?
7.

As this is a measure for 2019-20 and 2020-21 only, the Government is not changing
the legislation around the reliefs available to properties. Instead the Government
will, in line with the eligibility criteria set out in this guidance, reimburse local
authorities that use their discretionary relief powers, introduced by the Localism Act
(under section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988, as amended) to grant
relief. It will be for individual local billing authorities to adopt a local scheme and
determine in each individual case when, having regard to this guidance, to grant
relief under section 47. Central government will fully reimburse local authorities for
the local share of the discretionary relief (using a grant under section 31 of the
Local Government Act 2003). The Government expects local government to apply
and grant relief to qualifying ratepayers from the start of the 2019/20 billing cycle.

Page 118

4

8.

Central government will reimburse billing authorities and those major precepting
authorities for the actual cost to them under the rates retention scheme of the relief
that falls within the definitions in this guidance. Local authorities will be asked to
provide an estimate of their likely total cost for providing the relief in their National
Non-Domestic Rate Return 1 (NNDR1) for 2019-20 and 2020-21. Central
government will provide payments to authorities to cover the local share, as per the
usual process.

9.

Local authorities will also be asked to provide outturn data on the actual total cost
for providing the relief, as per the usual process via the National Non-Domestic
Rate 3 (NNDR3) forms for 2019-20 and 2020-21. Any required reconciliations will
then be conducted at these points.1

Which properties will benefit from relief?
10.

Properties that will benefit from the relief will be occupied hereditaments with a
rateable value of less than £51,000, that are wholly or mainly being used as shops,
restaurants, cafes and drinking establishments.

11.

We consider shops, restaurants, cafes and drinking establishments to mean:
i. Hereditaments that are being used for the sale of goods to visiting
members of the public:
− Shops (such as: florists, bakers, butchers, grocers, greengrocers,
jewellers, stationers, off licences, chemists, newsagents, hardware
stores, supermarkets, etc)
− Charity shops
− Opticians
− Post offices
− Furnishing shops/ display rooms (such as: carpet shops, double glazing,
garage doors)
− Car/ caravan show rooms
− Second hand car lots
− Markets
− Petrol stations
− Garden centres
− Art galleries (where art is for sale/hire)
ii. Hereditaments that are being used for the provision of the following
services to visiting members of the public:
− Hair and beauty services (such as: hair dressers, nail bars, beauty
salons, tanning shops, etc)

As required in the NNDR3 guidance notes, the former categories of discretionary relief prior to the localism
act (i.e. charitable/CASC/rural etc. top up and not for profit) should be applied first in the sequence of
discretionary reliefs and, therefore, before the retail discount.

1

Page 119

5

−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−
−

Shoe repairs/ key cutting
Travel agents
Ticket offices e.g. for theatre
Dry cleaners
Launderettes
PC/ TV/ domestic appliance repair
Funeral directors
Photo processing
Tool hire
Car hire

iii. Hereditaments that are being used for the sale of food and/ or drink to
visiting members of the public:
−
−
−
−
−
−

Restaurants
Takeaways
Sandwich shops
Coffee shops
Pubs
Bars

12.

To qualify for the relief the hereditament should be wholly or mainly being used as a
shop, restaurant, cafe or drinking establishment. In a similar way to other reliefs
(such as charity relief), this is a test on use rather than occupation. Therefore,
hereditaments which are occupied but not wholly or mainly used for the qualifying
purpose will not qualify for the relief.

13.

The list set out above is not intended to be exhaustive as it would be impossible to
list the many and varied retail uses that exist. There will also be mixed uses.
However, it is intended to be a guide for authorities as to the types of uses that
Government considers for this purpose to be retail. Authorities should determine for
themselves whether particular properties not listed are broadly similar in nature to
those above and, if so, to consider them eligible for the relief. Conversely,
properties that are not broadly similar in nature to those listed above should not be
eligible for the relief.

14.

The list below sets out the types of uses that the Government does not consider to
be retail use for the purpose of this relief. Again, it is for local authorities to
determine for themselves whether particular properties are broadly similar in nature
to those below and, if so, to consider them not eligible for the relief under their local
scheme.
i. Hereditaments that are being used for the provision of the following
services to visiting members of the public:
− Financial services (e.g. banks, building societies, cash points, bureaux de
change, payday lenders, betting shops, pawn brokers)
− Other services (e.g. estate agents, letting agents, employment agencies)
− Medical services (e.g. vets, dentists, doctors, osteopaths, chiropractors)

Page 120

6

− Professional services (e.g. solicitors, accountants, insurance agents/
financial advisers, tutors)
− Post office sorting offices
ii. Hereditaments that are not reasonably accessible to visiting members of
the public
15.

Generally speaking, the government also does not consider other assembly or
leisure uses beyond those listed at paragraph 11 to be retail uses for the purpose of
the discount. For example, cinemas, theatres and museums are outside the scope
of the scheme, as are nightclubs and music venues which are not similar in nature
to the hereditaments described at paragraph 11(iii) above. Hereditaments used for
sport or physical recreation (e.g. gyms) are also outside the scope of the discount.
Where there is doubt, the local authority should exercise their discretion with
reference to the above and knowledge of their local tax base.

How much relief will be available?
16.

The total amount of government-funded relief available for each property for 201920 and 2020/21 under this scheme is one third of the bill, after mandatory reliefs
and other discretionary reliefs funded by section 31 grants have been applied,
excluding those where local authorities have used their discretionary relief powers
introduced by the Localism Act which are not funded by section 31 grants2. There is
no relief available under this scheme for properties with a rateable value of £51,000
or more. Of course, councils may use their discretionary powers to offer further
discounts outside this scheme. However, where an authority applies a locally
funded relief, sometimes referred to as a hardship fund, under section 47 this is
must be applied after the Retail Discount.

17.

The eligibility for the relief and the relief itself will be assessed and calculated on a
daily basis. The following formula should be used to determine the amount of relief
to be granted for a chargeable day for particular hereditament in the financial year
2019-20:
Amount of relief to be granted =
V
3

where

V is the daily charge for the hereditament for the chargeable day after the
application of any mandatory relief and any other discretionary reliefs,
excluding those where local authorities have used their discretionary relief

As required in the NNDR3 guidance notes, the former categories of discretionary relief prior to the localism
act (i.e. charitable/CASC/rural etc. top up and not for profit) should be applied first in the sequence of
discretionary reliefs and, therefore, before the retail discount.

2

Page 121

7

powers introduced by the Localism Act which are not funded by section 31
grants3.
18.

This should be calculated ignoring any prior year adjustments in liabilities which fall
to be liable on the day.

19.

Ratepayers that occupy more than one property will be entitled to relief for each of
their eligible properties, subject to State Aid De Minimis limits.

State Aid
20.

State Aid law is the means by which the European Union regulates state funded
support to businesses. Providing discretionary relief to ratepayers is likely to
amount to State Aid. However Retail Relief will be State Aid compliant where it is
provided in accordance with the De Minimis Regulations (1407/2013) 4.

21.

The De Minimis Regulations allow an undertaking to receive up to €200,000 of De
Minimis aid in a three year period (consisting of the current financial year and the
two previous financial years). Local authorities should familiarise themselves with
the terms of this State Aid exemption, in particular the types of undertaking that are
excluded from receiving De Minimis aid (Article 1), the relevant definition of
undertaking (Article 2(2) 5) and the requirement to convert the aid into Euros 6.

22.

To administer De Minimis it is necessary for the local authority to establish that the
award of aid will not result in the undertaking having received more than €200,000
of De Minimis aid. Note that the threshold only relates to aid provided under the De
Minimis Regulations (aid under other exemptions or outside the scope of State Aid
is not relevant to the De Minimis calculation). Annex B of this guidance contains a
sample De Minimis declaration which local authorities may wish to use, to discharge
this responsibility. Where local authorities have further questions about De Minimis
or other aspects of State Aid law, they should seek advice from their legal
department in the first instance7.

23.

The UK is scheduled to leave the EU on 29 March 2019. If there is an
Implementation Period, the State Aid rules will continue to apply as now and will be
subject to control by the EU Commission as at present. If the UK leaves the EU
without a negotiated Withdrawal Agreement, the Government has announced its
intention to transpose EU State Aid rules into UK domestic legislation, with only
technical modifications to correct deficiencies with the transposed EU law to ensure

As required in the NNDR3 guidance notes, the former categories of discretionary relief prior to the localism
act (i.e. charitable/CASC/rural etc. top up and not for profit) should be applied first in the sequence of
discretionary reliefs and, therefore, before the retail discount.
4
http://eur-lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=OJ:L:2013:352:0001:0008:EN:PDF
5
The ‘New SME Definition user guide and model declaration’ provides further guidance:
http://ec.europa.eu/enterprise/policies/sme/files/sme_definition/sme_user_guide_en.pdf
6
http://ec.europa.eu/budget/contracts_grants/info_contracts/inforeuro/inforeuro_en.cfm
7
Detailed State Aid guidance can also be found at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/15277/National_State_Aid_La
w_Requirements.pdf
3

Page 122

8

the regime operates effectively in a domestic context 8. Local authorities should
therefore continue to apply State Aid rules, including De Minimis, to the relief for
2019/20 and 2020/21.

Splits, mergers, and changes to existing hereditaments
24.

The relief should be applied on a day to day basis using the formula set out above.
A new hereditament created as a result of a split or merger during the financial
year, or where there is a change of use, should be considered afresh for the relief
on that day.

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/state-aid-if-theres-no-brexit-deal/state-aid-if-theres-no-brexitdeal
8

Page 123

9

Annex A: Calculation examples for 2019/20
The retail discount (one third) is always calculated after mandatory relief and other
discretionary reliefs funded by section 31 grant.
Example 1: An occupied shop with a rateable value of £40,000
Gross rates (before any reliefs) = £40,000 x 0.491
Retail discount (1/3):
Rates due (after retail discount):

= £19,640
= -£6,547
= £13,093

Example 2: An occupied charity shop with a rateable value of £40,000
Gross rates (before any reliefs) = £40,000 x 0.491
Net rates after charity relief:
Retail discount (1/3):
Rates due (after charity relief and retail discount):

= £19,640
= £3,928
= -£1,309
= £2,619

Example 3: An occupied shop with a rateable value of £13,500 eligible for Small
Business Rate Relief (SBRR)
Gross rates (before any reliefs) = £13,500 x 0.491
Net rates after SBRR (50%):
Retail discount (1/3):
Rates due (after SBRR and retail discount):

= £6,629
= £3,314
= -£1,105
= £2,210

Example 4: An occupied shop with a rateable value of £10,000 eligible for Small
Business Rate Relief (SBRR)
Gross rates (before any reliefs) = £10,000 x 0.491
Net rates after SBRR (100%):
Rates bill is nil and, therefore, no retail discount applies

= £4,910
= £nil

Example 5: An occupied shop with a rateable value of £40,000 eligible for
Transitional Relief (TR) and receiving Revaluation Discretionary Relief
Gross rates (before any reliefs) = £40,000 x 0.491
Transitional Relief (say):
Net rates after Transitional Relief:
Net rates after Revaluation Discretionary Relief (say):
Retail discount (1/3):
Rates due (after TR, revaluation relief and retail discount):

= £19,640
= -£1,500
= £18,140
= £15,140
= -£5,047
= £10,093

Example 6: An occupied shop with a rateable value of £18,000 previously paying
nothing prior to revaluation 2017 and eligible for Supporting Small Businesses
Relief (SSB)
Gross rates (before any reliefs) = £18,000 x 0.491
Supporting Small Businesses Relief (say):
Page 124

= £8,838
= -£7,038
10

Net rates after SSB:
Retail discount (1/3):
Rates due (after SSB and retail discount):

= £1,800
= -£600
= £1,200

Example 7: A shop with a rateable value of £40,000 (example 1) but only occupied
until 30 September 2019
Gross rates (before any reliefs) = £40,000 x 0.491
Retail discount (1/3):
Rates due p.a. (after retail discount):
Daily charge while occupied (leap year):

= £19,640
= -£6,547
= £13,093
= £35.77 per day

Occupied charge 1/4/19 to 30/9/19 (183 days):

= £6,547

Unoccupied property relief (1/10/19 to 1/1/20):

= £nil

Unoccupied property rates (1/1/20 to 31/3/20),
£19,640 x 91/366

= £4,883

Rates due for the year (after retail relief):

= £11,430

Example 8: A shop with a rateable value of £40,000 (example 1) with a rateable value
increase to £60,000 with effect from 1 October 2019
Gross rates (before any reliefs) = £40,000 x 0.491
Retail discount (1/3):
Rates due p.a. (after retail discount):
Daily charge while occupied (leap year):

= £19,640
= -£6,547
= £13,093
= £35.77 per day

Charge 1/4/19 to 30/9/19 (183 days):

= £6,547

Daily charge on standard multiplier (1/10/19 to 1/1/20):
(£60,000 x 0.504)/366

= £82.62 per day

Charge 1/10/19 to 31/3/20 (183 days):

= £15,120

Rates due for the year (after retail relief):

= £21,667

Page 125

11

Annex B: Sample paragraphs that could be included in
letters to ratepayers about Retail Discount for 2019/20 and
2020/21
At Autumn Budget 2018, the Chancellor announced that eligible retailers will receive a one
third discount on their business rates bills for two years from April 2019.
Relief will be provided to eligible occupied retail properties with a rateable value of less
than £51,000 in 2019/20 and 2020/21. Your current rates bill includes this Retail Discount.
Awards such as Retail Discount are required to comply with the EU law on State Aid9. In
this case, this involves returning the attached declaration to this authority if you have
received any other de minimis State Aid, including any other Retail Discount you are being
granted for premises other than the one to which this bill and letter relates, and confirming
that the award of Retail Discount does not exceed the €200,000 an undertaking10 can
receive under the de minimis Regulations EC 1407/2013.
Please complete the declaration and return it to the address above. In terms of declaring
previous de minimis aid, we are only interested in public support which is de minimis aid
(State Aid received under other exemptions or public support which is not State Aid does
not need to be declared).
If you have not received any other de minimis State Aid, including any other Retail
Discount you are being granted for premises other than the one to which this bill and letter
relates, you do not need to complete or return the declaration.
If you wish to refuse to receive the Retail Discount granted in relation to the premises to
which this bill and letter relates, please complete the attached form and return it to the
address above. You do not need to complete the declaration. This may be particularly
relevant to those premises that are part of a large retail chain, where the cumulative total
of Retail Discount received could exceed €200,000.
Under the European Commission rules, you must retain this letter for three years from the
date on this letter and produce it on any request by the UK public authorities or the
European Commission. (You may need to keep this letter longer than three years for other
purposes). Furthermore, information on this aid must be supplied to any other public
authority or agency asking for information on ‘de minimis’ aid for the next three years.

.Further information on State Aid law can be found at https://www.gov.uk/state-aid
An undertaking is an entity which is engaged in economic activity. This means that it puts goods or
services on a given market. The important thing is what the entity does, not its status. Therefore, a charity or
not for profit company can be undertakings if they are involved in economic activities. A single undertaking
will normally encompass the business group rather than a single company within a group. Article 2.2 of the
de minimis Regulations (Commission Regulation EC/ 1407/2013) defines the meaning of ‘single
undertaking’.

9

10

Page 126

12

‘De minimis’ declaration
Dear [ ]
NON-DOMESTIC RATES ACCOUNT NUMBER:_______________________
The value of the non-domestic rates Retail Discount to be provided to [name of
undertaking] by [name of local authority] is £ [ ] (Euros [ ]).
This award shall comply with the EU law on State Aid on the basis that, including this
award, [name of undertaking] shall not receive more than €200,000 in total of De minimis
aid within the current financial year or the previous two financial years). The de minimis
Regulations 1407/2013 (as published in the Official Journal of the European Union L352
24.12.2013) can be found at:
http://eur-lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=OJ:L:2013:352:0001:0008:EN:PDF .

Amount of de
minimis aid

Date of aid

Organisation
providing aid

Nature of aid

I confirm that:
1) I am authorised to sign on behalf of _________________[name of undertaking]; and
2) __________________[name of undertaking] shall not exceed its De minimis threshold
by accepting this Retail Discount.
SIGNATURE:
NAME:
POSITION:
BUSINESS:
ADDRESS:
DATE:

Page 127

13

Refusal of Retail Discount form
Name and address of
premises

Non-domestic rates
account number

Amount of Retail
Discount

I confirm that I wish to refuse Retail Discount in relation to the above premises.
I confirm that I am authorised to sign on behalf of ______________ [name of undertaking].
SIGNATURE:
NAME:
POSITION:
BUSINESS:
ADDRESS:
DATE:

Page 128

14

Appendix C
Local Government Finance Act 1988
1988 c. 41
Part III
Local rating
Section 47
47 Discretionary relief.
(1)Where [F1the condition mentioned in subsection (3) below is fulfilled] for a day which is a
chargeable day within the meaning of section 43 or 45 above (as the case may be)—
(a)the chargeable amount for the day shall be such as is determined by, or found in accordance with
rules determined by, the [F2billing authority] concerned, and
(b)sections [F343(4) to (6B)] and 44 above, sections [F445(4) to (4B)] and 46 above, [F5regulations
under [F6section 57A or 58] below or any provision of or made under Schedule 7A below] (as the
case may be) shall not apply as regards the day.
F7(2). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(3)The F8... condition is that, during a period which consists of or includes the chargeable day, a
decision of the [F2billing authority] concerned operates to the effect that this section applies as
regards the hereditament concerned.
F9(3A). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
F9(3B). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
F9(3C). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
F9(3D). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(4)A determination under subsection (1)(a) above—
(a)must be such that the chargeable amount for the day is less than the amount it would be apart
from this section;
(b)may be such that the chargeable amount for the day is 0;
(c)may be varied by a further determination of the authority under subsection (1)(a) above.
(5)In deciding what the chargeable amount for the day would be apart from this section the effect of
any regulations under [F10section 57A or 58] below and of any provision of or made under Schedule
7A below shall be taken into account but anything which has been done or could be done under
section 49 below shall be ignored.
[F11(5A)So far as a decision under subsection (3) above would have effect where none of section
43(6) above, section 43(6B) above and subsection (5B) below applies, the billing authority may make

Page 129

the decision only if it is satisfied that it would be reasonable for it to do so, having regard to the
interests of persons liable to pay council tax set by it.
(5B)This subsection applies on the chargeable day if—
(a)all or part of the hereditament is occupied for the purposes of one or more institutions or other
organisations—
(i)none of which is established or conducted for profit, and
(ii)each of whose main objects are charitable or are otherwise philanthropic or religious or
concerned with education, social welfare, science, literature or the fine arts, or
(b)the hereditament—
(i)is wholly or mainly used for purposes of recreation, and
(ii)all or part of it is occupied for the purposes of a club, society or other organisation not established
or conducted for profit.
(5C)A billing authority in England, when making a decision under subsection (3) above, must have
regard to any relevant guidance issued by the Secretary of State.
(5D)A billing authority in Wales, when making a decision under subsection (3) above, must have
regard to any relevant guidance issued by the Welsh Ministers.]
(6)A decision under subsection (3) above may be revoked by a further decision of the authority.
(7)A decision under subsection (3) above is invalid as regards a day if made [F12more than six
months] after the end of the financial year in which the day falls.
(8)The Secretary of State may make regulations containing provision—
(a)requiring notice to be given of any determination or decision;
(b)limiting the power to revoke a decision or vary a determination;
(c)as to other matters incidental to this section.
[F13(8A)This section does not apply where the hereditament is an excepted hereditament.]
(9)A hereditament is an excepted hereditament if all or part of it is occupied (otherwise than as
trustee) by
F14[(a)a billing authority; or
(b)a precepting authority, other than the Receiver for the Metropolitan Police District or charter
trustees][F15; or
(c)a functional body, within the meaning of the Greater London Authority Act 1999].
[F16(10)This section does not apply where the hereditament is zero-rated under section 45A.]

Page 130

Appendix D

Local Government Act 2003
You are here:



2003 c. 26



Part 3



Chapter 1



Section 31



s. 18(2A) inserted by 2007 c. 28 Sch. 14 para. 5(2)(b)



s. 24(1) s. 24 renumbered as s. 24(1) by 2007 c. 28 Sch. 14 para. 5(3)



s. 24(2) inserted by 2007 c. 28 Sch. 14 para. 5(3)

31Power to pay grant
(1)A Minister of the Crown may pay a grant to a local authority in England towards expenditure incurred or to be
incurred by it.
(2)A Minister of the Crown, or the National Assembly for Wales, may pay a grant to a local authority in Wales
towards expenditure incurred or to be incurred by it.
(3)The amount of a grant under this section and the manner of its payment are to be such as the person paying it
may determine.
(4)A grant under this section may be paid on such conditions as the person paying it may determine.
(5)Conditions under subsection (4) may, in particular, include—
(a)provision as to the use of the grant;
(b)provision as to circumstances in which the whole or part of the grant must be repaid.
(6)In the case of a grant to a local authority in England, the powers under this section are exercisable with the
consent of the Treasury.

Page 131

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

Report to:

Cabinet

Subject:

Council Tax Discount for Care Leavers

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

Yes

Contact Officer:

Alison Bell – Intelligent Client Officer
Email: Alison.bell@gloucester.gov.uk

Appendices:

Date:

6 February 2019

Budget/Policy Framework:

No
Tel: 396014

A. Section 13A Local Government Finance Act 1992
B. Care Leavers Strategy – Keep on Caring
C. Council Tax Discount Scheme for Care Leavers

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

Section 13A(1)(c) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 gives the Council
discretion to reduce the amount of council tax payable. This can be for individual
cases or by determining a class of case.
This report proposes that a class of case is determined for Gloucestershire Care
Leavers between the ages of 18 and 21, residing in Gloucester.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1)

Care Leavers are determined as a class for the purpose of Section 13A(1)(c)
of The Local Government Finance Act 1992

(2)

the Council Tax Discount Scheme for Care Leavers is approved and
effective from 01 April 2019

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

Section 13A of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 gives the Council
discretionary powers to reduce the amount of council tax payable in individual cases
or for classes of case. This includes reducing the amount payable to nil

Page 133
1

3.2

The government made recommendations in its care leavers strategy “Keep on
Caring” published in July 2016 that local authorities should consider exempting care
leavers from council tax, using their existing discretionary powers under Section
13A – appendix B

3.3

Care leavers are considered to be a particularly vulnerable group for council tax
debt. Moving to independent accommodation and managing finances for the first
time is challenging. Care leavers are faced with a new set of potentially
overwhelming responsibilities, without the family support and wider network that
most other young person can rely on

3.4

The six local authorities and Gloucestershire County Council are working together
to provide a common council tax discount scheme for care leavers which provides a
consistent approach across Gloucestershire

3.5

Cabinet is being asked to approve a class for awarding a council tax discount for
Care Leavers as detailed in appendix C

3.6

Any reduction awarded using this power must be funded by the billing authority.
However, by agreement Gloucestershire County Council will fund its share of the
cost of any care leaver discounts awarded

3.7

There are potentially 37 Care Leavers living independently in the Gloucester area
who may be eligible for a discount.

4.0

PROGRESS

4.1

The Council Tax Discount Scheme for Care Leavers detailed at appendix C
proposes discounts for Care Leavers between the ages of 18 and 21 residing in the
Gloucester City Council area, who were formerly in the care of Gloucestershire
County Council

4.2

The scheme will provide for a full exemption from council tax to be awarded where
care leavers live alone and a 50% discount where they live with others

4.3

Some care leavers will already have their council tax liability reduced. The Care
Leaver discount will be awarded AFTER all other discounts, exemptions and council
tax support

4.4

The full eligibility criteria and arrangements for administering the scheme are
detailed in appendix C

4.5

The relevant team at Gloucestershire County Council will liaise with the Revenues
team to ensure the necessary information is available to enable the Care Leaver
discounts to be awarded

5.0

Reasons for Recommendations

5.1

Creating the Care Leavers Discount Scheme will form part of an overall package to
prepare Care Leavers for independence and will support them in making an
effective social and financial transition from Local Authority care. Ultimately it will
help to improve the life chances of looked after children.

Page 134
2

5.2

The discounts sit alongside a number of other support arrangements provided to
care leavers by Gloucestershire County Council

6.0

Future Work and Conclusions

6.1

The impact of these changes will be monitored

7.0

Financial Implications

7.1

The full cost of any council tax reduction awarded under Section 13A(1)(c) must be
borne by the Council. Gloucestershire County Council has agreed to fund their
share of the cost of any Care Leaver discounts awarded. This Council will be
required to fund its own and the Police share.
The actual cost of awarding these discounts is not known, however, numbers are
expected to be low. There are currently 37 Care Leavers who may be eligible and it
is very likely that they will already be in receipt of other discounts, exemptions or
council tax support and full discounts will not be required in every case

8.0

Legal Implications

8.1

Section 13A(1)(c) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended) gives
the Council discretion to reduce the amount of council tax payable to individual
cases or by determining a class of case
Care Leavers as defined in appendix C is a class of case

9.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

9.1

If the Care Leaver Discount Scheme is not approved then Care Leavers living in
Gloucester will not get the same level of support as in other areas of the County

10.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

10.1

None

11.0

Other Corporate Implications
Creating the Care Leaver Discount scheme will provide support to vulnerable young
adults

11.1

Not applicable.
Sustainability

11.2

Not applicable
Staffing & Trade Union

11.3

Not applicable

Background Documents:

None
Page 135
3

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A
Local Government Finance Act 1992

13A Billing authority’s power to reduce amount of tax payable
(1)Where a person is liable to pay council tax in respect of any chargeable dwelling
and any day, the billing authority for the area in which the dwelling is situated may
reduce the amount which he is liable to pay as respects the dwelling and the day to
such extent as it thinks fit.
(2)The power under subsection (1) above includes power to reduce an amount to nil.
(3)The power under subsection (1) may be exercised in relation to particular cases
or by determining a class of case in which liability is to be reduced to an extent
provided by the determination.]

F1S. 13A inserted (18.11.2003) by Local Government Act 2003 (c. 26), s. 76

Retrieved 04.12.2018 from: http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1992/14/section/13A

Page 137

This page is intentionally left blank

Keep On Caring
Supporting Young People from Care to
Independence
July 2016

Page 139

Contents
Ministerial Foreword

4

SUMMARY

6

1 INTRODUCTION

9

A Brief History of Leaving Care Support
Our Vision

9
10

Developing new ways of supporting care leavers

11

Making corporate parenting everyone’s responsibility

11

Driving system improvement

12

What are we trying to achieve?

12

How well is the system working at present?

13

A changing cohort

14

Care leavers’ outcomes

14

Ofsted judgements on the quality of leaving care services

16

Feedback from care leavers

17

Developing the Strategy

19

2. INNOVATION AND SYSTEM REFORM

20

Providing More Practical and Emotional Support

21

Delivering Services Differently

23

Providing a stronger offer for those leaving residential care

24

Empowering Care Leavers to Provide and Design Services for Themselves

25

Preparing care leavers for the challenges of living independently

26

Supporting care leavers who are young parents

26

3. EMBEDDING A CULTURE OF CORPORATE PARENTING
Outcome 1: Better prepared and supported to live independently

27
27

Corporate Parenting Principles

28

Care Leaver Covenant

28

Care Leaver Local Offer

29

Extending support from a Personal Adviser to all care leavers to age 25

30

Outcome 2: Improved access to education, training and employment
Work-based Learning

30
31

2
Page 140

Further Education

32

Higher Education

34

Employment

34

Outcome 3: Experiencing stability and feeling safe and secure

36

A safe and stable place to live

36

Staying Put

37

Staying Close

38

Preventing homelessness

38

Keeping care leavers safe from harm

39

Supporting care leavers in the criminal justice system

41

Supporting refugee and other foreign national care leavers

42

Outcome 4: Improved Access to Health Support

43

Mental Health

43

Wider health issues

45

Outcome 5: Achieving Financial Stability

46

Financial Support

47

Housing Costs

47

Advice and guidance

48

4. DRIVING SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT

50

Promoting and Sharing Best Practice

50

Supporting and Challenging Local Authorities

50

Intervening in failure

51

5. HOW WE WILL MEASURE PROGRESS

52

Outcome Data

52

Ofsted Judgements

52

The Voice of the Care Leaver

52

Reviewing Progress

53

3
Page 141

Ministerial Foreword
A good corporate parent should have the same aspirations for a child in care or care
leaver as a good parent would have for their own child. It means providing them with the
stability and support they need to make progress; and helping them to access new
opportunities and experiences that inspire them to set ambitious goals for themselves. It
means celebrating their successes, but also recognising that they will sometimes make
mistakes and need help to get back on track. It also means supporting them to gain the
skills and confidence to live independent lives, while letting them know that they have
someone to call on for help if the going gets tough.
Earlier this week, the Secretary of State and I published our strategy for supporting all of
our most vulnerable children and young people – ‘Putting Children First’. This strategy
sets out specifically and in more depth what it means to put care leavers first.
I know, from my own family, that care leavers will have faced many challenges in their
lives and are likely to need much more support than other young people as they make
the transition to adulthood. Yet, in most cases, care leavers are not only making that
transition at a much younger age than their peers, but they also typically get far less
support from their corporate parent than other young people get from their birth parents.
That is why I am determined to ensure that the state and wider society play a much
stronger and more active role in improving care leavers’ life chances. For me, it’s the
hallmark of a compassionate society, something our country has in bucket-loads.
This strategy calls for a revolution in the way that we think about supporting young
people coming out of care. It asks local and central government to up their game as
corporate parents, using the level of support that we expect a reasonable parent to
provide for their child as the benchmark for how they should approach their role. And it
provides a call to arms for wider society to better support care leavers, through
engagement with the ‘care leaver covenant’ that we plan to launch later this year.
It identifies three key ways in which we will drive improvements in leaving care services:
Firstly, it sets out how we will use the Innovation Programme to rethink how services are
delivered and what support is provided, with a strong focus on finding new and better
ways of helping care leavers develop the social networks that will sustain them not just in
the years immediately after leaving care, but throughout their lives. We will also support
new ways of delivering services, for example through Trusts, which have a clear and
specific focus on improving care leavers’ life chances.
Secondly, it sets out how we will strengthen the culture of corporate parenting, both
locally – through our planned legislative measures – and through changes to central
government policies, so that they better respond to care leavers’ unique status and
circumstances.
4
Page 142

And finally, it sets out how we will support and challenge local areas, so that all deliver to
the standards of the best.
By delivering the commitments outlined in this document, and applying the same reform
principles and methods to care leavers that we are for the rest of children’s social care,
we can begin to drive the necessary improvements to the quality of support received by
young people leaving care. But this does not mark the end of our ambition. We will
continue to work across government during the remainder of this Parliament to make the
life chances of care leavers something to celebrate, not denounce. If we keep on caring
we can, together, give them the optimism and the future they deserve.

Edward Timpson
Minister of State for Children & Families

5
Page 143

SUMMARY
The government is passionate about improving the lives and life chances of care leavers.
Young people leaving care constitute one of the most vulnerable groups in our society,
and both government and wider society have a moral obligation to give them the support
they need as they make the transition to adulthood and independent living.
There has been much good work done over the past few years to improve that support,
including the actions set out in the first cross-government care leaver strategy published
in 2013 1, and the introduction of the Staying Put duty in 2014, which is already helping
many care leavers to continue living with their former foster carers beyond age 18.
However, outcomes for care leavers remain much worse than for their counterparts in the
general population and the quality of leaving care services provided by local authorities
remains variable. The care leaver cohort is also changing, as more children enter care at
age 16 and over, and with more unaccompanied asylum seeking children (UASC)
entering the care system. These changes present new challenges for service providers.
This document sets out a vision for the further reform of support for care leavers based
on innovation, system reform, and the embedding of corporate parenting responsibility
across society.
The strategy makes a commitment that the government will use the Children’s Social
Care Innovation Programme to rethink transitions to adulthood for young people in the
children’s social care system, with a focus on developing new ways to provide care
leavers with the personal support networks they need to thrive; piloting ‘Staying Close’ –
a variant of Staying Put for those leaving residential care; and testing out alternative
models of delivery for leaving care services through the use of Trusts, Mutuals and other
arrangements. It gives a clear commitment to test payment-by-results approaches, and
commits the government to create the first care leaver-specific Social Impact Bond. And
it also provides a commitment to support and test approaches that empower care leavers
to have a greater say in the design and delivery of services.
The document goes on to identify and describe how the State, as corporate parents, will
support care leavers to achieve 5 key outcomes.

1

Care Leaver Strategy, A cross-departmental strategy for children leaving care, 2013

6
Page 144

The first of these is that all young people leaving care should be better prepared and
supported to live independently. The actions that we will undertake in order to achieve
this include:
setting out in law for the first time what it means for a local authority to be a good
corporate parent;
creating a new care leaver covenant;
introducing a new legal duty on local authorities to consult on, and publish
information about, services for care leavers; and
extending existing entitlements so that all care leavers will be able to access
support from a local authority Personal Adviser to age 25.

•
•
•
•

The second key outcome is improved access to education, employment and training. In
order to achieve this the government will:
promote the take up of supported internships, including through the provision of
targeted information to Personal Advisers;
meet the training costs for care leavers undertaking apprenticeships up to age 25;
support care leavers’ access to, and achievement in, further and higher education,
employment and apprenticeships;
guarantee a place on the National Citizen Service to every child in care or care
leaver aged 16 or 17; and
consider how best to improve access for care leavers to employment opportunities
in government departments and their agencies.

•
•
•
•
•

The third key outcome is that care leavers should experience stability in their lives, and
feel safe and secure. We will help to achieve this by:
•
•
•
•
•

committing to introduce ‘Staying Close’ provision for young people leaving
residential care;
continuing to fund local authorities to support Staying Put arrangements;
providing support for the implementation of the Supported Accommdation
Framework;
raising awareness of care leavers’ unique status and their entitlements among
prison and probation staff through the provision of additional training; and
increasing the funding local authorities will receive for supporting former
unaccompanied asylum seeking children.

7
Page 145

The fourth key outcome is improved access to health support. In order to achieve this we
will:
•

•
•

through a new Expert Group, produce care pathways, quality standards and
models of care for looked after children and care leavers with mental health
problems;
use the new Mental Health Services Data Set to inform the future delivery of
services to care leavers; and
improve accountability regarding the local provision of health services, for example
through Care Quality Commission and Joint Targeted Area inspections.

The fifth and final key outcome that we wish to promote through this strategy is that care
leavers should achieve financial stability. We will help them to do this by:
•
•
•

exempting care leavers from changes to eligibility for housing support for 18-21
year-olds in Universal Credit;
reviewing the case to extend the exemption to the Shared Accommodation Rate of
housing support within Universal Credit, for care leavers to age 25; and
ensuring, through our review of the Personal Adviser role, that care leavers are
able to access advice and support to help them manage their money.

In addition to identifying and implementing specific measures to improve outcomes for
care leavers, this strategy makes it clear that the government has a significant role to
play in driving reform and improvement. Partly, this will involve promoting and sharing
best practice, through the creation of the new Children’s Social Care What Works Centre,
and our work with the ‘Partners in Practice’ group of local authorities. We will also
continue to support and challenge local authorities and, where failure is found and
services are found to be inadequate, we will intervene.
Finally, it is important that we should have effective means of measuring the impact of
actions that we will be undertaking through this strategy. The Department for Education
(DfE) will continue to publish care leaver outcome data annually and, for the year ending
March 2016, will also publish data for 17 and 18 year-old care leavers for the first time.
Work will also be undertaken to explore how data can be shared more effectively
between relevant government departments. To ensure that care leavers’ voices are
heard more powerfully in the formulation of government policy, a new national care
leaver advisory group will be created and facilitated by the DfE. And to ensure that the
implementation of this strategy is managed effectively, a senior group of Whitehall
officials will meet twice yearly to review progress and goals.

8
Page 146

1 INTRODUCTION
A Brief History of Leaving Care Support
1.1

Before the Leaving Care Act (2000) 2, there was no statutory framework in place
for care leavers, with each local authority determining what level of support it
provided. With no nationally-set expectation about what was an adequate level of
support, many care leavers received only minimal assistance. The 2000 Act
introduced, for the first time, requirements on local authorities to: assess the
needs of the young person once they left care; appoint a Personal Adviser for
them; and develop a pathway plan. This support was available to care leavers up
to age 18, or to age 21 if the young person was in education.

1.2

In 2008, the Children and Young Persons Act 3 introduced provisions that required
local authorities to provide assistance to care leavers in education (including a
£2,000 bursary for those in higher education); and extended support from a
Personal Adviser to age 21 for all care leavers; and to 25 if they remained in
education.

1.3.

During the last Parliament, there were three further key developments to improve
the quality of support that care leavers receive:

•

The first cross-government care leaver strategy was published in 2013 4. It
recognised the need to work coherently across government to address care
leavers’ needs in the round; and introduced a number of changes to policies and
practices so that care leavers were better supported. These included measures to
better identify care leavers so that they could receive tailored support. For
example, Jobcentre Plus introduced a ‘marker’ so that care leavers could be
identified and offered additional help, such as access to the Work Programme
from day one of unemployment;

•

The 2014 Children & Families Act 5 introduced the ‘Staying Put’ duty. This requires
local authorities to support young people to remain with their former foster carers
to age 21 where both the young person and carer want the arrangement to
continue – allowing those young people to enjoy continuity in their care
arrangements and a more gradual transition to adulthood; and

Children (Leaving Care) Act, 2000
Children and Young Persons Act, 2008
4
Care Leaver Strategy – A cross-departmental strategy for children leaving care, 2013
5
Children and Families Act, 2014
2
3

9
Page 147

•

The introduction of a new inspection framework for children’s social care in 2014 6,
which for the first time had a specific judgement on the quality of leaving care
support.

Our Vision
1.4

We are determined to bring about the widest reaching reforms to children’s social
care in a generation. We want a system staffed and led by the best trained
professionals; dynamic and free to innovate in the interests of children; with less
bureaucracy; new checks and balances designed to hold the system to account in
the right ways; and new ways to intervene where services consistently fail some of
the most vulnerable in our society. Our strategy – Putting Children First –
published on 4 July 2016, sets out how we will achieve this.

1.5

The best children’s social care services in England deliver truly excellent help and
support to children and young people. These services do not just improve their
circumstances; they transform them completely. But whilst there is much excellent
practice out there, evidence from Ofsted inspections points to continued variability
in the quality of work with children and young people.

1.6

We do not underestimate the pressures that children’s social care faces:
increased fiscal constraint; higher demand for services; and new threats to our
children and young people as they become targets for radicalisation, child sexual
exploitation or gang culture. But we know that these challenges are far from
insurmountable. Ofsted’s analysis shows that the pattern of inspection outcomes
is not about how deprived an area is, or even the amount of money being spent on
children’s social care – some of the lowest performers are in fact the highest
spenders. Ofsted’s inspections this year show that, regardless of context,
providing outstanding services is possible, and ‘good’ is a standard that any local
authority can achieve and maintain 7.

1.7

To support this innovation and drive for excellence, by 2020 we want to see a
more diverse range of children’s social care organisations, operating over new
geographical areas, supported by meaningful data and an inspection regime that
supports high-quality evidence-based front line practice. And crucially, the
performance of these new organisations must be driven by challenging, sharp and
practice-focused accountability. Our most vulnerable children and young people
deserve nothing less.

6
7

Inspecting local authority children’s services: framework, 2014, Ofsted
Ofsted Social Care Annual Report, 2016, Ofsted

10
Page 148

1.8

This vision applies just as much to the services and support that we provide to
young people leaving care as it does to other parts of the social care system. The
measures we introduced during the last Parliament have been important in driving
up the quality of support that care leavers receive, but they have not resulted in
the fundamental shift in care leavers’ life chances that we want to see. To achieve
that change, we believe that we need to focus on three key areas:
•

Developing new ways of supporting care leavers;

•

Making corporate parenting everyone’s responsibility; and

•

Driving system improvement.

Developing new ways of supporting care leavers
1.9

We do not believe that we can achieve the ‘step-change’ that is needed simply by
providing more of the same. That is why we want to stimulate new thinking about
how we help care leavers to make successful transitions to adulthood – both in
terms of how services are delivered, and what support is provided.

1.10

We want to explore whether there are different models of delivery that can achieve
better outcomes for care leavers. We can see the potential benefits of, for
example, local services for care leavers being delivered via a Care Leaver Trust –
a new organisation with a culture and objectives entirely focused on care leavers.
A Trust model could provide an environment where there is greater scope to
innovate; and greater flexibility and responsiveness to the needs of their care
leaver cohort. Trusts could also operate across a bigger geographical area,
providing a more consistent offer across neighbouring local authorities and result
in more effective commissioning of services.

1.11

We also want to explore different ways of helping care leavers to develop the
social networks that will sustain them during their transition to adulthood and
beyond. Personal Advisers play an important role in helping care leavers to
achieve their goals, but cannot always provide all the support that care leavers
need. In the next section of this document we set out a range of alternative
models that provide new ways of meeting the practical and emotional needs of
care leavers that we believe will provide greater continuity of support.

Making corporate parenting everyone’s responsibility
1.12

We know that there are many individuals and teams working in local authority
leaving care services that are committed to supporting children in care and care
leavers in a way that any other parent would. In some local authorities, like
Trafford, that commitment starts at the top of the organisation and permeates
through all of its services. But, in many other areas, there are examples of one
11
Page 149

part of the council helping care leavers while another part of the organisation is
acting in a way that undermines that work. We will introduce a set of corporate
parenting principles that will require all departments within a local authority to
recognise their role as corporate parents, encouraging them to look at the services
and support that they provide through the lens of what a reasonable parent would
do to support their own children.
1.13

We also want that corporate parenting responsibility to extend beyond what is
provided by local authorities, so that government departments and their agencies,
charities and private sector organisations play their part. Later sections of this
document set out examples of how policies of individual government departments
have been adapted to recognise the challenges faced by care leavers. And we
will introduce a ‘care leaver covenant’ that will enable organisations to make
commitments to care leavers in a way that is most appropriate for them.

Driving system improvement
1.14

As the spread of Ofsted judgements about leaving care services illustrates, there
is significant variation in the quality of support that care leavers receive. It is
important that government takes an active role in highlighting best practice and
sharing what works, as well as providing strong challenge where services are not
good enough. The final section of this document sets out how we will do this.

What are we trying to achieve?
1.15

To achieve our ambitions for care leavers, we need to use the three drivers of
improvement listed above to make progress against five key issues that care
leavers raised during our consultation events:

•

Not being adequately prepared or supported to deal with the challenges of living
independently;

•

Barriers accessing education, employment and training;

•

Lack of stability, safety and security;

•

Difficulties in accessing the health support they need, in particular help to maintain
their emotional health and well-being; and

•

Problems achieving financial stability 8.

Source: Between January and March 2016 DfE officials led a series of consultation events with care
leavers. See also page 17.

8

12
Page 150

1.16

Many of these issues are inter-related. Problems with money are often
exacerbated by the fact that many care leavers are not in education, employment
or training (NEET). And the lack of a stable, safe place to live can impact
negatively on a young person’s emotional health and put them at greater danger
of a number of safeguarding risks, such as sexual exploitation or involvement with
gangs. This reinforces the need for a cross-government approach. The measures
that local authorities and government departments have agreed to take forward
are set out below under the five key outcomes that we are seeking to achieve.

1.17

As the following paragraphs illustrate, achieving those outcomes depends not just
on what happens when young people leave care. The quality of care they receive
earlier in their lives is also crucial. That is why, alongside this care leaver strategy,
DfE has also published recently a wider children’s social care policy paper, setting
out what we will do to transform the children’s social care sector 9; as well as the
report of Sir Martin Narey’s review of residential care 10.

How well is the system working at present?
1.18

Making an overall assessment of the quality of support that care leavers receive is
not straightforward. In particular, it is challenging because of the significant
variation in the quality of support provided at a local level – which is reflected in
both the outcomes that care leavers achieve and in the spread of Ofsted
judgements about leaving care services.

1.19

Our consultations with care leavers also illustrated a wide range of personal
experiences. For example, some care leavers reported that their Personal Adviser
had been the key person who had helped them to successfully navigate the
challenges of living independently, while for others, support from their Personal
Adviser had been limited and ineffective 11. It is also challenging because the
nature of the cohort is constantly changing, making the drawing of comparisons
with care leavers’ outcomes in previous years less reliable.

1.20

This next section provides an overview of the current position, drawing on: the
information we have on the cohort (and how it is changing); the national outcome
data that DfE publishes annually; Ofsted reports and judgements about the quality

Putting children first – Delivering our vision for excellent children’s social care, Department for Education,
2016
10
Residential care in England, Report of Sir Martin Narey’s independent review of children’s residential
care, Sir Martin Narey, 2016
11
Source: Between January and March 2016 DfE officials led a series of consultation events with care
leavers. See also page 17.
9

13
Page 151

of local delivery; and feedback from the care leavers we consulted on the strategy
while it was being developed.

A changing cohort
1.21

Around 10,800 young people left care aged 16 or over in the year ending March
2015, an increase of over 40% in the last decade. There are an increasing
number of young people who enter care aged 16 or over, accounting for 16% of all
those who entered care in the year ending March 2015, compared to 12% in the
year ending March 2011. Changes to the law which require young people on
remand to become looked after, along with the impact of the Southwark
Judgement – which means that 16 and 17 year-olds who present as homeless
also become looked after children – have both changed the nature of the cohort of
care leavers that local authorities must support. And local authorities are looking
after increasing numbers of Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC)
and supporting more care leavers who are former UASC 12.

Care leavers’ outcomes
1.22

Care leavers’ outcomes are not determined solely by the quality of leaving care
support that they receive – although this is clearly an important factor. But Care
leavers’ experiences before and during care are also important determinants of
their outcomes, which means that comparisons between the outcomes of care
leavers and other young people in the general population are of only limited value
when making judgements about the quality and impact of the support that is
provided when young people leave care.

1.23

The lasting impact of the events and circumstances that led to a child being taken
into care; the high incidence of Special Educational Needs (SEN) among care
leavers (around 60% of children in care for 12 months have SEN, compared to
15% of children in the general population) 13 and emotional health problems
(around half of children in care have a Strengths & Difficulties Questionnaire
(SDQ) score that is borderline or cause for concern) 14; the impact of placement
moves while in care (including the resultant change in school that often occurs) –
all contribute to low attainment, with only 14% of children in care achieving 5 good

Statistics about the care leaver cohort taken from the Department for Education’s Statistical First
Release for children looked-after in England (including adoption) 2014-15
13
Statistics about care leaver cohort taken from the Department of Education’s Statistical First Release
Outcomes for children looked after by local authorities in England, 31 March 2015
14
Statistics about care leaver cohort taken from the Department of Education’s Statistical First Release
Outcomes for children looked after by local authorities in England, 31 March 2014
12

14
Page 152

GCSEs in 2015, compared to 53% of non-looked after children 15. Leaving school
with few qualifications adversely affects care leavers’ progress into further or
higher education, apprenticeships or skilled jobs.
1.24

As well as these historical factors, care leavers also face the added challenge of
having to cope with the demands of living on their own at a young age: having to
manage finances, maintain a home and manage their lives independently, often
without the support from families that most of us take for granted. That is why it is
incumbent on the state as the corporate parent to do as much as it can to give
care leavers the support and opportunities they need to succeed. While we
cannot mitigate the impact of all of the disadvantages that care leavers have
experienced, we can ensure that as a society we do as much as we can to help
care leavers overcome them.

1.25

Notwithstanding these points, the fact remains that the data on care leavers’
outcomes is stark and there has been limited improvement over time. In the year
ending March 2015, local authorities were ‘in touch’ with, and provided data to DfE
on, 88% of care leavers. This is an increase from 84% in the year ending March
2014 16. In many of the cases where no information was provided, this was
because the care leaver had either refused contact, or had told the local authority
that they no longer required support. Nevertheless, the wide variation in local
authority performance on keeping in touch indicates that more needs to be done to
maintain contact with care leavers in some areas.

1.26

In the year ending March 2015, 39% of 19-21 year-old care leavers were Not in
Education, Employment or Training (NEET) – an increase of 1 percentage point
compared to the previous year. Of these, over a third were NEET due to either a
disability, or because they were a young parent. Six percent of 19-21 year-old
care leavers were in Higher Education; and a further 18% were in other types of
education. Twenty-three per cent were in employment or training, an increase of 3
percentage points on the previous year 17.

1.27

There is no national data that reports on care leavers’ longer term outcomes, but
research consistently shows that care leavers are over-represented in studies on
people in custody, homelessness and other negative outcomes 18, although those

Statistics about care leaver cohort taken from the Department of Education’s Statistical First Release
Outcomes for children looked after by local authorities in England, 31 March 2015
16
Statistics about the care leaver cohort taken from the Department for Education’s Statistical First
Release for children looked-after in England (including adoption) 2014-15
17
Statistics about the care leaver cohort taken from the Department for Education’s Statistical First
Release for children looked-after in England (including adoption) 2014-15
18
Department of Education, National Audit Office Care leavers’ transition to adulthood, July 2015
15

15
Page 153

studies normally include people of all ages and so are not focused on the current
cohort of care leavers.

Ofsted judgements on the quality of leaving care services
overall effectiveness
judgements

care leavers' judgements
13% 2%

2%

34%

23%

25%

51%

50%
Outstanding

Good

Outstanding

Good

Requires improvement

Inadequate

Requires improvement

Inadequate

1.28

The two tables above 19 show the spread of Ofsted judgements for both the ‘care
leaver sub-judgement’ and ‘overall effectiveness’ judgement from inspections
Ofsted has conducted under its Single Inspection Framework. They show that
two-thirds of leaving care services, and three-quarters of overall effectiveness
judgements were judged to either ‘require improvement’ or to be ‘inadequate’.
Although more care leaving services (36%) were judged ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’
than social care services overall (25%), the picture as a whole shows that the
quality of care leaving support that local authorities provide needs to improve
significantly.

1.29

The key messages from Ofsted inspection reports are that:

19

•

The quality of pathway planning for care leavers is not good enough in around
two-thirds of local authorities inspected, with a lack of clear, specific actions to
drive care leavers’ progress;

•

Not enough is done to raise awareness among care leavers of their entitlements;

•

In around half of local authorities inspected, not enough support was being
provided to help care leavers to find and sustain education, training or
employment;

Data provided by Ofsted

16
Page 154

•

In around a third of local authorities, care leavers did not have access to a suitable
range of accommodation options; and

•

In too many local authorities, senior corporate parents did not consistently
prioritise the needs of care leavers or have sufficiently high aspirations for them.

1.30

There were also a number of positive themes reported by Ofsted and many cases
of good practice in individual authorities, or on particular aspects of leaving care
support. In most local authorities care leavers themselves spoke positively about
the support provided by Personal Advisers. In the best performing authorities,
effective partnerships with Housing Services were providing care leavers with a
range of independent and semi-independent accommodation options to reflect
their different levels of readiness for independent living. And in the majority of
recent inspections, Ofsted was identifying effective work being undertaken to
improve local authorities’ performance on keeping in touch with their care leavers.

1.31

Trafford and Kensington and Chelsea have shown that it is possible to provide
outstanding support to care leavers. Their work is characterised by tenacious
planning for young people’s futures at all levels and across all key agencies.
Young people particularly valued the caring and enduring relationships with
Personal Advisers and from others that were responsible for their care and
support. Significantly, in these local authorities, there is a strong track record of
effective and ambitious corporate parenting of looked after children and care
leavers.

Feedback from care leavers
1.32

During our many conversations with care leavers, a number of consistent themes
emerged:

•

Where they had developed a good relationship with an adult – a former foster
carer, a member of staff at a residential home, an independent visitor or social
worker – they wanted support to maintain those relationships once they left care,
on an informal basis;

•

They wanted the professionals who support them to have high aspirations for
them; and to encourage and support them to achieve their goals;

•

They reported that leaving care still felt like a ‘cliff-edge’, where they were
suddenly responsible for managing budgets, running a home; and maintaining
their participation in education or work on their own – with insufficient preparation
for these challenges. The introduction of Staying Put was seen by care leavers as
a positive way of smoothing out the process of transition to adulthood and
provided for continuity of relationships and care arrangements;
17
Page 155

•

As well as not having been given the necessary life skills before leaving care, they
also felt that the process of leaving care itself was often rushed and that planning
for leaving care should start earlier. A number of care leavers wanted greater
flexibility around the age of leaving care, to avoid their 18th birthday feeling like a
‘point of no return’;

•

Care leavers said that they wanted more choice about where they lived and who
supported them; and more information about the support that was available to
them locally; and what they were entitled to from universal services such as
Jobcentre Plus;

•

They said that there were times when their emotional health and well-being was
not positive, but when that was the case they found it difficult to access the
support they needed. In particular, they found it difficult to access adult mental
health services once they turned 18;

•

A minority of care leavers reported that they felt scared – in particular when they
did not feel that the place they were accommodated in was safe, either because of
its location or because of the other people who lived there – or that they were
vulnerable to a range of safeguarding risks, such as involvement in gangs, crime,
or sexual exploitation;

•

They said that they wanted to be empowered to do things for themselves and
have opportunities to get on in life – but that there needed to be greater
understanding among service providers about the different challenges they faced
compared to young people their age in the general population – in particular that
they often did not have the safety-net of a supportive family network;

•

But overwhelmingly, the biggest issue raised by care leavers was one of isolation
and loneliness; and the difficulty of navigating their way through their late teens
and early twenties without a strong and stable social network to support them.

18
Page 156

Developing the Strategy
1.33

In developing this strategy, we have taken account of the views of a broad range
of individuals and organisations. Firstly, we have listened to what care leavers
have told us. At eight separate consultation events we asked care leavers to think
about their experience of leaving care and tell us:

•

What were the most difficult challenges they had faced;

•

In which areas they would have welcomed additional support; and

•

In which areas did they felt well-supported and how this helped their transition to
adulthood.

1.34

A summary of the key points that emerged from those discussions with care
leavers is set out above. We also held discussions with the organisations that
support care leavers, both individually and in a roundtable event that brought
together all of the key voluntary sector bodies that work with these young people.

1.35

We were also keen to ensure that we properly understood the delivery challenges
involved in providing services to care leavers and so have held detailed
discussions with Ofsted (a summary of Ofsted’s key findings in relation to leaving
care support are set out above), as well as engaging with local authority
colleagues who deliver leaving care services – through consultation with members
of the National Leaving Care Benchmarking Forum (an association with members
from over 80 local authority leaving care teams) and through working with Mark
Riddell (Manager of the outstanding Children in Care and Leaving Care team in
Trafford) who has worked with DfE as a ‘critical friend’, throughout the
development of the strategy.

19
Page 157

2. INNOVATION AND SYSTEM REFORM
2.1

Care leavers have told us that we need a system that puts the development of
meaningful, long-term relationships and social networks at its heart. The
Children’s Social Care Innovation Programme is central to achieving this. The
programme is already supporting local authorities and other organisations to
develop new approaches to children’s social care, through an investment of over
£100 million, encompassing 53 projects. So far the Innovation Programme has
focused on three areas:
•

Rethinking children’s social work: These projects have started to show evidence
that giving social workers and other frontline workers freedom and support to
design services that they know children and families need can have a dramatic
impact;

•

Rethinking support for adolescents in or on the edge of care: providing integrated
models of support; and

•

Other innovative solutions outside these two priority areas: – providing the
opportunity for the sector to drive reform where it is most needed or come to us
with innovative ideas falling outside of the two priority areas.

2.2

2.3

20

In April this year, we announced a further £200 million investment to extend the
programme 20. We will use the next phase of the Innovation Programme to make
progress on two fronts:
•

Deepening our understanding of the conditions needed for excellent practice and
supporting more local authorities to rethink their whole practice system around
them; and

•

Building our evidence base and understanding of how we can best support young
people making the transition to adulthood.
This focus on transition to adulthood in the second round of the programme
provides us with the opportunity to work with local authorities and charities to find
new ways to deliver services and support to care leavers that result in them
achieving better outcomes. There are a number of areas where we are keen to
test new approaches.

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/200-million-to-transform-life-chances-of-vulnerable-young-people

20
Page 158

Providing More Practical and Emotional Support
2.4

While we want all care leavers to benefit from high quality Personal Adviser
support to age 25, we recognise that the support that care leavers currently
receive is patchy; and even where it is good, Personal Advisers cannot always
provide care leavers with as much practical and emotional support as they need.
Just as social workers need to be supported to develop excellent practice skills,
and given the freedom to work in innovative ways, so too do Personal Advisers.

2.5

We are carrying out a review of the Personal Adviser role to better understand
how they spend their time and identify models of delivery that maximise contact
time between them and the young people they are supporting, so that they can
develop the trusting relationships that care leavers value so much. A second
stage of the review will consider wider questions about the role, including: what
skills, knowledge and qualifications are needed to perform the role effectively; how
we can raise the status of the role; whether the name ‘Personal Adviser’ best
describes what this important role encompasses; what are the routes into
Personal Adviser work (including for care leavers); and whether there are enough
opportunities for development training for those currently carrying out the role.
Given how important it is that care leavers are able to manage their money
effectively the review will also consider how Personal Advisers can best support
them in this regard.

2.6

We will also encourage employers to come forward to create a Personal
Adviser Apprenticeship, which would prepare people for the demands of this
challenging role; and also open a route for care-experienced individuals to join the
workforce and play a bigger part in the delivery of services to care leavers. We
have had positive discussions with the employer that is leading the development
of new children’s social care apprenticeships as part of the Trailblazer
apprenticeship programme, and will announce further details in due course. We
anticipate that the apprenticeship would be set at Level 3 (equivalent to A level)
and would take between 12 and 18 months to complete.

2.7

But we are keen to test out approaches that look beyond the Personal
Adviser model, drawing on other sources of support so that care leavers have a
wider network around them.

“If it wasn’t for my independent visitor, I would not be where I am today – she raised my
ambition and she has helped me by showing my opportunities, helping with applications.
Most importantly she has stuck by me; even though the service ran out and still is here to
this day!” Care Leaver.

21
Page 159

2.8

Examples of the sort of approaches we want to invest in include:
•

Supporting continuing relationships with former carers and professionals: during
our consultations with care leavers, a number of participants spoke passionately
about a key individual who had helped them in their childhood. For some it was a
former foster carer, for others it was a member of staff at their former residential
home; and for others still it was a social worker, or independent visitor. Staying
Put allows for a continuing relationship with a former foster carer. But where
Staying Put isn’t the right answer, foster carers may still be able to provide
ongoing emotional and practical support even if the young person does not still
live with them – in the same way as parents do when their children leave home.
And there is also the opportunity for continuing relationships between care leavers
and other professionals they know and trust. We are keen to see projects that
harness this potential support by helping those relationships to continue once the
young person leaves care;

•

Mentoring: Many local authorities will already have appointed mentors for care
leavers, including adults with personal experience of the care system who have a
unique understanding of the challenges that care leavers face in moving from care
to independence. But we don’t know enough about the successful features of the
best mentoring programmes, which is why we are interested in identifying and
scaling-up those interventions that have the most robust evidence of success.

•

Family-Finding Approaches: Based on an approach first used in the United
States, family-finding uses family group conferences to identify a range of adults,
including family members and professionals who have known the young person
during their childhood, who are prepared to make a life-long commitment to the
young person. Each individual’s contribution will differ, but in sum represents a
robust package of support that the young person can draw on.

•

Local Area Co-ordinators: We are keen to test an approach that has been used
successfully in adult social care which involves area co-ordinators working with
vulnerable adults to help them access community resources and support which,
over time, reduces their reliance on statutory services and helps them to develop a
supportive, community-based network of activities and personal contacts. This
could be particularly beneficial to care leavers with a disability, who may need
ongoing adult social care support to help them achieve positive outcomes.

22
Page 160

Delivering Services Differently
We also want to free-up local authorities to deliver services in new ways and
in partnership with the voluntary sector. New models can:

2.9
•

refresh leadership and attract strong and ambitious people to organisations where
new ways of doing things are needed;

•

provide a sharper focus on children’s social care as a whole or on aspects of the
system;

•

enable existing strong organisations to innovate more easily and to create a
distinctive culture of excellence; and

•

bring together different areas and organisations in robust structures which go
beyond collaboration and into integration.

2.10

City Deals in particular provide an opportunity to test out new approaches and we
are working closely with Greater Manchester to explore the possibility of delivering
a single care leaving service across the 10 Greater Manchester authorities, using
Trafford’s leading-edge service to drive an improved offer to all care leavers. This
sort of innovation opens up new opportunities to commission services in a way
that: provides greater value for money; creates greater flexibility in placing young
people in accommodation in neighbouring boroughs; and has the potential to
create a more consistent offer that reflects best practice across all participating
authorities.

2.11

Care Leaver Trusts, which give those working closer to the frontline the
freedoms and flexibilities to operate more innovatively and creatively,
represent an approach that we are keen to support through the Innovation
Programme. Trusts could provide the opportunity for new bodies focussed
entirely on improving care leavers’ life chances, harnessing the power of the
voluntary sector to provide the networks and relationships that we know are key to
a successful transition.

2.12

We are also keen that local authorities, and the staff that work in them, should
consider what scope there is to establish public service mutuals to deliver
services to care leavers differently. One example of a mutual model which is
already transforming the delivery of children’s services is Achieving for Children –
a social enterprise working across the London Boroughs of Kingston and
Richmond.

2.13

Social impact bonds (SIBs) are designed to help reform public service delivery
by allowing social sector organisations to participate in ‘payment by results’
contracts. SIBs improve the social outcomes of publicly-funded services by making
23
Page 161

funding conditional on achieving results. Investors pay for the project at the start,
and then receive payments based on the results achieved by the project. Rather
than focusing on inputs or outputs, SIBs are based on achieving social ‘outcomes’.
The outcomes are predefined and measurable.
2.14

Working with local commissioners, voluntary and community sector organisations
and social investors, we believe that there is significant potential for SIBs to
improve the way that care leavers are supported as they make a transition to
independent living, and particularly to support their sustained participation in
employment and training. We will, therefore, make funding available from the
Innovation Programme to support the development and commissioning of
care leaver SIBs over the rest of this Parliament to test new approaches to
support care leavers. In order to enable bidders to submit expressions of
interest, we will be running an additional bidding round into the Innovation
Programme in the autumn in which organisations interested in running a care
leaver SIB will be able to apply for funding to help to pay for its set up and to
provide outcomes payments.

Providing a stronger offer for those leaving residential care
2.15

Care leavers have told us that having a safe, secure and stable place to live is
essential if they are to sustain education, training or employment; experience
positive emotional health and well-being; and avoid safeguarding risks. The
Staying Put duty, introduced in 2014, requires local authorities to provide support
so that care leavers can continue to live with their former foster carers. However,
there has been no equivalent provision in place for young people leaving
residential care.

2.16

Sir Martin Narey considered this issue in his recent report on children’s residential
care 21. As he noted, young people leaving children’s homes require as much
support, if not more, than their counterparts who have been looked after in foster
care. He was clear that the need for nurturing, consistent relationships does not
stop when young people leave care; and that more needs to be done to avoid a
cliff edge for those leaving residential care.

2.17

His report recommended that the government should introduce ‘Staying Close’ –
an alternative to Staying Put – designed specifically for young people leaving
residential care. This would allow young people to live independently, but in a
location very close to the children’s home they lived in previously. They would

Residential care in England, Report of Sir Martin Narey’s independent review of children’s residential
care, Sir Martin Narey, 2016
21

24
Page 162

continue to have the support of the same team and same key worker, and would
be able to visit the home frequently, to experience the continuity and more gradual
transition to independence that those leaving foster care enjoy when they move
into a Staying Put arrangement.
2.18

In response to Sir Martin’s specific recommendation, we are making a
commitment to introduce Staying Close for young people leaving residential
care. As Sir Martin also recommends, we are first going to pilot variations of the
scheme, through opening a specific stream of the Innovation Programme, in order
to understand the costings, practicalities and impact of this measure.

2.19

Later sections of this document say more about the work we have been doing with
the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) and the Department for
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) more widely to ensure that
accommodation for care leavers is both suitable and affordable.

Empowering Care Leavers to Provide and Design Services for
Themselves
Being empowered was a strong theme in our consultations with
care leavers. It is also judged to be a key component of many of
the most interesting innovations that are currently being taken
forward in the sector.
The ‘HOUSE Project’ in Stoke has involved setting up a housing co-operative led by
young care leavers using homes owned by the council.
Care leavers lead the co-operative and have access to a purpose-designed skills
and training programme to help them do this (and to build skills related to the cooperative), building their capacity, social skills and employability in the process.
Young people are able to retain their tenancy as long as they want to. As they
move out of the co-operative, but want to keep their home, new local-authority
owned houses are released to the co-operative to maintain the stock of 10
tenancies for care leavers.
As well as helping care leavers with their accommodation needs, the project gives
them the opportunity to experience the control, ownership and pride in doing things
for themselves that have been missing from their lives.

2.20

The New Belongings programme is another example of care leavers themselves
being empowered to drive change in the services they receive. A national group
25
Page 163

of care leavers was paid as consultants to work with care leavers in the local area
they were supporting, to audit what care leavers thought about the services they
received and to work with the senior managers in the council to develop a stronger
local offer. This DfE-funded programme worked with 29 local authorities over two
years and many of the participating authorities continue to work together in
clusters to share practice and what works. Subject to the outcome of the
independent evaluation of New Belongings, we are keen to expand this
approach – which puts care leavers in the ‘driving seat’ – to an increasing
number of local authorities.

Preparing care leavers for the challenges of living
independently
“When leaving care I was not ready or prepared for what lay ahead for me. Living in my
own flat at the age of 18, I felt alone and unsupported. I always came across as older for
my age so I think it was assumed I would be ok. However I was far from ok.” Care leaver.
2.21

Care leavers consistently tell us that they were not sufficiently prepared for the
realities of living independently. In particular, they report experiencing difficulties
in relation to budgeting, household maintenance and how to access universal
services. Many local authorities already provide support of this kind and we are
interested in how we might use the Innovation Programme to scale-up
approaches that have been successful.

Supporting care leavers who are young parents
2.22

Section 3 of this document sets out the universal and targeted services that are in
place to support care leavers who are parents to give their children the best start
in life. However, for a minority of care leavers with complex problems, getting
pregnant and subsequently having their children taken into care can become a
pattern that requires a different response. Programmes such as PAUSE, which
originated in Hackney and has been extended to six other local authority areas
supported by funding from the DfE Innovation Programme, work intensively with
young women in this situation to prevent repeat pregnancies and subsequent
removal of their children into care. We want to extend approaches like PAUSE
into new areas to break this inter-generational cycle of care.

26
Page 164

3. EMBEDDING A CULTURE OF CORPORATE
PARENTING
3.1

Everyone in society has a responsibility to help those who have been in care to
overcome the difficulties that they experienced in their childhoods, so that they can
lead successful lives – it is not something that government alone can achieve.

3.2

As this section will show, government departments and their agencies can play a
vital role by shaping their policies so that they give care leavers a helping hand.
The voluntary sector plays a unique role, providing opportunities for care leavers
to develop skills, confidence and resilience through their programmes for
vulnerable young people. Private businesses can offer care leavers opportunities
to gain work experience or to take up apprenticeships; and individual volunteers,
including those who have a care experience themselves, can act as mentors or
champions for care leavers.

3.3

But more than anything else, the local help and support that care leavers receive
from their local authority leaving care team is critical to whether care leavers make
the transition from care to independence successfully.

3.4

This section sets out the action we will take to help care leavers to overcome the
problems identified in Section 1:

Outcome 1: Better prepared and supported to live
independently
“Over the past year the best thing for me has been my support worker with all the support
she has given me I feel like you have built up a good relationship with her and I feel like if
I have any queries I can always go to her about them so it has been nice to build up a
good relationship with someone who I can trust.” Care Leaver
3.5

22

We want the legislative framework that applies to leaving care services to ensure
that care leavers are given the high quality support they need to succeed.
Building on the Staying Put duty that was introduced in 2014, we are introducing
three new legislative provisions in the Children and Social Work Bill 22 to add to the
entitlements that care leavers already benefit from.

http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2016-17/childrenandsocialwork.html

27
Page 165

Corporate Parenting Principles
3.6

For the first time, we will set out in law what it means for a local authority to be a
good corporate parent, through a set of corporate parenting principles that guide
how local authorities should act when providing services and support to the young
people leaving their care. The principles will apply to all of the services that the
local authority provides – not just the Children’s Services department – so that, for
example, Housing Services (including those delivered by district councils) and
Leisure Services also deliver their services to care leavers in a way that: promotes
their best interests; responds to their wishes and feelings; helps them to make the
best use of local authority services; promotes high aspirations and the best
possible outcomes for them; provides them with stability; and supports their
transition to adulthood. These principles will apply to both children in care and
care leavers.

3.7

The principles will embed in every local authority what we, and Ofsted, have
already seen in the best performing local authorities like Trafford, where from the
Chief Executive down there is a commitment within the council to giving care
leavers the best possible chance to succeed, including ring-fencing apprenticeship
opportunities for care leavers and giving them free access to the borough’s leisure
centres.

3.8

Other authorities are thinking hard about what it truly means to be a corporate
parent, looking at it through the lens of what any reasonable parent does to give
their child the best start in life. For many of our young people that means
providing some financial support when they first live independently and are in a job
at the bottom of their career ladder. So, for example, North Somerset has taken
the decision that its care leavers should not have to pay Council Tax until they
reach age 22. We would encourage all local authorities to consider how they
can support their care leavers like this, using the flexibilities at their
disposal. Further examples are provided later in this Section.

Care Leaver Covenant
3.9

The corporate parenting principles will apply to local authorities. But we want
other public, private and charitable bodies to be able to set out how, as members
of civil society, they too will make a commitment to support care leavers. So we
will introduce a new voluntary care leaver covenant that organisations can
sign up to in a way that makes sense to them. We plan to launch the
covenant during ‘care leavers’ week’ in October 2016.

3.10

The covenant will provide an opportunity for central government departments to
set out the services and support that they offer care leavers. The Cabinet Office,
for example, has already made a commitment that every child in care or care
28
Page 166

leaver aged 16 or 17 has a guaranteed place on the National Citizen Service
programme.
3.11

The voluntary and charitable sectors already play a key role in both supporting
individual care leavers to develop skills and confidence, as well as providing
support materials that allow frontline practitioners to develop ways of working with
care leavers that take account of their unique experiences. We want to harness
all this energy and enthusiasm, working in partnership with voluntary sector and
charities to promote the covenant and to encourage others to get behind it.

3.12

We will also use the covenant to build on successful work with employers who
have provided opportunities to care leavers, such as those provided by the
Marriott Hotel chain through the ‘From Care2Work’ programme, funded by DfE.
But the role of businesses could potentially go beyond offering work opportunities
and we will be exploring how the private sector could help to make the transition to
adulthood and independence easier for care leavers.

Care Leaver Local Offer
3.13

One of the most common concerns raised by care leavers is that they are not
aware of either their legal entitlements, or the wider support that is available to
them locally. Our second legislative change, therefore, will be to place a
requirement on local authorities to consult on, and then publish a local offer
for care leavers. This will complement the local offer already in place covering
the education, health and social care services available for children and young
people who have Special Educational Needs or are disabled.

3.14

Many local authorities already have forums that allow care leavers to feed back
views on their leaving care support; and to find out more about what support is
available to them. And many authorities also consult their care leavers about what
additional support they would find helpful. Our legislation will formalise that
process where it currently happens and extend it to every local authority, so that
every care leaver in the country is aware of the support that they can expect.

3.15

As well as setting out care leavers’ legal entitlements, including its policy on
Staying Put, the local offer will describe the other non-statutory services that the
local authority leaving care team provides specifically for care leavers, such as
health drop-in sessions. It will also set out how relevant universal services could
support care leavers’ transitions to adulthood, such as careers advice services for
all young people. The requirement to publish the local offer will bring greater
transparency and allow local authorities to learn about services that are being
provided in other local areas.

29
Page 167

Extending support from a Personal Adviser to all care leavers to age 25
3.16

At present, all care leavers receive support from a local authority Personal Adviser
to age 21. The Personal Adviser helps the care leaver to make the transition to
independence, using a ‘pathway plan’ to identify the steps the young person
needs to take to achieve their goals; and how the local authority will support them
to do so.

3.17

If a care leaver remains in or returns to education, support from their Personal
Adviser continues up to age 25. But other care leavers, including those who are
(NEET), are not currently entitled to continuing support. In recognition of the
extra vulnerability of those who are NEET and the fact that many young
people in the wider population continue to get support from their parents
until their mid-twenties, we are extending support for all care leavers to age
25. We will provide additional funding for local authorities to implement this new
duty.

Outcome 2: Improved access to education, training and
employment
“Instead of saying that all care leavers should be in education, employment or training,
they should say, step-by-step, let’s look at ways of doing it…..if we don’t do that stuff
(education and training) then we just continue the stereotype. We need to be
encouraged to challenge the stereotype!” Care Leaver
3.18

For the period ending March 2016, we are collecting data on 17 and 18 year-old
care leavers for the first time (to be published in October 2016). Combining this
with the data that we already collect on 19, 20 and 21 year-olds will give us a
much clearer picture of care leavers’ career progression as they leave care and
move towards independence.

3.19

What we do know about the activity of 19 to 21 year-old care leavers in the year
ending March 2015 is that, at this stage in their journey: 6% are in HE; 18% are in
other types of education; 23% are in training or employment; and 39% are NEET,
of which around a third are NEET due to disability or young parenthood 23.

3.20

We want to help all care leavers to reach their full potential, whether that is going
to college or university, taking up an apprenticeship or getting a skilled job. That
will require a range of approaches: supporting those with high potential to achieve,

Statistics about the care leaver cohort taken from the Department for Education’s Statistical First
Release for children looked-after in England (including adoption) 2014-15
23

30
Page 168

as well as removing barriers for those who have either fallen behind or need extra
support to remain in education or training.
3.21

While we have introduced a number of recent reforms to improve the educational
attainment of children in care – including making it a statutory requirement that
local authorities appoint a Virtual School Head to raise attainment of looked after
children; and providing £1,900 a year extra to schools to support the progress of
every Looked After Child on their register, through the Pupil Premium Plus – it is
still the case that only 14% of children in care achieved 5 good GCSEs in 2015,
compared to 53% of non-looked after children 24.

3.22

This limits the options open to care leavers when they leave school and requires
us to think creatively about how we provide the opportunities for care leavers to
catch up on education that they have missed out on; and to develop the essential
knowledge and skills that will enable them to make progress. This provision must
be flexible enough to respond to the needs of individual care leavers (for example
through allowing the length of courses to be extended so that additional support
can be provided).

Work-based Learning
3.23

The government has asked Lord Sainsbury to review technical education,
including the needs of young people who are not ready to access a technical
qualification at age 16 (or older if their education has been delayed). The
government’s response to this challenge will be set out in ‘The Skills Plan’, which
will be published shortly.

3.24

Care leavers with Education, Health and Care Plans or statements of SEN who
need more help to make the transition from education into employment can
access supported internship study programmes. Based primarily at an employer,
they are tailored to the individual needs of a young person to equip them with the
skills they need for the workplace. The young person and the employer will
receive support from an expert job coach throughout. We will provide Personal
Advisers with more information on supported internships so that they can
be promoted to care leavers who would benefit from this sort of intensive
support.

3.25

The government is committed to reaching 3 million apprenticeship starts in
England by 2020. Under apprenticeship frameworks, funding for the costs of
training is covered for all 16-18 year-olds. The same level of funding is in place for

Statistics about care leaver cohort taken from the Department of Education’s Statistical First Release
Outcomes for children looked after by local authorities in England, 31 March 2015
24

31
Page 169

apprentices aged 19-23 who are care leavers. As an incentive to employers to
recruit more care leavers, and in line with wider government policy, we will now
extend this further to all care leavers up to age 25. This provision will also be
in place for apprenticeships delivered under standards (the new employerdesigned, higher quality apprenticeships). The introduction of the apprenticeship
levy in April 2017 will mean that the way apprenticeships are funded will be
changing. We will publish more information about the new funding arrangements
shortly.
3.26

We have been asked throughout the development of this strategy document
whether we can require companies bidding for public procurement contracts to
offer apprenticeships for care leavers. Under the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 25, account can already be taken on a case by case basis of wider social
benefits, including workforce composition, within the tendering process where
these link sufficiently to the subject matter of the contract in question. We have
recently been successful in including apprenticeships and skills
development considerations as a whole in government procurements with a
value of £10 million and above.

3.27

We are also aware that the Children’s Commissioner’s office will shortly be
publishing a report on widening access to apprenticeships for children in care and
care leavers. We welcome this and will give careful consideration to its
recommendations so as to try to find new ways of increasing opportunities for
children in or leaving care to take up apprenticeships.

Further Education
3.28

25

For many care leavers, their progression route from school will be to a further
education (FE) college. All 19-23 year-olds are entitled to free education and
training to achieve their first full Level 2 or 3 qualification, and all adults are entitled
to free English and maths up to Level 2. Care leavers are a priority group for
financial support through the 16-19 Bursary Fund administered by FE colleges, to
help with the costs of studying and to help support care leavers’ retention in
learning. Following our recent reforms to the Special Educational Needs (SEN)
system, those care leavers with SEN and Disabilities who need longer to complete
and consolidate their education, are now able to maintain their Education, Health
and Care Plans until the age of 25 where needed, so that they get the support that
they need to achieve their education and training outcomes.

Public Contracts Regulations, 2015

32
Page 170

3.29

The Department for Business, Innovation & Skills (BIS) is funding the Learning &
Work Institute (LWI) to deliver a programme of work to support care leavers’
access to, and achievement in FE, employment and apprenticeships. This
will include:

•

The development of an existing BIS guide for care leavers into an interactive
resource which provides care leavers and their Personal Advisers with essential
information about: what courses are available and their progression routes;
sources of advice and support (including financial support); and case studies, all of
which would support pathway planning for care leavers;

•

Working with employers and others to identify effective approaches to enable care
leavers to gain experience of the workplace and progress towards
employment/apprenticeships, possibly through traineeship opportunities. The
outputs will include case studies and a resource for employers;

•

Promoting and sharing examples of best practice in engaging and supporting care
leavers to succeed in FE.

3.30

We know that many care leavers’ lives begin to become more settled when they
reach their late teens and early twenties and it is only at this point that they feel
ready to return to education. To support care leavers up to age 21 who wish to
catch up on the education they may have missed out on when they were younger,
Income Support/Universal Credit is available to care leavers who take up full time
study in non-advanced education (i.e. secondary level education). Because
Universal Credit work related requirements are tailored based on individual
characteristics, care leavers who take up full time study will not have requirements
applied.

“It's really important to give Care Leavers a chance to go to university when they are a bit
older. When we first leave Care, just sorting out our life is the first priority - finding a
home, a job, learning to function independently, finding friends, building a community,
perhaps marriage and/or having kids-- all those things tend to come first when you don't
have 'roots'. For many of us it's important to get these essentials sorted first, and then we
can think about furthering our education.” Care Leaver
3.31

The data we collect does not currently tell us how many care leavers have taken
advantage of this opportunity; or allow us to evaluate the impact of this provision,
but we are committed to continuing to work with DWP to provide this evidence.
DWP is willing to explore what more can be done in the benefits system to support
those wishing to return to education beyond age 21 and up to age 25.

33
Page 171

Higher Education
3.32

The government is committed to widening access to higher education (HE) for
students from disadvantaged backgrounds, including care leavers. A key driver
for widening participation is through ‘access agreements’ that are agreed by the
independent Director for Fair Access (DfA). The DfA has agreed 183 access
agreements for 2016/17, which include plans for universities to spend more
than £745 million on measures to improve access for students from
disadvantaged backgrounds. Support for care leavers in access agreements
has grown considerably over the years, with around 80% of access agreements
including specific action on supporting care leavers.

3.33

The Higher Education Statistics Agency (HESA) has included a Care Leaver
identifier as part of the HESA student record, which will support better
analysis, research and evaluation for care leavers. This will also enable more
robust monitoring of sector performance in supporting care leavers, including
through access agreements. The government has also funded a National
Network for the Education of Care Leavers, which provides HE activities and
resources for care leavers, children in care and the people who support them,
which can be accessed at: http://nnecl.org/about/background.

Employment
3.34

Care Leavers will often need extra help to find work. Jobcentre Plus has
introduced a ‘marker’ that allows care leavers to be identified on their system and
receive additional help. We want to ensure that as many care leavers as possible
benefit from the support that is available, and we will continue to work with
DWP to explore the potential for better sharing of data, both between DfE
and DWP analysts to support better tracking of care leavers’ long-term
outcomes; and between local authorities and local Jobcentre Plus offices, to
support better joint working.

3.35

The benefits of that improved joint working at a local level is evident in the
arrangements in Barnet, known as ‘The Barnet Hub Model’, where, funded by the
Jobcentre Plus Flexible Support Fund, a Jobcentre Plus Work Coach is co-located
in the local authority leaving care team, along with a care leaver charity called
Drive Forward, who deliver an intensive, 1-2-1 employability programme. This
model, which began in late 2014, has already helped over 70 care leavers into
work. DWP has run a number of events to raise awareness of this model across
the Jobcentre Plus network.

34
Page 172

Barnet Care Leaver Hub Case Study
Kemi was placed in care at age 14. When she left college at age 18, staff at the Barnet
Care Leaver Hub supported Kemi in finding full time work.
“Upon graduating from college at age 18, I met Patricia, my Jobcentre Plus work coach at
the Barnet Care Leaver Hub. Patricia was a breath of fresh air, nice, calm and
welcoming to my situation. I felt I could talk and engage with her and in doing so I saw
my confidence grow. Patricia introduced me to Sam from the Drive Forward team and
together they helped me work on my CV. They became a driving force in making me
proactive with my job searches and with their help and support I am now working full
time.
I can only say ‘thank you both’ for making all this possible, your interaction and
commitment at the Hub not only makes me a success but is commendable. The support
Patricia has given me goes far beyond anything I have received before; she’d call to
check how work is going, advising me on financial matters and reminding me that rent
has to be paid as always. Thank you Patricia and Sam.”
3.36

To support all young people aged 18 to 21 who are unemployed, the Youth
Obligation will be introduced from April 2017. This will mean that:

•

From ‘Day 1’ of their claim, 18 to 21year-olds will participate in a three-week
Intensive Activity Period of support, learning job-search and interview techniques;
and structured work preparation. They will be encouraged to apply for an
apprenticeship, or take up work experience opportunities, sector-based work
academy placements and other work-related training;

•

If they are still claiming benefit after six months, and are not in work, on an
apprenticeship or participating in work-related training, they will be required to go
on a mandatory work placement to give them the skills they need to get on in
work;

•

Tailored, flexible support will be provided to those in work, but who need to
increase their earnings.

3.37

Recognising that there will be some care leavers who need to address complex
barriers in order to achieve sustainable employment and transform their life
chances, Universal Credit is complemented by Universal Support. Universal
Support is there to help people make and maintain their Universal Credit claim,
and will assist people with their financial and digital capability throughout the life of
their claim. Through Universal Support, DWP is transforming the way job centres
work as part of their local communities to ensure they more effectively tackle the
35
Page 173

barriers faced by harder to help people and get them into sustainable employment.
DWP are considering how best to broaden this approach to help claimants with
multiple, complex barriers into sustainable employment.
3.38

DWP introduced the Youth Engagement Fund (YEF) in April 2015, to deliver
support to young people aged 14-17 years for up to three years. Two out of the
four YEF projects target support on young people who are in care or on the edge
of care. The aim is to enable young people to succeed in education or training,
improving their employability and reducing their longer-term dependency on
benefits as well as their likelihood of offending.

3.39

The new care leaver covenant will provide a way of expanding employment
opportunities for young people leaving care. We know that many local authorities
already offer opportunities for care leavers when they are recruiting to traineeships
and apprenticeships. We would encourage all local authorities to do so. We also
acknowledge that government departments and their agencies could play a
greater role in offering work experience, traineeships, apprenticeships and jobs to
care leavers and we will consider and discuss with stakeholders how best to
ensure that this happens in practice.

Outcome 3: Experiencing stability and feeling safe and secure
“Because I am worried about moving out and having to live on my own without a choice
in the matter, people who are not in care get to stay with their parents until they feel
ready to move out and I feel that I am nowhere near ready to leave but I don’t have a
choice in the matter.” Young person in care

A safe and stable place to live
3.40

Local authority Children’s Services are responsible for accommodating 16 and 17
year-old care leavers. Statutory guidance 26 states that this accommodation must
be safe, secure and affordable; and the guidance was updated in 2015 to make
clear that ‘Bed & Breakfast’ (B&B) accommodation should only be used in
exceptional circumstances and for no more than two working days. Ofsted reports
that the use of B&B is rare in nearly all local authorities that it has inspected.

3.41

The majority of young people remain in care until 18 and are either in foster care
or residential care. However, for some young people in care and all care leavers
aged 16 or 17 who do not return home to their family, they are normally housed in

26

The Children Act 1989 guidance and regulations Volume 3: planning transition to adulthood for care
leavers

36
Page 174

a range of different types of accommodation settings, including: supported
lodgings, semi-independent accommodation, foyers, supported housing and
hostels. Much of this provision is good quality and provides the sort of steppingstone provision, with support, that care leavers need to transition successfully to
independent living.
3.42

However, during our consultations with care leavers, we also heard examples of
poor quality alternative accommodation, some of which had placed care leavers at
risk of exploitation, or had led to deterioration in their emotional health and wellbeing; or to them experiencing problems with drugs or alcohol. It is vitally
important, therefore, that local authorities commission accommodation services in
ways that ensure that providers are equipped to respond to young peoples’
complex needs and operate in accordance with local safeguarding arrangements.

3.43

When care leavers turn 18, Children’s Services are normally no longer legally
responsible for accommodating them unless they are in a Staying Put
arrangement (see below). However, there remains a key role for local authority
leaving care teams to continue to work closely with Housing Services colleagues
to ensure that 16 and 17 year-old care leavers remain in suitable accommodation
when they turn 18, using the sort of options listed above; or, if they are ready, to
help them to secure and maintain an independent tenancy. Helping care leavers
to understand the options available in their local housing market and to prepare for
the challenges of maintaining their own home are a key part of the pathway
planning process.

Staying Put
3.44

For those who leave care at age 18 from foster care, the option now exists for
them to move into a ‘Staying Put’ arrangement where both they and their carer
want to continue living together. Staying Put provides the sort of gradual transition
to adulthood that is enjoyed by the majority of young people in the general
population. It provides continuity of a supportive relationship and care
arrangements and we want to maximise the number of eligible care leavers who
do Stay Put.

3.45

In the first year following the introduction of the duty on local authorities to support
Staying Put arrangements, nearly half (48%) of eligible care leavers were living
with their former foster carer 3 months after their 18th birthday 27. We will

Statistics about the care leaver cohort taken from the Department for Education’s Statistical First
Release for children looked-after in England (including adoption) 2014-15
27

37
Page 175

continue to provide funding to local authorities to implement Staying Put
over the life of this Parliament, using the £22m provided in 2016/17 as the
baseline. We also want to review the implementation of Staying Put and will work
with the sector to iron out any implementation issues that the review identifies.

Staying Close
3.46

As highlighted in section 2, in response to Sir Martin Narey’s recommendation in
his recent report on children’s residential care in England 28, we are making a
commitment to introduce Staying Close for young people leaving residential
care. Staying Close – similar to the Staying Put arrangements which exist for
children in foster care – will enable young people to live independently, in a
location close to their children’s home with ongoing support from that home. As Sir
Martin recommends we are going to pilot variations of the scheme first, through
opening a specific stream of the Innovation Programme, in order to understand the
costings, practicalities and impact.

Preventing homelessness
3.47

During the year ending March 2015, our data show that over 90% of care leavers
for whom information was provided were in suitable accommodation. Less than
1% were recorded as being in Bed & Breakfast accommodation. Around 4% were
in custody and 1% were recorded as having no fixed abode or were homeless 29.
Where care leavers over 18 are homeless, in recognition of their vulnerability they
are given automatic priority need within the homelessness legislation until age 22.
Care leavers above the age of 21 who are vulnerable as a result of having been
looked after also have a priority need. Care leavers are also a priority group within
statutory guidance on the allocation of ‘social housing’.

3.48

Whilst the legislation provides a crucial safety net, our priority is to stop
homelessness happening in the first place. Government is investing over £500
million more over this Parliament to prevent and tackle homelessness. Local
housing authorities are required to produce a strategy setting out how they will
prevent and tackle homelessness in their area. As part of this process, they
should work with Children’s Services to consider the needs of care leavers who
may be homeless or at risk of homelessness.

Residential care in England, Report of Sir Martin Narey’s independent review of children’s residential
care, Sir Martin Narey, 2016
29
Statistics about the care leaver cohort taken from the Department for Education’s Statistical First
Release for children looked-after in England (including adoption) 2014-15
28

38
Page 176

3.49

This focus on prevention fits well with the approach that has been promoted in the
‘Supported Accommodation Framework’ 30 for care leavers developed by
Barnardo’s and St Basils, with funding from DCLG. We have been working with
local authorities to bring Children’s and Housing Services together to focus on
solutions to the housing problems that care leavers experience, using the
Framework to guide that work; and DCLG has committed funding to continue
to support English local authorities to implement the Framework in 2016/17.
NB: Issues related to the affordability of housing are covered in a later
section on achieving financial stability.

Keeping care leavers safe from harm
3.50

A combination of care leavers’ previous experiences and their current
circumstances can put them at greater risk of exploitation. The Home Office (HO)
is leading work to help prevent children and young people from being recruited
into gangs, being sexually exploited and/or abusing drugs or alcohol.

3.51

The exploitation of vulnerable young people and adults is often a feature of urban
street gangs. Children in care and care leavers are at higher risk of being
groomed and/or coerced into moving or selling drugs around the country (known
as ‘county lines’). It is important that those looking after vulnerable young people
understand about ‘county lines’, how to recognise it and how to prevent and
protect young people from being targeted and exploited by gangs.

3.52

The Home Office’s approach to Ending Gang Violence and Exploitation was
published on 13 January 2016 31 and sets out the six key priorities for tackling this
issue: tackling county lines; protecting vulnerable locations; reducing violence and
knife crime; safe-guarding gang-associated women and girls; promoting early
intervention; and promoting meaningful alternatives to gangs. The Home Office
will work with DfE and DCLG to identify what more can be done to highlight the
risks and tackle this issue locally, including identifying and spreading best practice.

3.53

The number of recorded child sexual abuse offences has increased rapidly over
the last two years. Research regularly finds that children in care and care leavers
are more likely to be victims of sexual abuse/exploitation. For example, based on
submissions provided, the Office of the Children’s Commissioner for England’s
enquiry into sexual exploitation in gangs and groups found that 21% of identified
victims were in the care system. And we know from local intelligence that

30
31

Care Leavers Accomodation And Support Framework, Barnardo’s, 2015
Ending Gang Violence and Exploitation, Home Office, 2016

39
Page 177

children’s homes are being targeted by perpetrators of child sexual exploitation.
We know from speaking to local practitioners and victims that a person does not
stop being vulnerable as soon as they turn 18. It is important that young people
have access to support when leaving care.
3.54

•

We have prioritised child sexual abuse as a national threat in the Strategic Policing
Requirement 33, setting a clear expectation that forces should safeguard children,
share intelligence and best practice and collaborate across force boundaries.

•

We have delivered additional funding of £10 million in 2015-16 for further specialist
teams in the National Crime Agency to tackle online child sexual exploitation,
enabling a near doubling of their investigative capability.

•

We have delivered a £7 million uplift in funding in 2015-16 for non statutory
organisations which support victims and survivors of sexual abuse and confirmed
continuation of this £7m fund in 2016-17.

•

We have launched a new national whistle-blowing helpline, operated by the
NSPCC, for any employee who wants to raise a concern about how their
organisation is dealing with a concern about a child. This offers a new, additional,
confidential route and will help shine a light on problems and help authorities to
spot patterns of failure in order to address them quickly.

•

We have piloted joint official health, police and education inspections in a series of
six inspections which will be completed by July. This series of inspections will
focus on the quality of frontline practice in dealing with child sexual exploitation.

3.55

32
33

The Home Secretary launched the report ‘Tackling Child Sexual Exploitation’ in
March 2015 32. This report sets out a national response to the failures seen in
Rotherham, Manchester, Oxford and elsewhere, where children were let down by
the very people who were responsible for protecting them. The Government has
made significant progress since the report was launched:

The Home Office will continue to work closely with the DfE to ensure robust
measures are in place to tackle child sexual exploitation including victimisation of
children leaving care.

Tackling Child Sexual Exploitation, Home Office, 2015
Strategic Policing Requirement, updated 2015

40
Page 178

Supporting care leavers in the criminal justice system
3.56

We know that both children in care and care leavers are over-represented in the
criminal justice system. The Prison Reform Trust’s inquiry 34, led by Lord Laming,
has examined why that is the case, including whether they are more likely to be
criminalised for relatively minor incidents of criminal damage or aggressive
behaviour that would not normally result in police involvement if they occurred in a
family home. We have welcomed the Prison Reform Trust’s interest in this
issue and will consider the findings from Lord Laming’s inquiry alongside
the recent report from Sir Martin Narey on residential care for looked-after
children, and the forthcoming report by Charlie Taylor on the youth justice
system.

3.57

The Ministry of Justice is reforming the prison system so that offenders, including
care leavers, can get the skills and qualifications they need to make a success of
life on the outside. Central to the reforms is giving prison governors greater
autonomy. Governors will have a greater role in determining rehabilitation
services, providing the opportunity to innovate and tailor education and training
approaches to the needs of offenders.

3.58

In September 2015, the Secretary of State for Justice announced that Charlie
Taylor would be conducting a review of the youth justice system 35. The review is
examining how children who offend are rehabilitated in the community and in
custody, and whether the system remains fit for the challenges posed by today’s
young offenders. An interim report was published in February setting out
emerging proposals for secure schools for young offenders remanded or
sentenced to custody, and an ambition for a more devolved youth justice system.

3.59

In 2013, the Ministry of Justice (MoJ) appointed a National Offender Management
Service (NOMS) Care Leaver Champion – Teresa Clarke, Governor of Swinfen
Hall Youth Offending Institute – and has built on this by putting in place a network
of regional leads for custodial and probation services.

3.60

MoJ has also established a National Care Leavers’ Forum within NOMS, bringing
together key stakeholders to co-ordinate efforts to support care leavers in prison
and probation. The forum has agreed five priority areas upon which its work will
focus; identification, recording, entitlements, support and wider awareness. The
Forum’s efforts have resulted in new data fields being added to prison and
probation systems to enable recording of care leaver status. To ensure care

34
35

In Care, Out of Trouble, an independent review Chaired by Lord Laming
Written Statement to Parliament, Youth Justice, September 2015

41
Page 179

leavers receive the support they need, regional training events are being
held to raise awareness of care leavers’ unique status and their entitlements
among prison and probation staff.
3.61

The NOMS care leaver forum provides a way of developing better joint working
arrangements between local authorities, prisons and probation services. Local
authorities are required to continue supporting care leavers while they are in
prison and should visit them to see how they are getting on and to update their
pathway plan. This has not always happened consistently. Last year we revised
guidance to local authorities to make clear that those in custody who were
pursuing a course of education should continue to be entitled to Personal Adviser
support, up until age 25.

3.62

The Forum will continue to explore ways of improving communication
channels, so that local authorities are updated if a care leaver is moved to a
different prison; and are notified in advance when a care leaver is released
from prison, so that they have time to put a package of support in place
when they return, including a place to live. The Forum will also explore how
best to integrate pathway and sentencing plans so that they are coherent and so
that Personal Advisers can work together with those in prison and probation
responsible for the young person’s progress.

3.63

As part of its commitment to better support the care leavers it looks after,
NOMS will through the Forum pursue avenues for enabling direct work with
care leavers in prisons which supports them to develop strategies that will
help them to succeed when they leave prison or probation services.

Supporting refugee and other foreign national care leavers
3.64

Unaccompanied children arriving in the UK are immediately transferred into the
care of a local authority. The crisis in Syria and events in the Middle East have
seen an unprecedented number of migrants and asylum seekers arriving in
Europe. Some have gone on to reach the UK via northern France, including many
who are Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC).

3.65

Local authorities are therefore looking after increasing numbers of UASC and
supporting more care leavers who are former UASC. There were 3,206 asylum
claims from UASC in the year ending March 2016, a 57% increase on the year
ending March 2015 36.

36

Home Office Immigration Statistics, January to March 2016, Asylum Data, Volume 3

42
Page 180

3.66

This increase has placed pressure on some local authorities with high numbers of
UASC in their care. That is why we are introducing a national transfer scheme,
underpinned by powers in the Immigration Act 2016. From 1 July 2016, the
Home Office has also significantly increased the funding local authorities
will receive for caring for UASC and for supporting former UASC.

3.67

Most UASC are granted refugee status, humanitarian protection or some other
form of leave to remain in the UK (73% of initial decisions in the year ending
March 2016) 37. Effective pathway planning for UASC should take into account the
child’s immigration status, support timely engagement with the Home Office to
resolve any outstanding immigration issues, and look ahead to their long-term
future in the UK or to the possibility that they will be expected to make plans to
leave the UK and resume life in their home country if they have no lawful basis to
remain here.

3.68

For those former UASC care leavers whom the courts agree do not need our
protection, and who have no lawful basis to remain in the UK, the Immigration Act
2016 38 makes alternative provision for any accommodation, subsistence or other
social care support the local authority considers they need prior to their departure
from the UK. This could include, for example, support from a Personal Adviser.
The DfE and the Home Office will be working together with local authorities and
relevant non-governmental organisations on the development of the regulations
and guidance required to implement these new support arrangements. DfE will
consult on revised guidance for local authorities on the care of
unaccompanied and trafficked children, later this year.

Outcome 4: Improved Access to Health Support
“There should be more services to talk to when you just need help with your experiences
– not necessarily CAMHS.” Care Leaver.

Mental Health
3.69

37
38

At our consultation events, care leavers reported a range of situations where they
had experienced poor emotional health and well-being, but failed to get the
support that they needed. For most, this was linked to feeling lonely and isolated,
causing them to feel depressed, anxious or to have a lack of confidence. But
some care leavers reported more serious cases of committing self-harm, suicidal
thoughts or more serious personality disorders. Older care leavers reported

Home Office Immigration Statistics, January to March 2016, Asylum Data, Volume 3
Immigration Act 2016

43
Page 181

particular problems accessing adult services, due to the higher thresholds
involved.
3.70

We recognise that making the transition from being in care to living independently
at a young age can be particularly challenging for care leavers who are receiving
support to improve their emotional health and well-being, as it often coincides with
a transition from CAMHS to adult mental health services.

3.71

The government set out its plans to improve our children and young people’s
mental health and wellbeing in the 2015 report Future in mind – promoting,
protecting and improving our children and young people’s mental health and
wellbeing 39. The report sets out that significant improvements can be achieved
through better working between the NHS, local authorities, voluntary and
community services, schools and other local services. It also makes it clear that
many of these changes can be achieved by working differently, rather than
needing significant investment.

3.72

The Government is committed to implementing the vision set out in Future
in mind, and is making available an additional £1.4 billion over the lifetime of
this Parliament to support improvements to Child and Adolescent Mental
Health services. In October 2015, local areas in England were required to submit
Local Transformation Plans (LTPs) for child and adolescent mental health, setting
out how they will improve the emotional health and well-being of children and
young people in their area, and support those with mental health problems, across
the whole care pathway.

3.73

An Expert Group has been set up to produce care pathways, quality standards
and models of care for looked after children and care leavers with mental health
problems. This will consider the best way of improving outcomes for care leavers
based on the evidence available. Guidance will be produced for professionals
working with care leavers and for commissioners responsible for their care.
The first meeting of the Expert Working Group, which will work with NHS England,
Health Education England, and sector partners, will take place in July 2016. The
Group will draw up care pathways and a quality standard and will consider the
most appropriate models of care for these groups. Their work is expected to take
approximately 18 months.

3.74

Transition to adult mental health services is something that the Expert Working
Group will be considering. We are aware that some areas are already

Future in mind - promoting, protecting and improving our children and young people's mental health and
wellbeing, Department of Health, 2015
39

44
Page 182

reconfiguring their services. In Sheffield for example, a community psychiatric
nurse is available to care leavers for consultation within the care leaver team to
help them gain access to adult mental health if this is needed, as well as providing
one-to-one support. And in Birmingham, services are being provided for children
and young people with mental health problems up to the age of 25, to ensure
continuity of care and to prevent people having to transfer to adult services
automatically at the age of 18. The government encourages innovative local
approaches to handling transitions. Whilst it has not mandated a ‘one size fits all’
approach, we are clear that the principles of good transition planning should be
applied: built around the individual, commencing in good time and with strong
inter-agency engagement.
3.75

The new Mental Health Services Data Set will collect a comprehensive range
of data about children and young people’s access to, and outcomes from,
mental health services, including for children who are looked-after. These
data will help inform future delivery of services to this vulnerable group of children
and young people. In addition, we have asked the new Expert Working Group for
looked after children to explore improving the use of information on outcomes for
looked after children.

Wider health issues
3.76

Statutory guidance on Promoting the health and well-being of looked after
children 40 requires local authorities, Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS
England to ensure that there are effective plans in place to enable looked-after
children aged 16 or 17 to make a smooth transition to adulthood. The statutory
guidance on Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and Joint Health and Wellbeing
Strategies 41 also require health and wellbeing boards to consider the needs of
vulnerable groups (such as care leavers) in planning local services.

3.77

Since 2013, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) has been inspecting local health
service arrangements for promoting the health and wellbeing of looked after
children and care leavers. It will publish an overview report of the first 50
inspections shortly. CQC, Ofsted and the other inspectorates also
commenced joint targeted area inspections later this year.

3.78

A third of young people leaving care report problems with drugs or alcohol a year
later; indeed, young women leaving care are particularly susceptible to

Statutory Guidance on Promoting the Health and Well-being of Looked-after Children, 2015
Statutory Guidance on Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies,
2013
40
41

45
Page 183

problematic substance use. Any young person who is at increased risk of
substance misuse, including those who are leaving care, should be provided with
targeted prevention support, which focuses on reducing risks and strengthening
resilience. Clear referral pathways into specialist substance misuse services
should be in place for those young people who are assessed as requiring
structured drug and alcohol interventions. Young people’s specialist substance
misuse services are available in every local authority, commissioned by local
public health teams.
3.79

A quarter of young women leaving care are pregnant, and nearly half become
pregnant within 18 to 24 months. To support all young mothers better, the number
of health visitors has increased by almost 50% since May 2010. Health visitors
deliver the Healthy Child Programme (HCP), a universal service for all families.
As part of the HCP, health visitors will identify where families need additional
support, and the HCP states clearly that one of the risk factors for experiencing
additional problems is where one or both parents grew up in care.

3.80

For disadvantaged teenage mothers, the Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) 42 offers
an evidence-based, intense programme of supportive visits. The FNP supports
many teenage mothers who have a care background. In October 2015, robust new
evidence was published on the FNP programme’s effectiveness at improving short
term outcomes in England. The FNP National Unit is using this evidence to adapt
and strengthen the programme so that it provides more flexibility, supporting
nurses to tailor the intervention to client needs, in order to help local authorities to
develop a service that meets the particular requirements of vulnerable families in
their local area.

Outcome 5: Achieving Financial Stability
“It’s hard for someone (coming out of care) to live on their own, pay bills etc. Someone’s
not going to say ‘here’s a tenner – I know you’re in arrears with your electricity.” Care
Leaver
3.81

42

Most care leavers who spoke to us talked about the problems they had making
ends meet. Paying rent, Council Tax, household bills and transport costs meant
that many care leavers had difficulty managing their finances and they had often
experienced debt and arrears.

Family Nurse Partnership, 2015

46
Page 184

Financial Support
3.82

During the last Parliament, the Government introduced Junior ISAs (JISAs) for all
children who are looked after for more than 12 months. JISAs are long term
saving accounts which can be accessed by the account holder on their 18th
birthday. At this point the account will mature into a standard (adult) ISA.
Currently over 75,000 accounts have been opened.

3.83

Local authorities provide a range of financial support for care leavers. While they
are 16 or 17, the local authority is responsible for all of the costs of
accommodating them; and provides them with allowances to meet their day to day
needs as they are generally not entitled to claim benefits. At the point at which
they leave care, care leavers receive a ‘leaving care grant’ that helps them to
furnish their first property. DfE recommends that this should be at least £2,000
and the vast majority of local authorities pay at least that amount. Where care
leavers are in further education, they are a priority group for receipt of the 16-19
bursary of up to £1,200 a year; and if they go to University, the local authority is
responsible for providing them with an HE bursary of £2,000.

3.84

Local authorities also support care leavers financially in lots of different ways.
Earlier in this document we provided an example of a local authority – North
Somerset – that does not require its care leavers to pay Council Tax until they
reach age 22. Many local authorities provide care leavers with free travel passes
if they are in education, employment or training. Others provide free access to all
of the local authorities’ leisure centres. And others still provide care leavers with
help to buy clothes for interviews or with the costs of driving lessons where this will
help their chances of finding work. We want all local authorities to be thinking
creatively about how they can support care leavers in ways that reasonable
parents would; and to set this out clearly in their local offers.

Housing Costs
3.85

Care leavers up to the age of 22 who rent privately, are currently exempt from a
lower rate of Housing Benefit (known as the shared accommodation rate) which is
usually applied to single people aged under 35. Instead, they are able to claim the
higher one bedroom rate for self-contained accommodation, rather than the rate
for a shared house or flat. Once they reach the age of 22 however, they are
entitled to the shared accommodation rate unless one of the other exemptions
applies. This could mean that some care leavers at age 22 may need to consider
moving to a cheaper property, at a time in their lives when many of them are
experiencing stability for the first time since leaving care. DWP and DfE will work
together to explore if there is any benefit to care leavers from extending the
exemption to the ‘shared accommodation rate’ to age 25, recognising that many
young people in the general population are able to enjoy the stability of living in
47
Page 185

the parental home until that age. We will also look at possible ways to collect the
relevant data relating to the impact and cost of such a change.
3.86

The government plans to introduce changes in April 2017 that will remove
automatic entitlement to housing support in Universal Credit in certain
circumstances. This will only apply to those making new UC claims; who are out
of work, and aged 18 to 21. This is intended to ensure that resources are targeted
at those who are most in need, with an expectation that those who can should
continue to live at home. This ensures young people on benefits face the same
choices as those in work and unable to afford to leave the parental home. The
option to remain living in the family home clearly does not apply to care
leavers and we have therefore decided that care leavers will be exempt from
these changes.

3.87

The government intends to introduce Local Housing Allowance caps, already an
established feature in the private rented sector, into the social rented sector. The
changes will take effect in April 2018 and will apply to new tenancies signed from
April 2016 onwards (or April 2017 onwards in the case of supported housing).

3.88

The supported housing sector, most of which is part of the social rented sector,
provides valuable support to some of our country’s most vulnerable people,
including care leavers. It helps them to lead independent lives or turn their lives
around and is an investment which brings savings to other parts of the public
sector – such as health and social care. The government has been clear that the
most vulnerable will be protected and supported through welfare reforms.

3.89

We understand the concerns about the potential implications of the Local Housing
Allowance cap; however, there is a need for more robust evidence about the
sector, and so a joint evidence review by DWP and DCLG is underway.
Alongside this review, which is due to report shortly, we will continue to
work with and listen to the supported housing sector in order to develop a
long-term sustainable funding regime.

3.90

We need to deliver a system that provides appropriate protections both for those
living in this type of accommodation and those who provide it, whilst also making
sure that the taxpayer is protected, the government’s fiscal commitments are met
and that we deliver value for money.

Advice and guidance
3.91

As part of care leavers’ preparation for independence, it is important that Personal
Advisers make those in receipt of benefits aware of what they need to do to
continue to receive them. There are also many examples of effective local
protocols between local authority leaving care teams and local Jobcentre Plus
offices, which can help care leavers to understand the conditions around receipt of
48
Page 186

benefits and ultimately remove the need to impose a sanction and ensure that
they retain entitlement to benefit (including elements intended to meet their
housing costs). Care leavers aged 18 or over who receive a sanction may qualify
for a hardship payment. They should apply via Jobcentre Plus as soon as they
receive their first reduced benefit payment.
3.92

Many care leavers will not be able to access advice about their personal finances
from parents or family members in the same way that other young people can. It
is therefore crucial that Personal Advisers are able to give them good quality
information about managing their money, from budgeting to paying bills on time.
Through our review of the Personal Adviser role we will consider how we can best
ensure that Personal Advisers are equipped to carry out this role.

49
Page 187

4. DRIVING SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT
Promoting and Sharing Best Practice
4.1

We recognise the need to ensure that decision makers and front line practitioners
working with care leavers understand what works – and what doesn’t work – and
use that knowledge to improve practice.

4.2

In the medium-term, we are establishing a new What Works Centre (WWC) for
children’s social care. It will be an authoritative source of evidence-based advice
on what works. Like NICE, it will be able to say clearly which approaches are
proven to be effective and should be used. The WWC will support wider reforms
for the social work workforce, complementing and strengthening those reforms, in
order to create an effective practice environment. We expect the WWC to play a
role in harvesting and disseminating the learning from a wide range of
interventions.

4.3

Before then, we will publish the evaluations of the projects funded from phase 1 of
the Innovation Programme that relate to care leavers. We will also shortly be
publishing the independent evaluation of the New Belongings project that was
commissioned by DfE.

4.4

The DfE will continue to work with local authority delivery partners – primarily
through the National Leaving Care Benchmarking Forum – to understand what
new challenges local authorities are facing and to work with them to decide how
best to address them.

4.5

In December 2015, the Prime Minister announced the Partners in Practice (PiP)
initiative that will model excellence and innovation in the delivery of children’s
social care services. The aim is to foster deeper partnerships between the
national and local government and to enable and support long-term improvement;
the PiPs will be exploring greater freedoms in how they design and deliver their
services; provide evidence about new structural models and innovations; and
model best practice, share learning and support the wider sector.

Supporting and Challenging Local Authorities
4.6

It is important that central government, local authorities and children and young
people know how well the care system is working, to share best practice and
make improvements when needed. We know a lot about the characteristics of the
looked after population but the data does not always give the information we need
about the impact of the care system on children and young people, or the
outcomes they achieve. To do this, we will focus on measuring the progress
50
Page 188

made by children in care and care leavers, as well as continuing to understand
their needs and characteristics.

Intervening in failure
4.7

We are strengthening our approach to intervening in councils where they fail to
provide adequate services for children in need of help and protection, children in
care, or care leavers:
•

Wherever Ofsted find children’s services to be inadequate, we will provide expert
scrutiny to diagnose problems and support the council to produce an effective
improvement plan within three months.

•

We would expect most of those councils to improve with support and challenge
from experts, but councils’ progress towards improvement will be reviewed every
six months.

•

If these reviews find that insufficient progress has been made, we will appoint a
children’s services commissioner to review whether services should be removed
from council control.

•

We will also immediately appoint a commissioner wherever council failure is
persistent or systemic, with a presumption that the service will be placed outside
of the council’s control, unless the commissioner identifies good reasons not to do
so.

•

Where a commissioner concludes that the council does not have the capacity or
capability to make the required improvements, we will take action so children’s
services are removed from council control.

51
Page 189

5. HOW WE WILL MEASURE PROGRESS
Outcome Data
5.1

DfE will continue to publish care leaver outcome data annually, through a
statistical first release, based on data provided by local authorities. For the year
ending March 2016, as well as data on 19-21 year-olds, we will also be publishing
data for 17 and 18 year-old care leavers. While this data collection provides
valuable information, DfE recognises that data collected by other Departments or
providers offer the potential to gain a fuller understanding of the outcomes
achieved by care leavers. A one-off data sharing agreement is in place with the
Ministry of Justice to link pupil level data to prison, probation and police data. We
expect the data match to be achieved in 2016. Conditional on the quality of the
match and the benefits of the data share, we will consider if a more regular
sharing of data would be justified.

5.2

A separate agreement is in place with Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs, the
DWP and BIS to explore the link between educational achievement and labour
market outcomes. This will be used to improve the quality of destination
measures. We will also explore the quality of outcome information this data
sharing provides, for specific groups such as care leavers.

Ofsted Judgements
5.3

By the end of 2017, Ofsted will complete inspections in all local authorities under
its inspections of services for children in need of help and protection, children
looked after and care leavers – the single inspection framework. This cycle of
inspections will provide the most detailed baseline assessment of children’s
services to date.

5.4

Between June and September 2016, Ofsted will begin to consult on a new
approach to the inspection of local authority children’s services from 2018. The
consultation will include proposals for a more risk-based and proportionate
programme of inspection. It is expected that this programme will retain a sharp
focus on the experiences and progress of care leavers.

The Voice of the Care Leaver
5.5

There are a number of regular surveys that capture the views and experiences of
children in care and care leavers, including the Office of the Children’s
Commissioner (OCC) ‘State of the Nation’ report and Ofsted’s survey of children in
care. We will review how children and young people’s views change over time as
a way of assessing the impact of the strategy.
52
Page 190

5.6

We also recognise and support the need for care leavers to have a direct say in
shaping and designing the policies that affect them. To this end, the DfE will set
up a national care leaver advisory group, consisting of care leavers aged
between 16 and 25, which it will use to gain insight into the issues that affect
their lives and to inform the future evolution of this strategy and the
development of care leaver policy.

Reviewing Progress
5.7

The Social Justice Cabinet Committee (SJCC) will provide Ministerial oversight of
the strategy. The Minister for Children & Families will produce a progress update
to SJCC each year on the implementation of the strategy, as well as possible
refinements and updates to it, following the release of the care leaver data that
DfE publishes annually in October.

5.8

A senior Whitehall officials’ group (representing the eight government departments
directly contributing to the strategy) will meet twice-yearly to review progress and
set new milestones for the next period. A separate officials group will meet
quarterly to ensure momentum is sustained; and one meeting per year will be an
‘open’ meeting at which care leaver representatives from the advisory group
mentioned above and voluntary sector organisations will be able to ask questions
about progress and next steps.

53
Page 191

© Crown copyright 2016
This publication (not including logos) is licensed under the terms of the Open
Government Licence v3.0 except where otherwise stated. Where we have identified any
third party copyright information you will need to obtain permission from the copyright
holders concerned.
To view this licence:
visit
www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3
email
psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk
write to
Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London, TW9 4DU
About this publication:
enquiries www.education.gov.uk/contactus
download www.gov.uk/government/publications
Reference:

DFE-00165-2016
Follow us on Twitter:
@educationgovuk

Like us on Facebook:
facebook.com/educationgovuk

54
Page 192

Appendix C

Gloucester City Council
Council Tax Discount Scheme for Care Leavers
Background
The Government made recommendations in its care leavers strategy “Keep on Caring” –
appendix B, that local authorities should consider exempting care leavers from council tax,
using their existing discretionary powers under Section 13a of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 (as amended). Many Councils have since introduced discounts for care
leavers
The 6 Gloucestershire Councils (billing authorities) and Gloucestershire County Council have
worked together to agree a common council tax discount scheme for Care Leavers from
April 2019.
Discounts made using this power have to be funded by the billing authority. Gloucestershire
County Council, by agreement, will fund its share of the cost of any Care Leavers discounts
proportionate to its share of the council tax.
Legal Provision
Billing authorities have discretion under Section 13(1)(c) of the Local Government Finance
Act 1992 to reduce the amount of council tax payable for individuals, or for classes of
council tax payer. This includes the power to reduce the amount payable to nil.
This provision is separate to and distinct from the Council Tax support scheme which is
made under Section 13A(1)(a) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992. It allows the
Council to reduce the amount payable after all statutory discounts and exemptions and local
council tax support.
Eligibility Criteria


A care leaver, for the purpose of this policy, is defined as a young person aged 18 –
21 who was formerly a child in the care of Gloucestershire County Council and then
became a ‘Former Relevant Child’ as defined by The Children (Leaving Care) Act
2000. The Care Leaver must be resident and liable for council tax on a property in
the Gloucester City Council area



A Care Leaver must be aged 18-21 years old to qualify for a reduction under the care
leavers discount scheme. A Care Leaver will cease to qualify for the discount form
the date of their 22nd birthday
1

Page 193



The Care Leaver must be the liable person for council tax, either solely or jointly and
severally with other(s), at the dwelling in respect of which the application is made.
The council tax bill must be in their name



When a Care Leaver lives in a HMO or other property where they are not the council
tax payer no discount will be awarded



The Care Leaver discount will apply to occupied properties only



Confirmation that a claimant is a Gloucestershire County Council Former Relevant
Child must be received from Gloucestershire’s 11-25 Permanency Service

Care Leaver Discount
The Care Leaver Discount is effective from 01 April 2019
Care Leavers that meet the eligibility criteria about will be eligible to apply for a
discretionary council tax discount as follows:


Where a property is solely occupied by Care Leaver(s) 100% discount will be awarded



Where a Care Leaver is in occupation and jointly liable with others 50% discount will
be awarded

The Care Leaver discretionary discount will be awarded after statutory discounts,
exemptions, disability discount and local council tax support.
Application Process and Administration
Gloucestershire County Council’s 11-25 Permanency Service will provide information to
confirm the name, address and date of birth of Care Leavers, living in the Gloucester area
who will qualify for the discount.
A Care Leaver discount may also be awarded where the following information is provided
and the Care Leaver status has been verified with Gloucestershire County Council’s 11-25
Permanency Service
An application should provide the following information





Full name
Date of birth
Current address
Details of any other adults in the property and relationship to them
2

Page 194





Details of any circumstances that would be relevant to entitlement to legislative
discounts, disregards or exemptions
Contact details
Name of Leaving Care Worker (if known)

Awards will be made directly by a discount in council tax liability and notification of the
discount being awarded will be by way of the council tax bill.
The Revenues and Benefits Service will undertake periodic reviews appropriate to the
individual circumstances of each case.
The Care Leaver (or his/her appointee or a recognised third party acting on his/her behalf)
must advise Gloucester City Council of any changes which may affect entitlement to the
discount with 21 days of the change occurring.

Any overpaid Care Leaver discount will be reclaimed through the relevant council tax
account and collected and recovered under the Council Tax (Administration and
Enforcement) Regulations 1992.

Review of Decision / Backdating
The Care Leaver discount scheme is administered in accordance with the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 and is subject to a statutory appeals process. If the applicant disagrees
with the decision they must put this in writing giving their reasons. This should normally be
received by Gloucester City Council within a month of the date of the decision, although
more time can be given in exceptional circumstances.
If a decision is challenged a reconsideration will be made by the Head of Policy and
Resources. The applicant will then be notified of the reconsideration, which will clearly
state the reasons for the decision made.
If the applicant remains dissatisfied with the decision, an appeal may be made to the
independent Valuation Tribunal. Further details on this process will be notified to the
applicant with the outcome of any previous review of the decision.
The Council will accept applications backdated to the beginning of the financial year, or to
the date the Care Leaver became responsible for the council tax so long as the date is not
more than 12 months prior to the date of the application. The Care Leaver discount cannot
be awarded prior to 01 April 2019.

3

Page 195

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Meeting:

Cabinet

Date:

6 February 2019

Subject:

Digital Strategy for Gloucester City

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Performance and Resources
Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economy

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Jon McGinty - Managing Director

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: jon.mcginty@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

No
Tel: 396200

1. Marketing Gloucester Ltd’s “Future City of 2050 by 2025”

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To identify a digital strategy for Gloucester City and the Council.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1)
(2)
(3)

Marketing Gloucester Ltd’s vision document (Appendix 1) be welcomed as a
starting point upon which to develop a comprehensive digital strategy for
Gloucester and the Council;
the priorities for a digital strategy for Gloucester, as set out in paragraph 3.9
be agreed; and
Officers are asked to work up a more detailed draft Digital Strategy (including
a supporting action plan), with colleagues from Marketing Gloucester Ltd,
Gloucestershire County Council and elsewhere, for consideration by Cabinet.

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

The UK Government published a national digital strategy in March 2017, setting out
how the country should develop a world-leading digital economy that works for
everyone. It contained seven strands:





Connectivity - building world-class digital infrastructure for the UK
Skills and inclusion - giving everyone access to the digital skills they need
The digital sectors - making the UK the best place to start and grow a digital
business
The wider economy - helping every British business become a digital business
Page 197





Cyberspace - making the UK the safest place in the world to live and work
online
Digital government - maintaining the UK government as a world leader in
serving its citizens online
The data economy - unlocking the power of data in the UK economy and
improving public confidence in its use.

3.2

Shortly after this, Marketing Gloucester Ltd (MGL) drafted an initial vision statement
“Future City of 2050 by 2025: A Digital Strategy for Gloucester” (Appendix 1). This
looked at the place of Gloucester in the context of a fast-changing technological
world, the threats and opportunities that this posed, and set out a vision for
Gloucester to become a digital pathfinder ‘testbed’ for future city technologies and
solutions.

3.3

MGL’s 2017 report identified that Gloucester was already taking steps to position
itself as an innovator and leader in piloting new technologies, including:







In 2015 it was the first city in the UK to implement a 3 in 1 solution with BT, with
CCTV, free WIFI and 4G combined. This innovation won the prestigious Gordon
McLanaghan Security Innovation Award and has since been adopted by Cardiff,
Glasgow, Nottingham, Leicester, Newcastle and others.
Gloucester became the first place in the UK, and the second in the world, to
partner with Google’s Niantic Labs on the FieldTrip™ app, which allows virtual,
location-based tourism information through cell phone, tablet or Google Glass.
Gloucester was the first city to implement the Rewarding Visits technology,
funded through Innovate UK.
Gloucester had both the highest number of, and highest density of, next
generation footfall sensors in the UK in a project run by the Local Data Company
in collaboration with UCL and the Consumer Data Research Centre.
The City had over 250 ibeacons installed.

3.4

Further, the report asserted that Gloucester is ideally suited to testing new
technologies: it is a relatively compact city, with a young but representative
demographic and good digital infrastructure. A Centre for Cities report identified that
the City ranked highly for patent innovation. And there is a significant team of
partners, including the University, local authorities and the private sector, willing to
collaborate with technology developers to trial initiatives here.

3.5

Since MGL’s report, things have moved on in Gloucester and, technologically,
across the globe. 4G is more widely established across the country and 5G
technology testbeds are in place with wider rollout about to commence. Locally, a
Science and Innovation Audit was recently commissioned by BEIS on behalf of the
Gloucestershire/Worcestershire and Swindon/Wiltshire LEPs, focussing on cyber
resilience, and it is likely that future government investment in this area will need to
be linked back to that strategy. The Government has identified Cheltenham (as host
of GCHQ), as the home of the national cyber security centre for the UK. In 2018 it
awarded £22m through the Local Enterprise Partnership to support the
development of a cyber park between Gloucester and Cheltenham, which is
anticipated to create up to 7,000 jobs and 1,200 new homes, as well as attracting
hundreds of millions of pounds for Gloucestershire’s economy. At the same time,
the Local Enterprise Partnership awarded £400,000 to MGL to open up a new
Page 198

national centre for digital retail innovation, which will shortly open on the first floor of
Eastgate Shopping Centre.
3.6

So Gloucester has made an excellent start in establishing itself as a digital leader
and pathfinder city, and is very well positioned to build on this. At the time of writing
this report, the city was listed as 12th on the national digital influence index of towns
and cities (as published by www.wdyt.org.uk), punching well above its weight in
population terms. But there is much more to be done to maintain and grow this good
start, to turn the successful opportunism of the past into a more directed and
purposeful strategy for the future, and to prevent the city from slipping back as other
places seek to catch up and overtake.

3.7

For the City Council, there is a similar story of some good progress to date, but
there remains much more work to be done to become a digital leading council.
Whilst customers are able to conduct some transactions and communications with
the council electronically, in many respects it remains behind the curve compared to
comparator organisations, and many customers are frustrated with how the
council’s digital presence lags behind many other aspects of their everyday lives.
The Council has already committed to significant investment through the Together
Gloucester transformation programme, accelerating the technological infrastructure
of the council and enabling the expansion of online service options for the customer.

3.8

So a strategy that encompasses a digital vision for Gloucester City and the City
Council is needed to bring these aspirations together into plans and reality, and
which becomes the guide that all partners subscribe to and work towards. As well
as a vision, the strategy needs to be supported by clear priorities and detailed
actions (including costings, where known) which will deliver those priorities. And
those actions and priorities will need to accord to the Council’s wider ambitions
around improving people’s health, tourism, transport, heritage, culture, community
safety and regeneration, etc. The City’s strategy should also seek to critically
analyse the impact of its earlier investment noted above, to understand their impact
and how they can be used as foundations for future success.

3.9

Looking at the seven strands of the UK Government’s Digital Strategy as well as the
MGL report, the following are proposed as the five strategic digital priorities for
Gloucester:
1. Developing our infrastructure – making sure that Gloucester maintains the very
best digital infrastructure for technology providers, businesses and residents,
across the whole Council area.
2. Promoting skills, access and inclusion – making sure that no-one in Gloucester
is discriminated against, nor gets left behind the digital revolution, including all
residents and SMEs.
3. Supporting business and economic growth – making Gloucester a great place
to start and grow a digital business.
4. Transforming Council service delivery – becoming a leading modern digital
council.
5. Maximising opportunities for open data – ensuring that council information and
data is freely accessible and used to best effect for the benefit of our residents and
businesses, whilst providing absolute protection of individual private data.

Page 199

4.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

4.1

Not yet quantified.

5.0

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

To not develop a digital strategy for Gloucester City. This is not recommended.

6.0

Reasons for Recommendations

6.1

To develop and deliver a digital strategy for Gloucester will help the Council achieve
its overarching aspiration of ‘A City that works for everyone’. The Strategy will
support the Council’s ambitions to make the City vibrant and prosperous, safe and
attractive, inclusive and resilient and will help the Council deliver great services to
its customers.

7.0

Future Work and Conclusions

7.1

If the recommendations in this report are supported, then Officers will work up a
more detailed draft Digital Strategy (including a supporting action plan), with
colleagues from Marketing Gloucester Ltd, Gloucestershire County Council and
elsewhere, for consideration at a future Cabinet meeting.

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

Not yet quantified.
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

Not yet quantified.
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

10.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

10.1

MGL’s 2017 report contains an initial SWOT analysis for Gloucester. This will need
revisiting as part of the future work.

11.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA) and Safeguarding:

11.1

As this report merely identifies an initial strategic direction, and notes that further
work is required to flesh out the strategy, it is too early to conduct a PIA screening
assessment.

Page 200

12.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

12.1

A digital strategy is needed to show, among other things, how technology is needed
to support the Council’s community safety aims for the City.
Sustainability

12.2

Not yet quantified.
Staffing & Trade Union

12.3

Not yet quantified.

Background Documents:

UK Digital Strategy

Page 201

This page is intentionally left blank

Future City of 2050 by 2025
A Digital Strategy for Gloucester
Version 20170820_1

Page 203

Contents
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Executive Summary
Gloucester background
Threats and opportunities in a changing world
Work to Date
Gloucester as a testbed and pathfinder for future city technologies
Our Digital Priorities
Benefits
SWOT analysis (TBC)
Actions (TBC)

Page 204

1. Executive Summary
With the development on new technologies there have begun massive changes to the way society
and communities are behaving and in the detail of information that is available to businesses, local
and national government.
New technologies are facilitating the building new communities based on interests rather that
geography, but is also highlighting how place itself is becoming more important as globalisation is
leading to a new focus on localism.
As we look towards 2050 it is likely that technology will play ever more important parts in peoples
lives. There is likely to be a huge reduction, if not elimination of physical currency, driverless
vehicles, robotics and the internet of things (IOT) will change the jobs landscape and “Big Data” will
likely change decision making processes for planning, health, security and a whole range of other
activities. The continued rise of internet shopping is highlighting the need for town and city centres
to develop a relationship with the market of one and that there is a need to offer experiential
products for place.
Through its “Future City of 2050 by 2025” programme, the city of Gloucester is positioning itself as a
pathfinder and testbed for future city technologies and solutions, developing models and solutions
that are scalable and replicable elsewhere. It is believed by the authors of this report that if the
programme is fully implemented as envisioned it will generate a huge amount of inward investment,
stimulate economic growth, change the way government, business and community interact,
empower the disadvantaged and vulnerable, promote digital and social inclusion, improve social
cohesion and potentially health.
Work has already been going on in achieving the goal of the city of Gloucester is positioning itself as
a pathfinder and testbed for future city technologies and solutions including:







In 2015 it was the first city in the UK to implement a 3 in 1 solution with BT, with CCTV, free
WIFI and 4G combined, an innovation that was driven by the city council based on
recommendations from Marketing Gloucester. This innovation won the prestigious Gordon
McLanaghan Security Innovation Award and has since been adopted by Cardiff, Glasgow,
Nottingham, Leicester and Newcastle with others to follow.
Gloucester became the first destination outside of the UK and second in the world to
partner with Google’s Niantic Labs on the FieldTrip™ app, which allows virtual, location
based tourism information through cell phone, tablet or Google Glass.
Gloucester is the first city to implement the Rewarding Visits technology funded through
Innovate UK which have invested in projects using the city as a testbed
Gloucester has both the highest number of and highest density of next generation footfall
sensors in the UK in a project run by LDC with UCL
The City has over 250 ibeacons installed with an open SDK available to developers

The city is ideally suited to solution providers test bedding new technologies. It is a relatively
compact city, with a young but representative demographic and a high degree of innovation and
good digital infrastructure. It is a city that confirms with many of the norm baselines and so can
provide an excellent modelling opportunity. Most importantly there is a team of people operating in
the city who have built up a huge group of partners, including the University, private sector, and the
local authority, who are happy to speedily adopt innovative products.

Page 205

The key to the “Future City of 2050 by 2025” programme is to enable innovations to be tested and
replicable scalable models to be developed in Gloucester. It is vital to ensure that the city is at the
forefront of implementing a pervasive full fibre network offering true gigabit speeds and an early
adopter of 5G – ideally being testbeds for full implementation of both of these technologies. This
will ensure that the digital infrastructure is in place to create an environment where technologies
and solutions can be tested and utilised in real world environment and where the economic and
social impacts can be measured.

Page 206

2. Gloucester Background
2.1 Geography
A Cathedral city, district and county town of Gloucestershire in the South West region of England.
Gloucester lies close to the Welsh border, and on the River Severn, approximately 32 miles (51 km)
north-east of Bristol, and 45 miles (72 km) south-southwest of Birmingham. The city is centrally
located between the Cotswolds and The Forest of Dean
2.2 Demographics
Gloucester has a relatively young, growing population, being the ninth fastest growing city in the UK
• The city has a population of 127,100 (Centre for Cities estimates 2015). It is the most populated
conurbation within the county of Gloucestershire and has the highest population density.
• Gloucester will experience the greatest population growth of all county districts, expected to
increase by 20.1% or 23,800 people between 2010 and 2035
• Gloucester is a relatively young city with 25% of the population aged 19 and under (highest in the
South West) and 39% under 30. The city is expected to experience the greatest increase of
Gloucestershire’s districts in the number of children and young people between 2010 and 2035, with
an increase of 16.4%
• It is a diverse city, the black and minority ethnic population (BME) stands at 9.8% with
approximately 100 languages and dialects spoken1
2.3 An innovative city
The City has a history of innovation and is a home to home performance engineering and technology
companies. It hosts the headquarters for the UK’s Nuclear power industry, and is where the UK’s
first working jet plane was developed. Gloucester was the first city in the UK to implement cable
television. Today many local people are employed in companies supplying the aerospace industry
2.4 Economy
• Gloucester is home to world leading advanced engineering companies providing cutting edge
technical products and services e.g. Prima Dental
• Gloucester has a strong finance and insurance cluster including being the location for the HQ of the
specialist insurance company Ecclesiastical Insurance Group

http://www.express.co.uk/news/uk/656054/Barton-Street-Gloucester-Matt-Puttock-Reyaz-Limalia-ZohraPatel
1

Page 207

• The city supports a growing cluster of information security, web hosting, CAD/CAM development,
defence communications and security, ICT infrastructure development and IT content management
businesses
• The creative community has grown rapidly in recent years with the Blackfriars and Westgate Street
areas having established themselves as a hub for creative businesses. The city has also hosted some
cutting edge arts festivals including JOLT, Crucible and Paint Jam, and other festivals including Tall
Ships and Quays events that have driven footfall
• The city has a strong independent retail and leisure sector with over 100 independent city centre
shops and nearly 600 herediments paying into the Gloucester BID (TBC)
• Gloucester attracts 5.9 million visitor trips each year. Annually, visitor spend is £207 million
• To date the city has secured over £700 million of private sector investment, weathering the
economic recession and now building on the recovery
• Gloucester is a leading destination for business by ranking the city 18th out of 74 UK cities for
business Centre for Cities 2014:
• 6th (out of 64 cities) for having the highest number of patents approved (up from 10th in Centre
for Cities report 2013)
• 3rd (out of 64 cities) for having the highest employment rate
• 2nd (out of 63 cities) for the highest housing stock growth. Among the top-placed cities, only five
(Swindon, Milton Keynes, Gloucester, London, Peterborough) have experienced housing
supplygrowth in accordance to their population growth rate
• Gloucester is in the top-ten cities where small businesses are investing in high growth strategies.

Page 208

3. Threats and opportunities in a changing world
BIG Data, new technologies and methodologies mean that the transition to the way cities are used
and the shape of retail in the future will have significant economic and social impact2. There is a
pressing need for innovation, upskilling and entrepreneurship in the retail sector3, and to ensure
that the UK has globally competitive and high performing cities4.
3.1 Digital Inclusion
With the puplic sector, private sector and individuals becoming more reliant on the internet there is
a growing need to ensure that digital inclusion is a priority to ensure social cohesion and a
functioning society.5
Research published by the BBC has found that 21% of Britain’s population lack the basic digital skills
and capabilities required to realise the benefits of the internet. Around a third of small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) don’t have a website, and when we include voluntary, community and social
enterprises (VCSEs) this figure rises to 50%. Independent analysts Booz and Co. estimate full digital
take up could add £63 billion value to the UK economy.6
“Digital participation – helping everyone to get online and maximise the benefits of digital
technology – is arguably one of the great social challenges of our age.
We know the great advantages that being digitally connected can offer – improved employment
opportunities, higher levels of educational attainment, cheaper goods and products and better
access to public services. However, too often those who are excluded from these benefits are the
very same people who are also disadvantaged according to most other social and economic
measures. This means that digital technology – the great enabling force of the 21st century – is
actually exacerbating rather than bridging long-standing inequalities in our society.
It doesn’t have to be this way – and all of us who interested in improving wellbeing have a role in
tackling this issue”. (Quote Douglas White, Head of Advocacy at the Carnegie UK Trust)
3.2 Retail – Clicks to Bricks or Try offline purchase online?
The report British High Streets: from Crisis to Recovery? A Comprehensive Review of the Evidence by
Neil Wrigley & Dionysia Lambiri, University of Southampton says “Town centres and high streets
provided highly visible and graphic evidence of the scale of the economic downturn. The crash in
consumer confidence was followed by an immediate and abrupt increase in vacancies. Vacancy (see
Chapter 2) measured as either a percentage of floorspace in a centre or in terms of the percentage
of empty property units (voids) more than doubled over the five years from 2008 – in the case of
2

https://www2.deloitte.com/content/dam/Deloitte/ie/Documents/ConsumerBusiness/deloitte_ireland_changi
ng_face_retail_2014.pdf
3

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/466694/151008_Retail_SLM
I_ES_edited.pdf
4 http://www.centreforcities.org/press/uk-cities-lag-behind-european-competitors-skills-productivityinnovation/
5 https://www.carnegieuktrust.org.uk/carnegieuktrust/wp-content/uploads/sites/64/2016/09/v3-2697-CUKTDigital-Participation-summary.pdf
6

Page 209

voids rising from 7% in 2008 to a peak of 16.3% in 2012, before trending downwards as the economy
began to recover, falling to 15.1% by October 2013, and again to 13% by April 2014” 7
Gloucester itself suffered some highest number of empty shops in England, according to a study in
2010 commissioned by the BBC's Inside Out West programme from The Local Data Company.
The figures showed a vacancy rate of 21% in the city.8
The same report highlights some areas that have applied pressure to the high street and are likely to
continue to impact on towns and cities as a response to future technologies and social trends
brought about by technological changes:
1. The progressive rise of online shopping – which had increased to more than 10% of UK retail
sales by 2011 and was beginning to have marked substitution and modification effects on
both consumer behaviour and certain types of high street retail After a decade in which
Amazon had risen progressively to become the UK’s eighth largest retailer, and with many
retailers of the view that total online sales would lie in the range 25 to 30% by 2020 – the
shift to the era of the digital high street is deepening and accelerating.
2. Progressive, highly complex, and often underestimated shifts in consumer behaviour and
cultures of consumption towards what has been referred to as ‘convenience culture’ had
been taking place for over a decade. Consumers were seen to be not only rapidly embracing
online shopping, but also re-evaluating the costs versus benefits balance of one-stop out-ofcentre facilities, and increasingly seeking convenience at the local/neighbourhood level. The
latter was particularly the case if businesses could supply either a ‘choice-edited’
neighbourhood version of the range and quality of the out-of-town offer, or alternatively if
they could provide something specialist and/or rooted in the local community.
The H1 2015 Openings and Closures Report by the Local Data Company quotes the following



Independents - Independent shops are in decline as more shops close than open for the
first time since 2012
Multiples - In the first six months of 2015, 2,634 shops closed on Great Britain’s high
streets, a rate of 14 stores a day

Local and national governmental organisations around the world have recognised the challenge and
are attempting to address this with reports such as those produced by Mary Portas and by
establishment of The Future High Streets Forum. Gloucester has been at the forefront of testing
new technologies and methodologies that will measure consumer trends and will soon be home to
the UK Digital Retail Lab
3.3 Economic Impacts of Full Fibre Networks and 5G
In 2007 the OECD published a ministerial report on the effects of broadband on the economy9 this
clearly shows the significance in terms of effects on innovation, inward investment and productivity.
This same report states that impact on productivity could be as much as an increase of 5.8%
3.4 Other Economic impacts of future city technologies

http://www.riben.org.uk/Cluster_publications_&_media/BRITISH%20HIGH%20STREETS_MARCH2015(V2).pdf
http://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-gloucestershire-11925423
9 https://www.oecd.org/sti/ieconomy/40781696.pdf
7
8

Page 210

The UK Digital strategy10 states that if we want to increase our overall prosperity, to enjoy higher
real wages, and if we want more opportunities for young people to get on, we have to raise our
productivity. In a digitally-driven economy, that means ensuring that everyone has the skills they
need to flourish, with nobody left behind.
We need to support everyone to develop the skills they need to participate in the digital economy
and help all businesses harness the productivity benefits of digital innovation. To do this, we will
ensure adults in England who lack core digital skills will not have to pay to access the basic digital
skills training they need, mirroring the approach taken for adult literacy and numeracy training. And,
as jobs and whole industries are disrupted by digital innovation, we need to make sure those
affected have the support they need to adapt. UK government will establish a new Digital Skills
Partnership, working together with partners who are passionate about making a difference and who
share our ambitions to tackle the digital skills gap. The Partnership will play a crucial role in helping
people access digitally-focused jobs at a local level, bringing together technology companies, local
businesses, local government and other organisations to identify digital job vacancies and take
action to help people move into these jobs.
We also need a strong pipeline of specialist skills - from coding to cyber - to support the tech
industry and drive productivity improvements across the economy.
3.4 Safety, Security, Crime and Anti-social Behaviour
Technology can be used to improve safety and security in the physical world and in cyberspace. A
safe and secure cyberspace is an essential requirement for an inclusive, prosperous digital economy.
It will give people the confidence to be part of the digital world, as well as giving the UK a significant
competitive advantage.
In the physical world, digital technologies can be used to aid police and security services – for
example the new footfall sensors that are being rolled out in Gloucester are able to accurately
model crowds historically and in real time and could be used by police to influence decisions about
resource allocation.
3.5 Big Data
The metrics generated by Big Data projects will have real effects on how cities are planned and run,
services provided, investments made and how residents, visitors, public sector, voluntary and
private sector organisations interact and will affect decision making
3.6 Health
Gloucestershire’s health and care community fully supports the EOI for full fibre networks across
Gloucester City. This technology would be significant enabler in supporting the delivery of One
Gloucestershire’s Sustainability and Transformation Plans particularly those focused on helping our
population to live healthier lifestyles and to better manage their health needs. Full Fibre Networks
would support the greater use of new smart technologies such as wearables, electronic medical
devices and other assistive technologies supporting people in their homes. In addition greater
connectivity would allow GP practices to collaborate further and give greater resilience across our
health system.

10

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-digital-strategy/uk-digital-strategy

Page 211

Page 212

4. Work to date
4.1 As part of the programme to develop Gloucester to be a testbed for Some of the innovations
that have taken place in just a few years have included Gloucester becoming one of the first in the
world and the first city in the UK to adopt a three in one integrated solution with CCTV over IP, Free
high-speed WIFI across the whole city with 4G being installed simultaneously. This model has since
been adopted by Cardiff, Glasgow, Nottingham, Leicester and Newcastle with others to follow.
Gloucester Councillor Jenny Watkins was instrumental in driving through the provision of this three
in one solution and said “Once it was evidenced to us by Marketing Gloucester that we could
leverage the funding we had budgeted for CCTV to also provide a step change in WIFI and 4G digital
infrastructure, it become obvious to me that we should seize the opportunity especially since it
would allow us to pursue our goals for digital inclusion and to be a connected city.”
4.2 A recent survey of the City centre wifi showed that over 10 million people per annum had
potential access to this annually with speeds regularly being reported of up to 130 mbps – which
equates to faster download speeds than most people achieve at home or at their place of work.
In 2015 Gloucester became the first destination outside of the UK to partner with Google’s Niantic
Labs on the FieldTrip™ app, which allows virtual, location based tourism information through cell
phone, tablet or Google Glass. Whilst Google Glass may have come and gone, the relationship
between Marketing Gloucester and Niantic labs has shown real dividends during the recent
Pokemon Go™ craze.
Pokemon Go™ is also produced by Naintic Labs and since much of the location data for Pokestops
and Gyms was based on existing information uploaded for Fieldtrip™ and Niantic’s app Ingress™,
Gloucester has an especially rich environment for Pokemon Go™ players which has attracted players
from around the region, boosting the local economy. Marketing Gloucester, were not shy in
capitalising on this through social media, and by educating and encouraging retailers to promote
their businesses near Pokestops and gyms and quickly trained retailers how to use the opportunities
by purchasing and using Pokemon “Lures”. Gloucester cafe owner Nick Brookes reported “it was
incredible the number of people who came and sat down in the cafe once we started using the
Lures”
4.3 Prof. Richard Cuthbertson of Said Business School, University of Oxford has been examining
Gloucester’s example as part of a European wide study, he has praised the city’s approach
commenting:
“In our research of European cities with a positive focus towards digital technologies, especially
those involving small retailers, Gloucester is an excellent example. This city recognises the need for a
independent, third party enabler in Marketing Gloucester, providing a long-term, single point of
contact, developing the relevant digital and physical infrastructure with multiple means of access for
customers and retailers, while utilising simple tools, all within a strategy for “place” that
encompasses the individual flavour provided by local retailers and services.”
4.4 Two of the projects that are currently being implemented are those being developed by
Rewarding Visits, which was granted £1 million from the UK Government, Innovate UK funding, and
Maybe, a solution that is being delivered as part of the DCLG, Great British High Street Project. Both
of these are operating within the Digital high Street environment with the aim of encouraging
purchasing to me made in bricks and mortar business rather than online.

Page 213

4.5 Guy Chatburn, of Rewarding Visits comments “We chose Gloucester as the partner location for
the third phase of the role out of our technology, primarily because alongside a great digital
infrastructure, the city had a “can do” organisation like Marketing Gloucester that already had the
trust of a wide range number of partners throughout the city which it could rally together relatively
easily in order to enable our project to happen. They were especially good at helping us work with
other organisations operating in complimentary areas such as Stagecoach and Trinity Mirror. There
was also a much lower learning curve as Gloucester has a team with a understanding of the tech and
the issues facing towns and cities, and that has definitely lead to us having a much stronger offering
in a shorter period of time”.
4.6 Polly Barnfield OBE of “Maybe*” backed this up saying “Gloucester has proven to be the perfect
place for us to test our digital high street solution #WDYT, and the help from Marketing Gloucester,
GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership and Gloucester City Council was instrumental in enabling us to
successfully roll out our pathfinder project across the other conurbations in the county and now
futher across the country.”
4.7 All the above partners are also currently working with the Local Data Company (LDC) who with
University of London are developing next generation footfall data collection and reporting,
combined with their current retail dashboard. There are plans for Gloucester to have the highest
number in the UK of LDC sensors generating data that will help retailers and place management
teams intelligently model the city.
4.8 Gloucester City Council Paul James who is justifiably proud of the progress in realising the aims
to make the city the go to place for technology providers looking to develop smart city and digital
high street solutions. Councillor James is ambitious to build on the successes to date, commenting
“The world is just at the beginning of the transformational opportunities presented by digital
technologies and its great that Gloucester is being viewed as the ideal place to test these. In fact the
city has a history of innovation in digital and high performance technologies, including being the
home to Fasthost (UKreg owned by United Internet), Amazon’s Print on Demand service, Raytheon’s
recently opened cyber security division, and Tidal Lagoon Power. We are open to working with those
looking for a compact city to testbed their technologies”

Page 214

5. Gloucester as a testbed and pathfinder for future city
technologies
5.1 Gloucester is ideally suited to solution providers test bedding new technologies. It is a relatively
compact city, with a young but representative demographic and a high degree of innovation and
good digital infrastructure. It is a city that confirms with many of the norm baselines and so can
provide an excellent modelling opportunity. Most importantly there is a team of people operating in
the city who have built up a huge group of partners, including the University, private sector, and the
local authority, who are happy to speedily adopt innovative products.
5.2 The following chart shows some of the elements that will be influenced by the impact of future
technologies and that Gloucester would be well placed to be a testbed and pathfinder for. Already
as part of the Digital Retail Pathfinder, Gloucester has worked with a number of partners and
developed new products and solutions that have been replicated elsewhere

Page 215

6. Our Digital Priorities
The following describe the digital priorities for Gloucester:
1.1
1.2
1.3
1.4
1.5
1.6
1.7
1.8
1.9
1.10

Championing the ongoing creation of an environment where the city is used as a
test bed for future city technologies
Ensuring that digital inclusion is at the heart of all we do
Deliver the city as an early adopter of world-class digital infrastructure11 including
full fibre networks and 5G12
Making Gloucester a place that has a competitive edge as a place to start and grow a
digital business
Giving everyone access to the digital skills they need13
Assisting every business in Gloucester to be a digital business
Using digital technologies to deliver a safer more secure city
Establish the city is a leader in serving its citizens online
Embedding future city technologies in all regeneration and planning
Unlocking the power of Big Data at the local level14

https://www.local.gov.uk/building-advanced-digital-infrastructure
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/our-improvement-offer/case-studies/facilitating-next-generationmobile-connectivity
13 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-digital-strategy/2-digital-skills-and-inclusion-givingeveryone-access-to-the-digital-skills-they-need
11
12

14

https://s3.amazonaws.com/academia.edu.documents/32970305/FROM_BIG_DATA_TO_BIG_IMPACT.pdf?AW
SAccessKeyId=AKIAIWOWYYGZ2Y53UL3A&Expires=1503248743&Signature=aVAApmkWydqp4EaaJjGkdHQgw
QA%3D&response-contentdisposition=inline%3B%20filename%3DSPECIAL_ISSUE_BUSINESS_INTELLIGENCE_RESE.pdf

Page 216

7. Benefits
1.1
1.2
1.3
1.4
1.5
1.6
1.7
1.8
1.9

Inward investment from technology companies and retailers test-bedding technologies
with potential further investment through the cluster effect
Improvements in digital infrastructure making the city a more attractive location for
businesses to locate and invest
Development of a reputation as an innovative connected city raising civic pride and changing
perceptions of the city
Opportunities to accelerate local business community to be amongst most digitally literate
in the UK and prepared for the future
Competitive advantages to local enterprises derived from economies gained from superfast
internet and upskilled workforce
Better communication between public service providers and citizens and visitors providing
efficiencies, transparency and empowerment15
A digital infrastructure that is future ready and supports additional bids, including a potential
UK City of Culture bid for 2025
Cost savings and or serive improvements resulting from the implementation of actions
based findings from Big Data16
A safer and more secure city17

https://gcs.civilservice.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/09/6.1048_Cabinet-Office_comms-futuredocument_v2_print_web.pdf
16 https://www2.deloitte.com/content/dam/Deloitte/fpc/Documents/services/systemes-dinformation-ettechnologie/deloitte_smart-cities-big-data_en_0115.pdf
17 https://cdn.ihs.com/www/Technology/Security/IHS_Markit-Benefits_of_Safe_Cities_WhitePaper.pdf
1515

Page 217

Page 218

Agenda Item 11

Meeting:

Cabinet

Date:

Subject:

Festivals and Events 2019

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Jonathan Lund, Corporate Director

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: jonathan.lund@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

6 February 2019

No

Tel: 396276

1. Review of Council Funded Festivals & Events 2018/19

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To review the City Events Programme for 2018 and consider and approve the
Programme for 2019

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1) Approval is given to the Civic Events Programme for 2019 set out in the table at
paragraph 6.4 to be delivered by the City Council Cultural Services Events and
Marketing Team based at Gloucester Guildhall.
(2) Approval is given to the City Events Programme for 2019 set out in the table at
paragraph 11.3 to be delivered by Marketing Gloucester Ltd
(3) Approval is given to directly fund the following City Events: Three Choirs
Festival (£5,000), Gloucester History Festival (£10,000) and Kings Jam
(£16,500)
(4) Approval is given to retaining the budget and delivering the Lantern Procession
and Tree of Light by the Cultural Services Events and Marketing Team.

Page
Page219
1

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

The Council’s Contract for Services with Marketing Gloucester Ltd sets out that MGL
shall deliver an annual programme of city events agreed in advance with the Council.
It also states that an annual programme of civic events shall also be agreed and
delivered on similar terms. This report presents proposals to how to deal with both in
2019.

3.2

The Contract for Services sets out the annual charge paid by the City Council to
Marketing Gloucester up to the end of the 2018/19 financial year. The annual charge
has reduced from £464,000 in 2016/17 to £248,000 in 2018/19 with MGL challenged
to make up the difference through increased commercialisation, sponsorship and
fundraising. One impact of the year on year reductions has been capacity issues
which have limited MGLs ability to deliver the full range of civic events in 2018. This
report makes proposals to address that situation.

3.3

Within the annual charge a sum of approximately £160,000 was intended to fund the
City Events Programme. Despite the stepped reductions in the annual charge, the
sum that the Council expected to be spent on events remained unchanged.

3.4

The annual charge payable to MGL for 2019/20 has not yet been finalised and will be
subject to agreement on a business plan for the organisation. The City Events
Programme and the Civic Events Programme agreed following consideration of this
report will need to be reflected in the agreed Business Plan.

4.0

Review of the City Events Programme 2018

4.1

In addition to directly delivering a number of festivals and events in the City
Marketing Gloucester also provide financial and in-kind support to city-based
festivals and events led by other organisations.
The in kind support includes
promotional activities.

4.2

MGL also acts as the City’s Destination Marketing Organisation, managing the
www.visitgloucester.co.uk website which attracts 500,000 annual visitors and the
City of Gloucester Facebook. Marketing Gloucester manages the coordinated
calendar of events which engages over 200 events organisers in the city and
provides “What’s On” information for the city. Marketing Gloucester also acts as the
strategic body for tourism and funds research into the visitor economy which has
been essential in providing evidence for funding and support from Visit Britain – the
UK’s national Tourism board. In 2018 Marketing Gloucester has benefitted from
winning a part of £500,000 Discover England Fund which has focused on developing
the bookable product and promoting to USA tourist.

4.3

In 2017/18 Marketing Gloucester was commissioned by Gloucester BID to manage
its events programme. This partnership will continue through 2019/20.

4.4

Marketing Gloucester has estimated that the actual delivery cost of the proposed
City Events Programme for 2019 is £563,577, with the bulk of that sum (£388,058)
being raised from external sponsorship, fundraising and ticket sales.
Page
Page220
2

4.5

A review of the 2018 city events programme is attached at Appendix 1

5.0

Criteria for Council-funded festival and event activities:

5.1

When the Council last reviewed its criteria for Festival and Event activities it
agreed that the annual schedule should include:
• A strong Christmas offering
• At least one, ideally more, large scale ‘signature’/brand building events;
• Events that bring many visitors into the City from a wide catchment area;
• A cycle of major events (not the same one each year);
• Events that celebrate and bring life to Gloucester’s rich history;
• A broad range of events appealing to all communities; and
• Events that foster civic pride in Gloucester.

5.2

More recently the Council has collaborated in the establishment of a Strategic
Events Partnership. The Partnership’s first members are the City Council, MGL and
the Gloucester Culture Trust. The Partnership aims to broaden its membership to
include a wide range of partners engaged in delivering festivals and events in
Gloucester. It would be appropriate for the City Council to consider collaborating
with the Strategic Events Partnership in reviewing the criteria outlined above for
future years with the City Council’s ambitions of creating a vibrant and prosperous
city and positioning Gloucester as a credible candidate for 2025 City of Culture very
much in mind.

6.0

Proposed City and Civic Events Programme 2019

6.1

Marketing Gloucester Ltd has submitted a proposal for the City Events Programme
in 2019.

6.2

For clarity two events which are routinely listed as part of the City Events
Programme have been directly funded by the City Council in recent years. These
two events are
1
2

6.3

Gloucester History Festival
The Three Choirs festival

£10,000
£5,000
£15,000

In addition to the events listed above the City Events Programme proposed by MGL
comprises*
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11

Residents’ Weekend
Tall Ships
SoMAC
Kings Jam
Summer Weekend Event in the Park
Gloucester Carnival
Blues Festival
Fireworks Finale
Gloucester Goes Retro
Page
Page221
3

£3,000
£50,000
£9,400
£24,685
£5,000
£20,000
£3,000
£24,685
£10,000

12
13
14

Gloucester Day
Christmas Lantern Procession
Destination Marketing – Believe in Gloucester

£4,249
£6,000
£3,500
£163,519

* It should be noted that the sums quoted in the table above are the contributions made by
the City Council, via MGL, towards delivery of the events. They do not represent the total or
final cost of each event. MGL estimate that they will raise a further £388,000 from other
sources to deliver the events listed above.
6.4

To complete the picture the annual Civic Events programme comprises the
following:
15
16
17
18
19

Annual Civic Service and Reception
Three Choirs Reception
Gloucester Day Reception
Remembrance Sunday and Reception
Children’s Christmas Party

£1,250
£500
£1,000
£1,250
£1,000
£5,000

6.5

The Festivals and Events activity outlined in the three tables above is estimated to
cost £183,519 and this exceeds the anticipated funding for 2019/20 by £18,519. In
addition, a solution needs to be found to the future delivery of the programme of
Civic Events. Proposals to address these issues are set out below.

6.6

Civic Events – Part way through 2018 alternative arrangements were made to
ensure that the calendar of civic events was delivered. This arrangement involved
the programme being picked up by the Cultural Services marketing and events team
at Gloucester Guildhall. It would be possible to make this arrangement a permanent
arrangement and it would require a variation to the existing Contract for Services
with MGL. The £5,000 budget for the delivery of the Civic events would revert to the
City Council as part of this variation.

6.7

Kings Jam – this event is produced by The Music Works (TMW) with MGL providing
a range of production services including stage, sound and lighting, Health and Safety
and Risk Assessments, licenses and permissions, security and stewarding,
marketing support, cleaning and evaluation. TMW has suggested that by directly
funding their organisation it would be possible for them to generate additional
sponsorship, fundraising and income to expand and develop the event which is held
in Kings Square and forms part of SoMAC. TMW has indicated that with a direct
grant of £16,500 they would continue to commission production services from MGL
but would be able to generate an additional £50,000. A direct grant to TMW of
£16,500 compared to MGL’s budget provision of £24,685 for that event would save
£8,185.

6.8

Christmas Lantern Procession and the Tree of Light - The lantern procession is
now one element of a wider Christmas offer in Gloucester. In 2019 proposals are
being explored around the theme of puppetry with the Museum of Gloucester hosting
an important exhibition, Guildhall/Strike-a-Light offering a family Christmas show
Page
Page222
4

based upon puppetry and the potential for the lantern procession to feature a
puppets theme. This year Gloucester Guildhall was successful in securing funding
of £15,000 to support both the Christmas Show and the Lantern Procession and it is
acknowledged that the City’s Winter Festival has the potential to develop further. As
part of this development it is suggested that the Lantern Procession reverts to being
organised by the Guildhall as part of the City’s Winter Festival and the associated
budget (£6,000) would also revert to the City Council. This proposal will not
generate a saving but it would offer the potential for increased grant/fundraising and
ticket sales income for the festival as a whole and would contribute to relieving MGL
of current capacity pressures.
6.9

Income Generation – Over the course of the year there are a number of
opportunities to generate income from activities and services that are complimentary
or ancillary to the events themselves. In many cases the opportunity to generate
income is taken but, given ongoing budget challenges, this report suggests that a
new target to generate an additional £10,000 in income over the course of the year
is written into the events programme.

6.10

The proposals above would reduce the overall costs by £18,185. The proposed shift
of responsibility for the Lantern Procession and directly funding Kings Jam also offer
the potential for increased fundraising opportunities.

6.11

The transfer of Civic Events to the Cultural Services Events and Marketing team
would be budget neutral overall.

7.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

7.1

The City Council’s approach to the delivery of Festivals and Events is based heavily
on existing strengths within the community. The Strategic Events Partnership
recognises the diversified nature of festivals and events delivery in the City and
embraces the fact that there is a broad patchwork of producers, organisers,
promoters and enthusiasts delivering the City’s offer. The principal function of the
Partnership is to harness that potential to deliver the City’s strategic ambitions.

7.2

The council-funded City and Civic Events programmes are supplemented by a wide
range of other organisations that add to the City’s developing cultural offer,
including: independent theatre and cinema; Gloucester History Trust; The Civic
Trust; Peel Group; Gloucester Heritage Forum; Strike-a-Light; Multi Styles Battle;
Music Works; Theatre Glos and Café René. Gloucester BID has become a
significant voice in this arena investing in footfall generating events such as the Zip
Wire.

7.3

ABCD can also guide how Festivals and Events develop in the future by, for example,
supporting and investing in activity that contributes to the economic health of the city,
job creation, the Cultural Vision and Strategy and has the potential for sustainable
growth. The Council should also be mindful of the opportunities offered by
Gloucester Culture Trust to provide independent, collaborative, multi-dimensional
cultural leadership and lever external funding to support Gloucester’s growth.
Page
Page223
5

8.0

Alternative Options Considered

8.1

The Council has a contract for services with MGL, including the delivery of the City
Events programme.
Alternative options include the Council bringing the
Programmes in-house, however this would undermine the benefits that arise from a
broad community based delivery model.

9.0

Reasons for Recommendations

9.1

Gloucester has a comprehensive and varied calendar of festivals and events and
the City Council invests a significant sum in supporting that calendar, chiefly through
its Contract for Services with MGL.

9.2

This report seeks to continue that arrangement but make a number of amendments
to relieve current capacity pressures at MGL (Civic Events) and create opportunities
for greater fundraising and income generation (Kings Jam, Lantern Procession and
the Fireworks Finale).

9.3

The proposed schedule will help to ensure the City is animated throughout 2019,
support plans to develop the city’s Festivals & Events offering and secure future
delivery of the Civic Events Programme.

9.4

The activities reflect a move towards a more collaborative approach to festival and
event programming, enabling the Council to make more of community assets and
increase the return on its investment.

9.5

The proposed MGL-led events will complement those being created or staged by
other organisations, helping to ensure the city has a diverse annual events
programme.

10.0

Future Work and Conclusions

10.1

Subject to Cabinet approval, MGL and others will progress the Civic and City Event
programmes outlined in this report.

10.2

Subject to Cabinet approval, Strategic Events Partnership will be asked to review the
criteria for Festival & Event activities in a wider strategic context.

11.0

Financial Implications

11.1

The Council’s annual charge payment to MGL in 2018/19 was £249k including
£165,000 to deliver the City and Civic Events Programme

11.2

In 2019 MGL has proposed a programme with an overall cost of £183,519. Of this
sum £10,000 is paid directly to the Gloucester History Festival and £5,000 directly
to the Three Choirs Festival. In addition it is proposed that the sum of £24,685 is
deleted in respect of Kings Jam and, instead, a grant of £16,500 is paid directly to
The Music Works for the event. It is proposed to introduce an additional income
target of £10,000. Finally it is proposed that the budgets for the Christmas Lantern
Page
Page224
6

Procession and Civic Events revert back to the City Council to be delivered by the
Cultural Services events and marketing team.
11.3

As a consequence of all of the above the sum payable to MGL for their elements of
the 2019 City Events Programme will be £122,834 and will deliver the following
events:Residents’ Weekend
Tall Ships
SoMAC
Summer Weekend Event in the Park
Gloucester Carnival
Blues Festival
Fireworks Finale
Gloucester Goes Retro
Gloucester Day
Destination Marketing – Believe in Gloucester
Income Generation

11.4

£3,000
£50,000
£9,400
£5,000
£20,000
£3,000
£24,685
£10,000
£4,249
£3,500
(£10,000)
£122,834

The funding allocations are in line with Council Money Plan for approval by Council
in February 2019.
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation of this report.)

12.0 Legal Implications
12.1 The City Council has a contract with MGL to deliver Festival & Event activities for the
period of five years from 1 April 2016. The contract provides that MGL shall produce
a report in December, commenting on delivery during the year and proposing a list of
Festival & event activities for the next calendar year. Once approved by Council the
list of proposed activities becomes the programme MGL shall deliver in accordance
with the contract. The annual programme may be varied at any time by agreement
between the Council and MGL.
12.2

The collaborative arrangements discussed in section 5.2 of the report are permitted
by the general power of competence contained in section 1 of the Localism Act
2011. Such collaborations should be formally documented though in order to
safeguard the Council’s financial and reputational position. This can be done via
legal agreements with the partner bodies, either on a case by case basis or via a
single overarching agreement, as appropriate.
(Legal Services have been consulted in the preparation of this report.)

Page
Page225
7

13.0 Risk & Opportunity Management Implications
13.1

There is a risk MGL will not be able to raise sufficient additional external funding to
deliver the 2019 City Events Programme. The Council will need to monitor this,
supporting MGL to secure additional sources of finance or making appropriate
revisions to the programme as appropriate.

14.0 People Impact Assessment (PIA):
14.1 The proposed City Events Programme involves partnership and collaborative working
to deliver programmes that are widely accessible to people who live/ work in and visit
the city.
14.4

The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual
negative impact, therefore a full PIA was not required.

15.0 Other Corporate Implications

15.1

15.2

Community Safety
Events that bring people together, particularly at night time create a healthy vibrant
evening economy that brings with it a view that places are safer.
Sustainability
As part of its commitment to sustainability and legacy aspirations associated with
the Rugby World Cup 2015 bid, the Cultural Services team and MGL are working
towards BS ISO 20121 (Event Sustainability).

Staffing & Trade Union
15.3 None each event.

Background Documents: None

Page
Page226
8

Appendix 1

Review of Events 2018
1. Strike A Light Festival: March and October
A contemporary performance festival organised by Strike A Light
Promotional support was provided by MGL to support for SAL’s year-round programme, including
the two-part SAL Festival.

2. Residents’ Weekend: 6 – 8 April
Annual event organised and promoted by MGL
100 offers for residents and users of the GL Card alongside buskers on the streets created a buzz in
the City.

3. 1100th Anniversary of the death of Aethelflaed: 8 – 10 June
Events and activities developed by the Festivals & Events steering group to celebrate the life and
achievements of Aethelflaed, daughter of Alfred the Great. The event received national media
coverage.
MGL produced events and activities that help to deliver the steering group’s agreed narratives and
outcomes for the Aethelflaed programme. MGL fundraised for these events and activities and
marketed and promoted the Anniversary festival. MGL took part in the steering group’s Aethelflaed
programme and the related evaluation activities.
Living History activity, workshops and performance were staged in a mock Anglo Saxon settlement
around St Oswalds Priory. The site was surveyed by Gloucester schoolchildren and new
archaeological discoveries made. A mock Anglo Saxon funeral procession from Gloucester Docks to
St Oswalds attracted thousands of people into the City..

4.

Summer of Music, Arts & Culture (SoMAC) June – August

The third year of the MGL-initiated umbrella brand for all festivals taking place in the city over the
summer.
MGL programmed Art in the City on the weekend of 14 – 15 July. Exhibitions, workshops, craft
markets, plein air competitions and an open art competition were supported from sponsorship.
With marketing support and branding for the SoMAC festival provided by Marekting Gloucester.
City council funding was primarily used to develop and support Kings Jam / SoMAC Stage activities
which form part of SoMAC with MGL collaborating closely with partners to maximise the impact of

Page 227

the programme and the partnership with the Roundhouse which is working with and supporting our
young people.

5. Commemorating the RAF Centenary in Gloucester: 7 and 8 July
Weekend of city centre activities for all ages, organised by the RAF 100 Project Team for the RAF
Association Gloucester.
The grant from Gloucester City Council to MGL included a contribution of approximately £2k
towards the costs of this event, to cover: a service at the Cathedral (including organist); the hire of
Wheatstone Hall as operations room for the event; re-enactors; a NAAFI van to be located in Kings
Square; and music, as per the RAFA’s proposed programme.
MGL also provided promotional support for the event and support on the day.

6. 375th Anniversary of the lifting of the Siege of Gloucester: 1 – 16 Sept
Events and activities developed by the Festivals & Events steering group to celebrate the lifting of the
Siege of Gloucester and supported by a collaborative partnership including Gloucester BID
MGL supported events and activities that helped to deliver the steering group’s agreed narratives and
outcomes for the Siege programme: fundraised for these events and activities; promoted the Siege
festival and the steering group’s Siege programme; and took part in the steering group’s evaluation
activities.
The Civil War re-enactment is likely to become an annual event.
7. Gloucester History Festival
Annual event organised and promoted by Gloucester History Trust with a £10k contribution from the
City Council and supported by Great Place funding. The Festival starts with Gloucester Day, includes
the Heritage Open Days organised by the Civic Trust, the week long programme of City Voices where
local communities get involved to celebrate their history and a nine day programme of talks at
Blackfriars.
MGL provide some promotional support.

8. Stunt Shows: 22 and 28 July
A range of circus-themed stunt activities in Gloucester Park, building on the stunt shows MGL staged
at short notice in 2017.
9. Gloucester Carnival: 21 July
Annual long-standing event with Arts Council funding of £47k.
MGL led the Carnival Committee to organise this event and give some of its Council funding to
community groups, to be used as match funding for bids to develop Carnival activities and train local
artists in carnival arts. Other MGL support includes licencing; stewarding; promotion; organising the
Civic Bus; and police liaison.

Page 228

Appendix 1
10. Gloucester International Rhythm and Blues Festival: 28th July – 4 Aug
Annual event MGL provide funding for the programmer; print programmes; and promote the event
via social media and the MGL website.

11. Fireworks: 4 August
An annual event that attracts over 10,000 people to Gloucester Park . MGL procure the firework
display and organise/ promote this event.

12. Gloucester Goes Retro: 25 August
A popular annual event organised by Councillor Colin Organ. MGL provide promotional,
administrative and event organisation/ delivery support. Retro is the sigle biggest event
in the City Centre and retailers report a significant boost to footfall and spend.
13. Gloucester Day: 1 September
Annual event organised by Alan Myatt as part of the History Festival. MGL assist with event
organisation and delivery, and provide entertainment, equipment.

14. Christmas Lantern Procession: 18 November, and Tree of Light Celebrations 24 November and 8
December
Annual events organised respectively by MGL and the Rotary Club of Gloucester with some
further support from Gloucester BID. MGL promote both events and provide the Tree of Light
stage. The event engages with six schools each year and the Culture Trust has expanded the
event to incorporate a winter lantern trail.

15. Local Media/Community event BiG
Sponsorship of the Believe in Gloucester awards, jointly with the City Council

16. Three Choirs Festival
The Council sets aside £5,000 as an annual contribution towards the development of this annual
touring festival, helping to ensure it is bigger and better each time it visits Gloucester.

Page 229

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12

Meeting:

Cabinet

Date:

Subject:

Tourist Information Centre Relocation

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Culture and Leisure

Wards Affected:

ALL

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Lucy Chilton, Visitor Experience Manager

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: lucy.chilton@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

6 February 2019

No
Tel: 396570

None

FOR GENERAL RELEASE
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To highlight how public access to visitor information services is changing and to
meet the challenges of those changes by relocating the City’s “walk-in” Visitor
Information Service to Gloucester Guildhall and the Museum of Gloucester.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that Gloucester’s Tourist Information Service
relocates to Gloucester Guildhall and the Museum of Gloucester at the earliest
practical opportunity.

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

The Tourist Information Centre (TIC) has been located at 28 Southgate Street since
1997. During that period the TIC has served as the principal source of information
services in the city for visitors and local residents.

3.2

The TIC’s current opening hours are Mondays 10am – 5pm and Tuesdays to
Saturdays 9.30am – 5pm. It also opens on ad-hoc Sundays throughout the year
when big events are happening in the city.

3.3

Gloucester’s Tourist Information Service (TIS) has a well-established reputation for
excellent service delivery. It has won a series of sector-specific awards over the
past eight years, culminating in the gold award for ‘Best Visitor Information Provider
in England’ in the 2017 Visit England Excellence Awards.

3.4

The Together Gloucester re-design saw the TIS join up with the other cultural
venues (Guildhall, Museum of Gloucester, Life Museum and Blackfriars). This
allowed greater generic working and increased resilience. All of these venues use
the same ticketing system.
Page 231

3.5

The TIS’s core function is to provide visitor information. It also offers sales services
which include an onsite shop stocked with Gloucester-themed gifts; an onsite sales
point for travel tickets (acting as an agent for National Express, Stagecoach,
Marchants, and Superbreak); and onsite/online/telephone ticket sales for local and
national events.

3.6

The TIS also supports city events. For example, it sold £61.5k of merchandise
during the 2015 Rugby World Cup and £1,000 worth of flags in just one hour during
the Olympics in 2012. It serves as the central box office for the annual Gloucester
History Festival and in 2018 the TIC issued 3,709 tickets in person and 4,307 online
through the Ticket Shop.

3.7

Over the past five years there has been a growing trend towards the use of online
and digital visitor information services and online ticket sales. This has resulted in a
significant drop in footfall at the city’s TIC with a knock-on impact on gift shop sales
and commissions income. The table below shows the footfall, income and net cost
of running the service during this period:
Period
April 13 – March 14
April 14 – March 15
April 15 – March 16
April 16 – March 17
April 17 – March 18

Footfall
128,496
110,474
104,628
92,078
85,005

Income £
N/A
367,000
344,000
286,000
264,000

Net Cost £
N/A
173,000
208,000
180,000
176,000

*N.B – the net cost in 17/18 is not directly comparable to previous years because of
changes to structures and financial reporting arrangements following the Together
Gloucester restructure. But it is the most accurate comparison available.
3.8

The decline in footfall reflects a changing service rather than one that is struggling
or failing:
3.8.1 The TIS launched the online “Gloucester Ticket Shop” in April 2017 and sold
14,517 e-tickets in the first 18 months, bringing in £103,244 in ticket sales.
3.8.2 The City’s coach and bus operators are selling tickets directly to customers
via their own websites.
3.8.3 People can get tourist information and advice from the customer services
desk at Gloucester Quays and from leaflet distribution points across the city
e.g. Gloucester train station and museums (including our own).
3.8.3 People are able to buy coach and bus tickets and make use of the digital
visitor orientation point at the new Gloucester Bus Station. The latter will
allow them to access visual and audio information about what’s on offer in
the city and how to get there.
3.8.4 People will also be able to use the digital way-finding/ information totems that
Marketing Gloucester Ltd will be installing across the city as part of the Great
Place project.

Page 232

3.9

The TIS needs to respond to the growing demand for online information and
services and take account of the online and onsite tourism provision that’s being
offered by other providers. And it needs to adapt its onsite offer accordingly. It also
needs to perform well commercially to meet income targets set for the service.

3.10

In terms of our onsite service provision, the most viable delivery model is colocation
with another of the City Council’s cultural venues. This would:
 Allow us to use our Visitor Experience staff resources more effectively and
efficiently;
 Create a more knowledgeable and flexible workforce;
 Release staffing resource that can be invested in re-establishing our award
winning standards, developing our online TIS offer and generating additional
income (e.g. at Blackfriars);
 Make our TIS more accessible to a wider range of customers;
 Reduce spend on zero hours staff;
 Deliver an annual full-year revenue saving of almost £38k (building and
operational costs); and
 Increase footfall at, and awareness of, the host Cultural Services venue, raising
the profile of that venue with TIC users.

3.11

Options were presented to a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on
29 October 2018 and the Committee asked the Cabinet to consider a dual venue
relocation option for the TIC. The two new host sites would be the Museum of
Gloucester and Gloucester Guildhall. Since the O&S Committee meeting officers
have been considering the feasibility of dual site provision and this option is the one
recommended in this report.

3.12

The Museum of Gloucester offers the potential for a joint museum reception/sales
point and TIS in the Museum foyer. The facility would only open during existing
Museum opening hours and might be impacted by future museum development
plans. Whilst the Museum sits on the edge of the primary shopping area a colocated TIC would make the City’s tourist and visitor information and sales services
(shop and event tickets) visible to museum visitors. The Museum’s family audience
would also offer an opportunity to promote family friendly events such as the
Guildhall cinema to visiting families (family films are a Cultural Services’ business
development area).

3.13

Gloucester Guildhall also offers the potential for a joint ticketing and information
centre that combines the current TIS function with the Guildhall box office function.
The Guildhall sits on one of the gate streets, in a central location, on a natural route
from and close to the city’s transport hub. The Guildhall offers longer, more
accessible opening hours and visibility to a wider range of people. There is
adjacent multi-storey car parking and greater potential for raising awareness of the
other facilities within the Guildhall, especially the bar/café.

3.14

To make the proposals work it will be necessary to plan for new signage at both
locations. The Guildhall Development Plan includes plans to significantly improve
the street-level presence of the Guildhall entrance. A marketing and promotions
programme and investment in staff training will also be necessary; both are part of
our relocation plans.

Page 233

3.15

Whilst gift shop sales are not part of the core TIS service they can enhance the
visitor experience and help meet budgets. The main gift shop will be located at the
Museum of Gloucester and a smaller range of goods will be displayed and available
for sale at the Guildhall. Both venues will promote the facilities available at the
other.

4.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

4.1

Relocating the TIS to another of the Council’s Cultural Services venue allows for
better use of resources. We plan to recruit and train volunteers and create a
number of Friends Groups to support the growth and sustainability of our cultural
venues. And we are already attracting volunteers as part of the ‘Engage in
Gloucester Volunteer Makers’ which was launched on 2 September 2018.

5.0

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

Option 1 – Continue to operate at Southgate Street. The authority cannot continue
to justify delivering the existing service model in the face of significant change and
the expired lease gives the Council no security of tenure.

5.2

Option 2 – Invest in another sole use location. This would simply relocate the issues
arising from the existing sole use location in Southgate Street and is likely to be a
more expensive option.

5.3

Option 3 – Relocate only to the Museum of Gloucester. This option has been
discounted because it fails to deliver the opportunities offered by a TIS/Ticket Office
service at the Guildhall and limits the opening and operating hours.

5.4

Option 4 – Relocate only to the Guildhall. This option has been discounted because
of the concerns raised about street-level access and visibility.

6.0

Reasons for Recommendations

6.1

There is a clear need to adapt to the changing nature of how customers access
information services and ticket sales.

6.2

Relocating TIC services to co-locate with existing cultural services provides an
opportunity to reduce operational costs and consolidate existing teams and staff
resources.

6.3

There is a real opportunity to create a central ticket hub, increasing income and
creating a hive of activity around the Guildhall.

7.0

Future Work and Conclusions

7.1

If the proposals within this report are agreed, then the Visitor Experience Manager
will liaise with Asset Management to work up a detailed relocation plan.

7.2

£120,000 is available from the City Centre Investment fund to meet the costs of the
relocation. Whilst the Council’s recent Cultural Development Fund bid was
unsuccessful it has established a constructive relationship with other stakeholders
in and around Kings Quarter and there is potential for funding from the Future High
Page 234

Streets Fund. It would make sense for the Guildhall element of these proposals to
be planned to coincide with these emerging opportunities.
7.3

Future work also includes the introduction of a self-service kiosk within the box
office area which coincides with the procurement of a new till system by summer
2019.

7.4

A Guildhall Development Plan and Museum Development Plan are both currently in
production.

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

The cost of moving the TIC will be met from the capital budget allocation in the City
Centre Investment Fund (CCIF). The current available budget is £119,109.

8.2

It is estimated that revenue savings of £37,900 per annum will result from the
closure of the Southgate Street TIC and its relocation to the Guildhall and the
Museum of Gloucester.
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation of this report.)

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

As the new venues are already within the Council’s ownership and occupation there
are no legal implications in respect of that aspect of the change of location of the
service. The relocation plan will need to consider the implications and provide a
practical timetable for terminating the Council’s occupation of the premises at 28
Southgate Street, any HR issues and the results of consultation.
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation this report.)

10.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

10.1

The Guildhall box office area is set back from the main entrance on a mezzanine
floor and accessible via a lift and stairs. The lift can accommodate mobility scooters
and wheelchair users. Asset Management has inspected the lift and confirmed it is
in full working order. The Guildhall operates longer opening hours and there is an
adjoining car park with lift access into the Guildhall

10.2

There are also access benefits by relocating to the Museum. These include ground
level access from pavement to reception; proximity to a number of city centre car
parks and toilets located on the ground floor in the reception area.

10.3

Christian Drewitt who works in partnership with Marketing Gloucester has visited a
number of city centre locations to audit accessibility. Both the Guildhall and
Museum were awarded 5 stars for their accessibility.

11.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA):

11.1

The PIA Screening Stage will be addressed after decisions on the proposed
relocation and choice of venue have been made.
Page 235

12.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

12.1

Not applicable.
Sustainability

12.2

Not applicable.
Staffing & Trade Union

12.3

There are no staffing implications due to the current generic working that is already
well established.

Background Documents:

None

Page 236

Agenda Item 13

Meeting:

Cabinet

Date:

Subject:

Gloucester Playing Pitch Strategy Delivery

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Environment

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

No

Contact Officer:

Adam Gooch – Planning Policy Team Leader

6 February 2019

Budget/Policy Framework:

Email: adam.gooch@gloucester.gov.uk
Mark Graham – Open Space Strategy Officer
Email – mark.graham@gloucester.gov.uk
Appendices:

No
Tel: 396836
Tel: 396785

1. Playing Pitch Strategy Action Plan Update
2. Artificial Grass Pitch Strategy Update
3. Playing Field Location Map

1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To update Cabinet on progress in the delivery of Council’s adopted Playing Pitch
Strategy, seek resolution on an alternative delivery mechanism for onsite
improvements to playing pitches and ancillary facilities in City Council ownership in
the future, and agree to the continuation of the Delivery Group.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that:
(1) progress made in delivering the Gloucester Playing Pitch Strategy (Appendix 1)
be noted;
(2) the updated Action Plan (Appendix 1) be approved;
(3) the updated Gloucester Artificial Grass Pitch Strategy (Appendix 2) be
approved;
(4) an alternative approach to delivering onsite pitch and ancillary facility
improvements be approved, delegating authority to the Head of Place to appoint
a suitable third party (Section 5); and
(5) the continuation of the Playing Pitch Strategy Delivery Group for a further three
years until January 2022 be approved.

3.0

Background and Key Issues

Page 237

3.1

The City Council adopted the Gloucester Playing Pitch Strategy (PPS) and an
associated Artificial Grass Pitch Strategy (AGPS) in January 2016. The strategies
provide the framework for the Council, its partners, key stakeholders, clubs, schools
and the community to work together in making improvements to playing pitches and
ancillary facilities. The delivery of the PPS and AGPS is led by a Delivery Group
(see Section 6 below for further information).

3.2

This is the third time officers have brought an update to Cabinet on the delivery of
the PPS. Since adoption significant progress has been made in delivering the aims
and recommendations of the strategy, which are summarised below.
AIM 1 – To protect the existing supply of sports pitches for meeting current
and future needs.
To achieve this aim, the PPS makes the following strategic recommendations:
a) Protect sports facilities through planning policy;
b) Secure tenure and access to sites for high quality, development minded clubs,
through a range of solutions and partnership agreements; and
c) Maximise community use of outdoor sports facilities where there is a need to do
so.
AIM2 – To enhance outdoor sports facilities through improving quality and
management of sites.
To achieve this, the PPS makes the following strategic recommendations:
a) Improve quality;
b) Adopt a tiered approach (hierarchy of provision) for the management and
improvement of sites; and
c) Work in partnership with stakeholders to secure funding.
AIM 3 – To provide new outdoor sports facilities where there is a current or
future demand to do so.
To achieve this, the PPS makes the following strategic recommendations:
a) Secure planning gain for playing pitches from housing growth;
b) Rectify quantitative shortfalls in current pitch stock; and
c) Identify opportunities to add to the overall stock to accommodate both current
and future demand.

3.3

A more detailed summary of the progress made in delivering the PPS and AGPS is
provided in the Action Plan Update (Appendix 1) and AGPS Update (Appendix 2).
Headline achievements since adoption in 2016 are:
a) The northern sports hub at Oxstalls Sports Park and the University of
Gloucestershire has now been delivered. The scheme provides the first two fullsized 3G artificial surfaces in the city and a 12 badminton court sports hall, along
with ancillary facilities. The facilities are proving incredibly popular and are
operating at nearly full capacity. Further grass pitch improvements to Plock Court
are expected in the near future.
b) The proposed southern sports and community hub at Blackbridge is being taken
forward in a partnership between Active Gloucestershire, Gloucestershire County
Council, Gloucester City Homes and the City Council. It is anticipated a planning
Page 238

c)
d)
e)

f)

g)
h)

i)

j)

application for a full-sized 3G artificial surface, grass pitches, a community, health
and wellbeing building, along with other facilities aimed at encouraging informal
physical activity will be submitted by March 2019.
New playing field provision has been delivered, including a full-sized sand-based
surface at King’s School with secured community use, and new provision secured
through planning permissions off Winnycroft Lane in Matson and Robinswood.
Participation in football and rugby has increased since PPS was prepared in 2015.
All National Governing Bodies (NGBs) continue to work with their clubs to increase
participation further.
Over half of playing field sites in the city have now been improved or are subject to
emerging proposals. This includes direct grass maintenance works, reconfigured
pitch layouts to provide for current needs and/or new posts or nets. This is the
result of investment from the City Council, the NGBs and the sports clubs
themselves.
The Football Association (FA) has completed a Local Football Facility Plan (LFFP)
for the City. This sets out the investment priorities for the FA in Gloucester, aligned
with and expanding upon those set out in the PPS and AGPS. The full Gloucester
LFFP is available to view at https://lffp-prod.ff-apps.dh.bytemark.co.uk/localauthorities-index/gloucester/gloucester-local-football-facility-plan/.
A targeted event was held with schools to explore opportunities for increased
community use of school pitches as well as opportunities for pupils to engage in
sport in the city.
The Rugby Football Union (RFU), Football Association (FA) and England and
Wales Cricket Board (ECB) have held pitch improvement workshops with clubs and
groundspeople. This included an event at Gloucester Rugby’s Kingsholm Stadium,
lead by the head groundsman of Twickenham stadium, Keith Kent.
Approaches have been made to clubs via the NGBs to identify opportunities to
improve tenure arrangements for clubs playing on City Council owned sites, in order
to facilitate funding bids, where available. Take up has been limited, but there are
positive movements from Tuffley Rovers at The Lannett and Quedgeley Town
Council at Kingsway sports pitches.
A review of the AGPS has been completed by the Delivery Group and identified the
need for additional artificial surfaces. This is discussed in more detail at Section 4
below.

3.4

Some changes have also been made to the Action Plan to reflect changing priority
levels or changing priorities. Cabinet is asked to approve these changes.

4.0

Revised Artificial Grass Pitch Strategy

4.1

The AGPS sets out the preferred network of existing and proposed artificial
surfaces in the city, both public and private. Discussions with the PPS Delivery
Group in March 2018 concluded a review was necessary because of the following
reasons:




Increased interest from various parties in new artificial surfaces to provide for
different needs and the need to coordinate investment priorities;
Evidence from use at the new 3G surfaces at Oxstalls Sports Park that indicate
there is a need for additional facilities for football and rugby; and
New initiatives from the NGBs that will create additional need within the timeframe
of the strategy, for example the Football Association’s focus on increasing
participation in girls and ladies football.
Page 239

4.2

Subsequently the Delivery Group prepared a revised strategy, which was finalised
at the meeting in September 2018 – see Appendix 2. Overall this demonstrates an
additional need up to 2025 of 1 x full-sized 3G surface and 1 x full-sized ‘World
Rugby’ compliant surface. A site known as ‘The Glebe’ is introduced as an
opportunity for a new youth sized artificial surface that could provide for identified
need in Barton and Tredworth, a ward that is deficient in sports facilities. It also
recommends a watching brief around the need for sand-based surfaces to meet the
needs of hockey, given the growth aspirations of Gloucester Hockey Club and
impact of secured community use at the new King’s School facility.

4.3

The preferred location for the additional full-sized 3G surface, reflecting demand
and site availability, is Waterwells Sports Centre. The RFU is looking for an existing
rugby club site in the city for the additional ‘World Rugby’ compliant surface. Taking
all of this into account, the revised AGPS is as follows:

Facility

Surface

Note

Northern Sports Hub
(Oxstalls Sports Park)

1 x full sized sand-based AGP.
2 x full-sized 3G AGPs (both
football compliant, 1 x World
Rugby’ compliant).
1 x full-sized 3G AGP

In situ.
Completed Autumn 2017
and operational.

1 x full-sized sand-based AGP

Poor condition and needs
resurfacing. To be
resurfaced and retained.
Recently resurfaced and
to be retained

Southern Sports Hub
(Blackbridge Sports
and Community Hub)
Severn Vale School
St Peters Roman
Catholic School
King’s School
(Archdeacon Meadow)
Waterwells Sports
Centre
To be confirmed
The Glebe

1 x full-sized sand-based AGP
1 x ¾ 3G AGP (World Rugby
Compliant)
1 x full-sized sand-based AGP
1 x full-sized 3G AGP
1 x full-sized 3G AGP (World
Rugby compliant)
1 x youth-sized AGP

Emerging proposal

In situ.
Completed winter 2018.
Proposed
RFU taking forward
Proposed

4.4

Cabinet is asked to approve the revised AGPS.

5.0

Delivery of onsite pitch improvements on Council land

5.1

To date any onsite improvements to City Council playing fields and/or ancillary
facilities, paid for through S106 funding, have been managed and arranged by
officers from Planning Policy and City Improvement and Environment. However, in
embracing the principles of Asset Based Community Development (ABCD), officers
consider there to be an alternative option that will better support the sustainable
delivery of the PPS.

Page 240

5.2

It is proposed that a specialist body is appointed to set up, administer and manage
a grants-based system to support ongoing maintenance and improvements to
playing pitches and ancillary facilities in Council ownership, in accordance with the
aims, recommendations and priorities set out in the PPS and AGPS. The money
will continue to be held, and procurement administered, by the City Council.
Specifically, the successful third party will:
a) Advertise the grant scheme to local sports organisations and to encourage them to
apply;
b) Accept grant application forms and assess them against defined criteria;
c) Recommend to the City Council which applications to support and if to meet their
request in full or part;
d) Liaise with representatives of the PPS Delivery Group and other stakeholders to
identify opportunities for additional funding to support improvements; and
e) Monitor club’s compliance with grant requirements.

5.3

The application process will seek commitment from the club and NGB in terms of
the contribution they can provide in managing and improving the pitches and
ancillary facilities they use, embracing the principles of Asset Based Community
Development (ABCD). It will also create opportunities to add value by linking with
other sources of funding, such as that from NGBs and social enterprise funding. It is
important to note this will be in addition to the basic pitch maintenance (grass
cutting and line drawing) currently provided by the Council via Amey.

5.4

Initially it is proposed that the specialist body will support the allocation of £100,000
of funding over a period of two years, plus an administration fee. This money is the
result of financial contributions made from new developments specifically to support
improvements to playing pitches and ancillary facilities and will continue to be held
by the City Council. During the final six months of this contract, the arrangement
will be reviewed in light of available funding.

6.0

Continuation of the Delivery Group

6.1

When the Council adopted the PPS and AGPS in January 2016, it was agreed that
the Delivery Group would be established for a period of three years. The group is
led by City Council officers from Planning Policy and City Improvement and
Environment, with representation from the NGBs (Football Association, Rugby
Football Union, England and Wales Cricket Board, England Hockey), Active
Gloucestershire, Aspire Sports and Cultural Trust and the Gloucestershire Playing
Fields Association. It meets at least every six months and is tasked with
monitoring, evaluating and reviewing the delivery of the PPS, Action Plan and
associated AGPS. Officers report to Cabinet the progress made in delivering the
PPS at least once a year.

6.2

The Delivery Group has proved incredibly useful in taking forward the PPS and
AGPS and has led to the vast majority of improvements made to playing pitches
and ancillary facilities over the past three years.

6.3

With this in mind, Cabinet is asked to agree to the continuation of the Delivery
Group for a further three years until January 2022.

Page 241

7.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

7.1

The PPS provides the framework for the Council, its partners, key stakeholders,
clubs and the community to work together in making improvements to playing
pitches. The preceding section of this report sets positive ways this is already
happening and will continue to take place in the future.

7.2

The alternative proposed approach to improvements to onsite pitches and ancillary
facilities in the Council’s ownership provides further opportunities for added value
through an ABCD approach. When assessing grant applications, one of the key
criteria will focus on the principles of ABCD.

8.0

Alternative Options Considered

8.1

The Council could maintain its current approach to delivering improvements to
onsite pitches and ancillary facilities in the Council’s ownership; however, the
proposed approach has the potential to deliver greater benefits for the community
and through an ABCD approach.

9.0

Reasons for Recommendations

9.1

To support the delivery of the Council’s adopted PPS and AGPS.

10.0

Future Work and Conclusions

10.1

Subject to resolution by Cabinet, the Delivery Group will continue to meet at least
every six months, delivering the aims and recommendations of the PPS. A further
Interim Review will be brought to Cabinet in 2020.

10.2

Furthermore, if agreed by Cabinet, officers will seek to appoint a specialist body to
support the delivery of onsite improvements to playing pitches and ancillary facilities
in Council ownership.

11.0

Financial Implications

11.1

The PPS is being delivered by a variety of different parties. Some of the actions are
made at no cost to the City Council, being implemented directly by the NGBs and /
or clubs as a direct result of the adoption of the PPS. Some costs will be incurred
by the City Council, for example, the cost of improving the quality of pitches in City
Council ownership.

11.2

Some projects will draw funding from a range of different sources and this is
something that will be coordinated through the Delivery Group. Suitable funding
streams for the delivery of projects will be identified in advance of them being
initiated. If funding is not available, the projects will not go ahead.

11.3

As set out at Section 4, officers propose an alternative approach to delivering
improvements to onsite pitches and ancillary facilities, through the appointment of a
specialist body. This will assess grant applications and make recommendations to
the City Council on projects to support, in the context of the priorities identified in
the PPS and AGPS. This arrangement will be put in place for a period of two years,
Page 242

being reviewed during the six months leading up to the expiration of the contract, in
light of available funds. The money is to be drawn from existing S106 funds and is
therefore cost-neutral in terms of the council’s budget.
11.4

As agreed by Council at adoption, any more significant delivery projects will be
brought for consideration at Senior Management Team as and when relevant.
(Financial Services have been consulted in the preparation of this report.)

12.0

Legal Implications

12.1

There are various legal implications for the City Council associated with the delivery
of the PPS and AGPS. The City Council continues to work with NGBs to identify
opportunities for increased security of tenure for priority clubs. There is also the
potential for ‘Community Asset Transfer’ – although there are no such cases being
progressed at this time.

12.2

Now that the PPS and AGPS have been adopted they are important material
considerations in the determination of planning applications and as evidence
supporting the emerging Local Plan.
(One Legal have been consulted in the preparation of this report.)

13.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

13.1

A ‘risk register’ was completed at the time of taking the PPS and AGPS to Council
for adoption and remains valid. The main risks are around the failure to deliver the
strategies. However, as evidenced above, officers, the Delivery Group and partners
are working collectively to ensure delivery.

14.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA) and Safeguarding:

14.1

A PIA ‘Screening’ has been undertaken and shows that the delivery of the PPS
would not affect a particular group any differently to any other. A full PIA is not
therefore required.

15.0

Other Corporate Implications

15.1

Community Safety
Not applicable.

15.2

15.3

Sustainability
The delivery of the PPS is having a positive effect on sustainability in Gloucester,
providing a framework for the protection, enhancement and provision of playing
pitches, playing fields and ancillary facilities in the city between 2015 and 2025. It
will also set a good foundation for the ongoing review for future updates of the PPS.
Staffing & Trade Union
Not applicable.

Background Documents:

None

Page 243

This page is intentionally left blank

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

ACTION PLAN UPDATE
January 2019

November 2015

Page
245Kavanagh & Page
Strategy:
Knight

1

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

Site
ID
1

2

Site

Sport

Management

Current status (2015 Assessment
Report)

Recommended actions

Abbeydale
Sports and
Community
Centre
Archdeacon
Meadow
(King’s
Schools)

AGP

Community

One standard quality small sized AGP used
by all Abbeymead Rovers FC teams and
Gloucestershire College for training.

Ensure sufficient access for club training
whilst maximising usage at weekends and
through commercial lets.

Cricket

School

Three standard quality squares with 10,
eight and four wickets respectively. The
King’s School offsite sporting venue used
solely for school sport and therefore
unavailable for community use. Spare
capacity of 80 matches.
Four standard quality pitches which are
marked over the cricket outfields. Used
heavily by the school for school matches on
Saturday, midweek training and curricular
PE. Site is subsequently overplayed by 1.5
match sessions per week.

Rugby union

3

Page 246

4

5

Armscroft
Park
(Gloucester
Old Boys
RFC)
Barnwood
Bowling
Club

Rugby union

Sports Club

Two poor quality council pitches managed
by AMEY and used by Gloucester Old Boys
RFC. Spare capacity of one match
sessions per week available at peak time.

Bowls

Sports Club

Barnwood
Park Arts
College
(Coney Hill
RFC)

Football

School

Good quality flat green which serves 82
members and is therefore overplayed. Club
recently received funding to improve
surrounding access areas.
One youth 11v11 and two 9v9 pitches, all
assessed as poor quality and unavailable
for community use. All are overplayed as a
result of curriculum use and school fixtures.
Good quality six wicket square cut and
used by Arcadians Nine Elms CC. Outfield
quality significantly poorer, very undulating
and uneven. Sublet from Coney Hill RFC
which rents from the school, also providing
changing facilities. Capacity for a further
seven matches per season.
One poor quality senior pitch used by
Coney Hill RFC first team. Limited
curricular use and school fixtures.
Overplayed by 0.5 match sessions per
week.
Six poor quality tarmac courts also
overmarked for netball. Not available for
community use and not floodlit.

Cricket

Rugby union

Tennis

1
2

Timescales1

Cost2

Aim

Club
FA

Hierarchy
tier
(priority)
Local
(low)

L

-

Protect

Explore potential for future community use
and ascertain current barriers to use.
Continue to develop cricket within the
school and maximise use through PE and
school fixtures.

Council
ECB

Local
(low)

M

L

Protect
Enhance

Planning permission granted for a
new full-sized sand-based AGP
with flood lights. Constructed and
operational.

In the short term look to transfer training
use from match pitches in order to reduce
the level of overplay. In the longer term
seek to make improvements to
maintenance in order to better pitch
quality, both for use and to increase
capacity available.
Improve pitch quality and seek options to
maximise use to accommodate future
demand.

Council
RFU

S-M

L-M

Council
RFU

Local
(medium)

M

M

Protect
Enhance

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitches.

Continue to sustain standard of
maintenance in order to protect green
quality. Consider use of additional suitable
greens in order to alleviate some overuse.
Improve pitch quality through an increase
in maintenance investment in order to
increase capacity available and potential
future community use.
Look to establish long-term security of
tenure for the Club. Alternatively,
investigate other potential sites which may
offer greater security if required. Improve
outfield quality and in the longer term
consider adding additional wickets if
demand increases.
Improve pitch quality in order to increase
capacity for school and community use.

Club

Local
(low)

L

L

Protect
Provide

No change.

Council
FA

Key
centre
(medium)

M

L

Protect
Enhance

No change.

Council
ECB

S-M

M

Council
RFU

M

M

Council
LTA

L

L-M

Look to make improvements where
possible, including re-lining.

Partners

Update position
(January 2019)
No change

Timescales: (S) -Short (1-2 years); (M) - Medium (3-5 years); (L) - Long (6+ years)
(L) -Low - less than £50k; (M) -Medium - £50k-£250k; (H) -High £250k and above

2

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

6

Beaufort
Community
School

Football

School

Cricket

Rugby union

One rugby union pitch and two football
pitches marked for rugby union until
January. Available for community use but
currently only used by school. All three
pitches overplayed due to a significant
amount of school use.
Three standard quality tarmac courts with
floodlighting. Available to hire but currently
unused.

Tennis

8

Blackbridge
Playing
Field

Football

Two adult and two youth 11v11 pitches,
all assessed as poor quality. Community
use by Tuffley Rovers FC adult and youth
teams and Barton Rovers FC. All pitches
are overplayed through a combination of
school use and consistent club use.
One good quality non-turf wicket,
unavailable for community use.

County
Council/
Council

Page 247

One poor quality youth 9v9 pitch used by
Tuffley Rovers FC. Spare capacity of 0.5
match sessions available at peak time.
The site is part of community led
proposals, supported by the City and
County Councils, to form a sporting hub
venue incorporating the existing running
track.

Improve pitch quality through an increase
in maintenance investment in order to
address overplay and build future capacity
for community and school use.

Council
FA

Explore options for future community use
if demand in the Area increases. Consider
potential use for informal or midweek
cricket if required.
Improve pitch quality to increase capacity
available and potential future community
use.

Seek options to maximise use to
accommodate future community demand
for use by clubs or potential for creation of
a satellite club.
Improve pitch quality and maximise use.
Determine potential for the creation of a
hub venue to serve the south of the City
including options for 3G pitch provision
and additional grass pitches.
Potential site for FA Pitch Improvement
Programme.

Key
centre
(medium)

S-M

L

Council
ECB

M-L

L

Council
RFU

M

M

Council
LTA

M

L

M

H

County
Council
FA
RFU

Hub
(high)

Protect
Enhance

No change.

Protect
Provide
Enhance

Active Gloucestershire,
Gloucester City Homes,
Gloucestershire County Council
and the City Council are working
in partnership to take forward the
Blackbridge Sport and
Community Hub.
A needs analysis and outline plan
have been prepared and the site
is expected to accommodate at
least 1 x full size 3G surface,
grass pitches and community,
health and wellbeing facilities.
The site also offers the
opportunity for various activities
that support informal activity.
Development will link with the
existing running track.
Active Gloucestershire has
appointed planning consultants to
prepare a detailed masterplan
and submit a planning
application, expected Summer
2019.

9

British Gas
Sports
Field
(Tuffley

Football

Sports Club

Standard quality adult pitch home to
Tuffley Rovers FC. Less than three years
tenure remaining on the lease from
National Grid. Club recently received in

Support the Club in negotiations to secure
long term tenure of the site, either through
lease or by purchase of the land. Also
help the Club in further development of

Club
FA

Local
(high)

S-M

M-H

Protect
Enhance

A masterplan process is
underway and will establish the
extent of the site that is required
to provide to support the sports
and community hub.
Club has now purchased the
sports ground and is no longer at
risk. Football Stadium
Improvement Fund awarded

3

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

Rovers
AFC)
10

Caer Glow
Bowling
Club

Bowls

Sports Club

11

Clock
Tower Park

Football

Council

Tennis

12

excess of £43,000 from Sport England
Protecting Playing Fields to help towards
securing future tenure.
Good quality flat green also used by Coop BC. Club has in excess of 50 members
and the green is likely to be overplayed
taking into contention additional use from
Co-op BC.
Standard quality adult pitch used by
Abbeymead Rovers FC U13s teams. 0.5
match sessions available at peak time.
Two poor quality tarmac courts without
floodlighting. No recorded use beyond
likely casual play. Metal nets render the
site unsuitable for club use.

Football

Council

Poor quality adult pitch used by three
single adult teams including some
training. Changing facilities provided at
Coney Hill RFC. Overplayed by 1.5 match
sessions.

13

Coney Hill
RFC

Rugby union

Sports Club

Two poor quality senior pitches, one used
for both senior and junior matches and
subsequently overplayed by 4.5 match
sessions. The other pitch is unused other
than to accommodate matches for
infrequent club teams such as Vets and
therefore has 0.5 match sessions
available at peak time.

14

Crypt
School

Football

School

Three good quality pitches unavailable for
community use, of adult, youth 11v11 and
9v9 sizes. Adult pitch overplayed by one
match session and both youth pitches to
capacity due to curricular use and school
fixtures.
Good quality square with five wickets,
used by four school teams and AIW CC
midweek and at weekends. Overplayed by
25 matches per season. Poor pavilion and
changing facilities.
Three poor quality senior pitches
unavailable for community use to protect
quality given substantial school use.

Page 248

Coney Hill
Park

Cricket

Rugby union

Tennis

15

Debenham
s Sports
Field

Football
Cricket

Two standard quality tarmac courts,
unavailable for community use due to the
lack of floodlighting.
University

Site recently purchased by University of
Gloucestershire, previously including one
cricket square and overmarked adult

the site and progression towards Step 5
football.

towards new spectators area.

Continue to sustain standard of
maintenance in order to protect green
quality. Consider use of additional suitable
greens in order to alleviate some overuse.

Club

Local
(low)

M

L

Protect

No change.

Seek to make improvements to
maintenance in order to better pitch
quality. Could accommodate usage from
overplayed sites.
Look to make improvements to quality
where possible, including resurfacing and
re-lining. Ensure accessibility for social
play and maximise use through
community participation events where
possible.
In the short term transfer training from
match pitches in order to alleviate
overplay.
In the longer term improve pitch quality or
seek options to relocate pitch on another
site and retain this site as strategic
reserve.
Seek to make improvements to
maintenance in order to better pitch
quality to help address overplay.
Make greater use of the unused pitch
onsite in order to distribute play. Seek
options for floodlighting. Support the club
in determining potential for asset transfer
or negotiation of a longer term lease.
Retain for school use and ensure
maintenance is sufficient enough to
maintain quality.

Council
FA

Local
(low)

M

L

Protect
Enhance

No change.

M

L

Work to improve pavilion facilities to
provide changing provision which adheres
to league requirements. Consider
additional wickets to address overplay.
Improve pitch quality and seek options to
establish community use in the future.
Potential partnership could be established
with local club.
Continue to develop tennis and maximise
use by the school. If demand increases,
seek options for floodlighting and
establish community use.
Continue to work with the University to
establish best options for provision of
pitches. Good quality cricket pitch to be re

Council
LTA

Council
FA

Local/
Reserve
(medium)

S-M

L-M

Enhance

Priority level changed from low to
medium to reflect the need for
basic maintenance to improve
quality. Maintenance and
improvement works undertaken to
pitches.

Club
RFU
Council
County
Council

Local
(medium)

S

L

Protect
Enhance

Priority level reduced from high to
medium to reflect the clubs
position. Maintenance and
improvement works undertaken to
second team pitch.

Council
FA

Local
(medium)

L

L

Protect
Enhance

Opportunities being considered
alongside the Blackbridge Sports
and Community Hub proposal.

Council
ECB

M

H

Council
RFU

M

M

Council
LTA

L

M

S-M

H

Provide

Some playing field lost to support
the delivery of the expansion of
the University sports facilities and

University
FA
ECB

-

4

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

football pitch. Disused and untended to for
last two years.
17

Dowty
Sport &
Social Club

Football

Sports Club

Bowls

Tennis
Elmbridge
Park
(Windfall
Way Open
Space)

Football

Council

20

Sandyleaze
Open
Space
(Elmbridge
Playing
Field)

Football

Sports Club

Page 249

19

Rugby union

(Old
Richians
RFC)

21

Gala Wilton
Football
Club

Football

Sports Club

22

Glevum
Way Park

Football

Council

23

Bishop’s
College
(Old
Centralians
RFC)

Football

County
Council
Aspire

Cricket

Six good quality adult pitches used mostly
by FC Lakeside amongst other teams.
One mini 5v5 and one two 7v7 pitches all
of good quality with no recorded play from
Gloucester teams. All pitches show
available match sessions however
anecdotal evidence suggests they are
played to capacity by additional clubs from
neighbouring authorities.
One good quality flat green which serves
circa 51 members. Likely capacity for
some additional play.
Two good quality courts without
floodlighting used by Dowty TC.
One poor quality adult pitch played to
capacity by Gloucester Elmleaze FC and
Abbeymead Rovers youth.

Poor quality adult pitch played to capacity
by Old Richians FC.
Two poor quality senior pitches used by
Old Richians RFC for senior and junior
matches and weekend training.
Overplayed by 3.25 match sessions given
added use by Sir Thomas Rich’s School
for Saturday morning fixtures. One mini
pitch with spare capacity as much mini
play takes place on the neighbouring
school pitches.
One poor quality adult pitch overplayed by
0.5 match sessions. Lease on the site has
expired and the Club hopes to negotiate a
long term lease with the Council for both
the pitch and clubhouse building. The
Club has desires to install floodlighting in
order to meet Step 6 criteria and has
planning permission to do so.
One standard quality adult pitch with one
match session available at peak time. One
mini 7v7 pitch with no spare capacity at
peak time and two mini 5v5 pitches which
are currently unused. Site used by
Abbeymead Rovers FC junior and girls
sections.
Two good quality pitches used by teams
playing both Saturday and Sunday. 0.5
match sessions available at peak time.
One non-turf wicket of poor quality and
not suitable for use.

provided to meet shortfalls in quality in the
City. Provision of 3G pitch at Plock Court
satisfies re provision of grass football.
Support use of the site for Gloucester
based teams and residents given close
proximity to the City.

business schools. Loss to be
mitigated elsewhere.
Sports
Club
FA
LTA

Key
centre
(medium)

L

L

Protect

Council
FA

Local/
Reserve
(low)

S-M

L-M

Enhance

Improve pitch quality through an increase
in maintenance investment in order to
build strategic reserve/future capacity.
Make improvements to maintenance in
order to better pitch quality, both for use
and to increase capacity available.
In the short term look to transfer training
use from match pitches in order to reduce
the level of overplay.
Consider the mini pitch to be converted
into a floodlit training area.

Club
FA

Key
centre
(medium)

M

L

Protect
Enhance

S-M

L-M

Although the grant can only be applied for
when promotion is gained, support the
Club in negotiating a long term lease on
the site so that it may in the future apply
for grant funding for floodlighting. Seek to
improve pitch quality through greater
maintenance to eliminate overplay.

Council
Club
FA

Local
(medium)

S

M

Protect
Enhance

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to second
pitch.

Improve pitch quality and seek to make
greater use of available capacity and
unused pitches to address current
shortfalls – potential to convert to
youth/adult pitch.

Council
FA

Local
(high)

S

L-M

Protect
Provide

Priority increased from medium to
‘high’ to reflect high level of usage
by juniors and senior teams and
the need to improve quality.
Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitch.

Aspire
University
Council
FA

Key
centre
(medium)

S-M

M-H

Protect
Enhance

Planning permission granted for
the redevelopment of the schools
buildings for residential
development. A small amount of
existing playing field land will be

Improve pitch quality or seek options to
relocate pitch on another site and retain
this site as strategic reserve.

Multi NGB approach to be taken regarding
intentions for potential future development
of the site, including impacts on the
adjacent Plock Court which operates
synergistically alongside Bishop’s College,

Club
RFU

Outside of the City Council’s
area. No change.

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitch. Repair
to goalmouth areas. Pitch
enlarged to meet GNSL
standards and new football posts
installed.
Club received Natwest Rugby
Force funding. Maintenance and
improvement works undertaken.

5

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

Rugby union
Rugby
league

24

Gloucester
Academy
(Old
Centralians
RFC)

Football

School

Cricket

Standard quality square with five wickets,
as well as one non-turf wicket. Outfield
area is too small and therefore not
suitable for senior cricket. Currently only
used by junior school teams.
One poor quality senior pitch used by both
the school and by Old Centralians RFC.
The Club plays in the national leagues
and is frustrated that the pitch is usually in
unplayable condition from November and
February. Club and school are keen to
convert the pitch to a World Reg 22 AGP.
Three poor quality tarmac courts with
floodlighting though unavailable for
community use.

Rugby union

Page 250

Tennis

25

Gloucester
All Blues
RFC
(Alney
Island)

Rugby union

Sports Club

26

Gloucester
City
Bowling
Club

Bowls

Sports Club

27

Gloucester
Park

Football

Sports Club

Cricket

Two poor quality senior pitches, one of
which is floodlit and also used throughout
the summer by Gloucestershire Warriors
RLFC. Used by Old Centralians RFC for
matches and by other clubs for floodlit
training. Intended location for proposed
3G developments.
Standard quality adult pitch used by the
school and a number of community adult
teams. Overplayed by 1.5 match sessions
taking into account all use.

Council owned site with no long term
lease. Two poor quality senior pitches
which for several years were unusable
due to flooding from the nearby river.
Training on pitches using mobile
floodlights. Club to return to play here for
2015/16 season though pitches are
overplayed by 1.5 match sessions.
Unused mini pitch also marked as the
Club tries to begin a junior section.
Two good quality flat greens, one of which
is an artificial surface shared with
Gloucester Spa BC which is also onsite.
Clubhouse is also shared between the two
clubs.
Good quality adult pitch marked onto the
cricket outfield, used by Tredworth Tigers
FC adult team. Spare capacity of 2.5
match sessions, of which 0.5 are available
at peak time.
Standard quality square with 10 wickets,
played to capacity by Gloucester City
Winget CC, therefore no capacity for
additional play. Lack of car parking
provision.

as well as the associated development of
Debenhams Sports Field. Ensure no loss
of provision for any resident sport and
agree upon optimal pitch configuration
should development go ahead.

ECB
RFU
RFL

Seek to make improvements to
maintenance in order to better pitch
quality, both for use and to reduce level of
overplay.
Site for FA Pitch Improvement
Programme.
Continue to develop cricket at the school
and link with local clubs. Determine the
potential for community use by junior club
teams where suitable and if demand
exists in the future.
Investigate potential for installation of a
functioning drainage system. Coupled with
that improve maintenance, particularly to
enable greater drainage of water. Explore
longer term aspirations of a World Rugby
compliant 3G AGP should there be no
other viable drainage solution.
Look to make improvements to quality
where possible, including resurfacing/relining and investigate potential future
demand for community use.
Support the Club in starting and
developing a junior section and further
growth. Seek to make improvements to
maintenance in order to better pitch
quality, both for use and to reduce level of
overplay. Look to transfer training use
from match pitches to alleviate overplay
and upgrade floodlighting as appropriate.

Council
FA

lost to development but the
existing two grass pitches will be
retained.

S

L

Council
ECB

L

L

Council
Club
RFU

S

M

Council
LTA

L

M

Key
centre
(high)

Protect
Enhance
Provide

No change.

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitches.

Club
RFU
Council

Local
(medium)

M

M-H

Protect
Enhance

Continue to sustain standard of
maintenance in order to protect green
quality. Maintain inter-club relationship to
ensure the site remains a high activity
area for bowls.
Uphold standards of maintenance to
ensure pitch quality remains good, whilst
managing use between football and
cricket seasons to avoid fixture clashes.

Clubs

Local
(medium)

L

L

Protect

No change.

Club
FA

Key
centre
(low)

L

L

Protect

Cricket club received support to
purchase reconditioned
equipment to maintain and
improve the wicket.

Sustain and further improve quality of
maintenance in order to ensure square
quality is able to sustain play up to
capacity. In the longer term, seek to
resolve issues regarding lack of parking
space and access to off road parking
onsite.

Club
ECB

M

M

6

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

Bowls

29

Gordon
League
RFC

30

31

Page 251

33

Good quality flat green used by
Gloucester Spa BC. Clubhouse is also
shared between the two clubs.

Rugby union

Sports Club

Two poor quality senior pitches used by
senior club teams and Gloucestershire
College for matches. One match session
available at senior peak time. One further
poor quality senior pitch with floodlighting
used for all training, overplayed by 2.5
match sessions per week.

Hempsted
Recreation
Ground

Football

Council

Poor quality adult pitch used by Trinity &
Quedgeley United FC. Spare capacity of
0.5 match sessions available at peak
time.

Heron Park

Football

Council

Poor quality adult pitch used by
Abbeymead Rovers FC mens, womens
and youth 11v11 teams. Overplayed by
2.5 match sessions.

High
School For
Girls
(Spartans
RFC)

Rugby union

School

One poor quality senior pitch used little by
the school other than for athletics in
summer. Community use by Spartans
RFC senior and junior sections for
matches and training. Overplayed by one
match session per week.
Six standard quality tarmac courts
currently only used by the school. Plans
for the installation of a key fob entry
system to increase community use in
conjunction with Oxstalls Sports Park.
Recently been awarded LTA funding to
help install.
Two poor quality adult pitches currently
unused and therefore have two match
sessions available at peak time. One poor
quality youth 9v9 pitch used by Tuffley
Rovers FC and overplayed by 0.5 match
sessions per week.
Poor quality square with eight wickets,
with the outfield overlapping the rugby
union pitch. Used by Gloucester
Harelquins CC which sub-lets from the
rugby club and has no subsequent
confirmed security of tenure. Spare
capacity for an additional 26 matches per
season.
One poor quality senior pitch and three
poor quality mini pitches used by
Hucclecote RFC. Senior pitch is
overplayed by 0.5 sessions per week due
to senior and junior matches, whilst mini

Tennis

34

Holmleigh
Park

Football

Council

35

Hucclecote
Playing
Field
(Hucclecote
RFC)

Cricket

Sports Club

Rugby union

Continue to sustain standard of
maintenance in order to protect green
quality. Maintain inter-club relationship to
ensure the site remains a high activity
area for bowls.
Address pitch quality and surface issues
including suspected broken drain
underneath Pitch Two. Work to improve
quality of maintenance in order to better
pitch quality, both for use and to increase
capacity available to accommodate the
establishment and growth of planned
junior section.
Improve pitch quality through an increase
in maintenance investment and seek to
make greater use of available capacity
and unused pitches to address current
shortfalls – potential to convert to youth
pitch.
In the shorter term transfer play to sites
with spare capacity and in the longer term
improve quality through an increase in
maintenance investment in order to
address overplay.
Explore options to create a floodlit training
area in order to accommodate training
and reduce overplay on the match pitch.

Clubs

L

L

Club
RFU

Local
(high)

S-M

M

Protect
Enhance

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitches.

Council
FA

Local
(medium)

M

L

Protect
Enhance

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitches.
Priority increased from low to
medium.

Council
FA

Local
(medium)

S

L

Protect
Enhance

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitches.

Council
RFU

Local
(medium)

M

M

Protect
Enhance

No change.

M

L

Work to increase community use and
establish the site with a focus on social
and unorganised tennis in the area.

Council
Aspire
LTA

Improve pitch quality through an increase
in maintenance investment and maximise
use to help address shortfalls.

Council
FA

Local
(medium)

S

L

Protect
Enhance
Provide

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitches.

Work to establish security of tenure for the
cricket club beyond the next three years.
Seek to improve square quality through
better maintenance and sufficient access
to equipment and specialist knowledge.

ECB
Council

Key
centre
(high)

S

L-M

Protect
Enhance

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitches.

Seek to make improvements to
maintenance in order to better pitch
quality, both for use and to increase
capacity available.

RFU
Council

Priority level increased from
medium to high to reflect high and
increasing levels of participation.
S

L-M

New junior rugby area to be
implemented through adjacent
housing development.

7

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

36

King
George V
Playing
Fields
(Hucclecote
RFC)

Football

Council

Cricket

Standard quality ten wicket square used
as a secondary location by Ullenwood
Bharat CC to accommodate imported
demand from its third and fourth senior
teams. Spare capacity for an additional 31
matches per year.
One poor quality senior pitch used by
Hucclecote RFC mini and junior teams as
a secondary venue for matches and
training most weeks. Subsequently
overplayed by one match session per
week. Club would like to relocate all use
back to the main club site.

Rugby union

37

pitches have 2.25 matches capacity, none
of which are available at peak time.
Four poor quality mini 7v7 pitches, also
used for both 5v5 and youth 9v9 matches
but Hucclecote YFC junior section. No
spare capacity available at peak time.

Football

Council

One poor quality adult pitch currently
unused and therefore available at peak
time.

38

Lobleys
Drive Open
Space

Football

Council

39

Longlevens
Recreation
Ground
(Longleven
s RFC &
Dowty
RFC)

Football

Council/
Sports Club

Two mini 7v7 pitches and one youth 9v9
pitch all of poor quality, used by
Abbeymead Rovers FC junior section. No
capacity available for additional 7v7 play,
whilst the 9v9 pitch is overplayed by 0.5
match sessions per week.
Two poor quality adult pitches used
mainly by Longlevens FC adult and youth
11v11 teams. Overplayed by 1.5 match
sessions. Unmet demand for 0.5 adult
match sessions. One poor quality youth
9v9 pitch played to capacity, also used in
part for rugby union training.

Page 252

Kingsway
Manor
Farm

40

41

Matson
Park
(Matson
RFC)
Meadow
Park
(Gloucester
City FC)

Rugby union

Council/
Sports Club

Rugby union

Sports Club

Football

Sports Club

Two poor quality senior pitches used for
matches by Longlevens RFC senior and
junior teams. Also used by Dowty RFC.
Overplayed by three match sessions per
week.
Two poor quality senior pitches used by
Matson RFC senior and junior sections for
both matches and training. Overplayed by
five match sessions.
Step 2 ground which has been unusable
since being flooded in 2007.
Gloucester City FC currently displaced to
Cheltenham and remains keen to work
towards a solution to return to the City in
the future.

Seek additional pitch capacity in order to
reduce current use of overmarked pitches.
Work towards improving maintenance in
order to better pitch quality, both for use
and to increase future capacity available.
Potential site for FA Pitch Improvement
Programme.
Determine intentions for continued use of
the site by imported teams given the new
ground developments the Club is
undertaking outside of Gloucester.
Improve quality and seek to maximise use
of spare capacity for future demand.
Support movement of play onto new junior
pitch which will run adjacent to Hucclecote
Playing Field, whilst retaining use of this
site to accommodate play as required.
Seek to make improvements to
maintenance in order to better pitch
quality, both for use and to increase
capacity available.
Improve quality and maximise use.
Alternatively if low value site re provide
pitches/investment in capacity at a hub
site and retain as a reserve site.
Improve pitch quality through an increase
in maintenance investment, both for use
and to reduce level of overplay and build
future capacity.

Council
FA

M

M

Council
ECB

S-M

M

Council

S

L

Key
centre
(high)

Protect
Enhance

Priority level increased from
medium to high to reflect the fact
the site is a multi-sports hub with
all pitch types in need of
improvement.
Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to all pitches
exc. cricket wicket.

RFU

Council
FA

Local/
Reserve
(low)

M

M

Enhance
Provide

No change.

Council
FA

Local
(medium)

M

L

Protect
Enhance

No change.

Improve quality through an increase in
maintenance investment in order to better
pitch quality for use, to reduce level of
overplay and to accommodate unmet
demand.
Site for FA Pitch Improvement
Programme.
Improve pitch quality/maintenance in
order to address overplay. Explore options
for access to dedicated floodlit training
area to alleviate use of match pitches.

Council
Club
FA

Key
centre
(high)

S

L

Protect
Enhance
Provide

Various maintenance and
improvement works undertaken to
pitches.

Improve quality and transfer training use
from match pitches in order to address
overplay.

Council
RFU
Club
FA
Club

Support the Club in applications for grant
funding which would allow development of
a site to allow it to return to Gloucester.

New goalposts installed.
Council
Club
RFU

S

M

Local
(medium)

M

M

Protect
Enhance

Club received Natwest Rugby
Force funding. Maintenance and
improvement works undertaken.

Key
centre
(high)

M-L

H

Provide
Enhance

Planning permission granted for
the development of a new football
stadium for Gloucester City FC.
The Council is supporting the
club’s return to Meadow Park with

8

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

42

Memorial
Ground
(Old
Cryptians
RFC &
Widden Old
Boys RFC)

Rugby union

Sports Club

43

Murray Hall

Football

Council

44

Oxstalls
Sports Park

AGP

Council
Aspire

Page 253

Tennis

One standard sand dressed pitch with
floodlights, resurfaced in 2012. Used
intensively by Gloucester City HC for
matches and training as well by
Cleevillians HC. Much competition with
football training demand.

Four good quality clay courts with
floodlighting. Key tennis focus site within
the City, also providing indoor provision.
Also used by Gloucester College
students.

45

Parry Road
Playing
Fields

Football

Council

46

Plock Court

Football

Council
Aspire

Cricket

Four poor quality pitches, two of which are
used by Old Cryptians RFC and two by
Widden Old Boys RFC, each with
separate lease agreements. All four
pitches are overplayed, particularly the
fully and partially floodlit pitches which are
overplayed by three and six match
sessions respectively, largely due to
training use in excess of match play.
Mini 7v7 pitch assessed as poor quality.
Currently unused and therefore is
available at peak time.

Standard quality adult pitch, currently
unused and therefore available at peak
time. To be re-marked for 2015/16 season
as two youth football pitches for new club
Heart of Gloucester FC consisting of one
7v7 and one 5v5 pitch.
Four poor quality adult pitches primarily
used by teams from the Gloucester &
District Sunday Football League. 0.5
match sessions available at peak time.
Also one unused youth 9v9 pitch available
at peak time.
Changing provision is insufficient and is
restricting the growth of the league.

Standard quality square with 10 wickets,
currently unused in the absence of
demand. Marked and maintained as a
reserve facility. Previously had six
squares which are able to be reinstated
should demand for cricket increase.

Transfer training use from match pitches
and improve quality/maintenance in order
to address overplay and build future
capacity. Look at options to upgrade
floodlit where possible. Support Widden
Old Boys RFC in plans to improve
ancillary facilities and repair the existing
roof.

RFU
Sports
Club

Improve quality through an increase in
maintenance investment and maximise
usage to address shortfalls by
establishing a resident club.
Priority hockey site and should have long
term protection of this AGP for hockey.
Seek to increase capacity available for
midweek hockey training whilst working
closely with Gloucester University re
proposed 3G developments to ascertain
potential effects and transfer of midweek
football demand from this pitch.
Ensure sinking fund is in place for further
future re carpeting.
Continue to maintain court quality and
provide outdoor provision onsite,
maximising use of floodlights alongside
indoor facilities throughout the autumn
and winter seasons. Link in with wider
plans for outdoor provision at school
satellite venues.
Support further club growth as
appropriate.
Improve quality/maintenance and support
establishment and development of the
new resident club.

Council
FA

Local
(low)

M

L

Protect
Enhance

No change.

Council
Aspire
EH
FA
University

Key
centre
(high)

M

L

Protect
Enhance

2 x full sized 3G surfaces now
constructed and operational
September / November 2017.

Improve pitch quality and maximise usage
of all pitches. Consider reconfiguration of
adult pitches to address mini/youth
shortfalls. Linked to maximising use,
explore options for funding to
improve/increase the size/availability of
changing facilities in order to maximise
pitches available to Sunday league teams
and help facilitate growth.
Site for FA Pitch Improvement
Programme.
Improve quality and maximise use.
Establish a club currently playing
elsewhere with no security of tenure to
use this site should there be an increase
in quality, particularly the provision of
suitable ancillary and changing facilities.
Potential investment from loss of cricket at

Local
(high)

S-M

M

Protect
Enhance

£100,000 of funding to facilitate
the move.
Club received Natwest Rugby
Force funding. Maintenance and
improvement works undertaken.
Planning permission granted to
raise the Widden Old Boys
pitches.

12 x squash court sports hall
constructed and operational.

Aspire
Council
LTA

L

L

Council
FA

Local
(medium)

S

L

Protect
Enhance
Provide

No change.

Aspire
Council
FA
University

Hub
(high)

S-M

H

Protect
Enhance
Provide

Maintenance and improvements
works undertaken to some
pitches.
New formats of sports pitches
marked out to accommodate
demand. New football and rugby
posts installed.

Aspire
Council
ECB
University

S-M

M

Further grass pitch improvements
planned, as well as a new cricket
wicket, as a consequent of the
University’s development at
Oxstalls.

9

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

Rugby union

47

Randwick
Park

Football

Council

Tennis

48

Ribston
Hall High
School

Football

School

AGP

Page 254

49

50

51

52

Tennis

Riverside
Sports &
Leisure
Club
Saw Mills
End
Playing
Field

Saintbridge
Recreation
Ground

Severn
Vale
School

Tennis

Commercial

Football

Sports Club

Rugby union

Football

Council

School

No pitches currently marked but the site
previously had one junior pitch which is
able to be marked again should there be
future demand.
Poor quality adult pitch currently unused,
therefore available at peak time. Standard
quality mini 7v7 pitch used by Tuffley
Rovers FC with no spare capacity
available at peak time.
One poor quality tarmac court without
floodlighting. No recorded club use though
it is likely that the court is used
occasionally for social and non-organised
tennis.
Two poor quality adult pitches used by
Tredworth Tigers FC U13s. Overplayed
by 1.5 match sessions when taking into
consideration weekly school use.
Small sized sand dressed AGP mainly
used by all girls school for hockey practice
but lacking floodlights. Also marked as
four tennis courts for use in the summer.
Three tarmac courts of standard quality
without floodlighting, currently unused
other than by the school.
Four good quality tarmac courts with
floodlighting. Used by Riverside TC which
has two teams.
Standard quality adult pitch used by
Longlevens FC 1st and Ladies teams.
Spare capacity of 0.5 match sessions
available at peak time. Site currently
meets required Step 6 standard but
floodlighting does not comply with Step 5
specifications, limiting the team
progressing to the next tier of the pyramid
structure.
Poor quality senior pitch currently not cut
or lined ready for play due to a lack of
demand.

One adult pitch and one youth 11v11
pitch, both of poor quality and unavailable
for community use due to school concerns
regarding security and access to the rear

Debenhams Sports Field could help to
facilitate this.
Explore potential demand amongst clubs
in the area and determine whether
reinstating this pitch could address
shortfalls at club sites in the locality.
Improve pitch quality through an increase
in maintenance investment and maximise
use.

Aspire
Council
RFU

S-M

L-M

M

L

L

L-M

M

L

Council
FA
EH

M

L-M

Council
LTA

L

L

Council
FA

Seek to improve court quality and ensure
access for continued irregular use by local
residents.

Council
LTA

Seek to make improvements to
maintenance in order to better pitch
quality, both for use and to increase
capacity available.
Determine scope for installing floodlighting
and whether the site has further potential
to be used to accommodate football and
hockey training demand in the evenings.
Continue to develop school tennis and try
to make improvements to court quality
where possible.
Continue to provide good quality floodlit
facilities for club members and ensure
access to sufficient court time for matches
and coaching.
Support the Club in development of
facilities to the required Step 5 standard,
particularly floodlighting, enabling the Club
to achieve promotion in practice.

Council
FA

Explore potential demand amongst clubs
in the area and determine whether
reinstating this pitch could address
shortfalls at club sites in the locality.
Quality would need to be improved if
demand exists.

Council
RFU

Work with the school to address concerns
regarding community use and potential to
make pitch accessible for future use. Seek
to improve pitch quality through increased

Council
FA

Local
(medium)

Local
(low)

Protect
Enhance

Playing field reconfigured to
provide 2 x 9 v 9 pitches - the 11
a-side pitch has been removed.
Used by Tuffley Rovers FC.
Priority level increased from low
to medium to reflect the need to
improve poor pitch quality given
continued high levels of use.

Protect
Enhance

No change.

Sports
Club
LTA

Local
(low)

L

L

Protect
Enhance

No change.

Club
FA

Local
(medium)

M

L-M

Protect
Enhance

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitch.
Football Foundation ‘Football
Stadia Improvement Fund’
awarded towards improving
floodlights.

Local
(medium)

S

M

Provide

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitch.
Pitch now used by Saintbridge
Football Club. 11 v 11 pitch
marked out and goal posts
installed by club.

Key
centre
(high)

S

L-M

Protect
Enhance
Provide

No change.

10

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

of the building. Each pitch overplayed by
two match sessions when taking into
consideration weekly school use.
Cricket

One good quality non-turf wicket, used
only by the school and not made available
for community use.
Poor quality senior pitch unavailable for
community use due to school concerns
regarding security and access to the rear
of the building.
Standard quality sand filled surface well in
excess of 10 years old and requiring
replacement. No hockey use and instead
used significantly for football by both
school and community clubs.

Rugby union

AGP

Tennis

Page 255

53

Sir Thomas
Rich’s
Sports
Centre
(Old
Richians
RFC)

Football

Six poor quality tarmac courts used
infrequently for pay and play beyond
school use. Managed by Quedgeley
Community Trust.
School

Cricket

Rugby union

Bowls

Tennis

54

St Peters

Football

School

level and standard of maintenance.
Site for FA Pitch Improvement
Programme.
Work with the school to address concerns
regarding community use and potential to
make pitch accessible for future use.
Work with the school to address concerns
regarding community use and potential to
make pitch accessible for future use.
Improve pitch quality. England Hockey to
identify priority for this AGP to be retained
as sand for hockey use.
If to be retained as sand surface ensure
hockey can be accommodated as a
priority.
Decision to be reached by FA and EH in
the context of Citywide Strategy for 3G
pitches.
Continue to work with Oxstalls Sports
Park towards plans for key fob entry
system and to increase court usage
through creation of a satellite club onsite.

One standard quality adult football pitch
which overlaps the cricket outfield, not
made available for community use. Two
further adult pitches are used dually for
both football and rugby union. All three
pitches are at capacity when considering
weekly school use and fixtures.
Good quality five wicket square used by
school teams and played to capacity.
Previously had community use but now
unavailable due to issues regarding
proximity of changing and pavilion
facilities to the playing area as per league
regulations.
Four poor quality senior pitches, two of
which are also used for football. Heavily
used by 17 school teams for training and
matches. Two far pitches are also used by
Old Richians RFC junior section and are
overplayed by eight match sessions,
whilst the two remaining pitches are
overplayed by six match sessions.
One good quality green used by Sir
Thomas Rich’s BC. Likely that capacity is
available for further use.

Retain for school use. Manage dual use
pitches carefully so not to negatively
impact on pitch quality.

Seven poor quality tarmac courts
overmarked for netball use. School would
like resurface due to poor quality. No
current community use.
Poor quality youth 9v9 pitch not made

Council
ECB

L

L

Council
RFU

S

L-M

Council
FA
EH

M

H

Council
Trust
Aspire
LTA
Council
FA

L

L

L

L

Key
centre
(medium)

Explore potential future use given good
quality pitch.

Council
ECB

S-M

M

Look to transfer training use from match
pitches in order to reduce the level of
overplay. Seek to make improvements to
maintenance in order to better pitch
quality, both for use and to increase
capacity available.

Council
RFU

S-M

M

Continue to ensure required standard of
maintenance and continued green quality.

Club

L

L

Determine potential to resurface courts
and make available for community use.
Support the school in search of funding
opportunities if required.
Improve pitch quality through an increase

Council
LTA

M

M

M

L

Council

Key

Protect
Enhance

Protect

No change.

New ¾ size3G pitch constructed

11

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

Roman
Catholic
High
School

available for community use in order to
protect surface quality for school use.
Overplayed by two match sessions when
considering school usage.
Rugby union

Three poor quality senior pitches not
made available for community use in
order to protect surface quality for school
use and occasional Saturday morning
fixtures.
Standard quality sand dressed pitch with
floodlighting in need of surface
replacement. West Bromwich Albion FC
hires the pitch and has exclusive access
on Mondays and Wednesdays for its
academy teams, which leaves little
capacity otherwise. Also used by
Gloucester City HC as an alternate venue.

AGP

Tennis

Page 256

56

The
Lannett

Football

Council

Two areas with two and five poor quality
tarmac courts respectively, regularly used
as playground areas. Used by St Peter’s
Junior TC which reports unmet demand
and a lack of access to good quality
surfaces.
One senior and one mini rugby union
pitch both of poor quality. Currently
unused since previous club Tredworth
RFC folded. Council has plans to mark as
football pitches for Tuffley Rovers FC for
2015/16 season.

57

The Oaks

Football

Council

Two poor quality mini 7v7 pitches used by
Abbeymead Rovers FC U9s. No capacity
for further use at peak time.

59

Tuffley
Park

Football

Council

Two adult, one youth 9v9 and one mini
7v7 pitch, all assessed as standard
quality. Well used, mainly by Gloucester
City Ladies FC junior section. Available
capacity of 1.5 adult match sessions and
each on 7v7 and 9v9 pitches.
Two standard quality squares, each with
12 wickets. Used mainly by Gloucester
City Winget CC as a secondary site as
well as some midweek play. Spare site
capacity for an additional 90 matches per
season.
Good quality green used by Winget BC.
Membership of circa 33 and therefore
capacity for additional play. The ancillary

Cricket

Bowls

in maintenance investment and maximise
use.
Potential site for FA Pitch Improvement
Programme.
Improve quality and retain for school use.

FA

centre
(medium)

Council
RFU

M

L-M

Improve pitch quality. England Hockey to
identify priority for this AGP to be retained
as sand for hockey use.
If to be retained as sand surface ensure
hockey can be accommodated as a
priority.
Decision to be reached by FA and EH in
the context of Citywide Strategy for 3G
pitches.
Determine potential to resurface courts
and to increase community use and
enable club growth. Support the school in
search of funding opportunities if required.

Council
FA
EH

S

L

Council
LTA

S-M

M

No current local demand for rugby pitch.
Improve quality and retain as football pitch
going forward to meet demand identified.
Re-evaluate potential as a dual sport site
reinstating a rugby union pitch should a
club register interest.

Council
FA

S

L

Seek to make improvements to
maintenance in order to better pitch
quality, both for use and to increase
capacity future capacity.
Maximise usage to address shortfalls
whilst seeking to increase pitch quality
through improved maintenance in order to
further add to potential capacity.

Determine the requirement for two pitches
onsite given demand in the area and
current level of available capacity.
Maximise use of available capacity
through development of cricket and
increase in demand.
Support the Club in ensuring it retains the
required knowledge base and resources
including equipment to continue to

Local
(medium)

Enhance

and operational. Existing sandbased surface replaced.

Protect
Enhance

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitches.
Playing field reconfigured to
provide 2 x 11 v 11 football
pitches.

Council
FA

Local
(medium)

M

L

Protect
Enhance

Council
FA

Key
centre
(high)

M

L

Protect
Enhance

Council
ECB

S

L

Council
Club

L

L

Priority increased from low to
medium to reflect the fact that
Tuffley Rovers Youth FC have a
number of youth teams that use
the two 11aside pitches.
No change.

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to all pitches
exc. cricket wicket.
Priority level increased from
medium to high to reflect possible
link to the Blackbridge Sports hub.

12

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

facilities are rated as unacceptable and as
such the Club is exploring funding options
for a new clubhouse.
University
Of
Gloucester
shire
(Oxstalls
Campus)

AGP

University

61

Walls
Sports And
Social Club

Football

Sports Club

Waterwells
Sports
Centre

Football

Town Council

Page 257

60

62

AGP

65

66

69

Kingsholm
Square
Lawn
Tennis
Club
Gloucester
Wotton
Lawn
Tennis
Club

Tennis

Sports Club

Two standard quality grass courts cut and
marked by the Club which is limited to
local community use.

Tennis

Sports Club

EDF
Energy

Bowls

Private

Two grass and three tarmac courts all of
standard quality, none of which are
floodlit. The Club reports demand for a
further two hard courts because the lack
of floodlighting greatly affects ability to
host home fixtures at the beginning of the
season.
One good quality green owned and
operated by the industry sports club. Not
available for community use.
Two standard quality tarmac courts
without floodlighting. Private industry
sports club and therefore unavailable for
wider community use.
Two youth 9v9 and two mini 5v5 pitches,

Tennis

71

Standard quality sand filled pitch with
floodlighting. Owned by University of
Gloucestershire.
In excess of 10 years old and therefore
requires resurfacing. Mainly used by
student teams for training and BUCS
hockey matches on Wednesday
afternoons with no further capacity
available.
Plans for this pitch to be lost within current
plans for development of the site to
accommodate the University’s Business
School.
Two standard quality adult pitches, one
overmarked by a youth 9v9 pitch and the
other by mini 7v7 and 5v5 pitches. Used
by several clubs, mainly Gloucester City
FC junior section. Each pitch is
overplayed by 0.5 match sessions per
week due to intensified play from
overmarked pitches.
Two adult pitches, one youth 9v9 and one
youth 7v7, all of which are poor quality
and overplayed. The pitches drain poorly
and the Club requires relevant equipment
to spike the surface. Club aspiration for
floodlighting.
Small sized sand filled pitch operated by
Quedgeley Town Council. Used by
Quedgeley Wanderers FC for training.

Abbeymea

Football

Council

maintain the green to the same standard.
Support the Club, where possible, to apply
for funding for a new/improved clubhouse.
If this AGP is lost this will reduce provision
in the City to three sand AGPs suitable for
hockey. This will also create displacement
of hockey teams which will need to be re
accommodated. Loss of the pitch and
displacement of teams would need to be
fully mitigated by an improvement in pitch
quality elsewhere and secured hockey
access at an alternative site.

Council
University
FA
EH
RFU

Key
centre
(high)

S-M

H

-

Investigate potential to transfer some play
to alternative pitches in order to reduce
overplay. Also seek to better pitch quality
through improved maintenance in order to
help alleviate the level of overplay.

Sports
Club
FA

Local
(low)

M

L

Protect
Enhance

No change.

Improve pitch quality/maintenance and
link to establishing an equipment bank. In
the longer term explore funding options for
floodlighting when the Club gains
promotion to a Step 6 league.

Town
Council
Club
FA

Local
(medium)

S-M

M

Protect
Enhance

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to pitches
funded / undertaken by club and
town council.

Ensure sufficient access for club training
and existing unmet demand should further
teams be created. Maximise commercial
use from small sided social football use
and other community groups.
Support the Club as required to improve
court quality.

Town
Council
Club
FA

L

L

Club
LTA

Local
(low)

L

L-M

Protect
Enhance

No change.

Explore opportunities for access to
additional courts and/or potential to install
floodlighting in order to increase winter
court capacity.

LTA
Club

Local
(medium)

S-M

M

Protect
Provide

No change.

Continue to sustain green quality to
accommodate current membership
through required maintenance procedures
Continue to maintain court quality and
provide sporting provision for industry
employees.

Industry

Local
(low)

L

L

Protect

No change.

L

L

Retain spare capacity in order to help

Council

L

L

Protect

No change.

Industry
LTA
Local

See Oxstalls Sports Park.

13

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

d Primary
School

72

Longlevens
Infant
School

Football

Council

73

The Oval

Tennis

Council

74

Kingsway
Sports
Field
(Hardwicke
&
Quedgeley
Harlequins
RFC)

Football

Council

Cricket

Rugby union

Page 258

75

Innsworth
Lane
Sports
Ground

Football

76

Bircher
Avenue /
Hucclecote
RFC
Gloucester
Civil
Service
Club

Rugby /
MUGA

77

78

Land at
Winnycroft
Farm

80

Land at
Leven
Close,
Longlevens

Football
Cricket
Rugby union
Bowls
Tennis
TBC

TBC

Sports Club

all of which are standard quality. Used by
Abbeymead Rovers FC junior section. 1.5
match sessions available for youth 9v9 at
peak time, with a further 0.5 sessions
available for mini 5v5.
Youth 9v9, mini 7v7 and mini 5v5 pitches
all assessed as standard quality. Used by
Longlevens Infants FC. All show spare
capacity but only one match session for
youth 9v9 play is available at peak time.
Four poor quality tarmac courts without
floodlighting. No recorded community use
though it is likely that these courts are
used infrequently for non-organised
tennis.
Poor quality adult football pitch currently
unused and therefore available at peak
time.
Standard quality square with 10 wickets,
used by Hardwicke & Quedgeley CC.
Available capacity for a further 29
matches per season.
Poor quality senior pitch used by
Hardwicke & Quedgeley Harlequins for
matches. Spare capacity of 0.5 match
sessions available at senior peak time, or
one match session at junior peak time.
Site previously damaged by flooding and
at the time of assessment was unused.
However, has recently become
operational again by Longlevens FC junior
section.
Changing facilities have since been
restored, with room to mark youth 9v9
pitch upon further pitch remedial work.

sustain/improve pitch quality.

FA

(low)

Retain spare capacity in order to help
sustain/improve pitch quality.

Council
FA

Local
(low)

L

L

Protect

No change.

Seek to improve court quality and ensure
access for continued irregular use by local
residents.

Council
LTA

Local
(medium)

M-L

M

Protect
Enhance

No change.

Improve quality and maximise use.
Alternatively if low value site re provide
pitches/investment in capacity at a hub
site and retain as a reserve site.
Improve quality and maximise use to
accommodate future demand.

Council
FA

Key
centre
(medium)

S

L-M

Protect
Enhance
Provide

Council
ECB

M

M

In the short term retain spare capacity in
order to sustain quality and in the longer
term improve pitch quality/maintenance
and maximise use.

Council
RFU

S-M

L-M

Support the Club in sustaining quality
through required standard of
maintenance.

Council
FA
Club

M

M

Maintenance and improvement
works undertaken to rugby pitch,
two football pitches and the
cricket outfield.
Cricket nets installed on site.
Quedgeley Town Council has
implemented its own pitch
improvement programme for this
site. GCB confirm the square is
now of ‘high quality’.
Cricket club has received funding
from GCB for a new pitch-side
shelter.
Various maintenance and
improvement works undertaken.

Local
(medium)

Provide

Provision delivered through
adjacent new development.

Private

Multi sport site previously managed by the
Civil Service Sports Council (CSSC), sold
to Redrow Homes in 2010 and left to
become disused.

Should planning permission be submitted
for change of use seek like for like
mitigation for loss of sports facilities.

Council
FA
ECB
RFU
LTA

-

L

H

Provide

Planning permission granted for
residential development January
2019. Mitigation to be provided
for loss of pitches and facilities.
Outline planning permission
granted for residential
development, including open
space and new playing fields.
Open space secured through
planning permission for new
residential development.

14

GLOUCESTER
PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

November 2015

Strategy:
Knight
Kavanagh & Page
Page
259

15

This page is intentionally left blank

Gloucester Playing Pitch Strategy
Artificial Grass Pitch Update
January 2019
Introduction
1.1

This update to the Artificial Grass Pitch Strategy (AGPS) has been prepared by the Playing
Pitch Strategy Delivery Group (PPSDG). The PPSDG was put in place following the
adoption of the Playing Pitch Strategy (PPS) by the Council and has core representation
from the following:










Gloucester City Council (GCC)
Sport England (SE)
Active Gloucestershire (AG)
Aspire Sports and Cultural Trust (ASCT)
Football Association (FA)
Rugby Football Union (RFU)
England and Wales Cricket Board (ECB)
England Hockey (EH)
Lawn Tennis Association (LTA)

Need for an update
1.2

An ‘Interim Review’ of the PPS was completed in September 2017 and endorsed by the
Council shortly after. The review concluded that at that time, the needs for artificial surfaces
in the city were as set out in the PPS, but the level of activity indicated it would likely be
necessary an update is required within 12 months.

1.3

Discussions with the PPSDG in March 2018 concluded a review was necessary. This is
because of the following reasons:




1.4

Increasing interest from various parties in new artificial surfaces to provide for different
needs;
Evidence from use at the new 3G surfaces at Oxstalls Sports Park that indicate there is a
need for additional facilities; and
Initiatives from the sports governing bodies that could create additional need.

Cricket clubs do not play or train on artificial pitch surfaces and their needs are not therefore
factored into this assessment.
Playing Pitch Strategy position

1.5

The adopted PPS (2016) calculated there was a need for the following artificial sports
surfaces in the city:



3 x full-sized 3G surfaces (all football compliant, 1 x ‘world rugby’ compliant); and
3 x full-sized sand-based surfaces (suitable for hockey play) with floodlighting.

1.6

The sand-based surfaces already exist in the city, but some require a new carpet. The
surfaces are located at Oxstalls Sports Park, Severn Vale School and St Peter’s School.

1.7

The associated AGPS sets out a strategy for the 3G surfaces to be located at a northern
sports hub at Oxstalls Sports Park and southern hub at Blackbridge. The existing sandbased surfaces will be retained and re-carpeted where necessary. Existing youth 3G
1

Page 261

surface at Abbeydale Community Centre and youth sand-based surface will also be
retained.
New artificial surfaces in Gloucester City
1.8

Since this time, the following developments have taken place:







2 x full sized 3G surfaces delivered at Oxstalls Sports Park as part of a University of
Gloucestershire development (both suitable for football play, one ‘World Rugby’
compliant). The facilities have secured community use with Community Use
Agreements in place and high usage that has resulted in a realignment of usage in order
to accommodate the needs of football, rugby and hockey;
1 x new sports hall delivered at the University of Gloucestershire, again with secured
community use. The hall can accommodate 12 badminton courts, or three netball /
basketball / 5-a-side football courts.
1 x ¾ 3G surface delivered at St Peters School (‘World Rugby’ compliant) for training
purposes. The pitch is also suitable for affiliated match play (Youth 11v11); and
1 x sand-based AGP resurfaced at St Peters School.
1 x sand-based AGP at King’s Schools (Archdeacon Meadow) granted planning
permission and under construction.

1.9

The emerging Blackbridge Sports and Community Hub project is being taken forward by
Active Gloucestershire, the City Council and a project group. The current proposal includes
the provision of a full-size 3G surface, other grass pitches and community facilities.

1.10

Based on the outcomes of the adopted PPS, two of the three 3G surfaces have been
delivered, as well as an additional training 3G surface and a full-sized sand-based surface is
under construction at King’s School.
Understanding future needs

1.11

To inform this assessment, each of the sports has re-considered the needs of their clubs.
This is set out below:
Football

1.12

The FA has an ‘AGP Mapping Model’, which, based on population figures and the number of
teams playing in the local authority area, provides a need figure for artificial surfaces based
on current and future needs for training and match play. The full calculation is provided at
Appendix 1 and concludes a need for up to an additional 2 full-sized 3G surfaces to provide
for the needs of football above and beyond those currently operating in the city. This is a net
increase of +1 compared to the adopted PPS.

1.13

Gloucester has been identified by the FA as a hotspot for increasing female participation in
football. The impact on demand of this initiative should be monitored and reviewed by the
PPS Delivery Group.

1.14

In addition, it is worth noting that The FA commissioned the preparation of Local Football
Facilities Plans (LFFP) for all local authorities by 2020. Gloucester City’s LFFP was
completed in December 2019 and identifies priority facility projects for potential investment
across The FA’s four national investment priorities; (1) 3G Football Turf Pitch, (2) Improved
grass pitches, (3) Changing rooms, pavilions and club houses, and (4) Small-sided facilities

2

Page 262

Rugby
1.16

At the time of writing, the RFU is considering Round 4 of its Rugby Turf Programme and
Gloucester City is identified as an area of interest. A feasibility exercise has been
undertaken, looking at likely demand from clubs and it has identified there is capacity for an
additional ‘World Rugby’ compliant 3G surface in the city.

1.17

A new facility is likely to be fully funded by the RFU on either a freehold club site or a long
lease of 30+ years; options for this are currently being considered.
Hockey

1.18

The City Council met with representatives from EH and the one major club in the city –
Gloucester City Hockey Club (GCHC). At the time of writing this AGP update, participation
levels are around the same as they were when information was collected as part of the PPS
in 2014/15 with between 260 and 300 players. The club currently plays and trains across
two sites in the city; Oxstalls Sports Park and St Peter’s Roman Catholic High School. In
addition, the club has limited usage for training purposes at Dean Close School, located in
Cheltenham achieved through individual personal contact with the facility provider. It is also
understood that match sessions have been secured at the new full-sized sand-based
surface at King’s School.

1.19

The club (GCHC) recently appointed a new chair and management team and has
aspirations to grow significant over the next five years. This includes a doubling of players to
become a 500+ club. EH consider this is achievable given Gloucester’s population and
‘untapped’ player opportunities at schools, the University and the community more widely.
The club intends to prepare a Development Plan over the next few months in order to take
this forward.

1.20

Both EH and GCHC agree that the club is currently underperforming in terms of the number
and demographic of players, which is not reflective of Gloucester. Key issues in preventing
the club to move forward are:



1.21

A lack of identity with the nomadic nature of the club in terms of having to play and train
at several locations and the absence of a clubhouse on site; and
A lack of engagement with the community, for example not having formal links with
schools and the university and different playing offerings.

At the present time, given the current position of the club, it would be inappropriate to identify
specific additional pitch requirements. However, it is clear that this may change in the near
future as the club implements its Development Plan and it is therefore important this is
monitored by the PPS Delivery Group.
Educational establishments

1.22

Since the adoption of the PPS and AGPS, engagement with schools has been maintained
with Active Gloucestershire on a needs led basis. The status for schools is as follows:



Barnwood Park Arts School: Expressed a desire for a new sports hall and Sport
England have been consulted on a design. This is an emerging proposal.
Kings School: At the time of writing, the school has submitted a planning application for
a new full sized sand-based AGP with floodlighting at their Archdeacon Meadow site. It
is understood the facility will provide some dedicated community use.

3

Page 263








Ribston Hall High School: An FA girls football hub, the school has expressed previous
interest in using Blackbridge.
Severn Vale High School: No specific needs identified however the existing sandbased AGP is in poor condition and needs resurfacing.
Gloucester Academy: It is understood the school has ambitions to grow sports
provision and this will continue to be monitored.
Crypt School: See reference to Blackbridge. The school has a desire to open up
existing indoor / outdoor facilities to capitalise on the Blackbridge development.
Sir Thomas Rich: No further needs identified.
St Peters High School: The existing sand-based facility has recently been resurfaced
and a new ¾ size 3G surface has recently been constructed and is operational.

Other needs
1.23

One ward in the city, Barton and Tredworth, has no playing pitches located within it, albeit it
is in close proximity to Gloucester Park. The City Council is currently working in partnership
with St James Church of England School, residents and community groups and has
established that a site called ‘The Glebe’ has the potential to provide for local needs,
including the potential for a youth sized artificial surface and ancillary facilities.
Cross-boundary

1.24

Gloucester is a tightly bound local authority with development on its periphery, located in the
neighbouring local authorities of Tewkesbury Borough Council and Stroud District Council.
In addition to this, the adopted Local Plans allocate strategic urban extensions to the north,
east and south of the City. These communities will be located within the ‘travel to play’ area
and need to be considered as part of this update.

1.25

At the present time, there is one full-sized sand-based surface at Brockworth School, to the
east of Gloucester City, which has secured community use. Further afield, there are two fullsized 3G surfaces located at Hartpury College, which again has some secured community
use and is sometimes used by Gloucester clubs.

1.26

Recent planning permissions in Tewkesbury Borough and District, but adjacent to
Gloucester will deliver a range of new sports facilities, but no artificial surfaces.

1.27

Tewkesbury Borough Council is nearing completion of a Sports, Social and Open Spaces
Study. This study concludes that whilst there is a need for additional artificial surfaces in the
Borough, that these are not required to the north of Gloucester City.

1.28

Stroud District Council has recently commissioned consultants to undertake a similar
assessment, but at the time of writing there are no tangible outputs. The results of the
assessment will be reviewed once available.
Conclusion on future needs

1.29

At the time of writing, there is an identified additional need for 1 x full-sized football compliant
3G surface and 1 x full sized ‘World Rugby’ compliant surface.

1.30

In terms of the full-sized football compliant surface, having regard to the PPS and an
understanding of where need currently exists, the Delivery Group is of the view it would best
be delivered at either Blackbridge or Waterwells Sports Centre.

4

Page 264

1.31

With regard to the ‘World Rugby’ compliant surface, RFU funding criteria require this to be
delivered on a freehold club site and discussions have already commenced in this regard.

1.32

There may also be a specific community need for a smaller artificial surface at the Glebe and
the City Council is currently working with the community to take this forward.

1.33

Notwithstanding the above, it is clear there is significant ongoing activity in and around the
city and will be necessary for the PPS Delivery Group to monitor this and review the AGP
Strategy as necessary.

1.34

Taking into account all of the above, the revised AGP Strategy to provide for the needs of
Gloucester is as follows:

Facility

Surface

Note

Northern Sports Hub
(Oxstalls Sports Park)

1 x full sized sand-based AGP.
2 x full-sized 3G AGPs (both
football compliant, 1 x World
Rugby’ compliant).
1 x full-sized 3G AGP

In situ.
Completed Autumn 2017 and
operational.

1 x full-sized sand-based AGP

Poor condition. To be
resurfaced and retained.
Recently resurfaced and to
be retained

Southern Sports Hub
(Blackbridge Sports and
Community Hub)
Severn Vale School
St Peters Roman
Catholic School
King’s School
(Archdeacon Meadow)
Waterwells Sports
Centre
To be confirmed
The Glebe

1 x full-sized sand-based AGP
1 x ¾ sized 3GAGP (World
Rugby Compliant)
1 x full-sized sand-based AGP
1 x full-sized 3G AGP
1 x full-sized 3G AGP (World
Rugby compliant)
1 x youth-sized AGP

Emerging proposal

In situ.
Completed winter 2018/19.
Proposed
RFU taking forward
Proposed

5

Page 265

This page is intentionally left blank

µ
µ

17

Playing Pitch Locations

Playing Pitch Strategy
Site outside Gloucester
City Boundary
17
75

39

46
21

Long levens

44
23

Long levens
0

72

65

15

Kilom et
res

1.
75

3.
5

33

49

33 66

60

Elm b ridg e

King sh olm &
W ot
t
on

2

10

20

25

W est
g at
e

50

3

26

41

19
61

4

Barnwood

Bart
on &
Tredwort
h

27

53

13

Moreland

69

5

12

Huc c lec ot
e

57

29

35
76

36

30
56

11
45

73

38
71

48

Podsm ead

51

59

22

24
31

42

1

Ab b ey

8

9

14

Mat
son &
Rob inswood

43

Q uedg eley
Sev
ern Vale

40

Tuf
f
ley

34
47
6

Grang e
54

52

Q uedg eley
Fieldc ourt

37
74

1-Ab b eydaleSport
s andCom m unit
yCent
re
2-Arc h deac on Meadow
3-Arm sc rof
tPark
4-BarnwoodBowling Club
5-BarnwoodPark Art
s Colleg e
6-Beauf
ortCom m unit
yAc adem y
8-Blac kb ridg ePlaying Field
9-Brit
ish Gas Sport
s Field(
Tuf
f
leyRovers AFC)
10-Caer GlowBowling Club
1
1-Cloc k Tower Park
12-ConeyHillPark
13-ConeyHillRFC
14-CryptSc h ool
15-Deb enh am s Sport
s Field
17-Dowt
ySport
s andSoc ialClub
19-Elm b ridg ePark
20-Elm b ridg ePlaying Field(
Sandyleaze)
21-GalaW ilt
on Foot
b allClub
22-Glevum W ayPark
23-Bish ops Colleg e
24-Glouc est
erAc adem y
25-Glouc est
erAllBlues RFC
26-Glouc est
er Cit
yBowling Club
27-Glouc est
er Park
29-Gordon Leag ueRFC
30-Hem pst
edRec reat
ion Ground
31-Heron Park
33-Hig h Sc h oolf
or Girls
34-Holm leig h Park
35-Huc c lec ot
ePlaying Field
36-King Georg eVPlaying Field

62

0

0.
5

1

2

3

4

37-King swayManor Farm
38-Lob leys DriveOpen Spac e
39-Long levens Rec reat
ion Ground
40-Mat
son Park
41-MeadowPark Glouc est
er Cit
yFC
42-Mem orialGround
43-MurrayHall
44-Oxst
alls Sport
s Park
45-ParryRoadPlaying Fields
46-Ploc k Court
47-Randwic k Park
48-Rib st
on HallHig h Sc h ool
49-RiversideSport
s &LeisureClub
50-SawMills EndPlaying Field
51-Saint
b ridg eRec reat
ion Ground
52-Severn ValeSc h ool
53-Sir Th om as Ric h Sport
s Cent
re
54-StPet
ers Rom an Cat
h olic Sc h ool
56-Th eLannet
t
57-Th eOaks
59-Tuf
f
leyPark
60-Universit
yofGlouc est
ersh ireOxst
alls Cam pus
61-W alls Sport
s &Soc ialClub
62-W at
erwells Sport
s Cent
re
65-King sh olm SquareLawn Tennis Club
66-Glouc est
er W ot
t
on Lawn Tennis Club
69-EDFEnerg y
71-MeadRoad(
Ab b eym eadPrim arySc h ool)
72-Long levens I
nf
antSc h ool
73-Th eOval
74-King swaySport
s Field
75-I
nnswort
h Lane
76-Birc h erAvenue/
Huc c lec ot
eRFC

Kilom et
res

5

Th is m ap is reproduc edf
rom Ordnanc eSurveym at
erialwit
h t
h eperm ission ofOrdnanc eSurveyon b eh alfoft
h eCont
roller ofHer Majest
y’s St
at
ioneryOf
f
ic e
© Crown c opyrig h t
.Unaut
h orizedreproduc t
ion inf
ring es Crown c opyrig h tandm ayleadt
o prosec ut
ion or c ivilproc eeding s.Lic enc eno 100019169.2015.

Page 267

Revised Date: 07/01/2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14

Meeting:

Cabinet

Subject:

Gloucester Railway Station

Report Of:

Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Economy

Wards Affected:

All

Key Decision:

Yes

Contact Officer:

Ian Edwards, Head of Place
Email: ian.edwards@gloucester.gov.uk
1. Final Draft Agreement

Appendices:

Date:

6 February 2019

Budget/Policy Framework:

No

Tel: 396829

FOR GENERAL RELEASE with the exception of Appendix 1 which contains exempt
information as defined by paragraph 3 of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972
(as amended) and therefore the public will be excluded from the discussion of Appendix 1.
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To the purpose of this Report is to seek approval to enter an agreement with First
Greater Western Limited (GWR) in the sum of £425,000 to progress the required
design work at Gloucester Railway Station.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet is asked to RESOLVE that the Council enter in to an agreement with First
Greater Western Limited (GWR) to deliver the necessary GRIP 1 - 5 stages of
project design including the provision of £425,000 funding to GWR in the form set
out in Appendix 1.

3.0

Background and Key Issues

3.1

Cabinet will recall that following a competitive bidding process, Gfirst LEP awarded
the Council a grant of £3.75m for the redevelopment of Gloucester Station.
However, it was made clear by Gfirst LEP that no funds would be available until1st
April 2020.

3.2

Therefore, to progress the scheme, it is recommend that the Council fund the early
stage design works in the sum of £425,000 and recover these costs from Gfirst LEP
on or shortly after the 1st April 2020.

3.3

The development of railway related projects are tightly governed by a project
management procedure known as Governance for Railway Projects or GRIP. GRIP
was developed to minimise and mitigate the risks associated with projects to
enhance or renew the operational railway. It is based on best practice within
industries that undertake major infrastructure projects and practice recommended
Page 269

Page | 1

by the bodies including the Association of Project Management (APM) and the
Chartered Institute of Building (CIOB).
3.4

To progress the project to the point at which a planning application can be made
and the construction works tendered, i.e. cost certainty, the project promoter will
progress through 5 of the 8 GRIP stages, namely:
(i)

Output definition

(ii)

Feasibility

(iii)

Option selection

(iv)

Single option development

(v)

Detailed design

3.5

The £425,000 referenced in the report recommendations relates to the delivery of
these stages.

3.6

As GWR are leaseholder of the station it would be appropriate for them to
undertake the work on their own assets. The Council’s role is to forward fund the
project as outlined in this report.

3.7

However, to ensure that our ambitions and vision for the railway station are
reflected in the design work, a Project Board will be established, chaired by a
Council representative, with additional input from a number of parties including the
County Council as highways authority.

3.8

The Council will enter in to an agreement with GWR which acts both as a financial
agreement and a definition of the precise roles of each party. The final draft of that
agreement is included as Appendix 1.

4.0

Asset Based Community Development (ABCD) Considerations

4.1

None directly.

5.0

Alternative Options Considered

5.1

Alternative options do exist for two aspects of this scheme.

5.2

The Council could wait until funds were available from Gfirst, ie 1st April 2020 and
commence the GRIP 1 – 5 stages at that point. This option is not recommended
given the likely delay of at least 12 months and the desire to maintain momentum
on regeneration projects across the City.

5.3

Secondly, the Council could appoint the design team direct. However, this option
isn’t recommended as not only do GWR have far greater experience implementing
railway station improvements but also given the significant engagement of Network
Rail throughout the process, the involvement of an established Training Operating
Company is likely to provide greater assurance.

6.0

Reasons for Recommendations

6.1

To progress the design elements of the redevelopment of Gloucester Railway
Station.
Page 270

Page | 2

7.0

Financial Implications

7.1

The £0.425m will enable the delivery of the project design of this project and is to
be funded from the £3.75m awarded by GFirst LEP for this project. There are no
additional costs to the Council, this request is to cash flow the design phase from
internal funds before being reimbursed by the LEP. With interest rates at current
levels the implications are marginal in enabling this project.
(Financial Services has been consulted in the preparation of this Report)

8.0

Legal Implications

8.1

The Council would be relying on the ‘power of competency’ under Section 1 of the
Localism Act 2011 to enter into the proposed arrangement with GWR.

8.2

As with all financial assistance given to third parties, the council needs to be mindful
of state aid. The consequences of giving unlawful state aid is that there would be an
investigation by the Government and a requirement upon the recipient of the
assistance to repay it to the funder with interest.
(One Legal has been consulted in the preparation of this Report)

9.0

Risk & Opportunity Management Implications

9.1

The most significant risk arising from this Report relates to the ability of the Council
to recover the costs incurred from GFirst LEP on or shortly after the 1st April 2020
as Gfirst LEP are unable to enter in to a contract with the Council in advance of
funds becoming available. However, all indications from Government suggest that
the 2020/21 funding programme will be honoured and the LEP will be able to meet
its commitments, including those relating to the Railway Station.

9.2

A less significant risk is the ability of the Council to influence the design team to
deliver a scheme consistent with our ambitions and in keeping with the high quality
of the new Gloucester Transport Hub. This risk is mitigated through the agreement
and through the Councils’ role in the Project Board.

10.0

People Impact Assessment (PIA)

10.1

The actions proposed in this Report will benefit the residents and businesses in the
City through the provision of an improved Railway Station providing significantly
enhanced access.

10.2

The PIA Screening Stage was completed and did not identify any potential or actual
negative impacts; therefore a full PIA was not required.

11.0

Other Corporate Implications
Community Safety

11.1

All design work undertaken adopt the principles of designing out crime.

Page 271

Page | 3

Sustainability
11.2

The current Station Building is of a poor design quality and the provision of a
redeveloped facility will greatly improve its sustainability.
Staffing and Trade Union

11.3

None

Background Documents: None

Page 272

Page | 4

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 273

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 16

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 283

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 289

This page is intentionally left blank

